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FIVE-YFAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
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Honorary Chairman

Mr LIU Lit Man, GBS, JP, FIBA

Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Dr LIU Lit Mo, LLD, MBE, JP
(Chairman)

Mr LIU Lit Chi
(Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)

Mr LAU Wai Man
(Chief Executive Officer)

Mr Don Tit Shing LIU
(Deputy Chief Executive Officer)

Mr Wilfred Chun Ning LIU

Non-executive Directors

Mr HE Jiale

Mr Hidekazu HORIKOSHI

Mr Christopher Kwun Shing LIU
Mr Alfred Cheuk Yu CHOW, BBS, JP

Mr MENG Qinghui

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr Robin Yau Hing CHAN, GBS, LLD, JP
Mr Timothy George FRESHWATER
Mr Wanchai CHIRANAKHORN

Mr CHENG Yuk Wo

Mr Andrew Chiu Cheung MA

Other Deputy Chief Executive Officers

Mr TSANG Chiu Wing

Information Technology Division

Mr WONG Har Kar

Credit Risk Management Division
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as of 7 March 2013
il General Managers
JEERE S AR Mr Patrick Siu Cheung WAT
BERTE Retail Banking Division
s RE S Mr Frederick Hoi Kit CHAN
Vg A=kt Finance & Treasury Management Division
REMEeA Mr Kevin Wai Hung CHU
&g Wealth Management Division
Bi s Mr Michael Kin Wah YEUNG
EFEHBE Corporate Affairs Division
2 ) B A R Company Secretary & Legal Counsel
At Ms Teresa Yuen Wah LEE
IR TRV Corporate & Commercial Banking Division
ok b= R Registered Office
A HE R b =g Ground Floor, Chong Hing Bank Centre
AP T O R 24 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
FERG 1 (852) 3768 1111 Telephone  : (852) 3768 1111
f8{EL @ (852) 3768 1888 Facsimile @ (852) 3768 1888
& : 75700 LCHB HX Telex : 75700 LCHB HX
BERSRTIA B : LCHBHKHH ~ SWIFT BIC : LCHB HK HH
#44k : http://www.chbank.com Website : http://www.chbank.com
TR : info@chbank.com E-mail : info@chbank.com pphone uich vt acces cone

Principal Legal Advisers

Anthony Chiang & Partners
Deacons

K C Ho & Fong

Kwan & Chow

Auditors

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Stock Codes and Short Names

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s Stock Codes and Short Names
in respect of the Bank’s (i) shares and (ii) subordinated notes due 2020
are (i) 01111 (CHONG HING BANK) and (ii) 04327 (CH BANK N2011),
respectively.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DATA ABOUT DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Board of Directors
Executive Directors

# Dr LIU Lit Mo, LLD, MBE, JP

aged 75, is the Chairman of the Bank. He was appointed a Director in 1958
and was a Deputy Managing Director of the Bank from 1961 to 1973.
Dr Liu is also the Chairman and Managing Director of Liu Chong Hing
Investment Limited and a Director of China Motor Bus Company Limited.
As for community service, Dr Liu was the Chairman of Tung Wah Group of
Hospitals in 1967 and is now serving as an Adviser of the Group. He had
also been President of the Hong Kong Chiu Chow Chamber of Commerce,
Chairman of Hong Kong Football Association and District Governor of
District 3450, Rotary International. Presently, he is a member of the Board
of Trustees of United College, The Chinese University of Hong Kong and a
Manager of Liu Po Shan Memorial College. He was awarded Silver Jubilee
medal by Her Majesty the Queen in 1977. Dr Liu was conferred an Honorary
Doctor’s degree in Laws by the Lingnan University in 2005.

# Mr LIU Lit Chi

aged 73, is the Deputy Chairman and Managing Director of the Bank.
Mr Liu has served the Bank for more than 50 years and was Chief Executive
Officer of the Bank from 25 April 2002 to 6 March 2013. Mr Liu, who was
educated in Hong Kong and the United Kingdom, has been appointed as a
Director since 1958 and an Executive Director since 1961. Mr Liu has also
been an Executive Director of Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited, a public
listed company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, since 1972
and holds directorship in a number of companies in Hong Kong and elsewhere.

Mr LAU Wai Man

aged 54, is an Executive Director of the Bank and has been appointed its
Chief Executive Officer since 7 March 2013. He holds a Bachelor of Law
degree and a Master of Business Administration degree. Mr Lau is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a Certified
Financial Planner®™. He was a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a senior associate of the Australian Institute of Bankers.
Mr Lau joined the Bank as its Chief Auditor in 1988 and became a Director
of the Bank in August 2001. He was a Deputy Chief Executive Officer of
the Bank from 11 July 2007 to 6 March 2013. Before joining the Bank, he
had worked for an international bank and an international accounting firm.
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# Mr Don Tit Shing LIU

aged 50, is an Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive Officer
supervising of the Corporate & Commercial Banking Division and the Wealth
Management Division of the Bank. He graduated from Oxford University
and is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England & Wales and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr Liu joined the Bank in 1992.

Mr Wilfred Chun Ning LIU

aged 51, is an Executive Director in charge of the Securities Business Division
of the Bank. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Economics from University of
Newcastle-upon-Tyne (UK). He joined the Bank in 1993 and became a
Director in 1998.

Non-executive Directors

Mr HE Jiale

aged 58, has been a Non-executive Director of the Bank since May 2012.
He is the Financial Controller of COSCO (Hong Kong) Group Limited and
a director of certain subsidiaries of China COSCO Holdings Company
Limited. Mr He joined the COSCO Group in 1974. He was the Chief
Accountant of COSCO Container Lines Company Limited in 1998 and
the Financial Controller of COSCO (Hong Kong) Group Limited in 2003.
He was also an Executive Director of COSCO Pacific Limited and COSCO
International Holdings Limited during 2003 to 2005 and 2003 to 2006
respectively. Mr He had been the Deputy Director of the Finance Division
of Shanghai Ocean Shipping Company, the Deputy General Manager of
Finance Department of the COSCO Container Lines, the Deputy General
Manager of Finance and Capital Department of China Ocean Shipping
(Group) Company, the Chief Accountant of COSCO Container Lines
Company Limited and the Chief Financial Officer of China COSCO Holdings
Company Limited. Mr He has over 30 years of experience in the shipping
industry and has extensive experience in corporate finance and finance
management. Mr He graduated from the postgraduate studies of Management

Science and Engineering from Shanghai University. He is a senior accountant.
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Mr Hidekazu HORIKOSHI

aged 51, has been a Non-executive Director of the Bank since August 2012.
Mr Horikoshi is the Executive Officer, Regional Head for Hong Kong
and General Manager of The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd, Hong
Kong Branch. He joined The Bank of Tokyo, Ltd (currently The Bank of
Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd) in 1984 and has more than 28 years of experience
in banking. Mr Horikoshi’s experience lies in corporate banking, corporate
planning and global banking activities. During this period, Mr Horikoshi
was appointed to work in Planning Division for the Americas in United States
of America and Global Planning Division in Tokyo, Japan as Deputy General
Manager, and served as the General Manager of European Business Division
in London, United Kingdom. Mr Horikoshi graduated from Hitotsubashi
University in 1984 with a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics and McGill
University in Montreal, Canada with Master of Business Administration’s
Degree in 1990.

Mr Christopher Kwun Shing LIU

aged 37, has been a Director of the Bank since the year 2000. Mr Liu
is also an Executive Director of Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited
(the Bank’s parent company) (the “Company”), a post which he has held
since August 2008 following a re-designation from his previous role since
2000 as Non-executive Director of the Company and Alternate Director
to Dr Liu Lit Chung (who is a Non-executive Director of the Company).
A holder of a Master of Arts degree in Jurisprudence from the University
of Oxford, Mr Liu is a qualified solicitor in both England & Wales and
Hong Kong. Prior to his joining Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited on a
full-time basis, he was a partner of Deacons in Hong Kong focusing
on corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions and private equity matters,
and currently remains as an advisory legal counsel of the international law

firm.

Mr Liu is a member of the Foshan Municipal Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (CPPCC) as well as a Director
of Beijing Chinese Overseas Friendship Association (COFA). Mr Liu
is also a Director of Hong Kong Chiu Chow Chamber of Commerce,
an Executive Director of Guangdong Chamber of Foreign Investors,
a Vice-chairman of Foshan Investment Chamber of Private Entreprises,
a board member of Entrepreneurs’ Organisation (Hong Kong) and
a consultant to Entrepreneurs’ Organisation (China South). With a passion
for the betterment of society and education, he is also a member of the
Institutional Review Board of Hong Kong University / Hospital Authority
Hong Kong West Cluster and a school manager of Liu Po Shan Memorial
College.
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Mr Alfred Cheuk Yu CHOW, BBS, JP

aged 62, has been a member of the Board since February 2003, was
redesignated from Independent Non-executive Director to Non-executive
Director of the Bank in September 2004. He graduated from the University
of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Laws degree and a Master of Social Sciences
(Public Administration) degree. With 17 years working experience in the
civil service and over 30 years as a solicitor, Mr Chow is presently the senior
partner of Kwan & Chow, Solicitors, a law firm in Hong Kong. He is also a
China-Appointed Attesting Officer.

Mr MENG Qinghui

aged 57, has been a member of the Board since March 2008. Mr Meng is the
Managing Director of Finance Division of COSCO (Hong Kong) Group
Limited. Mr Meng graduated from Central South University and has the
PRC accountant qualification. He has extensive experience in corporate
financial management and accounting and is also familiar with corporate

financial planning.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr Robin Yau Hing CHAN, GBS, LLD, JP

aged 80, a member of the Board since October 1981, was redesignated from
Non-executive Director to Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank
in April 2005. Dr Chan is the Ex-officio Life Honorary Chairman of
The Chinese General Chamber of Commerce, Hong Kong and the
Vice Chairman of All-China Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese.
He is also the Founding Chairman and President of the Hong Kong Federation
of Overseas Chinese Associations, the Honorary Chairman of the China
Federation of Overseas Chinese Entrepreneurs and the Executive Vice
Chairman of the China Overseas Chinese Entrepreneurs Association.
Dr Chan was a Deputy to The National People’s Congress of the People’s
Republic of China from March 1988 to February 2008. Dr Chan was awarded
the Knight Commander (Second Class) of the Most Noble Order of the Crown
of Thailand by His Majesty, the King of Thailand and the Gold Bauhinia
Star by the Government of the HKSAR in 2000. Dr Chan was conferred
with the Honorary University Fellowships by Hong Kong Baptist University
and the University of Hong Kong in 2010 and 2011 respectively.



2o ' OB

CORPORATE INFORMATION
HoF—=F=HEH

as of 7 March 2013

PR 325U N

AN BF—_4/\H/N\H
e AR T 2 IR H B T A T
JERBE S o WARAEYR ZFFWE
JUH BIARERAT I S JF s s A Ik
WHES » LIRS Ty
JWRER I EEMARE XA
HHGIFETE o WhEN HEBG
PR ZEgmNERESRERE Y
JRE o WS B — A
CEM) HREEAE 2B EH
HFFJUE-% Grosvenor Asia
Pacific Limited ZFFPAT RS © fE5E4E
WA — UAUEE BB BIE T
TRE BB ER o Woed LBl &
P > MEREAMEEERE -
WA REERBBARE > BN —I
AN BB P A A 1T & Sy e i
o IR U R
IANERZBFREMBMMANS
o

o TR e

L+=E5 B—UNETL AR 2
AT SLIE R B EE > BUEHRE
225 C Wans Assets Co, Ltd HFE »
HE®BB - T AFEBFERIITER
BB o BB AT — U I R
HHEE R YAEFE - H
2 K B ARG R % TR BRAT AR -
— AR MAARET » WR—
NCERREE o JR—IUIUH AR
APRATHT R B HE > LE N
EHBIEA > WhRER—-IILAESE
AHE—JUNEIH BRI 259
WHEHR o

Mr Timothy George FRESHWATER

aged 68, has been redesignated from Non-executive Director to Independent
Non-executive Director of the Bank since 8 August 2012. Mr Freshwater
had been redesignated from Independent Non-executive Director, an office
that he had held since April 1997 when he first joined the Board, to
Non-executive Director of the Bank in September 2004. He is also a member
of the Investment Committee on Asia Opportunity Fund, an ad hoc committee
of the Board. He is an Advisory Director of Goldman Sachs (Asia) LLC
(since 2012) and Non-executive Chairman of Grosvenor Asia Pacific Limited
(since 2008). He was the Chairman of Jardine Fleming (from 1999 to 2000).
He is a solicitor in the United Kingdom and Hong Kong and is a past President
of the Law Society of Hong Kong. After graduating from Cambridge
University, he joined the international law firm Slaughter and May in 1967
and remained with them for 29 years before joining the Jardine Fleming
group during 1996 and 2000.

Mr Wanchai CHIRANAKHORN

aged 73, an Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank since September
1998, is the Chairman of Executive Board of Directors of C Wans Assets Co,
Ltd. He has more than 25 years of experience as an international banker.
Upon graduation from Baptist College, Hong Kong in 1964, he served in
banks in Hong Kong, London, Bangkok and Malaysia. He joined the Bank
in 1985 and became a Director in 1987. Before his departure in May 1995,
Mr Chiranakhorn served as an Executive Director in charge of the Overseas
Business Development Department. He was a Non-executive Director from
May 1995 to September 1998.
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Mr CHENG Yuk Wo

aged 52, has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank since
September 2004. Mr Cheng is also a member of the Bank’s Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee. Mr Cheng, a co-founder of a Hong Kong
merchant banking firm, is currently the proprietor of a certified public
accountant practice in Hong Kong. Mr Cheng obtained a Master of Science
(Economics) degree in Accounting and Finance from the London School of
Economics, England and a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) degree in Accounting
from the University of Kent, England. He is a fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, and a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Ontario, Canada. Mr Cheng has more than 20 years of
expertise in financial and corporate advisory services in mergers, acquisitions
and investments. He had worked at Coopers and Lybrand (now known as
PricewaterhouseCoopers) in London and Swiss Bank Corporation (now
known as UBS AG) in Toronto, and held senior management positions in a
number of Hong Kong listed companies. Mr Cheng also serves as a Director
for certain other listed companies.

Mr Andrew Chiu Cheung MA

aged 71, has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank since
August 2007. Mr Ma is a founder and former director of AMA CPA Limited
(formerly known as Andrew Ma DFK (CPA) Limited). He is presently a
Director of Mayee Management Limited. Mr Ma has more than 30 years’
experience in the field of accounting, auditing and finance. He received his
Bachelor’s degree in economics from The London School of Economics and
Political Science (University of London) in England. Mr Ma is a fellow
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales,
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors and The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He is currently
also an Independent Non-executive Director of several other listed companies
in Hong Kong.

Other Deputy Chief Executive Officers

Mr TSANG Chiu Wing

aged 55, has been appointed as a Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the
Bank since 7 March 2013 and is in charge of its Information Technology
Division. He holds a Master of Science degree in Electronic Commerce
and Internet Computing from the University of Hong Kong, and is a member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr Tsang joined the Bank in 2000. He was an Executive Director of the
Bank from 17 August 2005 to 30 December 2012. Before joining the Bank,
he held senior positions in an international accounting firm and a major
international bank in Hong Kong.
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Mr WONG Har Kar

aged 60, has been appointed as a Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the
Bank since 7 March 2013 and is in charge of its Credit Risk Management
Division. He is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
& Wales and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr Wong joined the Bank in 2002. He was an Executive
Director of the Bank from 17 August 2005 to 30 December 2012. Before
joining the Bank, he held senior positions in an international accounting

firm and a major international bank in Hong Kong.

General Managers

Mr Patrick Siu Cheung WAT

aged 59, General Manager, is the head of Retail Banking Division. He holds
a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of Hong Kong in 1975.
He has held senior positions in Finance, Business Development, Operations,
Internal Control and Quality functions with major US banks in Hong Kong
and the United Kingdom. He has been trained in TQM (Total Quality
Management) and as Black Belt in Six Sigma quality programs. Mr Wat is
also responsible for change management and productivity improvements since

joining the Bank in 2003.

Mr Frederick Hoi Kit CHAN

aged 52, General Manager, is the head of Finance and Treasury Management
Division. He graduated from Imperial College, University of London in
Computing Science and obtained a Master of Business Administration degree
from Henley Management College, United Kingdom. He is a fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales, a member of BCS,
The Chartered Institute for IT and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr Chan has more than 30 years of experience
in the financial services industry and worked for an international accounting
firm and major international banks in London and Hong Kong in financial

reporting and strategic management before joining the Bank in 2004.
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Mr Kevin Wai Hung CHU

aged 55, General Manager, is the head of Wealth Management Division.
He graduated from Columbia University with a Master degree in Engineering.
He has 30 years of financial services experience and worked for a number of
major international banks in their corporate banking and private banking
departments. Mr Chu joined the Bank in April 2008.

Mr Michael Kin Wah YEUNG

aged 56, General Manager of the Corporate Affairs Division, obtained a
Bachelor of Arts degree in legal studies, political science and philosophy
from Rice University (Texas, USA) in 1980 and a Doctor of Jurisprudence
degree from the School of Law of The University of Texas at Austin (Texas,
USA) in 1983. Mr Yeung, who is registered in the Master Roll of Attorneys
maintained by the Supreme Court of Illinois in the United States, had served
as the Company Secretary of FPB Bank Holding Company Limited
(the then Hong Kong-listed banking arm of the First Pacific Group) and
South China Morning Post (Holdings) Limited (now known as SCMP Group
Limited) before resuming his position as the Company Secretary of the Bank
in 1997.

Ms Teresa Yuen Wah LEE

aged 59, General Manager, is the head of Corporate and Commercial Banking
Division. She holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences degree in Economics,
Business Administration and Finance from the University of Hong Kong in
1977 and a MBA degree from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1984.
She has more than 30 years of experience in the banking industry in Hong
Kong and Australia. She has held various senior positions with two major
international banks and a major local bank prior to joining the Bank in 2005.

Member of the Liu’s family



E 2 om R

ABRIDGED CORPORATE STRUCTURE
REZFE—-=Z4F=HLH

as of 7 March 2013

BEREBHRAR EHEEEERAR HittixEE

Liu’s Holdings Limited Alba Holdings Limited Other investors

43.81% 11.92% 44.27%

|
L BREGCEERAT J

Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited

100%

BRIEEXFRAR
Liu Chong Hing
Estate Company, Limited

9.66% 50.20% 20% 20.14%

thiE (F8) EEERAR
(iZ# Bauhinia 97 Limited)

COSCO (Hong Kong) Group Limited

(via Bauhinia 97 Limited)

ZERRUFJERTT
The Bank of
Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd

Hittix & &

Other investors

BIERTERAT
Chong Hing Bank Limited

100% 100% 100% 100%

BIRERERAR
Chong Hing Insurance
Company Limited

BIEESERAR
Chong Hing
Securities Limited

ARERPEERARC
Chong Hing Commodities
and Futures Limited

BB BERAR
Chong Hing
Finance Limited

Hit AR
Other companies

* RE RGP AR S Al _E T
Listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

@ FFBLTAE A RS fl ik i 2 8
Registered with The Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited as a participant

U Zriltlii & 3 50 I IR 23 i i 28 B
Registered with The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as a participant

\ BUTRIEGIT Z FFBE R 75 A ]

Licensed under the Banking Ordinance as a deposit-taking company

# (REg 2 FIlEDIT Z R R B 2 ]

Licensed under the Insurance Companies Ordinance as an insurance company
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SHARE TRADING SUMMARY

BE_F - ZH=E1T—HILFE
for the year ended 31 December 2012

AL ERAT A B2 R By * i - — AR 4R AE
I & A A w] (IR 0) Z HERSTT -
Trading of shares in Chong Hing Bank Limited*
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKSE”) during 2012 is summarised below:

B (e % CGtEoe) (KT
(GEIZRE-L Q) AR (AN
Rty Unit Price (HK$) Monthly Turnover Hang Seng Index*
Month (average for the month) (average for the month)
i e 5311 e JBe %8 HLTH e
Open High Low Close Number of Shares HK$ Close
—H January 13.985 14.069 13.882 13.986 875,599 12,316,501 19,455.82
| February 14.085 14.166 13.979 14.043 4,047,073 56,833,184 21,128.47
=H March 14.035 14.120 13.946 14.016 5,068,301 71,872,544 21,013.01
[LP=] April 13.759 13.876 13.698 13.823 1,598,897 22,289,110 20,665.78
hH May 13.244 13.310 13.154 13.239 1,489,021 20,047,264 19,615.19
~H June 12.427 12.481 12.331 12.390 1,163,000 14,402,340 18,940.27
tA July 12.383 12.432 12.315 12.388 807,315 10,026,109 19,372.26
\H August 12.667 12.734 12.624 12.680 631,176 8,013,401 19,946.19
LA September | 12.720 12.794 12.691 12.749 660,910 8,417,706 20,226.75
+A October 13.067 13.161 12.996 13.125 4,686,461 62,997,906 21,293.33
+—H November 13.939 14.230 13.886 14.089 7,668,824 118,159,847 21,650.18
+—H December 16.146 16.357 15.966 16.106 3,155,341 51,283,483 22,406.19
EHERL 13.538 13.644 13.456 13.553 2,654,326 38,054,950 20,476.12
Average for the year
%y e i — e
IR (1) 0000000 THREEII GBI o0 EWEBEAMD 00
Authorised share capital (shares) Unit par value (HK$) Listing date (dd/mm/yyyy)
AT R AU RAS (B) 435,000,000 HEHL 0)) cr000 BB b U L 01111
Issued and fully-paid share capital (shares) Board lot (shares) HKSE stock code
W22 e £ PR ¢ RIELERAT
HKSE stock short name : CHONG HING BANK
RN (E5E) (H/A) :18.000 (30/11) S I (E5T) (H/ A4 £ 27.600 (15/07/1997)
Year high (HK$) (dd/mm) Historic high (HK$) (dd/mm/yyyy)
=) T =) T
FRIIE GED) (HIT) 15 080 (25006, 26/06) FESEIE G0 (HTRTE) 5650 (24/08/1998)
Year low (HKS$) (dd/mm) Historic low (HKS$) (dd/mm/yyyy)
# == 1==o
FRRLE (HIR) . ) 60833 (31/12) SRR (HIRT) 5 95841 (30110/2007)
Year high (dd/mm) Historic high (dd/mm/yyyy)
PP CHIRD 15 056,40 (04106) 2E (B/AI%) 110000 (31/07/1964)
Year low (dd/mm) Base value (dd/mm/yyyy)
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—%F——4E/\HN\H
8 August 2012

e VAVE ey LIS
24 August 2012

“E AR+ AHESAH
(HRWRIEN)

18 through 20 September 2012
(both days inclusive)

“HE-THEAATAEH
27 September 2012

“EF—-Z4EZALH
7 March 2013

“F-=#=AZ1+N\H
28 March 2013

ZE-ZHERAZHEARH
(EREMRIEN)

3 through 6 May 2013
(both days inclusive)

“HF-=ZHHhHNH
8 May 2013

“B-ZFAH+AHES—H
(EHRHRIEA)

16 through 21 May 2013
(both days inclusive)

“E-ZHRHATNH

24 May 2013

= [ =St 3 o £84 24 8 B S

Interim results for the first half of 2012 announced.

A EF - R R
Interim Report 2012 despatched.

JRe S P s e > DU R B SR MR rP B S i i
Register of Members closed for the purpose of ascertaining interim cash
dividend entitlements.

IRFE —F — AR BB S R 0.11 5T
Interim cash dividend for 2012 of HK$0.11 per share paid.

Bl B — AR R

Final results for the year of 2012 announced.

AFar th =% — AR
Annual Report 2012 will be despatched.

B S0 PR R 45 T > DARESE 5 A% HH RS B A RS % — AR IR U 4
K& BRI BER

Register of Members will be closed for the purpose of ascertaining entitlements
to attend and vote at the 2013 Annual General Meeting.

RT B - SR RHEE RS
2013 Annual General Meeting will be held.

WME BT % — AR OB A R & Bt > RS PO R S R
DI 52 e B0 ME Mo iz A 0T B <53 Je S

If approved by shareholders at the 2013 Annual General Meeting, Register of
Members will be closed for the purpose of ascertaining entitlements to receive
the final cash dividend.

WHE B T % — AR O AR R & Bt > IR F — AR R
Bl b SR #E ¥ 0.35 5T

If approved by shareholders at the 2013 Annual General Meeting, the final
cash dividend for 2012 of HK$0.35 per share will be paid.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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Fe g
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(h) Bk :

() —JBelh b M Pt i B 6
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T R BRI AT AT
I ERES T DU E B 5

(b) #R¥% Eali(a) Bz b » W AE
7 w5 38 9 P A5 PR 2 6] 51
R EE S LRGSR
ZEOMEEREZATHER
2 ) MR B A B i Il < 1
H B R T 2 B Al 5 2L S
Wi B 2 AN BRAT B AN i {48 7
B AN 5 208 % 20 28 7N e e
> ARETT O BT IR A HI{E
MEzvraszt o mbikz
o I BTG 28 52 B R 5 R

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the annual general meeting of the
shareholders of Chong Hing Bank Limited (the “Bank”) for the year of 2013
will be held on the 27th Floor, Chong Hing Bank Centre, 24 Des Voeux Road
Central, Hong Kong on Wednesday, 8 May 2013 at 11:15 am for the purposes
of conducting the following items of ordinary and special business:

Ordinary business

As ordinary business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass ordinary resolutions
in respect of the following matters:

(1) To receive and adopt the Financial Statements and the Reports of the
Directors and Auditors for the year ended 31 December 2012.

(2) To declare the final cash dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012.

(3) To re-elect directors and fix their and the other directors’ fee.

(4) To re-appoint auditors and authorise the directors to fix the auditors’
remuneration.

Special business

As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass, with or without
modification, the following ordinary resolutions:

(5) THAT

(a) the exercise by the board of directors during the Relevant Period of all
the powers of the Bank to purchase Shares, subject to and in accordance
with all applicable laws, be and is hereby generally and unconditionally
approved;

(b) the aggregate nominal amount of Shares which may be purchased on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited or any other stock
exchange recognised for this purpose by the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited under the Hong Kong Code on Share Repurchases pursuant
to the approval in paragraph (a) above shall not exceed 10 per cent of
the aggregate nominal amount of Shares in issue at the date of the
passing of this resolution, and the said approval be and is hereby
limited accordingly; and
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(c) for the purpose of this resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this resolution
until whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Bank;

(ii) the expiration of the period within which the next annual general
meeting of the Bank is required by law to be held; or

(iii) the revocation or variation of the authority given under this
resolution by ordinary resolution of the shareholders in general

meeting.

“Shares” means shares of all classes in the capital of the Bank
including, without limitation, shares of HK$0.50 each of the Bank.

(6) THAT

(a)

(b

~

subject to paragraph (c), the exercise by the board of directors of the
Bank during the Relevant Period of all the powers of the Bank to allot,
issue and deal with additional shares in the capital of the Bank and to
make or grant offers, agreements and options which might require the
exercise of such powers be and is hereby generally and unconditionally
approved;

the approval in paragraph (a) shall authorise the board of directors of
the Bank during the Relevant Period to make or grant offers, agreements
and options which would or might require the exercise of such power
after the end of the Relevant Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed
conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant to
an option or otherwise) by the board of directors of the Bank pursuant
to the approval in paragraph (a), otherwise than pursuant to (i) any
Rights Issue, (ii) any scrip dividend or similar arrangement providing
for the allotment and issue of shares in lieu of the whole or part of a
dividend on shares of the Bank in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Bank, or (iii) any exercise of options granted under
any share option scheme of the Bank, shall not exceed the aggregate
of:
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(aa) 20 per cent of the aggregate nominal amount of the shares in the
capital of the Bank in issue at the date of the passing of this
resolution; and

(bb) (if the board of directors is so authorised by a separate ordinary
resolution of the shareholders of the Bank) the nominal amount
of any share capital of the Bank repurchased by the Bank
subsequent to the passing of this resolution,

and the said approval be and is hereby limited accordingly; and

(d) for the purpose of this resolution:

“Relevant Period”” means the period from the passing of this resolution
until whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Bank;

(ii) the expiration of the period within which the next annual general
meeting of the Bank is required by law to be held; or

(iii) the revocation or variation of the authority given under this
resolution by ordinary resolution of the shareholders in general

meeting.

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a period fixed by the
board of directors of the Bank to holders of shares of the Bank or any
class thereof on the register on a fixed record date in proportion to
their then holdings of such shares or class thereof (subject to such
exclusion or other arrangements as the board of directors of the Bank
may deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements
or having regard to any restrictions or obligations under the laws of,
or the requirements of any recognised regulatory body or any stock
exchange in, any territory outside Hong Kong).
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(L) B AR TE RS > AR (7) THAT the board of directors of the Bank be and are hereby authorised to

REHE S NEEANHPGESR (o) B (bb) exercise the powers of the Bank referred to in paragraph (a) of the resolution
53 Bl 2 AN ERAT IR AN o ATl % set out as Resolution 6 in the notice convening this meeting in respect of
PR R (@) Bl AR BT Z HETT © the share capital of the Bank referred to in sub-paragraph (bb) of paragraph

(c) of that resolution.

PEZs R SHIE > BRI EEA (T As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass, with or without
DUEETHE) R 2Rl s modification, the following special resolution:

(\) i AR TAH AR S RRANHIES 12666 (8) THAT the Article 126 of the Articles of Association of the Bank be and is

BB ZAE ST AR (LUK R J 4
BRIz 3) !

M126. HBFFEZHERER—HIE
(RLFE A 28 Rl M D 5 B AT o] TE 0
EI5g) » HaZEN s ] fE A s
T E R E R R
FHLAER DT T A B ED 3
WA SRS () A
b B B — B R R
ﬁ%%ﬁm @_ﬁAiMw’

ﬁﬁA_ﬁgﬂZ ﬁﬁ%@?ﬁ
— MR R (AR
] RE R 25 B 5 5 X B
FIRR) - b 52 B 27 BR AT ] L fib
Tz i 27 v DA B e 51 Wl oz
H At B gl 75 i I 55 4 07 A
oA i A T A L3808 o
JL BAZAS 5 o 200 B0 46 SC e B2 T 5%
WL S R 2y B RE
PR T R AL © g

amended with changes boldfaced and underlined for easy reference as

follows:

“126. The Board shall provide for the safe custody of every seal (including
the common seal and any official seal of the Company) which shall only
be used by the authority of the Board or of a committee of the Board
authorised by the Board in that behalf, and every instrument to which a
seal shall be affixed either (i) shall be signed by a Director and shall be
countersigned by the Secretary or by a second Director or by one other
person appointed by the Board for the purpose, or (ii), in lieu thereof,

shall be signed by any two persons appointed by the Board for the
purpose, provided that the Board may either generally or in any particular

case or cases resolve (subject to such restrictions as to the manner in which
the seal may be affixed as the Board may determine) that such signatures
or any of them may be affixed to certificates for shares or debentures or
representing any other form of security by some mechanical means other
than autographic to be specified in such resolution or that such certificates
need not be signed by any person. Every instrument executed in the manner
provided by this Article shall be conclusively deemed to be sealed and

executed with the authority of the Directors previously given.”

HithFmm CRamEs) Any other ordinary business g
Ou) BEHEARITHAME WEIE(FES (9 To transact other ordinary business (if any). %
) o =

E

=

<

i e By Order of the Board ]
B Michael K W Yeung E’
PATEp7e= Company Secretary —IE
-

8
—“H-ZHEZAHAH 28 March 2013 £
T
2

2
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Notes:

®

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the 2013 annual general meeting of the
shareholders is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his stead. A proxy
does not have to be a shareholder of the Bank. Forms of proxy are to be lodged
with the registered office of the Bank at Ground Floor, Chong Hing Bank Centre,
24 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong not later than 48 hours before the time for
the holding of the 2013 annual general meeting of the shareholders and any
adjournment thereof.

For the purpose of ascertaining the Shareholders who are entitled to attend and
vote at the 2013 annual general meeting of the shareholders, the register of members
of the Bank will be closed from Friday, 3 May 2013 to Monday, 6 May 2013
(both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares can be registered.
In order to qualify for attending and voting at the 2013 annual general meeting of
the shareholders, all transfer documents, together with the relevant share certificates,
must be lodged for registration with the Bank’s share registrar and transfer office,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited of Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than
4:30 pm on Thursday, 2 May 2013.

For the purpose of ascertaining the Shareholders who qualify to receive the final
cash dividend, the register of members of the Bank will be closed from Thursday,
16 May 2013 to Tuesday, 21 May 2013 (both days inclusive), during which period
no transfer of shares can be registered. In order to qualify for receiving the final
cash dividend in question, all transfer documents, together with the relevant share
certificates, must be lodged for registration with the Bank’s share registrar and
transfer office, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited of Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong,
not later than 4:30 pm on Wednesday, 15 May 2013.

The Bank’s Annual Report 2012 includes an Explanatory Statement on Resolutions
5 through 8 with information on the renewal of general mandates for the repurchase
by the Bank of its own shares and the issue of new shares, the amendment of
articles of association, the re-election of retiring directors as well as poll voting.

The Bank’s Memorandum and Articles of Association is written in the English
language and there is no official Chinese translation thereof. In case of any
discrepancies between the English version of the proposed amendments to the
Bank’s Memorandum and Articles of Association and its Chinese translation,
the English version shall prevail in all circumstances.
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Economic Review

2012 was a turbulent year for the global market. Against the background of
the sluggish global economic growth, central banks around the world continued
to push ahead with further quantitative easing (“QE”) measures. The QE3 and
QE4 measures launched in the United States in the second half of 2012,
monetary stimulus measures in Europe and Japan, and interest rate cuts in
China and Australia combined to contribute to a relatively remarkable

performance in the global assets markets and stock markets in 2012.
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In face of strong external headwinds, the Hong Kong economy grew modestly.
Compared with that of the same period last year, gross domestic product in
2012 grew by 1.4% in real terms. The labour market remained broadly stable,
the unemployment rate fell slightly to 3.3% in the fourth quarter of 2012 amid
the slow economic growth. Nevertheless, the liquidity glut and super-low
interest rate environment contributed to a robust local property market. Real
estate prices continued to surge. On the stock market front, the Hang Seng
Index started low and climbed 23% throughout the year, standing at around

22,600 on the last trading day.

Enterprises in the mainland were facing difficulties in obtaining loans and
financing. The monetary policy of China became the focus of concern. In the
first half of 2012, the Central Government adopted an approach with an emphasis
on regulating deposit interest rate and required reserve ratio as the key monetary
policy, and the People’s Bank of China cut both deposit interest rate and required
reserve ratio twice during the period. It turned to open market operations
such as reverse repurchases in the second half of the year. The economic
indicators of China in 2012 have shown gradual enhancements. Gross domestic

product increased by 7.8% over the year.

The US employment market was slow in recovery and unemployment rate
remained high. After its last rate-fixing meeting in 2012, the US Federal Reserve
Board announced its decision to keep the target range for the federal
funds rate at 0% to 0.25% as long as the unemployment rate remains above

6.5% and inflation is projected to be no more than 2.5%.
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Results Announcement and Profit Analysis

The results for the financial year of 2012 of the Bank, on a consolidated basis,

are summarised below:

2012 2011
BT T BB
(BREFRIGEBIAE) (BRERRIGEMAL) )
HK$’000 HK$000  Fxlkt
(unless otherwise  (unless otherwise ~ Variance
Key Financial Data specified) specified) %
1. Net operating profit before
impairment 534,190 541,247 -1.30
2. Profit attributable to shareholders 543,340 560,716 -3.10
3. Return on equity 7.64% 8.32% -8.17
4. Earnings per share I?I?; 1.25 ;ﬁﬁl.w -3.10
5. Net interest income 836,908 815,321 +2.65
6. Net interest margin 1.10% 1.17% -5.98
7. Net fee and commission income 189,365 217,723 -13.02
8. Net gains (losses) on financial
instruments at fair value through
profit or loss 57,473 (102,418)  +156.12
9. Operating expenses 788,591 773,555 +1.94
10. Cost-to-income ratio 59.62% 58.83% +1.34
11. Impairment allowances on
loans and advances
- Reversal of impairment
allowances (net) (65,228) (107,188)  -39.15
12. Total loans and advances
to customers 39,192,189 41,338,484 -5.19
13. Impaired loan ratio 0.06% 0.19%  -68.42
14. Provision coverage of impaired
loans and advances 779.36% 271.87% +186.67
15. Rescheduled loan ratio 0.54% 0.53% +1.89
16. Total customer deposits 67,508,748 64,815,713 +4.15
17. Loan-to-deposit ratio 52.53% 57.17% -8.12
18. Total assets 80,755,365 77,455,912 +4.26
19. Net asset value per share bt HEHE
16.95 15.80 +7.28
(before final dividend) HK$ HK$
20. Capital adequacy ratio 15.34% 15.44% -0.65
21. Core capital ratio 10.57% 10.58% -0.09
22. Average liquidity ratio 44.91% 42.41% +5.89

o~
(e}
139
i=
o
Q.
[9)
oz
]
=)
(=
[=
<
|
el
2
S
=
-
c
5]
o
o)
=
I
o)
c
o
o =
(]




5
i
i
X
|
[0}
Il
|
o’
«
o
T
b
@

E L
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

FER BB B

Ha G RG> RF - TR
SRR o ARG Y 2 I R 2
W5 344800 > BRIGHEEREHRT4% »
PR 25 52 R 30 5 0 00 ) 52 S T e o 2 D s
KR A5 25 Do G S8 S T B e MK T o2
FRIHME M 235 TR 2 8 o
TR AR TR E1.10% » HR
HAE RN 4.26% > FFAIBOA B A
FERAIN 3% ZEHEHE 8.37 it o WE M
CHE T RPREZ 1.06% MEECE
—TAETRREZ 1.13% o R RIS
BN i 13.02% ZEHEHE 1.89 {850 » HH
PR 238 75 BT SR 5 0 B A D T L o
P A 7 i B [ B 2 2 < T 3
RAME » A TETIIR R AR
Z S L E A b R T S
1.02 fRyC %3 % — R EIF R
HEWES, 7008 7T o HAHESEEBCA ~ drdtiE
3E 556 I A S RE IR 2 B 3 i P B
100% ZEHEWE 1.08 fRJC > TR E R H
BB o 7 H Al T o R A A
BB EHE LT 5.64% > B M
1.94% o 7S FE5 397 038 {18170 o £ s Dk £
IR 79% F#EH 600 I > MHE
% % P I RO e B ARSI
B Y & 2L 7, 10085 5T ©

Analysis of Key Financial Data

For the financial year of 2012, on a consolidated basis, net operating profit
before impairment amounted to HK$534 million, and showed an improvement
of 74% year on year because the previous year’s net operating profit was inflated
by the effect of the recovery of amounts previously written-off in relation to
the Lehman Brothers Minibonds Repurchase Scheme of HK$235 million. Net
interest income at HK$837 million was 3% higher than that of last year as total
assets increased by 4.26% but net interest margin narrowed 7 basis points to
1.10% year on year. Net interest margin improved from 1.06% in the first half
of 2012 to 1.13% in the second half of 2012. Net fee and commission income
dropped 13.02% to HK$189 million mainly because of the reduction in
commission income from securities dealings. Revaluation of financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss turned from net losses of HK$102
million in the previous year to net gains of HK$57 million in 2012 as the
financial market sentiments for Hong Kong and mainland China related debt
securities had improved. Other operating income, net exchange gains and net
gains from foreign currency contracts rose by 100% to HK$108 million from
increases in treasury activities. On the other fronts, operating expenses increased
by 1.94% from those of last year as total staff costs increased by 5.64%. New
impairment allowances under individual assessment on loans and advances
dropped by 79% to HK$6 million this year, and a total of HK$71 million of
impairment allowances on loans and advances was reversed after recoveries

from various customers and a reduction in total loans and advances.
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Profit attributable to shareholders amounted to HK$543 million, a decrease of
3.10% over that for the year before, translating into earnings of HK$1.25 per
share and return on equity of 7.64%. Profit attributable to shareholders would
have shown an improvement of 144% after excluding from previous year’s
profit attributable to shareholders the after taxation effect of the recovery of
amounts previously written-off in relation to the Lehman Brothers Minibonds
Repurchase Scheme and reversal in impairment allowances on loans and
advances from HK$170 million recovered on a secured loan which was
previously written-off. Total loans and advances to customers decreased by
5.19% to HK$39,192 million, in particular syndication loans dropped by 32%
year on year due to repayments, and funds were redeployed to other assets
offering higher yield. With careful management of the exposure to credit risk,
asset quality of loans and advances continued to improve with impaired loan
ratio at 0.06%, provision coverage of impaired loans and advances at 779.36%,
and rescheduled loan ratio at 0.54%. Total customer deposits increased by
4.15% to HK$67,509 million. As deposit growth exceeded loan growth,
loan-to-deposit ratio decreased from 57.17% in December 2011 to 52.53% in
December 2012. Investments in available-for-sale securities rose by 128.70%
to HK$4,222 million and such investments were mainly in senior debt securities
guaranteed or issued by large corporate entities which are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Total assets increased by 4.26% to
HK$80,755 million with net asset value per share (before final dividend) at
HK$16.95. Capital adequacy ratio was maintained at 15.34% and core capital
ratio was at 10.57%. All in all, the Bank’s core business lines and overall
financial health are sound, its non-performing loan ratio low and asset quality
good, and its capital adequacy and liquidity ratios are well above the relevant

statutory requirements.

Some of the comparative figures mentioned above have been adjusted because
of the amendments to Hong Kong Accounting Standard 12 Deferred Tax,
in particular profit attributable to shareholders for last year increased
by HK$1,261,000 to HK$560,716,000 and total assets as of 31 December
2011 increased by HK$10,140,000 to HK$77,455,912,000. Full explanation

can be found in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Dividend

Your board has considered that it is prudent to preserve the Bank’s capital
so as to better satisfy the new requirements under “Basel III”. As such,
your board has recommended paying the final cash dividend of HK$0.35
per share for the financial year of 2012 (2011 final cash dividend:
HK$0.35 per share) to shareholders whose names appear in the Register
of Members at the close of business on Tuesday, 21 May 2013. Total
dividends for the financial year of 2012, including the interim cash
dividend of HK$0.11 per share paid on 27 September 2012 (2011 interim
cash dividend: HK$0.15 per share), amounted to HK$0.46 per share (2011
total dividends: HK$0.50 per share).

Board and Senior Management Changes

In order to meet the requirement under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, which stipulates
that an issuer must appoint independent non-executive directors representing
at least one-third of the board, Mr Tsang Chiu Wing, Mr Wong Har Kar and
Mr Andrew Liu (who had additionally indicated that he would opt to step
down as a board member because of his other commitments) resigned as
directors of the Bank on 31 December 2012. I would like to take this
opportunity to thank them for their valuable contributions to the Bank during
their respective terms of office as directors of the Bank. Mr Tsang Chiu Wing
and Mr Wong Har Kar were both appointed as Deputy Chief Executive Officers
of the Bank on 7 March 2013.

Moreover, on 7 March 2013, Mr Liu Lit Chi, having served the Bank for over
fifty years, retired as Chief Executive Officer of the Bank (a position held
since 25 April 2002), now holding the title of Deputy Chairman and Managing
Director. Mr Lau Wai Man succeeded Mr Liu Lit Chi as Chief Executive
Officer of the Bank on 7 March 2013, thereby holding the title of Executive

Director and Chief Executive Officer.
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Business Review

Corporate and Retail Banking
Loan and Deposit Business

Despite a more prudent sentiment as a result of tightened regulations over
the local property market, the Bank managed to attain steady growth in the
outstanding value of mortgage loans in 2012 compared with that of the same
period last year. On the deposit business front, the Bank continued to consolidate
its core client base of deposit and actively recruited small and medium-sized

customers through various series of promotion campaigns in the community.

As a result of strategic rate adjustments, both interest income and net interest
margin of the Bank’s corporate loans achieved satisfactory growth over the
year. Syndicated and corporate loans increased moderately in terms of
volume, whereas non-interest services income also maintained a steady upward
momentum. To further expand its clientele, the Bank actively supported the
“SME Financing Guarantee Scheme” launched by the Hong Kong Mortgage

Corporation Limited.

With a mission to work with SMEs to attain mutual growth, the Bank is
committed to providing quality and customer-oriented one-stop banking
services to SMEs. The Bank’s SME services are highly recognised by the
industry as it entered the nomination for, and received, the “Best SME’s Partner
Award” from the Hong Kong General Chamber of Small and Medium Business

for the fourth time.

i TN R IR EIAE,

Business for the fourth time.

AERITI B — ARGV e L 7 /I A SRR T

In 2012, the Bank received the “Best SME’s Partner Award”
from the Hong Kong General Chamber of Small and Medium

o~
(e}
139
i=
o
Q.
[9)
oz
]
=)
(=
[=
<
|
el
2
S
=
-
c
5]
o
o)
=
I
o)
c
o
o =
(]




B
=
ey
| ]
[
iy
Il
| |
i@
g
o
T
2
[
&
I

E L
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

AT — H R LFRF AR AR o [ >
S BT PR RARGR B0 B L 388 SR ) 2 B
K EI AR BAI SE o LRAHE F
B BN > ROV S s 5l
N3 20

Lt
SHE TR RHEUTE MR S
EHRERE - FH R i P
WCHESE RS I R A LI S B 8 > A
B o

ANSRAT R S AR SR A5 RSB e P
WCHISERS - DAMERS BAF 2B o

B
ARPTFE B BALRE R - A
RER BRI EEBRGR o 2HRH
Bk 2% — AR P IE AR AR
DABC & AN SRATHE — 2 38 J U A B SR
21K o

et PAE i K L P S
Be ¥ H il 2 W IR RS 0 SR

The Bank has been a strong supporter of local enterprises. In addition to helping
mainland companies establish their businesses in Hong Kong, the Bank also
provides trade finance and cross-border Renminbi services to local customers
in assisting them to develop their businesses in the mainland.

Card Business

For 2012, the Bank’s credit card business recorded satisfactory increases
in the number of credit cards issued, credit card accounts receivable and
merchant-billed turnover.

To maintain its strong business growth, the Bank will continue to develop its

credit card business and merchant acquiring services.

Wealth Management Business

Over the last few years, the Bank made substantial investment in upgrading its
wealth management system to cater for an enhanced sales flow. The upgraded
system was officially launched in mid-2012 to support the further development
of our wealth management business.

Launched in August 2011, the wealth management service dedicated to
professional investors was gaining recognition and registered growth in bond
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sales. In November 2012, a specific account
service with one-stop investment and asset filing
services was launched to assist individuals
intending to enter Hong Kong for residence via
“Capital Investment Entrant Scheme”. Expanding

.
its income stream with the new service, the Bank

aims to attain growth on all fronts of its wealth
management business through a well-diversified
portfolio of investment products and value-added

services.
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In November 2012, the Bank launched a specific
account service with one-stop investment and
asset filing services to assist individuals intending

v eey ol Investment Entrant Scheme”.
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Treasury Activities

Income from foreign exchange activities is generated from services provided
to customers in the form of foreign exchange trading and forward contracts,
and from the Bank’s cash management activities through foreign currency
funding swaps. The Bank has been more active in using foreign currency
funding swaps this year and as a result other operating income from foreign

currency contracts was higher than that of last year.

The Bank’s liquidity ratios have been kept at a relatively high level throughout
the year due to precautionary measures with higher liquidity being maintained
during the development of the European sovereign debt crisis. The Bank
continued to use its certificate of deposit programme this year to diversify
funding even though volume has reduced from that of last year. The transaction
volume of financing through financial assets sold under repurchase agreements

exceeded that of last year.

In managing the net interest margin and maintaining the level of total assets
after the reduction in total loans and advances to customers, the Bank has
increased its investments in fixed rate corporate debt securities and converted
them into floating rate instruments with interest rate swaps to mitigate the stress

on net interest income due to the low and flattening money market yield curves.

The Bank offered Renminbi products such as spot foreign exchange trading,
non-deliverable forward contracts, interbank funding, foreign currency funding

swap and bond investments.

China Business

The Bank continued to develop its mainland business. Building on the existing
cross-border Renminbi clearing services, it further rolled out cross-border trade

financing and cross-border syndicated loan services.

Furthermore, the Bank is planning to upgrade its current Guangzhou
Representative Office to a branch, so as to better support Hong Kong

customers in developing their mainland business.
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Other Related Businesses
Securities Business

Against the backdrop of unresolved European debt crisis and persistently weak
economy around the globe, the local stock market was stagnant in 2012.
Response to initial public offerings was weak and daily turnover declined
sharply. Competition was fierce in the sector. Nevertheless, Chong Hing
Securities Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, managed to acquire
an increasing number of customers with enhanced operating efficiency and
service quality. The mobile securities trading service was particularly popular,
registering over 67% growth in transaction volume.

Insurance Business

Chong Hing Insurance Company Limited (“Chong Hing Insurance”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, recorded double-digit growth in
annual turnover and profit compared with those of the same period last year.
In line with the Group’s proactive development approach, Chong Hing Insurance
will continue to strive for better results by expanding its corporate insurance
business on all fronts with enhanced service quality.

Corporate Responsibility

In order to practise the preaching of serving as a “community bank” and
provide a comprehensive range of high quality banking services to the
local community, the Bank continued
to expand its service network and enhance
its service environment. In May 2012,
the Bank relocated its branch at On Ting
Estate in Tuen Mun to Hong Lai Garden of
the same district. In October 2012, the
Bank’s Homantin Plaza Branch and Mong
Kok Branch were merged. Apart from the
head office in Central, the Bank now has a
total of 51 local branches.

ZE-TFELH > WP REWHST
FE L I I JE 7 T Ak 5 o

In May 2012, On Ting Estate Branch in
Tuen Mun was relocated to Hong Lai
Garden of the same district.
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As a caring institution serving the community, the Bank takes part in various
social improvement activities. In 2012, the Bank made a further donation to
Gracefield East Kowloon Christian Kindergarten, which provides quality
education for children from low-income, single-parent or other needy families.
In addition, the Bank also actively participated in and supported activities of
other charitable organisations. The Bank was awarded the “Caring Company”

logo by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service for the sixth year in 2013.

APRTIR =T — AR E A
HUE BT R ILTELI R - Sl A5
T 217 4 7k [ 5B A 5 5 O e I
ZIGHE o

In 2012, the Bank made a further
donation to Gracefield East
Kowloon Christian Kindergarten
and conveyed the message of love
and care to kindergarteners
through games.
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In February 2012, the Bank received the
“Straight Through Processing Award” from
The Bank of New York Mellon for the fourth
consecutive year.
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Financial Services Award

In February 2012, the Bank received the “Straight Through Processing (STP)
Award” from The Bank of New York Mellon for the fourth consecutive year.
The award recognised the Bank’s outstanding performance in payment
formatting and a high STP rate of over 95% in fully-automated USD payment

processing without manual intervention.

Corporate Governance

The Bank is well aware that complying with the relevant statutory and
regulatory requirements and maintaining good corporate governance standards
are imperative to the effective and efficient operation of the Bank. The Bank
has, therefore, deployed considerable resources, as well as adopted and
implemented relevant measures, to ensure that the relevant statutory and
regulatory requirements are complied with and that a high standard of corporate

governance practices is maintained.
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Economic Outlook

Despite the various unconventional monetary policy measures of the US Federal
Reserve Board to contain the global financial crisis and further monetary easing
in sophisticated economies to reduce systemic risks of financial markets, the
economic outlook around the world remains liquid and unpredictable in light
of a global liquidity glut with asset market exuberance and increased risks of

inflation.

To strengthen protection against fluctuations in the external trading environment,
the Hong Kong Government continued its efforts to foster economic ties with
the mainland with the aim of enhancing economic and trade co-operation.
In June 2012, the Hong Kong Government and the Central Government entered
into Supplement IX to the Mainland and Hong Kong Closer Economic
Partnership Arrangement. According to the relevant banking provisions, eligible
Hong Kong banks are allowed to offer custodian services regarding settlement
funds of customers of securities companies and margin deposits on futures

transactions.

Looking forward, Hong Kong will benefit from the opportunities brought
about by the cross-border financial co-operation. As an international finance
centre of China, it is well positioned to help mainland companies establish
their presence in Hong Kong and beyond, and assist in channeling overseas
funds into China. The Bank will continue to tap into such opportunities and
strive to propel its ongoing steady development by offering a comprehensive

range of quality products and services.

Sincere Acknowledgements

Last but not least, on behalf of your board, I would like to express my heartfelt
gratitude to our many customers and shareholders for their trust and support,
to all my fellow directors for their wise stewardship and to the staff members
for their commitment and dedication. With a mission to serving the public at
large, the Bank is dedicated to providing top-notch and professional services

while maximising return for its shareholders.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated financial

statements for the year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Bank is engaged in the provision of banking and related financial services.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 22 to the

consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS

The Group’s total operating income (net of interest expense and fee and
commission expense) is analysed and reported by significant business classes

as follows:
2012 2011
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000
Corporate and retail banking 859,955 946,571
Treasury activities 299,351 181,255
Securities dealing business 118,500 154,402
Others 44,140 32,574
1,321,946 1,314,802

The corporate and retail banking services provided by the Group are principally
lending and trade finance facilities, auto financing, consumer financing,
overdraft facilities, mandatory provident fund services, provision of fixed
deposits, current and savings accounts, credit cards and personal wealth
management services. The Group also provides fully automated telephone
and internet banking services to its customers. Other banking services offered
include remittance and money exchange, safe deposit boxes, autopay and direct

debit services.

Treasury activities mainly comprise inter-bank placement and deposit
transactions, management of overall interest rate risk and liquidity of the Group,
centralised cash management and foreign exchange activities. Income from
foreign exchange activities is principally generated from services provided to
customers in the form of foreign exchange trading and forward contracts, and
from the Bank’s cash management activities through foreign currency funding
swaps.

Securities dealing activities of the Group include securities trading, stockbroking
and futures broking.

Other banking-related services of the Group include investment holding,

insurance, other investment advisory services and property investments.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS

The directors believe that the five largest customers of the Group accounted
for less than 30% of the total of interest income and operating income of the
Group for the year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 71.

An interim cash dividend of HK$0.11 per share amounting to HK$47,850,000
was paid to the shareholders during the year. The directors now recommend
the payment of a final cash dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012 of
HK$0.35 per share amounting to HK$152,250,000 to the shareholders on the
register of members on 21 May 2013 and the retention of the remaining profit
for the year.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Bank during the year are set out in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements. There was no movement in the Bank’s
share capital during the year.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Bank during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 75 to 76 and
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were revalued as at 31 December 2012.
The net increase in fair value arising on the revaluation, which has been credited
directly to the consolidated income statement, amounted to HK$9,390,000.
Details of the investment properties of the Group and the Bank are set out in
note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property and equipment of the Group and the
Bank during the year are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Bank’s share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) was adopted pursuant
to a resolution passed on 9 May 2012 to replace the share option scheme which
expired on 24 April 2012. Particulars of the New Scheme are set out in note 34
to the consolidated financial statements. No options have been granted under
the New Scheme since it was adopted.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Bank during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Dr LIU Lit Mo, LLD, MBE, JP
(Chairman)

Mr LIU Lit Chi
(Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)

Mr LAU Wai Man
(Chief Executive Olfficer)

Mr Don Tit Shing LIU
(Deputy Chief Executive Officer)

Mr Wilfred Chun Ning LIU

Mr TSANG Chiu Wing
(resigned on 31 December 2012)

Mr WONG Har Kar
(resigned on 31 December 2012)

Non-executive Directors

Mr HE Jiale
(appointed on 22 May 2012)

Mr WANG Xiaoming
(resigned on 22 May 2012)

Mr Andrew LIU
(resigned on 31 December 2012)

Mr Hidekazu HORIKOSHI
(appointed on 8 August 2012)

Mr Hidemitsu OTSUKA
(resigned on 8 August 2012)

Mr Christopher Kwun Shing LIU
Mr Alfred Cheuk Yu CHOW, BBS, JP
Mr MENG Qinghui

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr Robin Yau Hing CHAN, GBS, LLD, JP

Mr Timothy George FRESHWATER
(redesignated as Independent Non-executive Director on 8 August 2012)

Mr Wanchai CHIRANAKHORN
Mr CHENG Yuk Wo
Mr Andrew Chiu Cheung MA
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Mr He Jiale (who was appointed Non-executive Director on 22 May 2012)
and Mr Hidekazu Horikoshi (who was appointed Non-executive Director
on 8 August 2012) shall retire and offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with Article 85 of the Bank’s
Articles of Association. Moreover, Mr Wang Xiaoming and Mr Hidemitsu
Otsuka resigned as Non-executive Directors on 22 May 2012 and 8 August
2012 respectively because of the reallocation of duties within the COSCO Group
and the Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ Group.

Article 101 of the Bank’s Articles of Association stipulates that, among other
things, one-third of the directors for the time being, who have been longest
in office since their last election, shall be subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at each annual general meeting. Accordingly, Dr Liu Lit Mo,
Mr Don Tit Shing Liu, Dr Robin Yau Hing Chan, Mr Wilfred Chun Ning Liu
and Mr Wanchai Chiranakhorn shall retire and offer themselves for re-election

at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Bank has received from Mr Wanchai Chiranakhorn, who has served as its
Independent Non-executive Director since 17 September 1998, an annual letter
confirming his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). As such, the Bank considers Mr Chiranakhorn to be still independent
and, therefore, eligible for re-election as its Independent Non-executive Director

at the 2013 annual general meeting.

Mr Tsang Chiu Wing and Mr Wong Har Kar as Executive Directors and
Mr Andrew Liu as Non-executive Director (who had additionally indicated
that he would opt to step down as a board member because of his other
commitments) of the Bank resigned on 31 December 2012 in order to meet the
requirement of the Listing Rules that at least one-third of the Bank’s Board be
comprised of Independent Non-executive Directors. Mr Tsang and Mr Wong
were both appointed the Bank’s Deputy Chief Executive Officers on 7 March
2013.

Furthermore, Mr Liu Lit Chi, now holding the title of “Deputy Chairman
and Managing Director”, retired as Chief Executive Officer on 7 March 2013.
Mr Lau Wai Man, now holding the title of “Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer”, was appointed Chief Executive Officer on 7 March 2013.
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Interests in securities

HHETH PN i
Director’s Personal
name interests
2 E iy 1,002,450
Liu Lit Mo

Rk 313,248
Liu Lit Chi

SR 15,000
Don T S Liu

B B 48,400
Robin Y H Chan

i 396

Timothy G Freshwater

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
has a service contract, which is not determinable by the Bank within one year

without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ (INCLUDING THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S)
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As of 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the directors
(including the chief executive officer) in the securities and underlying securities
of the Bank and its associated corporations (under Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), as recorded in the register required to be

kept under Section 352 of the SFO, were as follows:

(I) The Bank

5 A 0% a0 % ety B H
Number of ordinary shares held
W C TR
ZHEG
Bl M RE 2 AT RS Percentage
Spousal Corporate Total of issued
interests interests interests share capital
— 258,359,628 259,362,078 59.62347
MifE (—)
Note (1)
— 260,622,839 260,936,087 59.98531
MEE (—) K (Z)
Notes (1) & (2)
— — 15,000 0.00345
— 1,018,000 1,066,400 0.24515
W&k (=)
Note (3)
— — 396 0.00009
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DIRECTORS’ (INCLUDING THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S)
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SECURITIES - continued

Notes:

(1) 258,359,628 shares in the Bank are attributed as follows:

®

(i)

218,359,628 shares held by public listed Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited’s
wholly-owned subsidiary, Liu Chong Hing Estate Company, Limited
(“Liu Chong Hing Estate”), in which each of Messrs Liu Lit Mo and Liu Lit
Chi is deemed under the SFO to be interested through Liu’s Holdings Limited,
a private company holding approximately 44% of Liu Chong Hing Investment

Limited’s issued and fully-paid share capital; and

40,000,000 shares held by The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd
(“Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ”). Pursuant to an agreement in 1994,
Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ has granted an option to Liu Chong Hing
Estate exercisable at any time during the term of that agreement to purchase
all such shares and Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ is required to offer to sell
all such shares to Liu Chong Hing Estate in certain circumstances. By virtue
of the interests of Messrs Liu Lit Mo and Liu Lit Chi in Liu Chong Hing
Estate through Liu’s Holdings Limited, each of them is deemed under the

SFO to be interested in such shares.

(2) 2,263,211 shares in the Bank are held by Alba Holdings Limited, shareholders of
which include Mr Liu Lit Chi and his associates. Accordingly, Mr Liu Lit Chi is

3

deemed under the SFO to be interested in such shares.

1,018,000 shares in the Bank are held collectively by Asia Panich Investment

Company (Hong Kong) Limited and United Asia Company Limited. These

corporations or their directors are accustomed to acting in accordance with

Dr Robin Y H Chan’s directions or instructions.
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FHFE (EETHRMEE) 255K DIRECTORS’ (INCLUDING THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S)

WA -m INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SECURITIES - continued
(ID BEgE{ A RA (II) Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited
(BT 2B AH]) (associated corporation of the Bank)
Fee7d i3
Interests in securities
F5 4% 2 5 Bt B H
Number of ordinary shares held
e BT IRA
ZHEmH

W4 6]\ R At e e 2 (A HRERR Percentage

Director’s Personal Spousal Corporate Total of issued

name interests interests interests interests share capital

B 795,600 — 171,840,189 172,635,789 45.60046

Liu Lit Mo Mk (—) & (=)

Notes (1) & (2)
B 141,668 — 210,963,253 211,104,921 55.76179
Liu Lit Chi Mk (—) & (=)

Notes (1) & (3)

JEAERE 7,920 — — 7,920 0.00209

Timothy G Freshwater

MfaE - Notes:

(—) MBEREEARAFALER (1) 165,840,189 shares in Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited are beneficially held
FEBEAMSEAERLA by Liu’s Holdings Limited, shareholders of which include Messrs Liu Lit Mo
165,840,189 [ Mefy » BEEU k- and Liu Lit Chi. Accordingly, each of Messrs Liu Lit Mo and Liu Lit Chi is
Te BN Jek Fy i 8 Al Z I o deemed under the SFO to be interested in such shares.

TRt > AR G 2 B ST B )
P R P A A A 5 2 1
Y IR by 2 MR o

(2) HERARAFGRERRS (2) 6,000,000 shares in Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited are beneficially held by

132 A1 B £ 3 A5 B 23 5] 6,000,000 1% Eternal Wealth Limited, shareholders of which include Dr Liu Lit Mo and his
JBet o BRI R B A associates. Accordingly, Dr Liu Lit Mo is deemed under the SFO to be interested
BB o KB > WIECEH K in such shares.

B ERp) » B EU T L 9

B ZE Ry 2 i35 o

(Z) HEHEEEARATEE&ILER  (3) 45,123,064 shares in Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited are beneficially held by
HAEBABASEAERA G Alba Holdings Limited, shareholders of which include Mr Liu Lit Chi and his
45,123,064 Bl » BEFIR e associates. Accordingly, Mr Liu Lit Chi is deemed under the SFO to be interested
B FEEN L 2y RO o IR > in such shares.

TR 27 B AT A6 > BESNE
e EWEMERE %S KG 2
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MR GE 7 R E B b Lk e
WS N F -+ 2R
=t —H o WM ER (BHETE
RE) > B FE 2B L > AT
Fe EL W B 2% H] RF A AT P i 3 57
(BHIBA & 77 ) M2 (B © 1 »
RoF-H+ZH=E+—H  #HH
(RLRAT BUAE) BRI <5 2 I 11 B 1 <%
ARt I\ BRZ F A I 2 el AN ST
B SLIGRER 2% BRI O > WA AT
TEIHHE o

FRIBOR Z i e i B

P AR (1T B i
ZHERR S > HEBR GG 7 b 301 65 e 1 )
55 336 A% 1M 3¢ 3L 2 B 5L A RO > it
SF - SAZ—H RIS
£ A ST W 25 KM B o 2 HE AR
WA

Eq

Name

BRI E AR A
Liu Chong Hing Estate Company, Limited

B3 Al Bl 7 5 PR 2 ]

Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited

B IR 2 F
Liu’s Holdings Limited

Bauhinia 97 Limited

s (i) S A R
COSCO (Hong Kong) Group Limited

e Al (2R AR ]
China Ocean Shipping (Group) Company

=R T UFI #4T
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd

Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc

DIRECTORS’ (INCLUDING THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S)
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SECURITIES - continued

Other interests and short positions in securities

Under the SFO, other than those interests disclosed above, as of 31 December
2012, none of the directors (including the chief executive officer), nor their
respective associates, had any other interests (nor any short positions) in any
securities (nor in any underlying securities) in the Bank and its associated
corporations. Moreover, as of 31 December 2012, none of the directors
(including the chief executive officer), nor their respective spouses and children
under 18 years of age, had been granted any rights to subscribe for the securities
in the Bank and its associated corporations, much less had any such rights
exercised.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As of 31 December 2012, the register maintained under Section 336 of the
SFO showed that, other than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain
directors (including the chief executive officer), the following parties had
interests and short positions in the securities and underlying securities in the
Bank:

e RTEA

ZuEmkt

4 500 J% 5% 1y B H Percentage

B Number of of issued

Capacity ordinary shares share capital

B a A 218,359,628 50.20
Beneficial owner Wt (—) & (=)
Notes (1) & (3)

Z PR A Al 2 R 218,359,628 50.20
Interest of a WaE(—) & (=)
controlled corporation Notes (1) & (3)

R A E 2 R 218,359,628 50.20
Interest of a Wt (—) & (=)
controlled corporation Notes (1) & (3)

JEETISEEUN 87,000,000 20.00
Beneficial owner WaE (=)
Note (2)

R A E 2 R 87,000,000 20.00
Interest of a M (=)
controlled corporation Note (2)

Z PR A Al 2 R 87,000,000 20.00
Interest of a WaE (=)
controlled corporation Note (2)

B a A 42,000,000 9.66
Beneficial owner W (=)
Note (3)

Z PR A Al 2 R 42,000,000 9.66
Interest of a WaE (=)
controlled corporation Note (3)
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BB 2 8 I i B A -

Wik -

()

(=)

(=)

D B B bl TR (AR AT AR
SRR — W2 W5
(=)l H e dE 3 (1T ]
HEFR) ZREZRH R o B A B P AT TR
Zy ] (T AN B 2 ) Ry B AN B 2
ARARZ2EHE AR > B a0
EEERAE L—BARAE » REE
HERAMAE ML LT o BIRSEE
HIRAF B—RRART > Bi6 B A5
ERAERATLN 44% CBITRME
JBEZR o Rl fide K B Z 218,359,628
JBE IR B A B 3 7 2 218,359,628
JBE e {7 ME 2% o MBCE L L&
1) » BRI EBIFR ~ BF
Ko BB K Ao S 2 1B B IR A TR
REl Mg EEREE ZS R Z
MERE o

Bauhinia 97 Limited /2 Hja (7 # ) 45 H
FRARIZZEW A > midh iz
(F k) 52 B A5 PR 2 W) 2 v o 3
R CEBDBAAF 2 Z R M EAT o
bl i B2 e A B 22 87,000,000 % [ 45
Ji* Bauhinia 97 Limited % N & i Z
87,000,000 B {3 HE RS ©

=2 W UFJ 8147 2 Mitsubishi UFJ
Financial Group, Inc ZZ &2 H] o
bkt P B2 K 5 B 2 42,000,000 fi% [
BREZFH AU BITATEZZ
42,000,000 JBEIE 173 HERS o

M — FUILPUAE Z Wit » =R R{UF)
BT T B A1 9 S — T S R A
i 2 1) B 35 T AE 3 T o 20T 9 A
IR 17 6 5 T 48 o 2 G A 5 I e e
B2 K A B =2 42,000,000 JBE B 43 2
40,000,000 BB B3 » S £E 2 FE TR
ZEH R UF) SRIT DA 2%
40,000,000 JI% JB 47 & Hi & 3 2 Al 5l
B WMEBGES LW HEHY
B ~ BB K B A R A e A
% BB B I S A PR 2 W] B A g
BRI SN SRR %%
40,000,000 JBEIE {7 2 HERS ©

PR Rt BR s 25 R DT ET e ) 25 336 {66
e 45 8 14 AN SRAT % 27 B A s 2 E 2
KRk go o RF - A=A

H»

AN SRAT S J1E 42 AT il 2L fib A R

AN SRAT W 77 K M I % 2 HE AR B R
ZIBAL

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES - continued

Notes:

(€]

2

3

These interests are the same as those of certain directors (including the chief
executive officer) disclosed above under the heading “DIRECTORS’ (INCLUDING
THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S) INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES” Note (1)(i). Liu Chong Hing Estate Company,
Limited (“Liu Chong Hing Estate”) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Liu Chong
Hing Investment Limited, a public company listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. Liu’s Holdings Limited, a private company, had interest in
about 44% of Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited’s issued and fully-paid share
capital. The references to the 218,359,628 shares in question all relate to the same
block of 218,359,628 shares held by Liu Chong Hing Estate, in which each of
Messrs Liu Lit Mo, Liu Lit Chi and Liu Lit Chung, members of the Liu’s family, is
deemed under the SFO to be interested through Liu’s Holdings Limited.

Bauhinia 97 Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of COSCO (Hong Kong) Group
Limited, which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Ocean Shipping
(Group) Company. The references to the 87,000,000 shares in question all relate
to the same block of 87,000,000 shares registered in the name of Bauhinia 97
Limited.

The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mitsubishi
UFJ Financial Group, Inc. The references to the 42,000,000 shares in question
both relate to the same block of 42,000,000 shares registered in the name of
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.

Pursuant to an agreement in 1994, The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd
has granted an option to Liu Chong Hing Estate exercisable at any time during the
term of that agreement to purchase 40,000,000 of the 42,000,000 shares in question
and The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd is required to offer to sell all such
40,000,000 shares to Liu Chong Hing Estate in certain circumstances. By virtue of
the respective interests of Messrs Liu Lit Mo, Liu Lit Chi and Liu Lit Chung in
Liu Chong Hing Estate through Liu’s Holdings Limited, each of them is deemed
under the SFO to be interested in such 40,000,000 shares.

Other than those interests and short positions in the securities and underlying

securities in the Bank as disclosed above under Section 336 of the SFO,

the Bank had not been notified of any other interests and short positions in its

securities and underlying securities as of 31 December 2012.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than those interests disclosed below under the heading “CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS?”, no contracts of significance to which the Bank or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Bank had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Bank has received, from each of the independent non-executive directors,
an annual letter confirming his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The Bank considers all of the independent non-executive directors to
be still independent.

Mr Timothy Freshwater was redesignated from “Non-executive Director” to
“Independent Non-executive Director” on 8 August 2012. Since his appointment
as a member of the Board in April 1997, Mr Freshwater has not had any executive
or management role or functions in the Bank, nor has he been under the
employment of any subsidiary of the Bank. Mr Freshwater is not financially
dependent on the Bank and has only attended meetings of the Board and those
of the committee on which he sits in the capacity as a member of the Board.
The Board considers that Mr Freshwater is independent and satisfies all the
independence criteria under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules except Rule 3.13(7)
because he was a Non-executive Director of the Bank immediately before the
redesignation.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(i) The connected transactions between the Group, Liu Chong Hing Investment
Limited and its associates (“Liu Chong Hing Investment Group”) and
COSCO (Hong Kong) Group Limited and its associates (“COSCO Group”)
during the year ended 31 December 2012 are as follows:

A. The Bank handled routine banking transactions for Liu Chong Hing
Investment Group. Services provided by the Bank are cheque clearing,
current and savings accounts, fixed deposits, foreign exchange,
remittances and other banking facilities.

B. The Group provided securities and futures brokerage and nominee
services to Liu Chong Hing Investment Group.

C. Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited through its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Liu Chong Hing Property Management and Agency
Limited and Guangzhou Wealth Good Property Management Company
Limited, provided property management, property consultancy and
property maintenance services to the Bank and its subsidiaries.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS - continued

D. The Bank leased various premises owned by Liu Chong Hing Investment

B
=
ey
| ]
[
iy
Il
| |
i@
g
o
T
2
[
&
I

P » Ja ey 3 vl B B £ 3
FEYEH o 55— 77w > B 5
AN R A RT MG
A BT O B SRR ST
E4L S S7E

SR A 2 v G I (1R AT
BB A B 2 MR ES > AR5 G
SRS AR KR
SEIAAEK ~ AhREE T ~ MEK L
RELNNRH o

(i) ASRAT B L 2 R LI B A 0% B
REF - A= H AR
Z B B AT

H o~

AT HERH LB A
BEHHERITRS > B % %
HEE S HREMERD S 2l
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Group. On the other hand, Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited leased
office premises of the Chong Hing Bank Centre and ground floor shop
of Fung Yip Building from the Bank.

. The Group provided banking and related financial services to COSCO

Group including cheque clearing, current and savings accounts, fixed
deposits, foreign exchange, remittances and nominee services.

(ii) The connected transactions between the Bank and its directors and their
associates during the year ended 31 December 2012 are as follows:

A. The Bank handled routine banking transactions for its directors and

their associates including cheque clearing, current and savings accounts,
fixed deposits, foreign exchange, remittances and other banking
facilities. Such transactions are exempt from the reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.33(1) of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as
such banking services are provided on normal commercial terms and
are, among other things, (i) of a type ordinarily supplied for private
use; (ii) for the directors and their associates’ own use; (iii) of a total
consideration that represents less than 1% of the total revenue of the
Bank as shown in its latest published audited consolidated financial
statements; and (iv) on terms no more favourable to the directors and
their associates than those available to independent third parties.

. The Bank entered into a tenancy agreement with the landlord,

a company owned as to about 80% by Mr Liu Lit Chi, a director,
and as to about 20% by his associates (within the meaning ascribed
to it under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited), on 28 November 2012 for the lease
of a property for a monthly rent of HK$280,000 (exclusive of utilities,
maintenance charges and other charges and outgoings) with effect
from 1 November 2012 for a term of two years. For the year ended
31 December 2012, the rent, utilities, maintenance charges and
other charges and outgoings paid by the Bank amounted to
HK$670,000 which is below the annual cap in question as set forth
in the Bank’s announcement dated 28 November 2012 about this

matter.
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Messrs Liu Lit Mo, Liu Lit Chi, Don Tit Shing Liu, Robin Yau Hing Chan and
Timothy George Freshwater are interested, directly or indirectly, in the
respective share capital of Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited and / or the
Bank.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the board of directors engaged its
external auditor to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has
issued an unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect
of the continuing connected transactions set out in paragraphs (i) and (ii) above
in accordance with Listing Rule 14A.38. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The independent
non-executive directors have reviewed the continuing connected transactions
and the auditor’s letter and have confirmed that the transactions have been
entered into by the Bank in the ordinary course of its business, on normal
commercial terms, and in accordance with the terms of the agreement governing
such transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of shareholders

of the Bank as a whole.

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

No directors (other than the independent non-executive directors and
Mr Hidekazu Horikoshi, a non-executive director) are interested in any business
which may or may not compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Bank.

Mr Hidekazu Horikoshi is Executive Officer, Regional Head for Hong Kong
and General Manager of The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd, Hong Kong
Branch.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than the share option schemes disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements, at no time during the year was the Bank or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Bank to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,

the Bank or any other body corporate.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE BANK’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Bank nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed

any of the Bank’s listed securities during the year.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations amounting to
approximately HK$1,551,000 (2011: HK$371,000).

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Bank has set up a Remuneration Committee, responsibilities of which
include reviewing and approving the performance-based remuneration packages
payable to directors and senior management, if any, by reference to the Bank’s

corporate goals and objectives.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

In preparing the financial statements for 2012, the Bank has fully complied
with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Group has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year ended
31 December 2012.

AUDITOR

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu shall retire at the conclusion of the Bank’s
forthcoming annual general meeting of the shareholders. Being eligible, they

shall offer themselves for re-appointment as the Bank’s auditor at that meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Lit Mo
Chairman

7 March 2013



I R

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
R-F—-=F=HLH

as of 7 March 2013

R REH

AIBLERAT ("AEAT 2) J9MR PR CBRAT 3%
B - M2 FH AR AE (TEER )
B TR o ARERYTEEE (T
7)) BSOS M Z BOR ~ By Je B
5 > 1 DUBS 8 B 22 31 R 8RAT K A Bl
< IR 5 SR 85 P A o2 B o PR A BRAT
R v A N E ARz A% 8 R
ZEOERMERSEAEMZHE IS
TAE o 35 CERATSE (feidd) R0 i
B AR AR SEAR G ~ il be A B K H Al
ARAE AL WA 50 70 R A 5 A
R e A L 2 S R A
MR o

R RBORED]

AT Z (SRR BORE W) 2y 25 W
TR > R AN ST 78GR P
Ve S 1 0 S A TR R CHID B AR
BT ST > ANET R H AR
RBIRPNDEBGET HARE 07 A
i EEZRAE AT o AR ERAT I E
LRy ETRET SR R LN i A
AL

HBms » ARITHEITUTEESR
HH

HPE AR P I A s I P Y R S
ik > P REFEE K o RN
T SIS T A O I R o
WA ERRFE AT 2 EE - @
itk P S M B 7 SR 2 SO AR T o
Rk T H i A — BT 7 i
H o

P i 8 R T o S e
FIBH OB o I H B 5 BRI
S ERAT R BF HCRS i K g AT 2 T AE
(el JEE o {4 A S I O R B
AT 0 S i e S A L I > T
L S5 T BT S WA TR 5 D o 2% R B
BT PR e R RO Bk > (LR
PR S BRI o T B ] P T
W R 2 B0 2 T R Bk o

S PR SL IR B I A
DA L At s I (A0 ) ZEEE AN BT
AT 0 R MR T v 7 2% o

Corporate Governance Practices

Chong Hing Bank Limited (the “Bank”) is an authorised institution supervised
by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (the “HKMA”) under the Banking
Ordinance. The board of directors of the Bank (the “Board”) oversees the
Group’s policies, procedures and controls of measuring, monitoring and
controlling risks arising from banking and related financial service businesses.
The day-to-day supervision of major functional areas is delegated to various
specialised committees comprising directors and senior management
members of the Bank. The unaudited supplementary financial information
regarding corporate governance, risk management and other financial
information disclosed pursuant to the Banking (Disclosure) Rules provides a
detailed report on the Board and senior management oversight and the risk
management process.

Policy Statement on Corporate Governance

The Bank’s Policy Statement on Corporate Governance, which serves as a source
of guiding principles for the directors, has set forth that the Bank is committed
to observing high standards of corporate governance practices (namely,
the system by which the Bank is directed and controlled, the structure through
which its objectives are set, and the means of monitoring its performance and
achieving such objectives) and that its board of directors is the ultimate
governing body responsible for the Bank’s corporate governance practices.

Specifically, the Bank subscribes to and implements the following corporate
governance practices:

At least four regular full board meetings are being held every year — at least
one in each quarter. Except in emergencies, adequate notice is being given of
a board meeting so that all directors have an opportunity to attend. An agenda
and accompanying board papers are being sent in full to all directors at least
a week before the intended date of a board meeting.

All directors are entitled to have access to board papers and related materials.
Where queries are raised by non-executive directors, steps will be taken to
respond as promptly and fully as possible. If the independent non-executive
directors hold views contrary to those of the executive directors in respect of
any matter discussed at a board meeting, the minutes will have this reflected
clearly. Full minutes are being kept by the company secretary and such
minutes are open for inspection at any time during office hours on reasonable
notice by any director.

Directors’ fees, as well as other reimbursement or emolument (if any), payable
to independent non-executive directors are disclosed in full in the Bank’s
annual reports and accounts.
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One-third of the directors who have been longest in office since their last
election shall retire by rotation at each annual general meeting. The retiring
directors shall then be eligible for re-election.

At the request of the independent non-executive directors, arrangements shall
be made in appropriate circumstances to enable such directors to seek
professional advice at the expense of the Bank.

Every non-executive director has made sure that he can give sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Bank and that he will not accept the
appointment if he cannot do so. If a matter to be considered by the Board
involves a conflict of interest for a substantial shareholder or a director, a full
board meeting will be held and the matter will not be dealt with by circulation
or by committee.

If an independent non-executive director resigns or is removed from office,
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) will be
notified of the reasons involved.

The Bank has reminded every director that he has to keep abreast of his
responsibilities as a director of the Bank. Newly appointed directors will
receive an appropriate briefing on the Bank’s affairs and be provided by the
company secretary with relevant corporate governance materials published by
the Stock Exchange, the HKMA and others on an ongoing basis. Directors
have been given, among other corporate governance literature, copies of, and
are expected to refer to, the Stock Exchange’s Guide for Directors of Listed
Companies (which aims to acquaint directors of listed companies, of which
the Bank is one, with their responsibilities under the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”)), the HKMA’s guideline entitled “Corporate Governance of Locally
Incorporated Authorized Institutions” (which addresses issues important for
the prudent management of authorised institutions, of which the Bank is one,
and serves as a best practice guide for directors concerning their duties
and responsibilities as board members of such authorised institutions), the
Companies Registry’s A Guide on Directors’ Duties, the Hong Kong Institute
of Directors’ guidelines for directors, and the Bank’s Memorandum of
Association (which not only states the objects of the Bank, but also defines and
limits its powers) and Articles of Association (which contains regulations for
the management of the internal affairs of the Bank by setting forth, among
other things, the constitution of the Board as well as such procedures as the
delegation of the powers of the Board to committees and the appointment of
individuals to such offices as those of chief executive officer and deputy chief
executive officer(s) to manage the Bank’s business). In short, directors have
been reminded that they should guard against any conflict of interest and act in
good faith in the interests of the Bank as a whole at all time. They should
exercise due care, diligence and skill when performing their duties and should
use their powers for proper corporate purposes only.
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Terms of Reference for the Board

The Board is constituted in accordance with the Bank’s Articles of Association
for the time being in force. Without prejudice to such articles, these terms of
reference set out, among other things, the composition of the Board as well as
its powers and duties.

The number of directors shall be between seven and twenty-five. One-third of
the directors who have been longest in office since their last election shall
retire by rotation at each annual general meeting. The retiring directors shall
then be eligible for re-election.

Without prejudice to the power of the Bank in general meeting to appoint any
person to be a director, the Board shall have the power to appoint any person to
be a director provided that the HKMA shall have consented to that person
being so appointed in both cases. Any director so appointed by the Board shall
hold office until the next annual general meeting and shall then be eligible for
re-election.

The chairman shall be appointed by the Board from amongst its members to
preside at board meetings and general meetings. The company secretary shall
be appointed by the Board.

1. Powers and Duties

The Board is the ultimate governing body of the Bank responsible for:

setting the Bank’s strategic goals and policies;

filling senior management positions and reviewing succession plans for

such positions;

ensuring that a proper system of internal controls exists;

monitoring management performance against the achievement of such
goals and the compliance with such policies; and

— accounting for the Bank’s operations.

The business of the Bank shall be managed by the Board whose powers
include those:

— to appoint the chief executive officer to head the Bank’s management
structure provided that the HKMA shall have consented to that person
being so appointed; and

— to delegate any of its powers (including the day-to-day management of
the business of the Bank) to the chief executive officer or to a committee
or committees consisting of such individuals as it sees fit.

In addition to the powers conferred upon the Board by the Bank’s Articles of
Association for the time being in force (including the powers to borrow, raise
or secure the payment of money; to appoint attorneys; to delegate; and to
authorise subdelegation), the Board may exercise all such powers and do all
such acts and things as may be exercised, done or approved by the Bank and
are not expressly required to be exercised by the Bank in general meeting under

the Bank’s Articles of Association or such other relevant rules and regulations.
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ARITHF 0= - HEES There are three types of directors: executive directors, non-executive
IR YR VA S directors and independent non-executive directors.
() HWHHS (i) Executive Directors
B SRR R YE R R Executive directors shall carry out administrative, managerial and
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(ii)

supervisory functions as employees of the Bank in addition to their
duties as board members. They shall perform the duties and exercise
the powers that the Board may from time to time assign to them in
relation to the management of the business of the Bank. In the absence
of any specific directions from the Board, executive directors shall have
the general control and responsibility for the proper direction and
management of the business of the Bank subject to the Articles of
Association of the Bank and any other relevant rules and regulations.
Executive directors shall do all in their power to promote and develop
the business of the Bank, and conform to the directions of the Board

while doing so.

Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors

Non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors,
unlike executive directors, are not employees of the Bank. Non-executive
directors and independent non-executive directors are, therefore,
not involved in the day-to-day management of the Bank’s business.
However, their responsibility and liability are ultimately the same as
those of the executive directors as members of the Board. As such,
they shall devote sufficient time and attention to the Bank’s affairs.
Non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors shall
help to enhance the Bank’s sense of accountability and to widen its
strategic horizons by bringing into the boardroom expertise, skills,
information, insights and contacts that the Board might otherwise lack.
Besides, they shall help to better supervise the management and ensure
that the decision-making process is fair and balanced, for example,

by serving on such board committees as the Audit Committee.
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(iii)) Independent Non-executive Directors

The Board expects the independent non-executive directors to be free
from the influence or control of the management or the substantial
shareholders of the Bank. Independent non-executive directors should
have no direct or indirect financial interest or otherwise in the
business of the Bank. Nor should they have any significant banking
relationship with the Bank or any relationship with the substantial
shareholders of the Bank that might materially interfere with the
exercise of their own free judgement. Independent non-executive
directors shall bring strategic direction, expertise and, above all,
autonomy to the Board. If necessary, they shall be prepared to
challenge conventional wisdom so as to provide the Board with their
own viewpoints that are free from the influence or control of the
management or the substantial shareholders of the Bank.

The directors should bear in mind that despite these directorial
classifications, each of them shall exercise his own judgement when
matters are submitted to the Board for the individual directors’ collective
view, decision and approval. The directors shall guard against any conflict
of interest and act in good faith in the interests of the Bank as a whole at all
times. They shall exercise due care, diligence and skill when performing
their duties and shall use their powers for proper corporate purposes only.

. Remuneration

A director shall be entitled to receive remuneration for his services such
sum as shall from time to time be determined by the Bank in general meeting.
Moreover, the Board may grant special remuneration to any director who,
being called upon, shall perform any special or extra services to or at the
request of the Bank.

. Attendance at Meetings

The directors shall have the right of attendance at meetings of the Board.
Other non-voting parties may be invited from time to time to attend upon
such conditions as the Board sees fit.

. Frequency of Meetings

There shall be at least four regular board meetings scheduled for each
financial year — at least one in each quarter. Other board meetings may be
held during the financial year in question as the directors see fit.

. Meetings and Proceedings

Five directors shall constitute a quorum. The meetings and proceedings of
the Board shall be governed by the Bank’s Articles of Association for the
time being in force.
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7. Power of Meeting

A meeting of the Board at which a quorum is present shall be competent to
exercise any power vested in or exercisable by the Board under the Bank’s
Articles of Association for the time being in force.

8. Written Resolutions

A written resolution signed by a majority of the directors shall be as valid
and effectual as a resolution passed at a board meeting duly convened and
held.

Ultimate Responsibility for Corporate Governance Practices

In order to better ensure that matters arising between board meetings are handled
properly and in a timely fashion, supervision of functional areas have been
delegated by the Board and handled by committees (a major purpose of such
committees is to examine issues in greater depth than is possible in full board
meetings) and departments, while the Board remains ultimately responsible

for the Bank’s corporate governance practices.

It is the policy of the Board that its committee and the management provide it
with adequate and timely information on issues important to the Bank in order
for the Board to make informed decisions. Such issues include strategic
planning; business development; succession planning; management
development; internal controls; contingency planning; stress testing; risk
management; financial planning and reporting; auditing matters; share
performance; and compliance with the Bank’s Memorandum and Articles of
Association and such other relevant laws, rules, regulations, codes, guidelines,

practice notes and circulars.

The current practice of the Board is to hold no fewer than four regular
meetings during each financial year and at least one in each quarter. Besides,
extraordinary board meetings will be held if and when warranted. The
management shall submit regular reports on the issues concerned to the Board
in time for the directors’ consideration at the board meetings in question.
Relevant documents will also be submitted to the Board by circulation if and
when warranted on top of those presented at physical board meetings.
The papers in question currently cover such major areas as budgets and
financial statements; auditors’ and regulators’ findings and recommendations;
share performance summary updates; and loans and advances to connected
parties.

Although the Board has delegated to the management the authority to conduct
the day-to-day affairs of the Bank, it (namely, the Board) remains ultimately

responsible for the Bank’s corporate governance practices.
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The Board understands that in order to facilitate the establishment of clear
reporting lines to enable the Bank to be run soundly and efficiently, it needs to
do the following things to ensure that a competent management team is in
place:

(i) appoint a chief executive officer (who shall report directly to the Board)
with integrity, competence and experience in the banking and related
financial service businesses, and delegate to him the authority and
responsibility to manage the affairs of the Bank effectively and prudently;

(i) oversee the appointment of other senior executives (such as deputy chief
executive officers, company secretary, head of internal audit and other
division / department heads) and ensure that they are fit and proper to
manage and supervise the Bank’s key functions and business lines;

(iii) review and approve the organisational structure of the Bank and ensure
that a system is in place for the recruitment, training, supervision,
retention and succession of the Bank’s key managers; and

(iv) define the authorities and responsibilities of the directors and the senior
management, and provide adequate checks and balances to ensure proper
development and implementation of the policies and procedures involved.
Senior managers shall in turn exercise adequate supervision over the
activities of line managers in specific areas and ensure that clear reporting
lines are in place to facilitate a smooth flow of communication. Internal
auditors shall have a direct reporting line to the chairman of the Board
and unfettered access to the Board or its audit committee to enable them
to report their findings and make their recommendations directly.

The Board is responsible for the supervision of the management on behalf of
the shareholders of the Bank. The Board is assisted in its supervisory function
by board committees. Instead of involving the full board in handling every
matter, the supervision of major functional areas have been delegated to
certain committees of the Board (including the Executive Committee, the Risk
Management and Compliance Committee, the Remuneration Committee, and
the Audit Committee). All such board committees have been established with
clearly defined objectives, authorities and responsibilities. Written terms
of reference of each board committee have been maintained and shall be
updated appropriately. The committees in question shall report their activities
regularly to the Board. The Board shall ensure that the number of such
committees and the structure of each of them are suitable, having regard to the
Bank’s size and business, the Board’s composition and the individual directors’
expertise.

Directors and officers of the Bank are covered by appropriate directors and
officers liability insurance.
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HE gk Attendance Records
B -_HFEEHEEG > KETEZA®E  Board meetings (BM), Audit Committee meetings, Remuneration Committee
ik HNZE GG ELREBEERKE  meetings and annual general meeting (AGM) attendance records for 2012 are
Z SRR as follows:
2012
#IZHE  HiNzHE
ik i
Audit Remuneration B
HHE  Committee  Committee MFEKE
BM Meeting Meeting AGM
ERBITRE
Number of Meetings Held
4 4 3 1
R ek B
#HH5i4 Names of Directors Number of Meetings Attended
B A Dr LIU Lit Mo 3/4 - - 1/1
B ek Mr LIU Lit Chi 414 - - 1/1
HEREA Mr LAU Wai Man 414 - - 1/1
B4 Mr Don Tit Shing LIU 4/4 - - 1/1
B s Mr Wilfred Chun Ning LIU 3/4 - - -
WK S Mr TSANG Chiu Wing 4/4 - - 1/1
(RZF—"H+ZH=+—HEHD) (resigned on 31 December 2012)
gkl Mr WONG Har Kar 4/4 - - 1/1
(RZHF - ZH=1—HREHE) (resigned on 31 December 2012)
UEE F s Mr HE Jiale 3/4 - i
(RZHF—-"HHAH A+ HEZR) (appointed on 22 May 2012) N/A
FREH S Mr WANG Xiaoming 1/1 - - -
(R=F—-_FHAZTZHEHE) (resigned on 22 May 2012)
P i e Mr Andrew LIU 2/4 - - -
(R=F—"HF+ZH=+—HEHD) (resigned on 31 December 2012)
Wi — S Mr Hidekazu HORIKOSHI 2/2 - - PN
(RZH—-ZF/\A\HEZE) (appointed on 8 August 2012) N/A
RBHER A Mr Hidemitsu OTSUKA 1/2 - - 1/1
(R=F—Z8/\H\HEHE) (resigned on 8 August 2012)
B Mr Christopher Kwun Shing LIU 3/4 - - 1/1
J Stk Mr Alfred Cheuk Yo CHOW 4/4 4/4 3/3 1/1
BB Mr MENG Qinghui 474 - - -
[ Z5): ] N Dr Robin Yau Hing CHAN 3/4 - - 1/1
S M Timothy George FRESHWATER 414 - - -
(R=F—-_FNAHANH (redesignated as Independent
SR 2L JE R BT Non-executive Director on
8 August 2012)
TR A Mr Wanchai CHIRANAKHORN 4/4 4/4 3/3 1/1
BRI Mr CHENG Yuk Wo 4/4 4/4 3/3 1/1
TR A Mr Andrew Chiu Cheung MA 3/4 - - 1/1
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Composition of the Board

As of 31 December 2012, the Board was made up of 15 members,
comprising 5 executive directors, 5 non-executive directors and
5 independent non-executive directors. A current list of the directors of
the Bank (including their roles and functions) is available on the websites
of both the Bank and the Stock Exchange.

The Bank has received, from each of the independent non-executive directors
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Bank considers all of its independent non-executive directors
to be still independent.

Mr Timothy Freshwater was redesignated from “non-executive director” to
“independent non-executive director” on 8§ August 2012. Since his appointment
as a member of the Board in April 1997, Mr Freshwater has not had any
executive or management role or functions in the Bank, nor has he been under
the employment of any subsidiary of the Bank. Mr Freshwater is not
financially dependent on the Bank and has only attended meetings of the
Board and those of the committee on which he sits in the capacity as a member
of the Board. The Board considers that Mr Freshwater is independent and
satisfies all the independence criteria under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
except Rule 3.13(7) because he was a non-executive director of the Bank
immediately before the redesignation.

In order to meet the requirement under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules which
stipulates that an issuer must appoint independent non-executive directors
representing at least one-third of the board by 31 December 2012, two of the
Bank’s executive directors (namely, Mr Tsang Chiu Wing and Mr Wong Har
Kar) and one of its non-executive directors (namely, Mr Andrew Liu who had
additionally indicated that he would opt to step down as a board member
because of his other commitments) resigned from the Board with effect from
31 December 2012. Mr Tsang and Mr Wong were both appointed the Bank’s
Deputy Chief Executive Officers on 7 March 2013.

Furthermore, Mr Liu Lit Chi, now holding the title of “Deputy Chairman
and Managing Director”, retired as Chief Executive Officer on 7 March 2013.
Mr Lau Wai Man, now holding the title of “Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer”, was appointed Chief Executive Officer on 7 March 2013.

Members of the Board come from a variety of different backgrounds and have
a diverse range of business, banking and professional expertise. Biographies
which include relationships with members of the Board, senior management
and substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Bank are
shown on page 5 headed “Biographical Data about Directors and Senior
Management”.
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Continuous Professional Development

The Bank, among other sources such as boards of directors of other companies
on which its directors sit and professional bodies to which its directors belong
(as the case may be), has continued to provide all of its directors (whose names
are set forth below) with relevant training sessions and reading materials to
further develop and refresh their knowledge and skills:

e Dr Liu Lit Mo

e Mr Liu Lit Chi

e Mr Lau Wai Man

e Mr Don Tit Shing Liu

e Mr Wilfred Chun Ning Liu

e Mr Tsang Chiu Wing
(resigned on 31 December 2012)

e Mr Wong Har Kar
(resigned on 31 December 2012)

e Mr He Jiale
(appointed on 22 May 2012)

e Mr Wang Xiaoming
(resigned on 22 May 2012)

¢ Mr Andrew Liu
(resigned on 31 December 2012)

e Mr Hidekazu Horikoshi
(appointed on 8 August 2012)

* Mr Hidemitsu Otsuka
(resigned on 8 August 2012)

e Mr Christopher Kwun Shing Liu
e Mr Alfred Cheuk Yu Chow

e Mr Meng Qinghui

* Dr Robin Yau Hing Chan

e Mr Timothy George Freshwater
(redesignated as Independent Non-executive Director on 8 August 2012)

e Mr Wanchai Chiranakhorn
e Mr Cheng Yuk Wo
¢  Mr Andrew Chiu Cheung Ma

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles and responsibilities of the Bank’s Chairman (namely, Dr Liu Lit Mo)
and its Chief Executive Officer (namely, Mr Lau Wai Man) are separate. They
are assumed by two different individuals. The Chairman is responsible for the
management of the Board, while the Chief Executive Officer is charged with
the responsibilities to manage the day-to-day business of the Bank.
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Monthly reports to the Board

Members of the Board are provided with monthly updates giving a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Bank’s performance, position and
prospects in sufficient detail to enable them to discharge their duties as
members of the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The Bank has established a Remuneration Committee with specific terms of
reference which entrusted it with the authority and duties, including, amongst
others, making recommendation and reviewing the remuneration policy of the
Bank and its subsidiaries (the “Bank Group”) by taking into account the pay
and conditions across the Bank Group’s individual remuneration packages
including directors, senior management and key personnel as well as those in
positions of significant influence and those having an impact on the Bank
Group’s risk profile. It is to ensure that the reward frameworks and decisions
shall be developed in a manner to encourage employee behavior that supports
the Bank Group’s risk tolerance, risk management framework and long-term
financial soundness, as well as to support and reinforce the achievement of the
Bank Group’s vision and strategy. It is also authorised by the Board to obtain
professional advice as it shall deem appropriate and shall be responsible for
selection and appointment of consultants to advise it on all aspects of
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee comprises two independent
non-executive directors and one non-executive director appointed by the Board.
The Committee is chaired by Mr Wanchai Chiranakhorn, the other members
are Mr Cheng Yuk Wo and Mr Alfred Cheuk Yu Chow.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least twice a year. Committee
members’ Remuneration Committee meetings attendance records for 2012 are
set out on page 54.

The Remuneration Committee is satisfied that the remuneration system
of the Bank Group is mainly fixed cash-based with controlled scale of
performance-related incentive bonus which is, on the one hand, in conformity
with the risk appetite of the Bank Group to grow steadily and prudently by
encouraging long-term performance, rather than short-term risk taking, and
on the other hand, to motivate, recognise and reward both high individual
contribution and sound team performance. The Bank Group will reward
employees’ achievements by directly linking pay to performance outcomes,
taking account of several factors including the overall performance of the Bank
Group, performance of the relevant business units and contributions of
individual employees. The Remuneration Committee will continue to align
the Bank Group’s remuneration policies with the Guideline with particular
attention paid to risk adjustments to performance assessment, while ensuring
that the rewards are competitive.
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The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge
its duties and the following is a summary of the work of the Remuneration
Committee during 2012:

(i) reviewed the remuneration systems and operations of the Bank and it was
considered adequate and consistent with the “Guideline on a Sound
Remuneration System” (the “Guideline”) issued by the HKMA in March
2010;

(i) reviewed and analysed the labour market conditions and annual salary
payment for the year;

(iii) discussed and reviewed the payment of directors’ fees; and

(iv) discussed and reviewed the benefits in kind and an improvement to all
employees of the Bank Group was noted.

Details of the Remuneration Committee, including its terms of reference and
duties and responsibilities, are available on the websites of both the Bank and
the Stock Exchange.

The emolument payable to directors will depend on their respective contractual
terms under employment contracts, if any, and as recommended by the
Remuneration Committee. Details of the directors’ emolument are set out in
note 13 to the consolidated financial statements. As defined in the Remuneration
Policy of the Bank Group, there are 20 employees catagorised as Senior
Management and Key Personnel. The aggregate payouts for these senior
executives for 2011 and 2012 are shown in the table below in accordance with
the disclosure requirement of 3.2.3 of the Guideline.

The remuneration for the senior management and key personnel for the year
ended 31 December 2012 is as follows:

BWESS-TF BEFF
+ZA=+—Hik +ZA=+—HiE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2012 31 December 2011
T EH T
HKS$°000 HK$°000

Fixed remuneration | 35,762 34321 |

Variable remuneration:

- Cash 197 376
- Shares AR N/A TR N/A
- Share Options AN F N/A R N/A
- Others AR N/A TR N/A
197 376
Number of beneficiaries | 5 5

Deferred remuneration:

- Vested - -
- Unvested - -
- Awarded - -

- Paid out - _

- Reduced through performance adjustments - -
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Other than the emoluments of directors, chief executive and five highest paid
individuals set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements, the
emoluments of the senior management whose profiles are included in
“Biographical data about directors and senior management” of the “Corporate
information” section of this annual report fell within the following bands:

2012 2011
N N i

Number of Number of
individuals individuals

Emolument band (HK$)

W

1,500,001 - 2,500,000

2,500,001 - 3,500,000

I |

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises two independent non-executive directors and
one non-executive director who possess the appropriate professional expertise
and experience in financial management and business. The Audit Committee
is chaired by Mr Cheng Yuk Wo and the other members are Mr Wanchai
Chiranakhorn and Mr Alfred Cheuk Yu Chow.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is required, among other
things, to advise the Board on the appointment and retention of the external
auditors, to review the external auditors’ independence and objectivity,
to oversee the relationship with the external auditors, to review the half-yearly
and annual reports and accounts, to review the external auditors’ management
letter, to hold meetings with the HKMA, to assess the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Bank’s systems of internal control, to review the internal
audit function, and to review and recommend internal procedures to ensure
compliance with regulatory requirements and generally accepted accounting
standards. Details of the Audit Committee, including its terms of reference
and duties and responsibilities, are available on the websites of both the Bank

and the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least three times a year. Committee
members’ Audit Committee meetings attendance records for 2012 are set out

on page 54.
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To discharge its responsibilities, the Audit Committee performed the

following major reviews in 2012:

Financial Statements

The Audit Committee met with the external auditors and the senior executive
in charge of Finance and Treasury Management Division to discuss the
accounts for the year ended 31 December 2011 and for the six months ended
30 June 2012. The Audit Committee reviewed and discussed with the external
auditors to ensure that the Bank’s financial statements had been prepared in

accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Relationship with the External Auditors

The Audit Committee reviewed the independence and objectivity of the
external auditors, the scope of audit services and related audit fees payable to
the external auditors for the Board’s approval. Moreover, the Audit Committee
met and discussed with the external auditors on their audit strategy and assessment
of the sufficiency of the internal control of the Bank.

Internal Control Review

The Audit Committee also reviewed the internal control issues and the
internal audit function of the Bank, covering the annual audit plan, the
staffing and resources of Internal Audit Department, the audit findings
and recommendations raised in the internal audits undertaken, and the

implementation status of related audit recommendations.

Auditors’ Remuneration
The remuneration paid and payable to the Bank Group’s auditors, Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, for 2012 amounted to:

g

HKD

Audit services 4,320,000
Interim review 400,000
Tax 279,000
Total 4,999,000

Shareholders’ Rights

1. Per Article 56 of the Bank’s Articles of Association, the Board may,
whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting and
extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on requisition,
as provided by the Companies Ordinance, or, in default, may be
convened by the requisitionists. As such, shareholders can convene an
extraordinary general meeting under Section 113 of the Companies
Ordinance which states as follows:
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(ii)

The directors of a company, notwithstanding anything in its articles
shall, on the requisition of members of the company holding at the
date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-twentieth of
such of the paid-up capital of the company as at the date of the deposit
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the company, or,
in the case of a company not having a share capital, members of the
company representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of all the members having at the said date a right to vote at
general meetings of the company, forthwith proceed duly to convene

an extraordinary general meeting of the company.

The requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and must be signed
by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of the
company, and may consist of several documents in like form, each

signed by one or more requisitionists.

(iii) If the directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of

the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting for a day not more
than 28 days after the date on which the notice convening the meeting
is given, the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than
one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held

after the expiration of 3 months from the said date.

(iv) A meeting convened under this section by the requisitionists shall be

(V)

convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which

meetings are to be convened by directors.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason of
the failure of the directors duly to convene a meeting shall be repaid to
the requisitionists by the company, and any sum so repaid shall be
retained by the company out of any sums due or to become due from
the company by way of fees or other remuneration in respect of their

services to such of the directors as were in default.

(vi) For the purposes of this section, the directors shall, in the case of a

meeting at which a resolution is to be proposed as a special resolution,
be deemed not to have duly convened the meeting if they do not give
such notice thereof as is required by section 116.
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requisition in writing of such number of members as is hereinafter
specified and (unless the company otherwise resolves) at the expense
of the requisitionists -

(a) to give to members of the company entitled to receive notice of
the next annual general meeting notice of any resolution which
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting;

(b) to circulate to members entitled to have notice of any general
meeting sent to them any statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution
or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

(i1) The number of members necessary for a requisition under subsection (1)

shall be -

(a) any number of members representing not less than one-fortieth of
the total voting rights of all members having at the date of the
requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which the requisition
relates; or

(b) not less than 50 members holding shares in the company on which
there has been paid up an average sum, per member, of not less
than HK$2,000.

(iii) Notice of any such resolution shall be given, and any such statement

shall be circulated, to members of the company entitled to have notice
of the meeting sent to them by serving a copy of the resolution or
statement on each such member in any manner permitted for service
of notice of the meeting, and notice of any such resolution shall be
given to any other member of the company by giving notice of the
general effect of the resolution in any manner permitted for giving
him notice of meetings of the company:

Provided that the copy shall be served, or notice of the effect of the
resolution shall be given, as the case may be, in the same manner
and, so far as practicable, at the same time as notice of the meeting
and, where it is not practicable for it to be served or given at that time,
it shall be served or given as soon as practicable thereafter.
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(iv) A company shall not be bound under this section to give notice of any

)

resolution or to circulate any statement unless -

(a) acopy of the requisition signed by the requisitionists (or 2 or more
copies which between them contain the signatures of all the
requisitionists) is deposited at the registered office of the

company -

(1) in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution,

not less than 6 weeks before the meeting; and

(2) in the case of any other requisition, not less than 1 week

before the meeting; and

(b) there is deposited or tendered with the requisition a sum reasonably

sufficient to meet the company’s expenses in giving effect thereto:

Provided that if, after a copy of a requisition requiring notice
of a resolution has been deposited at the registered office of
the company, an annual general meeting is called for a date
6 weeks or less after the copy has been deposited, the copy though
not deposited within the time required by this subsection shall be

deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

The company shall also not be bound under this section to circulate
any statement if, on the application either of the company or of any
other person who claims to be aggrieved, the court is satisfied that
the rights conferred by this section are being abused to secure needless
publicity for defamatory matter; and the court may order the
company’s costs on an application under this section to be paid in
whole or in part by the requisitionists, notwithstanding that they are

not parties to the application.
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(vi) Notwithstanding anything in the company's articles, the business which
may be dealt with at an annual general meeting shall include any
resolution of which notice is given in accordance with this section,
and for the purposes of this subsection notice shall be deemed to
have been so given notwithstanding the accidental omission, in giving

it, of 1 or more members.

(vii) In the event of any default in complying with the provisions of this
section, every officer of the company who is in default shall be liable

to a fine.

3. Shareholders can lodge their signed, written enquires to the Board
with the Bank’s registered office at Ground Floor, Chong Hing Bank
Centre, 24 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong (Attention: Company

Secretarial Department).

Voting Procedures at General Meetings

The Listing Rules require that any vote of shareholders on all resolutions at
general meetings must be taken by poll. The poll results will be posted on the
websites of both the Stock Exchange and the Bank on the same day following

the shareholders’ meeting.

General Meeting of Shareholders

The 2012 Annual General Meeting (“2012 AGM”) was held on 9 May 2012
and poll results in respect of the resolutions proposed at the 2012 AGM were
published on the websites of both the Stock Exchange and the Bank on 9 May
2012.

The 2013 Annual General Meeting will be held on 8 May 2013. Please refer to
the Bank’s Annual Report 2012 and its accompanying Explanatory Statement
which are expected be despatched to the shareholders on 28 March 2013 for

further details.



i 3% 8 h W& &

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
RoF-ZFEZHEH

as of 7 March 2013

BB B 1 B BORH

S TR EEBOR > 50 1 H S
AR A B 28 S B B AS ST 585 14 1 s
ARDE ~ $E 2 R AN T 1 3 2 HE il S Bl B
B B o ASERTT IR Zn At G L 3E 5
AR L R 2 & A L 5T ~
T2 S 55 AEURURA R 3 56 - e Tl K 0 I
bz 28 L AR SRS ~ SEBEBAITIHG ~
BRI ~ AT o ABUTEOI 2
FEEBA BN LA 50 4 e B s el
DU P R B P BETRE L 5 BB £ H 98 3
PSR o

SLJBE B i

N BRAT L e o St S K A A [ Y 6
SR o 0 2 i e B v 0T
Sy~ IRHOR & R SR AT 0 DU
TRV B2 e B AN ST 408 i 288 £ o2 T I A

S EteS el

HR G W A AR R R SR IR
R AT b2 R e R e s
HI o NI > FHPEFORIN Btz 143
EIRBCRBRY] > ECRAE R R AR I A3
BIREH o ERHEREARITNEEF
—ZHEANAZTHIEAA Z EiHiR
RS A i RS S iz e
ST KRS TR RS HID) R A e sy
QSR T I Pz PRI > ffE

1 MRIEAERAT AL AR SR AL AN B > 5 B3
=4 — (SRS AR DL =% e
Z AT > HI DR =5 —
ZBHE) o 3 R ERT
R > BRERXBERETSRE L
i £ 4R N T o R H T HE
F o MDA Ay i A Jef 78R
(BRIEMAM E FTRE k) o mAiH g
A 23 T o T 5 o HE A0 3 S o6 S A
gz AL > HEHTL A E T E
JBE SR A K Ak > e B RS R
HERG2BEET (EESHEH S
i 5 9 o2 H 8 R DA T B {0
W Z AW o BRARDER IR L3 Il g 5C
A4 1T A42 BREHETIER B
Z AT R B 5 2 i 15 R R
HEF 2o » R EIE T
— A IR o

Investor Relations and Information Disclosure

The Board has adopted a Disclosure Policy highlighting the importance of
providing accurate and timely information relating to its businesses, state of
affairs, profit or loss and capital adequacy ratio to its stakeholders and the
public. The Bank believes that stakeholders’ interests can best be served by
accurate and timely disclosure of its corporate strategies, business strengths
and weaknesses, growth opportunities and threats, and prospects through a
continuous and active dialogue with the investment community, the media and
the public. The Bank is committed to providing its stakeholders and the public
with access to key information that is reasonably required to make an investment
decision on a fair and timely basis.

Communications with Shareholders

The Bank establishes and maintains different communication channels with
its shareholders through, for example, the publication of annual and interim
reports, circulars, notices and results of general meetings, and press releases
on the Bank’s and the Stock Exchange’s websites.

Compliance with Corporate Governance Code

The Board is well aware that maintaining good corporate governance
standards is important to the effective and efficient operation of the Bank.
The Board has, therefore, adopted the above-mentioned Policy Statement
on Corporate Governance to better ensure that a high standard of corporate
governance practices is maintained. The directors confirm that, for the
financial year ended 31 December 2012, the Bank has complied with
the former (Code on Corporate Governance Practices) and the revised (Corporate
Governance Code) Code Provisions as set forth in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules except:

1. Under the Bank’s Articles of Association, one-third (or, if the quotient
resulting from the division of the number of directors by three is not a
whole number, the number nearest one-third) of the directors for the time
being, who have been longest in office since their last election, shall be
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at each annual general
meeting. As between persons who became directors on the same day, those
to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree between themselves) be
determined by drawing lots. And as to those persons additionally appointed
as directors or appointed as directors to fill casual vacancies by the board
of directors, they shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election (but not to be
taken into account in determining the directors or the number of directors
who are to retire by rotation) at that annual general meeting. The directors
consider such practices to be appropriate alternatives to those recommended
under Code Provisions A.4.1 and A.4.2.
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having a nomination committee in place under Code Provision A.5.1, any
director is entitled to recommend for the consideration and, if thought fit,
approval of the board, as well as other relevant supervisory and regulatory
bodies, suitable candidates who can contribute to the Bank, and discharge
their responsibilities in the interests of the Bank and its shareholders
as a whole. The directors consider such a practice to be an appropriate
alternative to that recommended under Code Provision A.5.1.

. As set forth in the Bank’s Policy Statement on Corporate Governance,

the directors should bear in mind that despite their respective directorial
classifications (as the case may be, as executive directors, non-executive
directors or independent non-executive directors), each of them shall
exercise his own judgement when matters are submitted to the board
for the individual directors’ collective review, decision and approval.
The directors shall guard against any conflict of interest and act in
good faith in the interests of the Bank as a whole at all times. They shall
exercise due care, diligence and skill when performing their duties and
shall use their powers for proper corporate purposes only.

In line with the Bank’s Policy Statement on Corporate Governance, the
Chairman has encouraged his fellow directors (be they executive directors,
non-executive directors or independent non-executive directors) to freely
express their views and has allowed sufficient time for discussion of issues
at full board meetings. If, for example, the non-executive directors
(including the independent non-executive directors) hold views contrary to
those of the executive directors in respect of any matter discussed at a full
board meeting, the minutes will have this reflected clearly. In the light of
such an established practice, the directors are of the view that such open
and free discussions at full board meetings among all the directors are more
productive and, as such, there is no further need for the non-executive
directors (including the independent non-executive directors) to hold
meetings, under Code Provision A.2.7, without the presence of the executive
directors.

HE > REITCERHESHEITE ALY Furthermore, the Bank has adopted a code for securities transactions by
ZSFHI > HAE B REA Eri I8+ directors with terms no less exacting than those set out in the Model Code for
Ji3)z BT ATREHEITRE SRR S Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers under Appendix 10 to
FEEHESFH] (T35 52 G <FHI ;) o &8 the Listing Rules (the “Model Securities Transactions Code™). After specific
AT EuA 5% > FifEESMERAZE  enquiry by the Bank, all of the directors confirmed that, for the financial year
B -t H=Z=+—HI1LZME ended 31 December 2012, they had complied with the required standards as
HEENCETEL LA FH| R A set out in both the Model Securities Transactions Code and the Bank’s own
WMITHBATHET E 2B code in question.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF CHONG HING BANK LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chong Hing Bank
Limited (the “Bank”™) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 71 to 214, which comprise the consolidated and the
Bank’s statements of financial position as at 31 December 2012, the consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies

and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are

free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate

to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Bank and of the Group as at 31 December 2012 and
of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in

accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

7 March 2013
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HWE_F - ZH=E1—HILFE

for the year ended 31 December 2012
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ke ita < €YE JVERAT B e ik
Z A

T A R AR R

FI A% 2 W) 2 i A
B ot i i
Biu

A BE R
- IR ARHEATHEA A

TR A - FEAS

2012 2011
Wit BT BT
Notes HK$°000 HKS$’000

(1)
(Restated)
Interest income 1,563,820 1,369,989
Interest expense (726,912)  (554,668)
Net interest income 8 836,908 815,321
Fee and commission income 253,949 276,257
Fee and commission expenses (64,584) (58,534)
Net fee and commission income 9 189,365 217,723
Net gains (losses) on financial
instruments at fair value through
profit or loss 10 57,473 (102,418)
Net gains (losses) on fair value hedge 10 1,200 (20,679)
Other operating income 11 237,835 404,855
Operating expenses 12 (788,591) (773,555)

534,190 541,247

Reversal of impairment allowances on
loans and advances 21 65,228 107,188

Net losses on disposal of

property and equipment (1,861) (4,128)

Net gains on disposal of

available-for-sale securities 594 697

Net gains on disposal of and
fair value adjustments on
investment properties 24 12,206 9,065

Impairment loss on

available-for-sale securities - (4,473)
Share of profits of associates 36,028 18,056
Profit before taxation 646,385 667,652
Taxation 14 (103,045) (106,936)

Profit for the year
- attributable to owners of the Bank 543,340 560,716

Earnings per share - basic 16 HK$1.25 HK$1.29
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE_F - ZH=E1T—HILFE
Jor the year ended 31 December 2012

R A
Hoftln 2 1w
DRI B0 2 B Il

HAIR ARGz A

IRl T A AR A il 2 e 5

N S R PR WA B IE I kicd
Z A OFiR)

PRI HH A R 8 2 i 2 3
HH BN e S

R v {4 585 7 o W i 25
HH B e S

Rl 7S 5 ] {3 5 2 2
i f B

IRl 7S W 6 R 8 2 N P E R
Fif B

Fr il e 2 w2 Fofth S i s (32 HY)

SRRl AR (G2 (BRBER)

A JBE vl MR M
S R AR -
ARBATHEA A

2012 2011
wETIe BT
HK$°000 HK$°000
(1)
(Restated)
Profit for the year 543,340 560,716
Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences arising on
translation 4,588 6,547
Surplus on remeasurement of
retirement benefits - 10,268
Income tax effect relating to
retirement benefits - (1,694)
Fair value gains (losses) of
available-for-sale securities arising
during the year 183,500 (89,234)
Amount reclassified to the profit or loss
upon disposal of available-for-sale
securities (594) (697)
Amount reclassified to the profit or loss
upon impairment of available-for-sale
securities - 4,473
Income tax effect relating to disposal of
available-for-sale securities 98 12
Income tax effect relating to fair value
change of available-for-sale securities (29,914) 13,086
Share of other comprehensive income
(expense) of associates 430 (53)
Other comprehensive income (expense)
for the year (net of tax) 158,108 (57,292)
Total comprehensive income for the year 701,448 503,424
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Bank 701,448 503,424
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
RoF—_4FfZH=1—H

as at 31 December 2012

j<{

A B T 2
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R EA
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ffea

JRIRABUTHA A &

JReAs
fit
ek

ARk EERE

e Sl 3 “HoE B
+ZH=+—-H +ZHA=+—H —H—H
31 December 2012 31 December 2011 1 January 2011
Wik BT BT BT T
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
(Eif) (&)
(Restated) (Restated)
Assets
Cash and short-term funds 17 17,331,877 18,659,276 18,249,365
Placements with banks and other
financial institutions maturing
between one to twelve months 4,789,513 2,169,007 2,282,122
Derivative financial instruments 18 187,911 129,556 20,542
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 19 1,213,410 1,845,589 1,774,453
Available-for-sale securities 19 4,222,217 1,846,485 1,212,428
Held-to-maturity securities 19 9,600,020 8,288,082 10,878,046
Advances and other accounts 21 42,109,218 43,247,956 38,835,820
Tax recoverable - - 6
Interests in associates 23 182,970 153,872 136,919
Investment properties 24 135,318 127,171 116,400
Property and equipment 25 928,380 918,968 729,771
Prepaid lease payments for land 26 2,423 2,483 2,535
Deferred tax assets 33 1,502 16,861 -
Goodwill 36 50,606 50,606 50,606
Total assets 80,755,365 77,455,912 74,289,013
Liabilities
Deposits and balances of banks
and other financial institutions 1,843,477 1,086,836 1,039,991
Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements 27 433,681 420,652 -
Deposits from customers 28 67,508,748 64,815,713 63,500,219
Certificates of deposit 29 667,636 1,545,562 -
Derivative financial instruments 18 248,656 265,696 256,426
Other accounts and accruals 740,229 558,495 442 834
Current tax liabilities 16,327 31,176 50,106
Loan capital 30 1,898,957 1,852,153 2,401,151
Deferred tax liabilities 33 23,574 6,897 11,478
Total liabilities 73,381,285 70,583,180 67,702,205
Equity attributable to owners
of the Bank
Share capital 31 217,500 217,500 217,500
Reserves 7,156,580 6,655,232 6,369,308
Total equity 7,374,080 6,872,732 6,586,808
Total liabilities and equity 80,755,365 71,455,912 74,289,013

HREGR _F - =HLHMH Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 7 March 2013 and
T HESEAT » WRFEFH M #E o signed on its behalf by:

B
BN
BIRR
Bk %

TN
B ey s
B A TS

AL

Liu Lit Mo, Chairman

Liu Lit Chi, Deputy Chairman and Managing Director

Lau Wai Man, Executive Director and Chief Executive Olfficer
Michael K W Yeung, Company Secretary
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE BANK
RZF—ZHFfZH=4—H
as at 31 December 2012

{3

AP B R 2 &
RIS R S At BB
—E+ iRz R H

ik EMIH
OISR B 5 A SRR
£ b iz

Wk 0
FEEHI A 2%
Bk H

RERHE LT

P 2% v Xk

L=l

iract/ES

E T
TS L &
IRIEHUR R

HAA
faf

[ 8 T Ll 5 B 5

TS A il 2 <

&Ptk

RIS 25 Rl

i

ik EMTH
HARE R A B

JEA Bk
fHEEA

R AR

fafE

JEIRARSRATHEH A

JBeA
fikfhi
HEHME

AR E TR

HPEFHR " F-=F=A LHEHE
Fe S RESEAT » MR HGWHE o

BRI
BN
BIROR
Bk %

2
A3 Ji A AR Y
AL

Assets
Cash and short-term funds
Placements with banks and
other financial institutions
maturing between one to
twelve months
Derivative financial instruments
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Available-for-sale securities
Held-to-maturity securities
Advances and other accounts
Investments in subsidiaries
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Interests in associates
Investment properties
Property and equipment
Prepaid lease payments for land
Deferred tax assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Deposits and balances of banks
and other financial institutions
Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements
Deposits from customers
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Certificates of deposit
Derivative financial instruments
Other accounts and accruals
Current tax liabilities
Loan capital
Deferred tax liabilities
Total liabilities
Equity attributable to owners
of the Bank
Share capital
Reserves
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

21
22(9)
22(ii) & 39
23
24
25
2
33

27
28
39
29

30
33

31
32

- “Ho—E D
+ZAZ+—-H  +ZAZ+-H —~H—H
31 December 2012 31 December 2011 1 January 2011
T T EH T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
() ()

(Restated) (Restated)

17,321,474 18,648,729 18,204,225
4,775,716 2,134,819 2,282,122
187,911 129,556 20,542
1,213,149 1,845,282 1,773,880
4,130,090 1,765,800 1,126,117
9,600,020 8,288,082 10,878,046
41,885,579 43,130,035 38,627,701
261,984 261,884 261,784
248,376 230,891 1,241
21,500 21,500 21,500
101,990 94,100 86,450
1,198,783 1,195,573 1,222,974
2,423 2,483 2,535
1,502 16,861 -
80,950,497 71,765,595 74,509,117
1,843,477 1,086,836 1,039,991
433,681 420,652 -
67,508,748 64,815,582 63,499,301
846,080 793,690 700,918
667,636 1,545,562 -
248,656 265,696 256,426
502,201 427,644 265,625
15,598 32,854 46,674
1,898,957 1,852,153 2,401,151
15,129 - 3,318
73,980,163 71,240,669 68,213,404
217,500 217,500 217,500
6,752,834 6,307,426 6,078,213
6,970,334 6,524,926 6,295,713
80,950,497 71,765,595 74,509,117

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 7 March 2013 and

signed on its behalf by:

Liu Lit Mo, Chairman

Liu Lit Chi, Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
Lau Wai Man, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
Michael K W Yeung, Company Secretary
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
BE_F—-_F A= —HILEE

for the year ended 31 December 2012

SR
Bk Bk Investment ~ ABE  WERE  HERE RN
Share  Share W% revaluation General Translation Regulatory Retained Hi
capital premium Goodwill reserve - reserve reserve reserve  profits Total
Wk W%t BB BTG BB EMTa  #WTa  #WTa BT #MTx
Note HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000
L THE GROUP
R=F-_%-H-H At 1 January 2012
(g (as restated) 217,500 1,542,817 (182) 33,807 1,388,500 21,648 408,000 3,260,642 6,872,732
SRR Profit for the year = = = = = = - 543340 543340
IR 2 o R 2 Exchange differences
arising on translation - - - - - 4,588 - - 4,588
REET RS Fair value gains of
HATHENE G available-for-sale
securities arising
during the year - - - 183,500 - - - - 183,500
TR s 24 Amount reclassified
B HE 28 to the profit or loss
upon disposal of
available-for-sale
securities - - - (594) - - - - (594)
PR B v e ph B 25 2 P B 2 Income tax effect
relating to disposal
of available-for-sale
securities - - - 98 - - - - 928
RS il 5 S (A Income tax effect relating
i3l & to fair value change of
available-for-sale
securities - - - (29914) - - - - (29914)
Al Al 2 Gl Share of reserves of
associates - - - 430 - - - - 430
Hftn 2l Other comprehensive
income - - _= 153,520 - 4,588 - - 158,108
SRR A A Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - 153,520 - 4,588 - 543,340 701,448
BR-F R Interim dividend paid o~
for financial year 2012~ 15 - - - - - - - (47.850) (47,850 =
BRI Final dividend paid for §
financial year 2011 15 - - - - - - - (152,250) (152,250) =
5]
2
BRI & i o PR Release of regulatory <E
reserve to retained n
profits - - _= - - - (21,000) 21,000 - :E’_,
E
REF—"81+ZA=1-H At 31 December 2012 217,500 1,542,817 (182) 187,327 1,388,500 26,236 387,000 3,624,882 7,374,080 :—
— — — — — — g
o
o)
o=
T
o)
c
o
o =
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oG B R OBE fR PR K
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
HWE_F - ZH=E1—HILFE
for the year ended 31 December 2012

i<l
17 S Investment ~ ARE MO HeRME  RERA
Share  Share W% revaluation General Translation Regulatory Retained ik
capital premium Goodwill reserve - reserve  reserve reserve  profits Total
Wt EBTE #MTa WETc  BRTa BETa #MTe BT BBTa BTk
Notes HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HKS$’000
RN-F——F—~H—H At 1 January 2011

(AR (as originally stated) 217,500 1,542,817 (182) 106,220 1,388,500 15,101 331,000 2,976,973 6,577,929

RN A Effect of change in
accounting policy 2 = = = = = = = 8,879 8,879
N_-%——#—~H—H At 1 January 2011 - T -

() (as restated) 217,500 1,542,817 (182) 106,220 1,388,500 15,101 331,000 2,985,852 6,586,808
FERERA Profit for the year - - - - - - - 560,716 560,716
[R5 2 51 i e Exchange differences

arising on translation - - - - - 6,547 - - 6,547
BRI B Surplus on remeasurement
of retirement benefits - - - - - - - 10,268 10,268
WINR KRR B2 i SR & Income tax effect relating
to retirement benefits - - - - - - - (1,694)  (1,694)
AR ] 1 Fair value losses of
HATHE 2 fiR available-for-sale
securities arising
during the year - - - (89,234) - - - - (89,234)
] A o i 23 Amount reclassified
B ERRGEZEH to the profit or loss
upon disposal of
available-for-sale
securities - - - (697) - - - - (697)
A Y 2 (23 Amount reclassified
B EHHE 28 to the profit or loss
upon impairment of
available-for-sale
securities - - - 4473 - - - - 4473
it 25 vl 2 Share of reserves of
associates - - - (53) - - - - (53)
PR B T R 5 55 2 i R Income tax effect relating
to disposal of
available-for-sale
securities - - - 12 - - - - 12
R B R AT ENE Tncome tax effect relating
i bt to fair value change of
available-for-sale
securities - - - 13,086 - - - - 13,086
A (G s Other comprehensive
(expense) income - - _= (72,413) - 6,547 - 8,574 (57,292
SRR () W Total comprehensive
(expense) income
for the year - - - (72,413) - 6,547 - 569,290 503,424
Bk F——EEE e Interim dividend paid
for financial year 2011 15 - - - - - - - (65,250) (65,250
B F-BHEEE RIS Final dividend paid for
financial year 2010 15 - - - - - - - (152,250) (152,250)
TR B B o 2 e B Earmark of retained
profits as regulatory
reserve - - - - - - 77,000 (77,000) -
R-F——4+ZH=1—H At 31 December 2011 T -
(i) (as restated) 217,500 1,542,817 (182) 33,807 1,388,500 21,648 408,000 3,260,642 6,872,732

IS RS RS A R A S B % /A F]  The retained profits of the Group included retained profits of HK$66,564,000 (2011: retained profits of HK$37,896,000) retained by the
i A% 5 — 5 5 BB W 66,564,000 TG associates of the Group.

ZREBA(CZ——F : RERHN

B W 37,896,000 7G) ©

EER 2L AR AR SRS The regulatory reserve is set up in compliance with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority’s requirements and is distributable to
2 BOR B i IR %S P AR BYTHES  owners of the Bank subject to consultation with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.
N A SRR 2 B o
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The general reserve comprises transfers from previous years’ retained profits.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
BE_F—-_F A= —HILEE

for the year ended 31 December 2012

EidzE S

FRABETG B
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HRRIBOA
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H 35 W S T L O P R 2 i

{3 B R AR AR R
FI AT 2 Wl 2 i A
SCFEENRZ B (R R
BB
g
FENT £ MR 8 2 R
e S 2
A I AR R T 2 BB B S

BERE s (R W
28 =15 F B350 -2 308 R0 e e A K

28 =18 H Bz S R

28 =8 A BN 2 TR R 3 R
FLAth 55 B I

B TESIIR KSR 2 iR Bl 25 7
HFEEK
v 23 J LAl FA 5 Ao o £
HL Al ife 5
B AftZ M Q)
3 = F Bz 1) 5% e
L fib FA 5 B 1 K B AT B

7S [T ol P o <l
E-IREC
SRR
LAl HEe S b2 AT B
REESEB BB (32H)
EAF A HEA S BB
e B
[BEVgi)st
EfHE
MEEBH BB CGLR) H

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:

Net interest income

Reversal of impairment allowances on
loans and advances
Net losses on disposal of property and equipment
Net gains on disposal of available-for-sale securities
Net gains on disposal of and fair value adjustments
on investment properties
Impairment loss on available-for-sale securities
Share of profits of associates
Net (gains) losses on fair value hedge
Dividend income from investments
Depreciation
Release of prepaid lease payments for land
Exchange adjustments
Operating cash flows before movements in
operating assets and liabilities

(Increase) decrease in operating assets:

Money at call and short notice with
original maturity over three months

Exchange fund bills with original maturity
over three months

Placements with banks and other
financial institutions with original maturity
over three months
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Advances to customers
Advances to banks and other financial institutions
Other accounts
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:

Deposits and balances of banks and
other financial institutions with original maturity
over three months

Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements
Deposits from customers
Certificates of deposit
Derivative financial instruments
Other accounts and accruals
Cash generated from (used in) operations
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid
Overseas tax paid
Interest received
Interest paid

NET CASH FROM (USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2012 2011
HEWT I T
HKS$’000 HKS$’000

646,385 667,652
(836,908) (815,321)
(65,228) (107,188)
1,861 4,128
(594) (697)
(12,206) (9,065)

- 4,473
(36,028) (18,056)
(1,200) 20,679
(10,799) (9,820)
59,209 54,742
66 66

818 2,204
(254,624) (206,203)
(1,738,466) (987,888)
(50,061) 299,500
(1,975,578) 506,294
632,179 (71,136)
2,187,309  (3,237,766)
(659,433) (980,509)
(254,426) (41,491)
1,003,864 (581)
13,029 420,652
2,693,035 1,315,494
(877,926) 1,545,562
(51,127) 54,607
127,317 64,126
795,092  (1,319,339)
(99,265) (118,437)
(16,409) (17,461)
1,219,979 1,112,206
(605,553) (436,416)
1,293,844 (779,447)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE_F - ZH=E1T—HILFE

Jor the year ended 31 December 2012

BEEH

Womny g 8 2 5 MR R B H 2

it 27 AL
WO 22 e S
YRR Eh Wi 8 ] 2 IR
WA RN HZ %27
A T 36 6
S A 2 B s fh
L mESECEE Ll PP DR

P85 T M o v 3k 8 2 5

HH 00 2 B s 4 o 5K O
Hi B 3% B WIS i sk o
BEREHZBIE L) O\

e
HEERZAEZH

[ A B AN

AT
AR Z BLE S i

IS R MBS (J) W

—H—HZBERFREEHA

TZHE - HZBSEFRBERH

(e

JoE 1 B < A [ 8 I LAl B 5 AR A s K

JERE B H AT = A8 H 2 388 50 B S K

JEURE BT H AT =08 H 2 F R 55

JEE B H AT =8 A 2 FIRE 3

FLAth 5 R

JEi e B H A =18 H 2 R 3 %
S At B AR 7 5 B 6 B

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received from available-for-sale
securities and held-to-maturity securities

Dividends received on investments
Dividends received from associates
Purchase of held-to-maturity securities
Purchase of available-for-sale securities
Purchase of property and equipment

Proceeds from redemption of held-to-maturity
securities

Proceeds from sale and redemption of
available-for-sale securities

Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid on loan capital
Repurchase of loan capital
Dividends paid

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 1 JANUARY

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 31 DECEMBER

Represented by:

Cash and balances with banks and
other financial institutions

Money at call and short notice with
original maturity of less than three months

Exchange fund bills with original maturity
of less than three months

Placements with banks and other
financial institutions with original maturity
of less than three months

Deposits and balances of banks and
other financial institutions with original
maturity of less than three months

2012 2011
T HEWT I
HK$’000 HKS$’000
274,151 222,805
10,799 9,820
7,360 1,050
(20,184,070)  (6,786,192)
(2,168,631) (703,916)
(70,105) (247,951)
18,872,132 9,376,156
1,748 39,972

6 —

4,316 -
(3,252,294) 1,911,744
(65,225) (64,325)
- (783,196)
(200,100) (217,500)
(265,325)  (1,065,021)
(2,223,775) 67,276
17,092,730 17,025,454
14,868,955 17,092,730
6,060,810 6,393,092
7,565,351 7,549,078
499,995 3,299,912
1,309,116 664,188
(566,317) (813,540)
14,868,955 17,092,730
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_F—-_F A= —HILEE
for the year ended 31 December 2012
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GENERAL

Chong Hing Bank Limited (the “Bank™) is a public limited company
incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. Its immediate holding company is Liu Chong
Hing Estate Company, Limited and ultimate holding company is Liu Chong
Hing Investment Limited, both of which are incorporated in Hong Kong.
The Bank is engaged in the provision of banking and related financial
services. The address of the registered office and principal place of business
of the Bank is disclosed in the Annual Report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the same as the functional currency of the Bank.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group and the Bank have applied (i) the new and
revised HKFRSs that have become effective and (ii) certain new and revised
HKFRSs in advance of their effective date issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), as follows:

MBI - PRI AE I B
i - S

RREMB R

HE ] 2

B 1 L il 81t o A ik

FRET ARSI AR > SEIF] STk R e e LAt flEl e iz A4 -
W ER S
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TGRS 2 F Be B A Rl 2 B

HKFRSs that have become effective for the year

Amendments to HKAS 12
Amendments to HKFRS 7

Deferred tax - Recovery of underlying assets
Disclosures - Transfers of financial assets

HKFRSs that have been early applied for the year

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)

Consolidated financial statements

Joint arrangements

Disclosure of interests in other entities

Consolidated financial statements, joint arrangements and
disclosure of interests in other entities: Transition guidance

Separate financial statements

Investments in associates and joint ventures
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2. P mEM BB ZEFE 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
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FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

- continued

Except as described below, the application of the above new and revised
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and the Group’s and the Bank’s financial positions
for the current and prior years and / or on the disclosures set out in the
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets

The Group and the Bank have applied for the first time the amendments to
HKAS 12 “Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets” in the current
year. Under the amendments, investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model in accordance with HKAS 40 “Investment property”
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale for the purposes of
measuring deferred taxes, unless the presumption is rebutted in certain
circumstances.

The Group and the Bank measure their investment properties using the fair
value model. As a result of the application of the amendments to HKAS 12,
the directors reviewed the Group’s and the Bank’s investment property
portfolios in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
and concluded that all of the Group’s and the Bank’s investment properties
are not held under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time. Therefore, the directors have determined that the
‘sale’ presumption set out in the amendments to HKAS 12 is not rebutted.

The application of the amendments to HKAS 12 has resulted in the Group
and the Bank not recognising any deferred taxes on changes in fair value of
the investment properties located in Hong Kong as the Group and the Bank
are not subject to any income taxes on disposal of these investment
properties. Previously, the Group and the Bank recognised deferred taxes
on changes in fair value of investment properties on the basis that the entire
carrying amounts of the properties were recovered through use.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

- continued

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets

= continued

Upon the application of the amendments to HKAS 12, the Group recognises
deferred tax on changes in fair value of its investment property in the PRC
on the basis that the Group is subject to income taxes and land appreciation

tax on disposal of this investment property.

The amendments to HKAS 12 have been applied retrospectively, resulting
in the Group’s deferred tax liabilities being decreased by HK$8,879,000
as at 1 January 2011, with the corresponding credit being recognised in
retained profits. Similarly, the deferred tax liabilities have been decreased
by HK$10,140,000 as at 31 December 2011.

In the current year, no deferred taxes have been provided for changes
in fair value of the Group’s investment properties located in Hong Kong.
The change in accounting policy has resulted in the Group’s income tax
expense for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011
being reduced by HK$1,340,000 and HK$1,261,000 respectively and hence
resulted in profit for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December
2011 being increased by HK$1,340,000 and HK$1,261,000 respectively.

Summary of the effects of the above change in accounting policy

The effects of change in accounting policy described above on the results

for the current and prior years by line items are as follows:

2012 2011

BT EBBTR

HK$’000 HK$’000

Decrease in taxation 1,340 1,261
Increase in profit for the year 1,340 1,261

81

~N
—
(=]
N
+—
—
[}
o
Q
(-
S
=)
c
c
<
[ ]
el
2
£
-
-
=
[}
o
o
=
I
o
c
(9}
=
O




=
#
#
i
|
B
i
| |
i’
<
Iy
T
e
®

oG W OB W R Z WG

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HWE_F - ZH=E1—HILFE
for the year ended 31 December 2012

2. R U 0 A B A8 B T 2 7
S 5 T B -

Al o ISR A A R ] e AR
BT BRI —F ——F—H
—HEZF—-—F+ZH=+—H
R BT

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

- continued

The effects of the above change in accounting policy on the financial
positions of the Group and the Bank as at 1 January 2011 and 31 December
2011 is as follows:

S|
THE GROUP
R_F——4F R-F——F  RF——F R_F——4F
—H—H —H—H +ZH=1—H +=ZH=1—H
As at As at As at As at
1 January ik 1 January 31 December W% 31 December
2011  Adjustments 2011 2011 Adjustments 2011
Ll T BT BT L T BT Ll T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
(RRAEE) (i) (R E) (i)
(originally (restated) (originally (restated)
stated) stated)
IRICRIIE (Af) i Deferred tax
(liabilities) assets (20,357) 8,879 (11,478) 6,721 10,140 16,861
FHEZEE Total effects on
net assets 6,577,929 8,879 6,586,808 6,862,592 10,140 6,872,732
PREFRIA Retained earnings 2,976,973 8,879 2,985,852 3,250,502 10,140 3,260,642
HEZHE Total effects on equity 6,577,929 8,879 6,586,808 6,862,592 10,140 6,872,732
a7
THE BANK
R_F——4f REF——F  RF——F R_F——4f
—H—H —H—H +ZH=1—H +=ZH=1—H
As at As at As at As at
1 January FiE 1 January 31 December #i% 31 December
2011  Adjustments 2011 2011 Adjustments 2011
Ll T BT BT BT BT Ll T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
(RRAEE) (i) (R E) (i)
(originally (restated) (originally (restated)
stated) stated)
IRICRIE (Aff) B Deferred tax
(liabilities) assets (12,197) 8,879 (3,318) 6,721 10,140 16,861
FHEZEE Total effects on
net assets 6,286,834 8,879 6,295,713 6,514,786 10,140 6,524,926
PRETESA Retained earnings 2,738,447 8,879 2,747,326 2,949,521 10,140 2,959,661
HEZ e Total effects on equity 6,286,834 8,879 6,295,713 6,514,786 10,140 6,524,926
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

- continued

The effects of the above change in accounting policy on the financial
positions of the Group and the Bank as at 31 December 2012 is as follows:

SR T
THE GROUP AND THE BANK
RF—_4
+=H=1+—H
BT
As at
31 December 2012
HK$°000

(&)
(restated)

Decrease in deferred tax liabilities 1,340

Total effects on net assets 1,340

Increase in retained earnings 1,340

Total effects on equity 1,340

The effects of the above change in accounting policy on the Group’s basic
earnings per share for the current and prior years are insignificant.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Transfers of financial assets

The Group has applied for the first time the amendments to HKFRS 7
Disclosures - Transfers of financial assets in the current year. The
amendments increase the disclosure requirements for transactions involving
the transfer of financial assets in order to provide greater transparency
around risk exposures when financial assets are transferred.

The Group entered into repurchase agreements with an entity to sell
held-to-maturity securities and available-for-sale securities subject
to a master agreement to repurchase these securities at the agreed dates
and prices. As the Group has not transferred the significant risks and
rewards relating to these held-to-maturity securities and available-for-sale
securities, it continues to recognise the full carrying amounts of the
held-to-maturity securities and available-for-sale securities, and has
recognised the cash received on the transfer as financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements (see note 27). The relevant disclosures have been
made regarding the transfer of these held-to-maturity securities and
available-for-sale securities, on application of the amendments to
HKFRS 7 (see note 20). In accordance with the transitional provisions set
out in the amendments to HKFRS 7, the Group has not provided
comparative information for the disclosures required by the amendments.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

- continued

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint arrangements,
associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued, including
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011). To follow the accounting policies of
the ultimate holding company, the Group has early adopted these new and

revised standards in advance of its effective date of 1 January 2013.

Key requirements of these five standards are described below:

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements that deal with consolidated financial statements.
HK(SIC) - INT 12 Consolidation - Special purpose entities will be
withdrawn upon the effective date of HKFRS 10. Under HKFRS 10, there
is only one basis for consolidation, that is, control. In addition, HKFRS
10 includes a new definition of control that contains three elements:
(a) power over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over
the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns. Extensive

guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

- continued

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint arrangements,
associates and disclosures - continued

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in joint ventures. HKFRS 11 deals
with how a joint arrangement of which two or more parties have joint
control should be classified. HK(SIC) - INT 13 Jointly controlled entities
- Non-monetary contributions by venturers will be withdrawn upon the
effective date of HKFRS 11. Under HKFRS 11, joint arrangements are
classified as joint operations or joint ventures, depending on the rights
and obligations of the parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under HKAS
31, there are three types of joint arrangements: jointly controlled entities,
jointly controlled assets and jointly controlled operations. In addition, joint
ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to be accounted for using the equity
method of accounting, whereas joint ventures under HKAS 31 can be
accounted for using the equity method of accounting or proportionate

consolidation.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that
have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and / or
unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the disclosure requirements
in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the current standards.
As at 31 December 2012, the Group and the Bank did not have interests in

any unconsolidated structured entities.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

- continued

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint arrangements,
associates and disclosures - continued

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12
were issued to clarify certain transitional guidance on the application of

these five HKFRSs for the first time.

These five standards, together with the amendments relating to the
transitional guidance, are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013 with earlier application permitted provided that all of these

standards are applied at the same time.

The above new and revised standards require retrospective application with
certain exceptions. The directors have performed analysis of the impact
of the application of the amendments and determined that the interests in
jointly controlled entities previously recorded in the financial statements
should be classified as interests in associates when all facts and
circumstances are considered upon the early adoption of these new and
revised standards. The prior year’s classification has been amended.
It had no material impact on the consolidated financial statements for the

current and prior years.

Comparative amounts

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the

current year’s presentation.
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Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKEFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 1
HKFRS 9

HKFRS 13

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 32
HK(IFRIC) - INT 20

3.

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective:
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Disclosures - Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities'

Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9 and transition disclosures?

Investment entities?

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 cycle!
Financial instruments?

Fair value measurement'

Presentation of items of other comprehensive income*
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities?

Stripping costs in the production phase of a surface mine!
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Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
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Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
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Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
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Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.
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EFFECTIVE - continued

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities and amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetting

financial assets and financial liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application issues relating
to the offset of financial assets and financial liabilities requirements.
Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally

enforceable right of set-off”” and “simultaneous realisation and settlement”.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose information about
rights of offset and related arrangements for financial instruments under

an enforceable master netting agreement or similar arrangement.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013 and interim periods within those annual periods.
The disclosures should also be provided retrospectively for all comparative
periods. However, the amendments to HKAS 32 are not effective until
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014, with retrospective

application required.

The directors anticipate that the application of these amendments to HKAS 32

and HKFRS 7 may result in more disclosures being made in the future.
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3.

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE - continued

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKEFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes
the requirements for the classification and measurement of financial

liabilities and for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKAS 39
“Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement” are subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
All other debt investments and equity investments are measured at their
fair values at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition, under
HKEFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally

recognised in profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2015, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future may
have significant impact on amounts reported in respect of the Group’s
financial assets and financial liabilities. However, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has
been completed.
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EFFECTIVE - continued

HKEFRS 13 Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements. The standard
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value,
and requires disclosures about fair value measurements. The scope
of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial instrument items and
non-financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs require or permit
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements,
except in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure requirements
in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those in the current standards.
For example, quantitative and qualitative disclosures based on the
three-level fair value hierarchy currently required for financial instruments
only under HKFRS 7 “Financial instruments: Disclosures” will be extended

by HKFRS 13 to cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKEFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that the application of the new standard may affect
certain amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and result

in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
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3.

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE - continued

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of items of other comprehensive

income

The amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of items of other comprehensive
income” introduce new terminology for the “statement of comprehensive
income” and “income statement”. Under the amendments to HKAS 1,
a “statement of comprehensive income” is renamed as a “statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income” and an “income statement”
is renamed as a “statement of profit or loss”. The amendments to HKAS 1
retain the option to present profit or loss and other comprehensive income
in either a single statement or in two separate but consecutive statements.
However, the amendments to HKAS 1 require items of other comprehensive
income to be grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items that may be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are
met. Income tax on items of other comprehensive income is required to
be allocated on the same basis - the amendments do not change the option
to present items of other comprehensive income either before tax or net of

tax.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2012. The presentation of items of other comprehensive
income will be modified accordingly when the amendments are applied in

future accounting periods.

The directors anticipate that the application of the other new and revised
standards, amendments or interpretation will have no material impact on

the consolidated financial statements.
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for certain properties and financial instruments, which
are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Bank and entities (including structured entities, if any) controlled

by the Bank (its subsidiaries).

Control is achieved when the Bank is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Bank

controls an investee if and only if the Bank has all the following:

* power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability

to direct the relevant activities of the investee);

e exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the

investee; and

* the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Basis of consolidation - continued

When the Bank has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee,
it has power over the investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give
it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee
unilaterally. The Bank considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether or not the Bank’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

* the size of the Bank’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and
dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

* potential voting rights held by the Bank, other vote holders or other
parties;

* rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

* any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Bank has,
or does not have, the current ability to direct the relevant activities at
the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at
previous shareholders’ meetings.

The Bank reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Bank obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Bank loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the date the Bank gains control until the date when the Bank
ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated

in full on consolidation.
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4. FHEEFHEOR - 4 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
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Basis of consolidation - continued

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i) derecognises the assets
(including any goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying
amounts at the date when control is lost, (ii) derecognises the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interests in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost (including any components of other comprehensive
income attributable to them), and (iii) recognises the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest, with any resulting difference being recognised as gains or losses
in profit or loss attributable to the Group. When assets of the subsidiary
are carried at revalued amounts or fair values and the related cumulative
gains or losses have been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity, the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred directly to retained profits as specified by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39
“Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement” or, when

applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated in the Bank’s statement of financial
position at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Bank on the basis of dividends

received or receivable.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1 January 2005 but before
1 January 2010

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business on or after 1 January
2005 but before 1 January 2010 represents the excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the relevant business at the
date of acquisition. Such goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated

impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is presented

separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an acquisition
is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating units, or groups of
cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of

the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently whenever there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment losses are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then
to the other assets of the unit on a pro rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment losses for goodwill is
recognised directly in the consolidated income statement. An impairment

losses recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss

on disposal.
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4. FHEEFHEOR - 4 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
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Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence
and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those

policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in the
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, investments in associates are initial recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associates. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments

on behalf of the associate.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment losses with respect to the Group’s
investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets” as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment losses recognised forms part of
the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
losses are recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the

recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Interests in associates - continued

Upon disposal of an associate that results in the Group losing significant
influence over that associate, any retained investment is measured at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value
on initial recognition as a financial asset in accordance with HKAS 39.
The difference between the previous carrying amount of the associate
attributable to the retained interest and its fair value is included in the
determination of the gain or losses on disposal of the associate. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required if that associate had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if gains or losses previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that associate would be reclassified
to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gains or losses from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) when it loses significant influence over that

associate.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in the

associate that are not related to the Group.

Investments in associates are stated in the Bank’s statement of financial
position at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of
associates are accounted for by the Bank on the basis of dividends received

or receivable.

Interest income and expenses

Interest income and expenses are recognised on a time-proportion basis
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability on initial
recognition. The calculation includes significant fees and transaction costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, and premiums or
discounts.
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4. FEHEEEIBUER - & 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
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Interest income and expenses - continued

Once an impairment loss of a financial asset has been recognised,
subsequent interest income is recognised using the rate of interest used to

discount the future cash flows measuring the impairment losses.

Non-interest income revenue recognition
Fees and commission income

Fees and commission income that are integral to the effective interest rate
on a financial asset are included in the measurement of the effective interest
rate.

Other fees and commission income, including account servicing fees,
investment management fees, sales commission, placement fees and

syndication fees, are recognised as the related services are performed.

Dividends

Dividend income from investments including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive
payment have been established (provided that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can
be measured reliably).

Service income

Service income (including safe deposit box rentals and other banking

services income) is recognised when services are provided.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment including land and buildings, which mainly
comprise branches and offices are stated in the statements of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property
and equipment over their estimated useful lives after taking into account
their estimated residual value, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Property and equipment - continued

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use
of the asset. Any gains or losses arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised

in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or for capital

appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment property are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from the disposals. Any gains or losses
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in profit or loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a

straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.
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4. FHEEFHEOR - 4 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
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Leasing - continued
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group assesses
the classification of each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and

building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments for land” in the statements of financial
position and is released over the lease term on a straight-line basis except
for those that are classified and accounted for as investment properties
under the fair value model. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the entire lease is generally

classified as a finance lease and accounted for as property and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional currency
(i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured

in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Foreign currencies - continued

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income, in which cases, the exchange

differences are also recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate
of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of the translation

reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire
interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable

to the owners of the Bank are reclassified to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the

contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits
is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out periodically, but at least triennially. All
actuarial gains and losses of defined benefit plans are recognised
immediately in other comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur. Past service cost, including the unvested benefits, is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the statements of financial
position represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as
reduced by the fair value of plan assets. Any asset resulting from this
calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available
in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions
to the plan.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated income statement
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Taxation - continued

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and interest in associates, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are

expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to

be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement
of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and

liabilities.
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4. FHEEFHEOR - 4 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
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Taxation - continued

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax assets
for investment properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax liabilities
and deferred tax assets for such investment properties are measured in
accordance with the above general principles set out in HKAS 12
(i.e. based on the expected manner as to how the properties will be

recovered).

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the

accounting for the business combination.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statements
of financial position when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or issue of financial liabilities at fair

value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the four categories,
including financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale financial
assets. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss have two subcategories,
including financial assets held for trading and those designated at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

* it has been incurred principally for the purpose of selling in the near
future; or

* it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.
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4. FHEEFHEOR - 4 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
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Financial instruments - continued
Financial assets - continued

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - continued

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be
designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition
if:

* such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or

recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

* the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping
is provided internally on that basis; or

* it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives,
and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined contract (asset or liability)
to be designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any interest earned on the financial
assets and is included in interest income in the consolidated income
statement.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables including cash and short-term
funds, placements with and advances to banks and other financial
institutions, interest receivable, bills receivable, trade bills and other
advances to customers, and amounts due from subsidiaries are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets

below).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued
Financial assets - continued
Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates that the Group’s
management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity other
than those that meet the definition of loans and receivables. Subsequent
to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified as available-
for-sale financial assets and are traded in an active market are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of available-for-sale monetary financial assets relating to interest
income calculated using the effective interest method and dividends on
available-for-sale equity investments are recognised in profit or loss. Other
changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of investment revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit
or loss (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment of financial
assets below).

Dividends on equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends
is established.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured
are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of the
reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).
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4. FHEEGHBOR - @ 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
ST H - # Financial instruments - continued
<2 P T A Impairment of financial assets
R T 2 28 A8 5 e T 5 A $H 22 TR Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are
BRI R o B A IR R assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
RUEAT WAE R AWK o 8 %M Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is objective
EEEE > N KRR BEE ER% - evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
— R B % 1 3 1 5 A B R initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
HRENHNBH SR ZEE > Sl the financial assets have been affected.
B (o SR ©
IR R Bk g < R Y For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
X i B E 0T i R R R AR R H decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered to
JRAS > A AR 2 %5 T I DR A w8 0 o be objective evidence of impairment.
H$ER B ENZBmESE For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
. include:
BT ANRYE A B EN M B * significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
ZEE S
CERREH ~ AT R AL B e breach of contract, default or delinquency in interest or principal
AR ;5 B payments; or
- (AN RE W RE i A R 1T i * it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial
A ; B re-organisation; or
- EHA W5 TR i DL B il A 1 » disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of
W TSk o financial difficulties.
Sl SR A AU (Bl P &) For certain categories of financial asset, such as advances to customers,
R A T 1 AR R o A SR assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition,
PRAE FEAL © assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
(EPLEENNEEE:S AR (£ A= e Individual impairment allowances are assessed by a discounted cash flow
Z AR Bk A Y A S DA SR B < vk method for loans and advances that are individually significant and have
FEAG o AR R E EZ objective evidence of impairment. The individual impairment allowances
W T B DA S A 80R) 2 B SR 5 are measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
KRB 2 BUE 2 2285 it o the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the original

effective interest rate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued
Impairment of financial assets - continued

Individually insignificant advances or advances where no impairment has
been identified individually are assessed for collective impairment by
considering the historical loss experience of advances with similar credit

risk characteristics adjusted for current conditions.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment
losses recognised is the difference between the financial asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted

at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment losses is
measured as the difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment

losses will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. When the financial assets are considered to be
uncollectible, the amounts are written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to

the profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period,
the amount of impairment loss decrease and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment losses are reversed through the
consolidated income statement to the extent that the carrying amount of
the financial asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.
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4. FHEEFHEOR - 4 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
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Financial instruments - continued
Impairment of financial assets - continued

When an available-for-sale financial asset carried at fair value is considered
to be impaired, cumulative losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period in

which the impairment takes place.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments carried at fair
value will not be reversed through profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment losses are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated in investment
valuation reserve. For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment
losses are subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an increase in the
fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an event occurring

after the recognition of the impairment losses.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or equity instruments in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the

definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

Equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of a group entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by a group entity are recognised at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments - continued
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss has two subcategories,
including financial liabilities held for trading and those designated at fair

value through profit or loss on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

* it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the

near future; or

* on initial recognition, it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging

instrument.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value arising on remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss excludes any interest paid on the financial

liabilities.
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4. FHEEFHEOR - 4 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
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Financial instruments - continued
Financial liabilities and equity instruments - continued
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of
transaction costs. Other financial liabilities, including deposits and
balances of banks and other financial institutions, financial assets sold
under repurchase agreements, deposits from customers, other accounts
payables, amounts due to subsidiaries, certificates of deposit and loan
capital are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective

interest method.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statements of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or realise the financial asset and settle the financial

liability simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value
at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gains or losses are
recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the

recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of hedge relationship.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as
separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative, their
risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts
and the host contracts are not measured at fair value with changes in fair

value recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Financial instruments - continued

Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedges of the fair value of
available-for-sale securities and fixed-rate subordinated notes (fair value
hedges).

At the inception of the hedging relationship, the entity documents the
relationship between the hedging instrument and hedged item, along with
its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an
ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging instrument that
is used in a hedging relationship is highly effective in offsetting changes

in fair values of the hedged item.

Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as
fair value hedges are recognised in profit or loss immediately, together
with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are
attributable to the hedged risk. The change in the fair value of the hedging
instrument and the change in the hedge item attributable to the hedge risk

are recognised in profit or loss in the line item relating to hedge item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging
relationship, when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated,
or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. The fair
value adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item arising from
the hedged risk is amortised to profit or loss from that date.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for losses it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the

original or modified terms of a debt instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Financial instruments - continued
Financial guarantee contracts - continued

A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and not designated as
at fair value through profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair value
less transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial
guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of obligation
under the contract, as determined in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions,
contingent liabilities and contingent assets”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in

accordance with the revenue recognition policy.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises financial assets only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the financial assets expire, or when it transfers the
financial assets and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised

borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between
the financial asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gains or losses that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is

recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Financial instruments - continued
Derecognition - continued

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the Group
allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the
part it continues to recognise, and the part it no longer recognises on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer.
The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is
no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the
part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be
recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the

relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when the
Group’s obligations specified in the relevant contract are discharged,
cancelled or expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Repurchase agreements

Financial assets sold subject to repurchase agreements continue
to be recognised and recorded as available-for-sale securities and
held-to-maturity securities as appropriate. The corresponding liability is

included in financial assets sold under repurchase agreements.

The difference between purchase and sale price is recognised as interest
expense in profit or loss over the life of the agreements using the effective
interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Financial instruments - continued
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash

flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its non-financial assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment losses, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis

can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been

adjusted.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued
Impairment on non-financial assets (other than goodwill) - continued

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable

amount. Impairment losses are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where impairment losses subsequently reverse, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment losses been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of impairment losses is recognised

as income immediately.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity from
the date of acquisition, including cash, balances with banks and other
financial institutions, money at call and short notice, placements with and
deposits of banks and other financial institutions as well as exchange fund
bills.
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SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in Note 4, management is required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

(a) Impairment allowances on loans and advances

The Group establishes, through charges against profit, impairment
allowances in respect of estimated incurred losses in loans and
advances. The allowances consist of individual impairment allowances
and collective impairment allowances. The overall impairment
allowances represent the aggregate amount by which management
considers necessary to write down its loan portfolio in order to state it
in the statements of financial position at its estimated net recoverable

value.

In determining individual impairment allowances, management
considers objective evidence of impairment. When a loan is impaired,
an individual impairment allowance is assessed by a discounted cash
flow method, measured at the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the original effective interest rate. The quantum of the allowance is
also impacted by the collateral value and this, in turn, may be
discounted in certain circumstances to recognise the impact of forced
sale or quick liquidation.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY - continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty - continued

(a) Impairment allowances on loans and advances - continued

In determining collective impairment allowances, management uses
estimates based on historical loss experience on a collective basis for
loans and advances with similar credit risk characteristics to assess
the impairment loss. More details are set out in Note 7.

Details of the impairment allowances movements are disclosed in
Note 21.

(b) Fair value of derivatives and other financial instruments

(c

~

The management of the Group uses its judgement in selecting an
appropriate valuation technique for financial instruments not quoted
in an active market. Valuation techniques commonly used by market
practitioners are applied. For derivative financial instruments,
convertible bonds and structured products with embedded derivatives,
assumptions are made based on quoted market rates adjusted for
specific features of the instruments.

Details of the assumptions used are disclosed in Note 7.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

According to HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”, impairment losses
are made when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is calculated at the higher of the fair value less costs to
sell and value in use.

Management has reviewed goodwill for impairment by comparing
the carrying amount and value in use of an acquired subsidiary
(the smallest cash-generating unit) to which the goodwill has been
allocated. The acquired subsidiary is involved in insurance business.

The value in use calculations primarily use cash flow projections based
on three year financial budgets approved by management of the
subsidiary and estimated terminal value at the end of the three-year
period. There are a number of assumptions and estimates involved for
the preparation of cash flow projections for the period covered by the
approved budget. Key assumptions include the expected growth in
revenues and selection of discount rates.

Details of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in
Note 36.

~N
—
(=]
N
+—
—
[}
o
Q
(-
S
=)
c
c
<
[ ]
el
2
£
-
-
=
[}
o
o
=
I
o
c
(9}
=
O




AW E WA ZWNE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE_FE A H=EA— HIEEE

for the year ended 31 December 2012

e
e
H
N
I
]
I
|
i@
g
i
e
el
&
@

Bl B & G A S B A G SRR
B2 1 ORI -

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY - continued

JUE FR 6] S8 1Y 5755 T OSSR 11 I3 (ke 12 ) B Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting policies
BB SR A BT 24 > DU 2 The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
HHFENENS G M ERES estimations, that the management has made in the process of applying the

e SR B e o BOR 2 Brl 5 E
HI i o

REWFEZ LRI

Foat B DUA BT BN B
P 3 2 0 JE Tt M mOE S o 0
BRI > B T AN G MR 7 4 e
rheafE A IHRNITER 1 B ¥ P S A 5
T Ml 48 25 A 4 IO 4 5% P S
BN VNPT R 3LV E J1Y: % AV
AR AT AR B R A o R B
FE T BN S M 352 3 P 5 2RI i 0
IR > B T DA AR G
B 3 ) 5 o2 W 1 7928 208 1 B T

Group’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax assets
arising from investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the directors have reviewed the Group’s investment property
portfolios in Hong Kong and the PRC and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties are not held under a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s
deferred taxation on investment properties, the directors have determined
that the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is

5 2 3 o] 358 P9 112 5% 3 A AT W HHE R o not rebutted. As a result, the Group has not recognised any deferred taxes
DRI > 7 S5 I R A 3R 6 7S 5 788 1Y % on changes in fair value of investment properties located in Hong Kong as
B3 2 O S (0 T i R R AE the Group is not subject to any income taxes on disposal of these investment
o 2 IR B B 95 3 W 3R BRI S properties.

9 AT A A B o

R IE N R AL 1 5517 2 B Deferred taxation in respect of temporary differences attributed to the
Tas AU T 2E 1 [l BE 55 20 7 45 46 2 accumulated profits of the PRC branch

ABFE Bt T

T ELE E ST R T R e
A RILFIB 1 4517 2 B R T
A 11 B IR 22 2 2 W 1% 209,801,000
gt (ZF——4 : #E# 159,590,000
7 ) B 76 I il e 22 AR K T RE S
T R BT 051 A A HH Rl o ERIBE »

The directors have determined that the Bank is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences attributable to accumulated
profits of the PRC branch amounting to HK$209,801,000 (2011:
HK$159,590,000) and that it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, deferred taxation
relating to such temporary differences is not provided.

3 o 35 A5 [ iRk IR 22 7 176 908 4 ¢ 2

HEff o

FFEFWHZ & Held-to-maturity investments

7S 5 18] % Bt sk HLAA & 52 5 ] 5 2 The Group classified certain non-derivative financial assets with fixed

i 3K B il 5 B 0) H 2 JEfiT 4 TR
BEEE S AR ERNE - B
o3 JE T S RV o A5 1 H B IE
FUT R > S 52 A HL R A
BEE BRI H Z KB REST o 4
7 5 1 A 1 D 15 D0 DA A R wE O B
WEREERLAE > BHIWSE
Vi 220 ) S0 W Y 5 A SR B0 - B2
T o SR A 5000 2 v 3K A o
% H Bt & A DL 2 fE Ok JE
1 R A G B o

BOXE B GRS B GE 19 ©

or determinable payments and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity.
This classification requires judgement. In making this judgement,
the Group evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments to
maturity. If the Group fails to keep these investments to maturity other
than for the specific circumstances - for example, selling an insignificant
amount close to maturity - it will be required to reclassify the entire class
as available-for-sale. The investments would therefore be measured at
fair value instead of amortised cost.

Details of these assets are set out in Note 19.
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6. YRR 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION
() HEHm (a) Operating segments

7R S I 1Y 5 55 5 SN 2 it o The Group’s operating segments, which are also the reportable
o3 W SR ARG G i 3 B segments, based on information regularly reviewed by the chief
BERRA (RHBEREAR operating decision maker (Executive Committee) of the Group for the
) MR > Dl purpose of allocating resources to segments and assessing their
5 o B NG A B T performance on business divisions of the Group, are as follows:

SR E A R BIE

AE R 2 R FEFUT The corporate and retail banking services provided by the Group are
R# L RUEER PRItz principally lending and trade finance facilities, auto financing,
e~ HoME -~ WlEE consumer financing, overdraft facilities, mandatory provident fund
WHEHEEE - BEX - B services, provision of fixed deposits, current and savings accounts,
JIRHs ~ IR ~ AR B3 credit cards and personal wealth management services. The Group
& P~ {5 AR R M also provides automated telephone and internet banking services to its

customers. Other banking services offered include remittance and

money exchange, safe deposit boxes, autopay and direct debit services.

Treasury activities mainly comprise inter-bank placement and deposit
transactions, management of overall interest rate risk and liquidity of
the Group and centralised cash management. Income from foreign
exchange activities is generated from services provided to customers
in the form of foreign exchange trading and forward contracts, and
from the Bank’s cash management activities through foreign currency

funding swaps.

Securities dealing activities of the Group include securities trading,

stockbroking and futures broking.

Others comprise investment holding, insurance, other investment

advisory services and property investments.

No operating segments identified by the chief operating decision maker
have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the

Group.
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6. S EHEFL- 5 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued
() B3 - 5 (a) Operating segments - continued
() ‘E=_F—_4+_H (i) Operating segment information for the year ended 31 December
=1+ —HILFEE » &% 2012 is presented below:
STIEE R
B TRES L AE R Operating segment revenues and results
ER
FER
Corporate WH¥H RAFH
and retail Treasury Securities it it e

banking activities business  Others Eliminations Consolidated

T BT R BRTR RETC BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000

FAMNREFRIEHA Interest income from
external customers 1,012,559 548,938 2,323 - - 1,563,820
AP PRE S Interest expense to
external customers (567,076) (159,836) - - - (726,912)
BRSO (B Inter-segment interest
income (Note 1) 255975 - - - (255975) -
VRBAEL (W) Inter-segment interest
expense (Note 1) - (255,975) - - 255975 -
FHEHOA Net interest incorme 01458 133,127 2,303 = - 836908
BHBHERA Fee and commission income 137,194 - 116,755 - - 253,949
BRRME Fee and commission expenses  (64,000) - (B = = (64,584)
BATEIRRIA Net gains on financial
ik M instruments at fair value
ZiFA through profit or loss 677 56,796 = = = 57473
RTEEF A Net gains on fair value hedge - 1200 - - - 1,200
SEEUA (Wit2) Other operating income
(Note 2) 84,632 108,228 - 44140 - 237,000
il e Segment revenue
EUN Total operating income 859955 299,351 118,500 44,140 - 1321946
uf: Comprising:
- HHEF A5G - segment revenue from
customers 603,980 555326 118,500 44,140
- BEHZS - inter-segment transactions | 255,975 (255,975) = o
B (HFE3) Operating expenses (Note 3) — (470941)  (30.213)  (69,493)  (10,769) - (581416)
BRI e Reversal of impairment
allowances on
loans and advances 65,228 - - - - 65,228
i Rtz e Net losses on disposal of
property and equipment (1,852) - - 9) - (1,861)
B AL R S 2 A Net gains on disposal of
available-for-sale
securities - - - 594 - 594
B AR B AT A Net gains on disposal of and
ZiFA fair value adjustments on
investment properties - - - 12,206 - 12,206
ey Segment profit 452,390 269,138 49,007 46,162 - 816,697
FAEEE M Unallocated corporate
e expenses (207,175)
ﬂ RAEEFERA Unallocated corporate
] income 8
I 610,357
Ey Fir b 2 o B Share of profits of associates 36,028
I.l B Bepi A Profit before taxation 646,385
E; Wik : 1 BEBEEERGZ BB Note: 1. Inter-segment pricing for funding transactions is charged at prevailing customer deposit interest
ug BRI o rates.
i 2 RABERRAREG AR 2. The difference between the other operating income in the consolidated income statement and
(lm} MRS YA S E T the other operating income in the operating segments is the unallocated corporate income.
& E M E WA 2 EH o 3. The difference between the operating expenses in the consolidated income statement and the
3. RABEES HREA HE I operating expenses in the operating segments is the unallocated corporate expenses.
- TARTERESE BB R A Y

HEL LA
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(H) #2350 - 4
(1) @E2_F——"4HF1+_H

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued
(a) Operating segments - continued

(1) Operating segment information for the year ended 31 December

=t —HikHE > B8
STIHERE © - 8

REF—-ZHFFZH=T—

H vy 38 5 s A e £
TR,
SR
Corporate MR RIHEH;
and retail Treasury Securities 411} A
banking activities  business  Others Consolidated
BT WMTC BETC EMTC TR
HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000  HK$000
B Assets
REHRE Segment assets 48,290,655 31156460 232,982 437,396 80,117,493
e AR Interests in associates 182,970
FARE R Unallocated corporate assets 454,902
SRR Consolidated total assets 80,755,365
£l Liabilities -
piRbEL Segment liabilities 67,818,689 5,172,703 174138 65204 73,230,734
RN A Unallocated corporate
liabilities 150,551
Er A A Consolidated total liabilities 73,381,285
HA BB - BT o AR Other information - amounts included in the measure of segment
K5y B i kit S5 7 results and segment assets
R
Flg
Corporate WEFEH BHEH
and retail Treasury Securities i ARHEE ]
banking activities business  Others Unallocated Consolidated
T T #MTo BT EWTe  #NTe
- HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$000
IR ZBAH L Capital expenditure
during the year 35,531 1,178 243 508 32,645 70,105
i ‘ Depreciation 327 1475 5295 119 16038 59209
SRR 1t Release of prepaid
lease payments
for land 66 - - - - 66
B AE HECRR M4 The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the Group’s
A SE B et R MR o accounting policies in Note 4.
?‘ﬁﬁ‘}ﬁﬁﬁ ﬁi%%%ﬁﬁgﬁ il All direct costs incurred by different segments are grouped under respective
CHRBEAWNESHELT ° segments. Indirect costs and support functions’ costs are allocated to various ~
FHEBEN kRO XEERT segments and products based on effort and time spent while segments’ other o
A0 i i HE A 55 0 B i R 2 280 operating income is allocated depending on the nature of costs incurred. Costs and (:‘:
E2 RN il ﬁ&‘%nﬁ& ’ 1M 73 I support functions’ costs and income related to corporate activities that cannot be “8)_
HAEZRE A iﬁ‘%ﬁ@%ﬁﬁ %i reasonably allocated to segments or products are grouped as unallocated corporate =
W2 PEE o BTA A fe 2 JEE expenses and unallocated corporate income respectively. g
73 BB i U P BOBOA B L s
L BEAERES 305 YN T N "
3 7 TR A 3 A3 8
SO E
R EH S BB Assets and liabilities related to corporate activities that cannot be reasonably allocated %
XM L AR ART to segments, products and support functions are grouped as unallocated corporate "g)
BN R A Al assets and liabilities. All direct segment assets and liabilities are grouped under £
A B HEERAHE respective segments. >
73 Y2 il 3 6y 7 9 o 2
O

2012 is presented below: - continued

Operating segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2012
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6. SrIEHEF -5 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued
() #E3Emm -5 (a) Operating segments - continued
yE_F——4HF1+_H (ii) Operating segment information for the year ended 31 December
=tT—HILEE » &% 2011 is presented below:
STEERTE
BTN T L Operating segment revenues and results
i1 /4
FHBT
Corporate MEEE BHFEH
andretail Treasury Securities  Jifll i ]

banking activities business  Others Eliminations Consolidated

LR T LS T L T L A DT LA DT S
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000

WEME FRIEHOA Interest income from
external customers 827,367 540,008 2,614 - - 1,369,989
ERg Y IR s al Interest expense to
external customers (442,555) (112,113) - - - (554,668)
BRBASBA (k1) Inter-segment interest
income (Note 1) 179,437 - - - (179437) -
BREBRRLN (W) Inter-segment interest
expense (Note 1) - (179437) - - 179,437 -
ST ON Net nerest income 64249 248458 2614 - - sIs3
R MEHA Fee and commission income 124,152 - 152,105 - - 216087
B R NS Fee and commission expenses ~ (58,219) - (315) - - (58,534)
A TRFIE R AR 2 Net gains (losses) on
SR TH A () financial instruments
at fair value through
profit or loss 183 (100,692) - (1909) - (102418)
AFEHHEE Net losses on fair value hedge - (20,679) - - - (20,679)
FtEE O (i) Other operating income
(expenses) 316,206 54,168 (2) 34483 - 404,855
papilien Segment revenue
ELONE Total operating income 946,571 181255 154402 32,574 - 1314802
: Comprising:
- BHZF A5G - segment revenue from
customers 767,134 360,692 154402 32,574
- BEERS - inter-segment transactions | 179,437  (179437) - -
BE (Wik2) Operating expenses (Note 2)  (467.071)  (30,618)  (71,234)  (8,706) - (577629
SRR B Reversal of impairment
allowances on
loans and advances 107,188 - - - - 107,188
B T iz i Net losses on disposal of
property and equipment (4,127) - - (1) - (4,128)
HY Bk B A Net gains on disposal of
available-for-sale securities - - - 697 - 697
HYE S AT Net gains on disposal of and
LA fair value adjustments on
investment properties - - - 9,065 - 9,065
R R IR Impairment loss on
available-for-sale securities - - - (4473) - (4,473)
& SRR Segment profit 582,561 150637 83,168 29,156 - 855
ﬂ R BT Unallocated corporate expenses (195,926)
N 649,596
[ Fiof R 28 7 B Share of profits of associates 18,056
‘|H'|' Bl Profit before taxation 667,652
"% Wik 1. E%ﬁg X 5% R = Note: 1. Inter-segment pricing for funding transactions is charged at prevailing customer
& BRI AIHE o deposit interest rates.
s 2 ARMERL MR AR 2. The difference between the operating expenses in the consolidated income statement
ﬁl}: I ERSE HEE R FAN and the operating expenses in the operating segments is the unallocated corporate
Z'?‘: LESTs: ik expenses.
@
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued
(a) Operating segments - continued

(i1) Operating segment information for the year ended 31 December
2011 is presented below: - continued

Operating segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2011

ERR

FERIT
Corporate WEFH BHEH

and retail Treasury Securities 4t e
banking activities  business  Others Consolidated
#HTe ERTT EWETT EETT  BWETR
HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000  HK$000

Assets
Segment assets 50,025,308 26,405,590 130,014 408,662 76,969,574
Interests in associates 153,872
Unallocated corporate assets 322,326
Consolidated total assets 77,445,172
Liabilities
Segment liabilities 65,000,187 5,212,929 69,744 56972 70,435,832
Unallocated corporate liabilities 147,348
Consolidated total liabilities 70,583,180

Other information - amounts included in the measure of segment
results and segment assets

R

FHMT
Corporate WMEEH MHEH
andretail Treasury Securities il ANHEH e
banking activities business  Others Unallocated Consolidated
BT W EWTL BBTE  EMTR TR
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$000

Capital expenditure

during the year 10,084 666 1,287 63 235851 247,951
Depreciation 31,287 1,616 5818 108 15,913 54,742
Release of prepaid lease

payments for land 66 - - - - 66
Impairment losses on

available-for-sale
securities

I

I

I
=
S
3
<

I
=
~
3
)
=

o~
(=]
139
=
—
9]
Q.
[9)
ol
S
=)
(=
[=
<
|
]
2
£
-
-
=
o
o
(o
=
I
o
c
9]
o =
(]




oG W OB W R Z WG

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HWE_F - ZH=E1—HILFE

for the year ended 31 December 2012

6. mUEF - 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued
(2) Ei&ER (b) Geographical information
1 3 % B (85 DA 18 35 Geographical information (including geographical analysis of total
M2 A B AR ) =2 segment revenue) is analysed by the Group based on the locations of the
2 Wt 7S 42 B 43 47 B B 8 principal operations of the branches and subsidiaries which are responsible
A S ER= YN for reporting the results or booking the assets. Non-current assets presented
Yy 3 B AE I PE below are based on the location of the entities’ country of domicile which
30T o AR I b B A is the same as the location of the non-current assets.
e AR MR AR S B i 5 i 1
1ok 5 B S g B ¢ Y o ¥
Il o
B RSB R Details of geographical information are set out below:
A 2012
. KA Ky
VBl RERE  FRD AR
wEXpA A Total  #@  Capital
Total  Profit HEMH ABMHE  contingent  Non- expenditure
operating  before Total Total liabilitiesand  current during

income  taxation assets  liabilities commitments assets  the year

EHT ERTE RGO ERTL #RTE ERTa W
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000

Fit Hong Kong 1,220,635 569,471 78,627,449 72,677,568 22,673,877 1,286,546 68,057
B S - e AR Macau and Shantou,

Mainland China 85984 67172 1,533,533 631873 376,181 12915 2,004

FH America 16162 9,742 394,383 71,844 15,215 170 4

am Total 1,322,781 646,385 80,755,365 73,381,285 23,065,273 1,299,631 70,105

2011

B RIif1ik Ky

bl R KRB B

WEXHA Al Total <7 Capital

Total  Profit HEMH ABME  contingent  Non- expenditure

operating  before Total Total liabilitiesand current during

income  taxation assets  liabilities commitments assets  the year

EHT BT BTG BT RRTE ERTL W
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000

H¥ (Eif) Hong Kong (restated) 1,211,607 588,642 75,418,775 69,606,383 17,496,575 1,239,949 247,621
S R - Pk Macau and Shantou,
Mainland China 80,786 72,124 1490218 889,429 263,082 12913 234
E] America 13,409 6,880 546,919 87,368 37,671 1 96
Hg (E) Total (restated) 1314802 667,652 77455912 70,583,180 17,797,334 1,253,034 247,951
Wizt : daE 3 A WiE e Note: Total operating income consists of net interest income, net fee and commission
= WA ~ IFEH & income, net gains (losses) on financial instruments at fair value through profit
H WA~ LT E K or loss, net gains (losses) on fair value hedge and other operating income.
i SIAH L EMTH
| Z A (E1R) > 24
By e 3 35 i ¥ (W7 4R)
|.| REMELEPA o
E; I i B) & 1 45 Tk Non-current assets consist of interests in associates, investment properties,
@(_ LA ~ REWE property and equipment, prepaid lease payments for land (non-current portion)
I VEN T3 AN INR and goodwill.
I Hi& (ERDIBL) &
b i o
o
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those
activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management of
some degree of risk or combination of risks. The Group’s aim is therefore
to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and minimise

potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

The Group’s risk management policies are designed to identify and analyse
these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor the
risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and up-to date
information systems. The Group regularly reviews its risk management
policies and systems to reflect changes in markets, products and emerging

best practice.

Risk management is carried out by the Asset and Liability Management
Committee (the “ALCO”) and the Loans Committee under policies
approved by the Board of Directors and the Risk Management and
Compliance Committee (the “RMCC”). The ALCO identifies, evaluates
and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the Group’s operating
units. The Board and the RMCC provide written principles for overall
risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such
as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative
financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments. In addition,
internal audit is responsible for the independent review of risk management
and the control environment. The most important types of risks from the
use of financial instruments are credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk.

Market risk includes currency risk, interest rate and other price risk.
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7. VSRR P - 7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
Sel7 MNENT L] Categories of financial instruments
S| BT
THE GROUP THE BANK
2012 2011 2012 2011

BT BT Lo ST L5 T
HK$000  HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
Financial assets

Fair value through
profit or loss
- designated at fair value 1,213,149 1,845,282 1,213,149 1,845,282
- held for trading 21,407 13,808 21,146 13,501
- derivative instruments
in designated hedge
accounting relationship 166,765 116,055 166,765 116,055
Available-for-sale securities 4,222,217 1,846,485 4,130,090 1,765,800
Held-to-maturity securities 9,600,020 8,288,082 9,600,020 8,288,082

Loans and receivables
(including cash and
cash equivalents) 64,230,608 64,076,239 64,231,145 64,144,474

Financial liabilities

Fair value through
profit or loss
- held for trading 118,154 203,110 118,154 203,110
- derivative instruments
in designated hedge
accounting relationship 130,502 62,586 130,502 62,586

Amortised cost 73,092,728 70,279,411 73,700,780 70,942,119

Credit risk

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a
counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when due. Impairment
allowances are made for losses that have been incurred at the end of the
reporting period. Significant changes in the economy, or in the health of
a particular industry segment, could result in losses that are different from
those provided for at the end of the reporting period. Management therefore
carefully manages its exposure to credit risk.

Management of credit risk

The Group’s lending policies have been formulated on the basis of its own
experience, the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance, the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority guidelines and other statutory requirements (in the case of
overseas branches and subsidiaries, the relevant local laws and regulations).
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

Credit risk - continued
Management of credit risk - continued

The Group’s primary credit approval bodies are the Loans Committee,
which comprises senior staff members of the Bank, and the Executive
Loans Committee, comprising all the Executive Directors of the Bank.
The Executive Loans Committee has overall responsibility for the Group’s
credit policies and oversees the credit quality of the Group’s advance
portfolio. Under the oversight of the Executive Loans Committee, officers
of the Group are authorised to approve credit based on the size of the
advance, the collateral provided, the credit standing of the applicant and
other prescribed credit guidelines.

The Credit Assessment Department is responsible for reviewing all credit
applications. When a customer fills out an advance application or requests
a credit line, the branch or lending department account officer collects
information through customer interviews, documentation requests and
feasibility studies as well as other sources. The account officer then
prepares and submits a credit proposal based on the information gathered
for the review of the Credit Review Officers. Credit Review Officers are
required to check the accuracy of the information submitted and that the
credit proposal meets the underwriting standards required, and are required
to provide an independent credit evaluation in support of a recommendation
for granting or rejecting the advance and the subsequent renewal
applications.

Credit approval is performed by the Loans Committee in accordance with
the delegated lending authority from the Lending Policy of the Group with
reference to a customer’s objective of borrowing, financial strength,
repayment ability, past account performance and collateral being offered
as security, as appropriate. Approval from the Executive Loans Committee
is required as and when the requested amount of the advance exceeds the
delegated authority of the Loans Committee.

The Group structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing
limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to one borrower, or groups
of borrowers, and to geographical and industry segments. Such risks are
typically monitored on a revolving basis and are subject to periodic reviews.
Limits on the level of credit risk by product, industry sector and by country
are approved annually by the Board.
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7. R R L - 7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
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Credit risk - continued

Management of credit risk - continued

Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular reviews of the ability
of borrowers and potential borrowers to meet interest and capital repayment
obligations and by changing these lending limits where appropriate.
Exposure to credit risk is also managed in part by obtaining collateral and
corporate and personal guarantees.

Risk mitigation policies
Some specific control and mitigation measures are outlined below:

(a) Collateral

The Group implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific
classes of collateral or credit risk mitigation. The principal collateral
types for loans and advances are:

* Mortgages over residential and commercial properties;

e Charges over business assets such as premises, inventory and
accounts receivable; or

e Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities and
equities.

In addition, in order to minimise the credit losses, the Group will seek
additional collateral from the counterparty as soon as impairment
indicators are noticed for the relevant individual loans and advances.

Estimates of fair value of collateral are based on the fair value of
collateral determined using valuation techniques commonly used for
the corresponding assets at the time of borrowing, and generally not
updated except when a loan is individually impaired. When a loan is
identified as impaired, the corresponding fair value of collateral of
that loan is updated by reference to market value such as recent
transaction price of properties.

(b) Other risk mitigations

The Group uses guarantees as credit risk mitigations. Whilst the Group
may accept guarantees from any counterparty, it sets a threshold
internally for considering guarantors to be eligible for credit risk
mitigation.

Impairment and provisioning policies

Impairment allowances are recognised for financial reporting purposes
and only for losses that have been incurred at the end of each reporting
period based on objective evidence of impairment.
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

Credit risk - continued
Impairment and provisioning policies - continued

The impairment allowances shown in the statements of financial position
is based on the five rating grades adopted by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority, with the majority of the impairment allowances arising from
the bottom three gradings.

Based on the loan usage or the principal business activities of the borrowers,
where applicable with reference to the regulatory reporting criteria, the
Group’s gross advances to customers (including advances booked in
overseas branches and subsidiaries) are analysed and reported as follows:

S A Nl
31 December 2012
Ak

i i BEZES WX

BRA WM WETH  Loansand ot
Gross loans  Collective  Individual ~ advances Gross
and impairment impairment secured by impaired
advances allowances allowances  collateral advances
EWTL  BWTL BWTR O EBTC BT
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

(HfiENote 1)
Loans for use in Hong Kong
Industrial, commercial and financial
- Property development 1,366,467 1,347 - 769,767 -
- Property investment 8,924,108 - 1,774 8,857,224 1,774
- Financial concerns 1,741,910 - - 1,131,827 -
- Stockbrokers 594,689 150 - 438,481 -
- Wholesale and retail trade 1,460,007 5,157 3273 1,085418 3273
- Manufacturing 1,677,166 557 1,098 994,699 1,098
- Transport and transport equipment 754,094 - - 696,577 -
- Recreational activities 2,154 8 - 2,154 -
- Information technology 15,320 108 - 75 -
- Others (Note 2) 7,114,661 25,619 4,669 3,556,824 4,669
Individuals
- Loans for the purchase of flats in
the Home Ownership Scheme,
Private Sector Participation Scheme
and Tenants Purchase Scheme 475,392 - - 475,392 -
- Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 6,613,370 238 - 6,611,275 -
- Credit card advances 109,491 4,883 328 2,947 375
- Others (Note 3) 1,717,229 6,561 2,181 1,354,133 2,181
32,566,058 44,628 13,323 25,976,793 13,370
Trade finance 1,246,727 29,924 8,516 427,959 8,516
Loans for use outside Hong Kong 5,379,404 89,954 2215 2,564,067 2,308

39,192,189 164,506 24,054 28968819 24,194

Note 1: The amount of loans and advances secured by collateral is determined as
the lower of the market value of collateral or outstanding loan principal.

Note 2: Major items included in “Others” are for electricity and gas, hotels,
catering, margin lending and other business purposes.

Note 3: Major items mainly included loans to professionals and other individuals
for various private purpose.
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7. ARSI BEAS B - i 7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
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Credit risk - continued

Impairment and provisioning policies - continued

T . = SIS B
31 December 2011

Ak
u3] i BEZER  MEARR
B WUEM MR Loansand i
Gross loans ~ Collective  Individual ~ advances Gross
and impairment impairment secured by impaired
advances allowances allowances  collateral advances
BT BT BT EBTR BRTR
HK$000  HK$°000 HK$'000  HK$000 HKS$’000

(W3t Note 1)
Loans for use in Hong Kong
Industrial, commercial and financial
- Property development 2,320,064 2,531 - 725,399 -
- Property investment 8,865,657 - 2,120 8,761,108 1,773
- Financial concerns 2,429,291 - - 1,285,610 -
- Stockbrokers 577,841 179 - 518,642 -
- Wholesale and retail trade 1,562,043 6,081 5,284 802,006 6,182
- Manufacturing 1,616,168 590 5,452 816,796 9,777
- Transport and transport equipment 881,549 - - 469,532 -
- Recreational activities 1,089 5 - 1,089 -
- Information technology 424 52 - 178 -
- Others (Note 2) 8,015,559 31,083 6,324 3393053 25598
Individuals
- Loans for the purchase of flats in
the Home Ownership Scheme,
Private Sector Participation Scheme
and Tenants Purchase Scheme 527,447 - - 527,443 -
- Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 6,459,070 257 - 6,456,622 -
- Credit card advances 76,156 5,507 228 6,698 314
- Others (Note 3) 1,686,550 7,117 5914 1,323,649 9,897
35,018,908 53,402 25322 25,087,825 53,541
Trade finance 1,183,074 31,055 12,043 405,584 21,956
Loans for use outside Hong Kong 5,136,502 87,558 2,988 2285455 2,692

41,338,484 172,015 40,553 27,778,864 78,189

Note 1: The amount of loans and advances secured by collateral is determined as
the lower of the market value of collateral or outstanding loan principal.

Note 2: Major items included in “Others” are for electricity and gas, hotels,
catering, margin lending and other business purposes.

Note 3: Major items mainly included loans to professionals and other individuals
for various private purpose.

The Group’s policy requires the review of individual financial assets that
are above materiality thresholds at least annually or more regularly when
individual circumstances require. Impairment allowances on individually
assessed accounts are determined by an evaluation of the incurred losses
at the end of the reporting period on a case-by-case basis, and are applied
to all individually significant accounts. The assessment normally
encompasses the fair value of collateral held and the anticipated receipts
for that individual account.

Collectively assessed impairment allowances are provided for: (i) portfolios
of homogenous assets that are individually below materiality thresholds;
and (ii) losses that have been incurred but have not yet been identified by
considering the historical loss experience in portfolios of similar credit
risk characteristics. The management has also made judgement as to
whether the current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual
level of inherent losses is likely to be greater or less than that suggested by
historical experience.



oG W OB W R Z W GE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE_F—-_F A= —HILEE

for the year ended 31 December 2012

7. WABS R P - 41 7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
15 PR - & Credit risk - continued
< il R A L B v 1k Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure
T T 0 S O TR 2 A > A ] Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in geographical or industry
HEEREP o HAG SR factors similarly affect counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is
IS G5 B oz S R i o 24 TR B > G material in relation to the Group’s total exposures.
{5 BB 2 AE o
T HE AR 2 AN 58 I T AN BRAT Y < R An analysis of geographical and industry sector concentration of the
B e 5 RS 2 T B 355 Group’s and the Bank’s financial assets that best represent the maximum
BN ENT - exposure to credit risk is disclosed below.
BRI E 2 WA B R A B T The geographical locations of the financial assets are determined by the
e PR B > s SRR o locations of the counterparties with the ultimate credit exposures, as

assessed by the directors.

I 15 oy Geographical locations
L i)
THE GROUP THE BANK
[N A RAK
RHELIA R DU
Asia Pacific Asia Pacific

#i excluding iy ot #i#  excluding e i

Hong Kong  HongKong  Others Total Hong Kong HongKong  Others Total
W Wt BT ENTx ETa #WTa BT T
HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS$000 HKS$'000

(WekNote 1) (W2 Note 2) (WekNote 1) (W3 Note 2)

RZB-Z%+ZH=1—H At 31 December 2012
FillES Short-term funds 6884344 6751760 3300717 16958821 6873958 6751760 332717 16,948,435
TR 3 T 5 B o Placements with banks and

other financial nstitutions M9 4290656 185918 4789513 299,142 4290656 185918 4775716
fESETH Derivative financial instruments 14263 8146 165502 187911 14263 8146 165502 187911
TR TR R A5 IE 2 SRl A Financial assets at fair value

through proft or loss SS5T6 283 4I9M01 1213049 ST 23832 419001 1213149
N3] i Tes Avallable-forsale debt securities 2203479 321,75 1462336 3993540 2203479 32,725 1462336 3993540
HEIME#S Held-to-maturity securities L9176 6128890 1179414 9600020 2291716 6128890 L119414 9,600,020
eyl Advances and other accounts 635486 3536803 936,929 42109018  TALTGYT 3530953 936929 41885579
e 2 ) SRk Amounts due from subsidiaries - - - - 248,376 - - 8376

D795 30 TEIT KT DIANT 26452 TETION T8I

Wzt 1 : BEFTRRBERE#ELI ) Note 1: The countries reported in “Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong” mainly included the

A I B 5K 3 T A o e PRC, Japan, Australia and other Asian countries.
HZK ~ S EAla s o
Wat2 © BEET R AR FEE  Note 2: The countries reported in “Others” covered mainly Canada, United States and certain
@fgﬂﬂgﬁ N 5‘?@& gﬁ/ﬁ European countries.
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7. A5 BEE P - g 7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
1 FE B - Credit risk - continued
< il R A P LB B v b - A Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure
- continued
Vi S 0 B - 7 Geographical locations - continued
4 FiLZE)
THE GROUP THE BANK
AR [N
R R
Asia Pacific Asia Pacific

Bl excluding i it #A# excluding it o

Hong Kong HongKong  Others Total HongKong HongKong  Others Total
BT T EWBTa EMTC BT EMTO BT EMTR
HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

(Wit Note 1) (Wi Note 2) (WikNote 1) (JfzkNote 2)

RZF——%+ZH=1—H At 31 December 2011
RS Short-term funds 0838507 7133830 1162969 18135306 9827998 7133830 1162969 18124797
TR 3 T S A s B 0 Placements with banks and

other financial insitutions 172,066 1996941 - 2169007 137878 1996941 - 2134819
TR Derivative financial instruments 6,157 531 118078 129556 6,157 531 118078 129556
AT R AR SR Financial assets at fair value

through profit o loss 1012867 28820 603595 1845282 1012867 228820 603595 1845280
Wit 2 RS Available-for-sale debt securities 01640 310891 47015 1639646 0L 310891 47115 1639646
RRHNHZR% Held-to-maturity securities 1779492 3970768 2557822 8288082 1779492 3970768 2537822 8288082
st anian Advances and other accounts 30830076 2521798 896,082 43247956 39717983 2515970 896,082 43,130,035
i IAEE Amounts due from subsidiaries - - - - 230,891 - - 230,891

53540805 16,168,369 5,745,661 75454835 53614906  16,162541 5,745,661 75,523,108

Mg L B TRKIRER B LIS ) Note 1: The countries reported in “Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong” mainly included the
I 18 5% 3 B o o e~ PRC, Australia, Taiwan and other Asian countries.
T ~ BB R o

WiEE2 © BT Hithy B E 3 Note 2: The countries reported in “Others” covered mainly Canada, United States and certain
W IEMER ~ 3% European countries.
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7. WS RS P -

{5 R bR - 4
<Al T 119 1 P S BB SR v P -

KB

REB—Z5F A= —H
L6

TR T S B R ko
fikEMIA

A TRTIRRIIA S Gl S &

B2 bt
HEIMAZES

B R

REF——4+ZH=4—H
L6

TR T S B R ko
fikEMIA

A TRFIRRIIA S il S &

B2 b
HEIMAZES

&N

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

Credit risk - continued

Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

- continued

Industry sectors

L]
THE GROUP
IR BRI
WEHER Bl
Banks Central %R
and other  government  Public ¥
financial and  sector Corporate it b
institutions central banks entities entities Others Total
BT BT BT BT BT BBTR
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$’000
At 31 December 2012
Short-term funds 16,060,006 898,815 - - - 16,958,821
Placements with banks
and other financial
institutions 4,789,513 - - - - 4,789,513
Derivative financial
instruments 183,024 - - 4817 70 187911
Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss 419,101 - - 794,048 - 1,213,149
Available-for-sale
debt securities 323,709 - 56,016 3,613,815 - 3,993,540
Held-to-maturity
securities 7,809,345 3382 196401 1,590,892 - 9,600,020
Advances and
other accounts 2,798,881 78,607 176,750 28,381,537 10,673,443 42,109,218
32,383,579 980,804 429,167 34,385,109 10,673,513 78,852,172
At 31 December 2011
Short-term funds 14,440,981 3,694,325 - - - 18,135,306
Placements with banks
and other financial
institutions 2,169,007 - - - - 2,169,007
Derivative financial
instruments 123,360 - - 5517 179 129,556
Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss 417,647 - - 1,427,635 - 1,845282
Available-for-sale
debt securities 232,475 - 56,566 1,350,605 - 1,639,646
Held-to-maturity
securities 6,323,243 130,797 185,187 1,148,855 - 8,288,082
Advances and
other accounts 1,855,605 110,201 144,935 30,462,988 10,674,227 43,247,956
26,062,318 3,935,323 386,688 34,395,600 10,674,406 75,454,835
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7. BB MBS PE - 5 7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
15 PR B - & Credit risk - continued
& A I A5 B e ek - 4 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure
- continued
K- H Industry sectors - continued
i)
THE BANK
FIRBEM g
L7 L DS
Banks Central A#EHEH
and other ~ government  Public %
financial and  sector Corporate it o
institutions central banks entities entities Others Total

T MWL BRT RWTR O ERTL BT
HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000  HK$000 HK$000

R=%F-"4ZH=+—H At 31 December 2012
RS Short-term funds 16,049,620 898,815 - - - 16,948,435
T RS T el o Placements with banks
and other financial
institutions 4,775,716 - - - - 4,775,716
ik ST H Derivative financial
instruments 183,024 - - 4,817 70 187,911
A TSR R A B3R 2 S Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss 419,101 - - 794,048 - 1,213,149
kB RS Available-for-sale
debt securities 323,709 - 56,016  3,613815 - 3,993,540
REHMH &% Held-to-maturity
securities 7,809,345 3,382 196,401 1,590,892 - 9,600,020
e il Advances and
other accounts 2,798,193 78,607 176,750 28,158,586 10,673,443 41,885,579
EREYES Amounts due
from subsidiaries - - - 248,376 - 248376
32,358,708 980,804 429,167 34,410,534 10,673,513 78,852,726
REF——E+ZHA=1-H At 31 December 2011
FiE S Short-term funds 14430472 3,694,305 - - - 18,124,797
T P S T el Placements with banks
and other financial
institutions 2,134,819 - - - - 2,134,819
ik ST H Derivative financial
instruments 123,860 - - 5,517 179 129,556
A TEFIE R A BRI 2 SR Financial assets at
= fair value through
H profit or loss 417,647 - - 1,427,635 - 1,845282
lei kB RS Available-for-sale
[ debt securities 232,475 - 56,566 1,350,605 - 1,639,646
2] REHMH &% Held-to-maturity
|.| securities 6,323,243 130,797 185,187 1,148,855 - 8,288,082
e e il Advances and
[« other accounts 1,854,672 110,201 144,935 30,346,000 10,674,227 43,130,035
% EEYES Amounts due
b from subsidiaries - - - 230,891 - 230,891
& 26,017,188 3,935,323 386,688 34,509,503 10,674,406 75,523,108
o
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

Credit risk - continued

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit

enhancements

Maximum exposure to credit risk relating to assets on the statements of

financial position are as follows:

| FiiZh)
THE GROUP THE BANK
2012 2011 2012 2011
BT BT BT ERTR
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
Short-term funds 16,958,821 18,135,306 16,948,435 18,124,797
Placements with banks and
other financial institutions 4,789,513 2,169,007 4,775,716 2,134,819
Derivative financial instruments 187,911 129,556 187,911 129,556
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 1,213,149  1,845282 1,213,149 1,845,282
Available-for-sale
debt securities 3,993,540 1,639,646 3,993,540 1,639,646
Held-to-maturity securities 9,600,020 8,288,082 9,600,020 8,288,082
Advances and other accounts 42,109,218 43,247,956 41,885,579 43,130,035
Amounts due from subsidiaries - = 248,376 230,891
78,852,172 75,454,835 78,852,726 75,523,108

Maximum exposure to credit risk relating to items unrecorded in the

statements of financial position are as follows:

Direct credit substitutes
Trade-related contingencies

Undrawn formal standby facilities,
credit lines and other commitments
excluding those that are
unconditionally cancellable

without prior notice

S B AT

THE GROUP AND THE BANK
2012 2011
EWTIT EWTIT
HK$’000 HK$’000
1,077,350 1,163,474
425,309 373,802
10,557,895 9,303,915
12,060,554 10,841,191
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7. BB E P - 4
{5 R BR: -
(ELHE4ES

HFRERZENEZ  BRIEK
RESE > BETE -

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
Credit risk - continued
Credit quality

Credit quality of loans and advances to customers, excluding interest receivable,
are summarised as follows:

B M B AT

THE GROUP AND THE BANK
2012 2011
EW T EW T

HK$’000 HK$’000

2 s IR A Neither past due nor impaired 38,934,792 41,081,600
T E S A Past due but not impaired 233,203 178,695
AE Impaired 24,194 78,189
39,192,189 41,338,484

kA Less: Allowances for impairment (188,560) (212,568)
39,003,629 41,125,916

(i) FEHT I I K
FE A Sk A S K 15

(i) Loans and advances neither past due nor impaired

The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances that were neither

HERZSZREEN AN past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to the internal rating
FER RGN AR T > E R system adopted by the Group which is also the classification system
P 7 7 < R A LR SR ER required to be adopted for reporting to the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.
M3 R ©
EB K BT
THE GROUP AND THE BANK
THARHK
R S it
% EWES  HEEZ  Forign ERME  Personal
#% Instalment  Term Syndication currency  Trade loansand  SEfil ot
Overdrafts loans loans loans loans  finance taxloans  Others Total
EEL RTINS T L (R STV x5 DTN 13 BTV TR . T T A T
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$000
RZF-ZZAZ+-H At 31 December 2012
HEE GRADES:
i Pass 1495026 18810942 112179 4330509 70306 1205818 134538 722,322 38,881,640
HilEi% Special mention B4 8967 - - T LS| - 2683
- KRIUT Substandard or below 603 21853 - - X T, - - 26300
it Et| Totl L509,075 18841762 111079 4330509 70306 1203640 1349% 722322 38934792
H:l. — — —— —
II | ¢ Sy B g | At 31 December 2011
W W GRADES:
] itk Pass 1,595,548 17,836,973 13,193,145 6,309,391 ~ 219,105 1,131,749 106,180 522,757 40,914,848
E" HEIER Special mention 82 BT 2300 = K TR ) - 8m
% KERHT Substandard or below 1560 500 9512 -6 = - 11799
E G Total 1,611,132 17,881,420 13,195495 6,404,518 219,105 1,140,650 106,523 522,757 41,081,600
o — ——
o
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7. A5 R BEE P - 4 7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
15 P LB - & Credit risk - continued
EHEE - Credit quality - continued
(i) EAHEIE RS & 3K (ii) Loans and advances past due but not impaired
% 5 43 I A I H A Y Gross amount of loans and advances by class of customers that were
BERRARE ST - past due but not impaired were as follows:
3L ) E
THE GROUP AND THE BANK
MAEHR
AR BB

B EMRR BEAY HAEHE  Personal
B4 Instalment  Term Syndication  Trade loamsand  Hfff  HH
Overdrafts loans loans loans  finance taxloans Others  Total

AT L T L T DT 3 T TR DT
HKS000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

RZF—ZF1ZHA=1-H At 31 December 2012
il =4 HRB R Past due up to 30 days 397 54 1040 - 9003 = - 13246
#H=+—HENLTH Past due from 31 to
90 days W5 41 - - - 10 88%
EHAAHME Past due more than
90 days 2088 14449 - 75406 - 8 - 91951
i Total 5300 19135 122422 75406 9,063 137 1740 233203
B2 2 Fair value of colateral NS %M 8AM 1662 WA 3 - LTS
HEMmz &R () Loans and advances
secured by collateral
(Note) 4757 18881 L1200 75406 9063 $ - M3
R-F——#+2A=1-H At 31 December 2011
=T HEBF Past due up to 30 days 508 375 - AT 245 - 969
HH=+—HENTH Past due from 31 to
90 days 136 9,548 120422 - 3354 106 1,375 134941
HIHMUE Past due more than
90 days 2113 11,982 - - - - - 3409
it Total 0,757 25255 120422 - 8,535 B0 1375 178,695
i A Fair value of collateral 59512 136619 251313 - 299 kil - 469793
B2 &R () Loans and advances
secured by collateral o~
(Note) 22,620 25051 120422 - 8,535 1 - 176,869 8
5
&
AN B B e R Collateral is mainly properties and fixed deposits. =
2
<
W7t : G AP Z B LA Note: The amount of loans and advances secured by collateral is determined as |
TTEHER AR N BN S & the lower of the market value of collateral or outstanding loan principal. E
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7. WABS B E Y -
175 P B - 91
GLELEE B
(i) ] ) L K

HREX

% 5 R o SR A i 9k fE
B AR WA

REF-ZHEFZAZT-H
LRI iR

Btz A T8
Rz &R ()

% S o oy
[

iz A HE
Rk 8K (Wik)

A RSV S K o

Wik : AHEAZ Bk LA )

GBS EER T B AN EA &
B 257 o

(iv) SR B R Al 5 S K
REF—-ZHFEFZHA=+—H
kZF——Ft+ZH=+—
H o 8RAT 53K 2 JF 2 19 5
A B 382 LA o

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

Credit risk - continued

Credit quality - continued

(iii) Loans and advances individually impaired

(iv)

Loans and advances to customers

The breakdown of the gross amount of individually impaired loans

and advances by class of customers are as follows:

At 31 December 2012

Individually
impaired loans

Fair value of collateral

Loans and advances
secured by collateral
(Note)

At 31 December 2011

Individually
impaired loans

Fair value of collateral

Loans and advances
secured by collateral
(Note)

SR BT
THE GROUP AND THE BANK
LIN:EY
Ll 1A

B3 EMBX HAME  Personal
&% Instalment  Term  Trade loansand  Hfli %
Overdrafts loans loans finance taxloans  Others  Total

WL EETC ERT OERTL BRI RO R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

Collateral is mainly properties and fixed deposits.

Note: The amount of loans and advances secured by collateral is determined as

the lower of the market value of collateral or outstanding loan principal.

Advances to banks and other financial institutions

As at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, the advances to
banks are neither past due nor impaired and unsecured.
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R=F—-Z4ZA=1—H
Aaa

Aal  Aa3

ALEA3

i A3
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
Credit risk - continued

Debt securities

Financial investments by rating agency designation

The following table presents an analysis of financial securities, other than
loans and advances, held by the Group by rating agency designation at the
end of the reporting period, based on Moody’s ratings. Financial securities
not rated by Moody’s are treated as unrated ones.

B R aUT
THE GROUP AND THE BANK

BT BIIA TR

Ak T A

Financial assets [fisiipa BN

at fair value BHRS Held-to-
through  Available-for-sale maturity ]
profit or loss debt securities securities Total
T e EMTc BBTx
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000  HK$’000

At 31 December 2012
Aaa - - - -
Aal to Aa3 470,820 379,724 4270459 5,121,003
AltoA3 186,603 1,200,355 3970,694 5,357,652
Lower than A3 - 1,594,132 77,293 1,671,425
Unrated 555,726 819,329 1,281,574 2,656,629
Total 1,213,149 3,993,540 9,600,020 14,806,709
At 31 December 2011

Aaa - - 374419 374419
Aal to Aa3 210,434 328,647 5494492 6,033,573
AltoA3 207,213 472,162 2,057,243 2,736,618
Lower than A3 132,193 755,665 23301 911,159
Unrated 1,295,442 83,172 338,627 1,717,241
Total 1,845,282 1,639,646 8,288,082 11,773,010

Repossessed collateral

During the years indicated, the Group and the Bank obtained assets by
taking possession of collateral held as security, as follows:

S R AT
THE GROUP AND THE BANK
Nature of assets 2012 2011
T EW T
HK$’000 HK$°000
Residential properties 31,000 52,100
Others 17,320 10,950

Repossessed assets are sold as soon as practicable with the proceeds used
to reduce the outstanding indebtedness.
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7. R R B - 7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
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Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risk, which is the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from open positions in
interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to
general and specific market movements and changes in the level of volatility
of market rates or prices such as interest rates, credit spreads, foreign
exchange rates and equity prices. The Group separates exposures to market
risk into either trading or non-trading portfolios.

Trading portfolios include those positions arising from market-making
transactions where the Group acts as principal with clients or with the
market.

Non-trading portfolios primarily arise from the interest rate management
of the Bank’s retail and commercial banking assets and liabilities.
Non-trading portfolios also consist of foreign exchange and equity risks
arising from the Group’s held-to-maturity and available-for-sale investments.

Management of market risk

The management of market risk is principally undertaken in treasury
function using risk limits approved by the Board of Directors or its
designated committee. Limits are set for each portfolio, product and risk
type, with market liquidity being a principal factor in determining the level
of limits set. The Group has dedicated standards, policies and procedures
in place to control and monitor the market risk. The market risks which
arise on each business are assessed and managed under the supervision of
ALCO.

In addition, the Group uses derivatives to mitigate interest rate and foreign
exchange risks.

Stress tests are carried out to provide an indication of the potential size of
losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The results of the stress
tests are reviewed by senior management in each business unit and by the
Board of Directors. The stress testing is tailored to the business segments
and typically uses scenario analysis.

Currency risk

The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign
currencies and, hence exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise.
Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy parameters
utilising forward foreign exchange contracts.
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

The Group does not have any significant foreign exchange risk as foreign
exchange dealing is moderate. Day-to-day foreign exchange management
is performed by the Treasury Department within approved limits.

The Group takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing
foreign currency exchange rates on their financial positions and cash flows.
The Board of Directors or its designated committee sets limits on the level
of exposure by currency and in total for both overnight and intra-day
positions, which are monitored daily.

The following table indicates the concentration of currency risk at the end

gz A of each reporting periods:
HiH
THE GROUP
bl ¥ WMB O OARB Hfle Lk
HK$ US$  MOP  RMB  Others Total
T BT BT BT BBTE BB
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
(Wiik Note)
RZB-Z%+ZH=1—H At 31 December 2012
B Assets
RS N & Cash and short-term funds 11,201,394 2,510,425 77404 1,521,510 2,021,144 17,331,877
T 0 R T S B B 0 Placements with banks and
other financial institutions 2,266,032 1,008,613 - 49387 765481 4,789,513
fikSMTH Derivative financial instruments 5,071 167,381 - - 15,459 187,911
HATEFIE NI AR SR Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss 671,394 542,016 - - - 1213410
Wit @5 Available-for-sale securities 188,493 4,000,071 - 31,090 2,563 4222217
bLEeEL Held-to-maturity securities 2,850,564 4,270,494 - 643456 1,835,506 9,600,020
ZAEHR Advances to customers 36,988,202 1355011 25591 726,984 96,311 39,192,189
[ B LAl el Advances to banks and
other financial institutions 30,614 - - 2,134228 - 2,164,842
Hl G Other financial assets 2,626 142257 23712 325344 9588 75,187
TR Total financial assets 54474480 13996268 105367 6,131,999 4,746,052 79,454,166
fff Liabilities
[F S8 B B 5 A D 5 Deposits and balances of banks
and other financial institutions 882,850 510,438 - 484 27365 1843477 a
T o o o Financial assets sold under =
repurchase agreements - 433,681 - - - 433,681 ‘g
LIRIEE S Deposits from customers 51320386 6,114,896 47,384 3956,597 6,069,485 67,508,748 o
s Certificates of deposit 465921 71378 - 131 - 667,636 %
ik SMTH Derivative financial instruments 118,451 129,581 - - 624 248,656 :é
EEAA Loan capital - 1898957 = = - 18398957 <
Fft £ Other financial liabilities 633,795 44931 604 33671 27228 740229 =
GG R Total financial liabilities 53421409 9209862 47,988 4,537,423 6,124,702 73,341,384 %
T - SR AR Net position - total financial j
assets and liabilities 1,053,071 4,786,406 57,379 1,594,576 (1,378,650) 6,112,782 <
K
WisE : WHEETH A, Ay E T B K Note: Currencies included in “Others” mainly represented Australian dollars and T
WTC R HTVERGIC © New Zealand dollars. o
_L&)’
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

Market risk - continued

Currency risk - continued

4
THE GROUP
i Fi WMB OARE it o
HK$ Us$ MOP RMB  Others Total
W BT BT BT BRTL BB
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HKS$’000
(Wi Note)
At 31 December 2011
Assets
Cash and short-term funds 9,636,360 1443909 101,355 3,304,445 4,173,207 18,659,276
Placements with banks and
other financial institutions 1,258,367 93,202 - 391,720 425718 2,169,007
Derivative financial instruments 6,886 116,341 - 1,385 4,944 129,556
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 936,072 909,517 - - - 1,845,589
Available-for-sale securities 171,315 1,643,956 - 28,493 2721 1,846,485
Held-to-maturity securities 3,097,832 3,608,463 - 528,129 1,053,658 8,288,082
Advances to customers 38,356,717 1,422,300 2,289 1,370495 186,683 41,338,484
Advances to banks and
other financial institutions 884,888 428,984 - 191,537 - 1,505,409
Other financial assets 41,449 135,399 4729 185357 37,129 404,063
Total financial assets 54,389,886 9,802,071 108,373 6,001,561 5,884,060 76,185,951
Liabilities
Deposits and balances of banks
and other financial institutions 727,594 277,051 - - 82,191 1,086,836
Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements - 420,652 - - - 420,652
Deposits from customers 47471776 5,980,154 55,381 5,069,501 6,232,901 64,815,713
Certificates of deposit 853,518 86,207 - 605,837 - 1,545,562
Derivative financial instruments 121,913 138,847 - 534 4,402 265,696
Loan capital - 1,852,153 - - - 1,852,153
Other financial liabilities 478,960 48918 312 14,508 15,797 558,495
Total financial liabilities 49,659,761 8,803,982 55,693 5,690,380 6,335,291 70,545,107
Net position - total financial
assets and liabilities 4730,125 998,089 52,680 311,181 (451,231) 5,640,844

Note: Currencies included in “Others” mainly represented Australian dollars and

New Zealand dollars.
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Market risk - continued

Currency risk - continued

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

T
THE BANK
i Fji BB ONRE i i
HK$ US$ MOP RMB  Others Total
BT BT BT EETE EBTr  BETx
HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$000
(Wit Note)
At 31 December 2012
Assets
Cash and short-term funds 11,190,991 2510425 77404 1,521,510 2,021,144 17,321,474
Placements with banks and
other financial institutions 2,252,235 1,008,613 - 749387 765481 4,775,716
Derivative financial instruments 5071 167,381 - - 15,459 187,911
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 671,133 542,016 - - - 1,213,149
Available-for-sale securities 96,366 4,000,071 - 31,09 2,563 4,130,090
Held-to-maturity securities 2,850,564 4,270,494 - 643,456 1,835,506 9,600,020
Advances to customers 36,988,292 1,355,011 25,591 726,984 96,311 39,192,189
Advances to banks and other
financial institutions 30,614 - - 2,134,228 - 2164842
Other financial assets 303,212 142,257 2,372 319495 9,588 776,924
Total financial assets 54,388,478 13,996,268 105,367 6,126,150 4,746,052 79,362,315
Liabilities
Deposits and balances of banks
and other financial institutions 882,850 510,438 - 42284 27,365  1,843477
Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements - 433,681 - - - 433,681
Deposits from customers 51,320,386 6,114,896 47,384 3,956,597 6,069,485 67,508,748
Certificates of deposit 465,927 71,378 - 124331 - 667,636
Derivative financial instruments 118,451 129,581 - - 624 248,656
Loan capital - 1,898,957 - - - 1,898,957
Other financial liabilities 1,241,847 44,931 604 33,671 27,228 1,348,281
Total financial liabilities 54,029,461 9,209,862 47988 4,537,423 6,124,702 73,949,436
Net position - total financial
assets and liabilities 359,017 4,786,406 57,379 1,588,727 (1,378,650) 5,412,879

Note: Currencies included in “Others” mainly represented Australian dollars and

New Zealand dollars.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

Market risk - continued

Currency risk - continued

FiLLR)
THE BANK
b Fji W AR i K
HK$ US$ MOP RMB  Others Total
EHEFL BT BT EWTo BBTa BB
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000  HKS$’000
(Wit Note)
At 31 December 2011
Assets
Cash and short-term funds 9,625,813 1443909 101,355 3,304,445 4,173,207 18,648,729
Placements with banks and
other financial institutions 1,224,179 93,202 - 391,720 425718 2,134.819
Derivative financial instruments 6,886 116,341 - 1,385 4,944 129,556
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 935,765 909,517 - - - 1,845282
Available-for-sale securities 90,630 1,643,956 - 28,493 2,721 1,765,800
Held-to-maturity securities 3,097,832 3,608,463 - 528,129 1,053,658 8,288,082
Advances to customers 38,356,717 1,422,300 2,289 1,370495 186,683 41,338,484
Advances to banks and
other financial institutions 884,888 428,984 - 191,537 - 1,505,409
Other financial assets 160,248 135,399 4729 179528 37,129 517,033
Total financial assets 54,382,958 9,802,071 108,373 5995732 5,884,060 76,173,194
Liabilities
Deposits and balances of banks
and other financial institutions 727,594 277,051 - - 82,191 1,086,836
Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements - 420,652 - - - 420,652
Deposits from customers 47477645 5,980,154 55,381 5,069,501 6,232,901 64,815,582
Certificates of deposit 853,518 86,207 - 605,837 - 1,545,562
Derivative financial instruments 121,913 138,847 - 534 4,402 265,696
Loan capital - 1,852,153 - - - 1,852,153
Other financial liabilities 1,141,799 48918 312 14,508 15797 1221334
Total financial liabilities 50322469 8803982 55,693 5,690,380 6,335,291 71,207,815
Net position - total financial
assets and liabilities 4060489 998,089 52,680 305,352 (451,231) 4,965,379

Note: Currencies included in “Others” mainly represented Australian dollars and

New Zealand dollars.

The Group and the Bank entered into a number of foreign currency forward

contracts to manage the currency risk exposure, details of which are set

out in Note 18.
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

Market risk - continued
Currency risk - continued
Foreign currency sensitivity

The Group is mainly exposed to US dollars, Renminbi and Macau Pataca.
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 1 per cent change
in Hong Kong dollars against the US dollars and Macau Pataca, and
10 percent change in Hong Kong dollars against Renminbi. The respective
percentages are the rates used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represent management’s
assessment of the possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analyses of the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the
reporting period have been determined based on the foreign exchange rates
adjusted at the end of the reporting period.

[ 2 st
Change in currency rate
eI N BT
US Dollars Renminbi Macau Pataca

Wil Rt Kl Rt Kl Rl

Appreciate Depreciate  Appreciate Depreciate ~ Appreciate Depreciate

+1% -1% +10% -10% +1% -1%

THE GROUP
Hong Kong dollars equivalents

(HK$’000)
2012
Profit after tax 258 (258) 3351 (3,351) 89 89)
2011
Profit after tax 102 (102) 3,691 (3,691) 42 42)
THE BANK
2012
Profit after tax 258 (258) 2,766 (2,766) 89 89)
2011
Profit after tax 102 (102) 3,109 (3,109) 42 42)

Numbers in bracket mean decrease.
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7. R R B - 7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
T35 b - Market risk - continued
P Jal b3 Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The Group takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing
levels of market interest rates on both fair value and cash flow risks.
Interest margins may increase as a result of such changes but may reduce
or create losses in the event that unexpected movements arise. Limits
are set on the level of mismatch of interest rate repricing that may be

undertaken, which are monitored regularly.

The Group measures the exposure of its assets and liabilities to
fluctuations in interest rates primarily by way of interest rate gap analysis
which shows the Group’s interest rate risk arising from the mis-matches
between contractual maturities and re-pricing of interest-generating assets

and interest-bearing liabilities.
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
Market risk - continued
Interest rate risk - continued

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to interest rate risks.
Included in the tables are the Group’s assets and liabilities at carrying

amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity

dates.
%M
THE GROUP
=MA
=MA Bk —SBE
DA DA RSENR RENE AR
Upto  3-12 1-5  Over Non-interest s
3months  months years 5 years bearing Total
BT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000  HK$000 HK$000
At 31 December 2012
Assets
Cash and short-term funds 16,789,099 98,531 - - 444247 17,331,877
Placements with banks and
other financial institutions 3948937 840,576 - - - 4,789,513
Derivative financial instruments - - - - 187,911 187,911
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 1,182,407 - 30,742 - 261 1,213,410
Available-for-sale securities 3,990,868 - - - 231,349 4222217
Held-to-maturity securities 7,061,580 1,837,563 459,439 239,438 2,000 9,600,020
Advances to customers 37923395 975,072 102911 24,158 166,653 39,192,189
Advances to banks and other
financial institutions 1,470,328 694,514 - - - 2,164,842
Other financial assets 133,194 112,616 - - 506,377 752,187
Total financial assets 72,499,808 4,558,872 593,092 263,596 1,538,798 79,454,166
Liabilities
Deposits and balances of banks
and other financial institutions 1,469,018 344,484 - - 29975 1,843,477
Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements 354,801 78,880 - - - 433,681
Deposits from customers 55,432,728 6,748,130 88,972 - 5238918 67,508,748
Certificates of deposit 590,258 71,378 - - - 667,636
Derivative financial instruments - - - - 248,656 248,656
Loan capital 1,898,957 - - - - 1,898,957
Other financial liabilities - - - - 740229 740,229
Total financial liabilities 59,745,762 7,248872 88,972 - 6,257,778 73,341,384

Net position- total financial
assets and liabilities 12,754,046 (2,690,000) 504,120 263,596  (4,718,980) 6,112,782
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7. WAESEEEE P - g 7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
T JEL S - 4 Market risk - continued
T4 Jo B - 2 Interest rate risk - continued
i
THE GROUP
=MH
=MH BE —%bLE
PR DR REDR REDE AR
Upto  3-12 1-5  Over Non-interest i
I months  months years 5 years bearing Total
BT T ERTC BT BB BT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$000
R-F-—#+ZH=1—H At 31 December 2011
HpE Assets
S L & Cash and short-term funds 18,043,971 = = - 615305 18,659,276
TS R S o P B b o Placements with banks and
other financial institutions 1,596,870 572,137 - - - 2,169,007
@R TH Derivative financial instruments = = - - 12955 129,556
AT R AR IR 2 SR Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 1,772,526 - 27,250 - 45813 1,845,589
Wk RS Available-for-sale securities 1,638,649 = = - 207836 1846485
AN HZ 8% Held-to-maturity securities 5647050 2,091,586 306,564 240,882 2,000 8,288,082
ZPEHR Advances to customers 40277961 878726 77692 2,091 102,014 41338484
[V T LA S e Advances to banks and other
financial institutions 745,720 759,689 - - - 1,505,409
Hitrp e Other financial assets 161,943 38,000 = - 204120 404,063
SHIE R Total financial assets 69,884,600 4,340,138 411,506 242973  1306,644 76,185,951
fafk Liabilities
[ 38 B B 5 A B Deposits and balances of banks
and other financial institutions 1,075,361 - - - 11475 1,086,836
TR s i S B 2 B Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements 420,652 - - - - 420,652
ERfER Deposits from customers 55,068,090 4,489,411 714,783 - 4543429 64,815,713
ke Certificates of deposit 279,792 1,265,770 - = - 1,545,562
b o
ﬂ kST H Derivative financial instruments - - - - 265,696 265,696
Ill ERAA Loan capital 1,852,153 = - - - 1,852,153
‘IH'l’ Hitrg R AR Other financial liabilities - - = - 558495 558495
"%, SHA R Total financial liabilities 58,696,048 5,755,181 714,783 - 5379,095 70,545,107
P2 _
é T - R I A B Net position- total financial
T assets and liabilities 11,188,642 (1415043) (303277) 242973  (4,072451) 5,640,844
o
&
@w
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7. AR mBE T B - m 7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

T B - 4 Market risk - continued
I B - Interest rate risk - continued
i
THE BANK
=fA
=MH Bk -k
UA DA REDR RENE AR
Upto 3-12 1-5 Over Non-interest k]
I months  months years 5 years bearing Total
T BT BT BT BBTa BT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$000
e S S £ S | At 31 December 2012
573 Assets
RS LA & Cash and short-term funds 16,789,099 98,531 = - 433844 17,321,474
TR 3 o 5 B o Placements with banks and
other financial institutions 3,946,248 829,468 - - - 4,775,716
it eMIH Derivative financial instruments > = = = 187911 187911
A THEFIE LI ARSI SR Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 1,182,407 - 30,742 - - 1,213,149
fuf3id oo Available-for-sale securities 3,990,868 - - - 139222 4,130,090
FEHWH 2 %5 Held-to-maturity securities 7,061,580 1,837,563 459,439 239,438 2,000 9,600,020
KREHK Advances to customers 37923395 975072 102911 24,158 166,653 39,192,189
7 T S 5 B B Advances to banks and other
financial institutions 1,470,328 694,514 - - - 2,164,842
BiRliEr Other financial assets 133,194 112,616 - 224579 306,535 776,924
SHE Total financial assets 497,119 4,547,764 593,092 488,175 1,236,165 179,362,315
afg Liabilities
CEPEN gL e Deposits and balances of banks
and other financial institutions 1,469,018 344,484 - - 29975 1,843477
TRl ™ 2 S Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements 354,801 78,880 - - - 433,681
&Rt Deposits from customers 55,432,728 6,748,130 88,972 - 5238918 67,508,748 g
I3
ke Certificates of deposit 590,258 77,378 - - - 667,636 E
Q
= N O
ik SR TH Derivative financial instruments - - - - 248,656 248,656 c_;
2
A Loan capital 1,898,957 - = - - 1,398,957 <‘é
» [ ]
Hft e bt Other financial liabilities 774299 68,323 - - 505,659 1,348,281 -
THA TR Total financial liabilities 60,520,061 7317195 88972 - 6023208 73949436 =
-
TR - S A A Net position - total financial ,§
assets and liabilities 11,977,058 (2,769,431) 504,120 488,175  (4,787,043) 5,412,879 o
£
o
=
o
=
(@]




oG W OB W R Z WG

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HWE_F - ZH=E1—HILFE
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7. WAESEEEE P - g 7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
T JEL S - 4 Market risk - continued
T4 Jo B - 2 Interest rate risk - continued
FilZn)
THE BANK
=MH
=MH BE —%bLE
PR DR REDR REDE AR
Upto  3-12 1-5  Over Non-interest i
I months  months years 5 years bearing Total
BT T ERTC BT BB BT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$000
R-F-—#+ZH=1—H At 31 December 2011
HpE Assets
S L & Cash and short-term funds 18,043,971 = = - 604758 18,648,729
TS R S o P B b o Placements with banks and
other financial institutions 1,585,940 548,879 - - - 2134819
@R TH Derivative financial instruments = = - - 12955 129,556
AT R AR IR 2 SR Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 1,772,526 - 27,250 - 45,506 1,845,282
Wk RS Available-for-sale securities 1,638,649 = = - 127051 1,765,800
AN HZ 8% Held-to-maturity securities 5647050 2,091,586 306,564 240,882 2,000 8,288,082
ZPEHR Advances to customers 40277961 878726 77692 2,091 102,014 41338484
[V T LA S e Advances to banks and other
financial institutions 745,720 759,689 - - - 1,505,409
Hitrp e Other financial assets 161,942 38,000 - 229581 87510 517,033
SHIE R Total financial assets 69,873,759 4,316,880 411,506 472,554  1,098495 176,173,194
fafk Liabilities
[ 38 B B 5 A B Deposits and balances of banks
and other financial institutions 1,075,361 - - - 11475 1,086,836
TR s i S B 2 B Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements 420,652 - - - - 420,652
ERfER Deposits from customers 55,067,959 4,480,411 714,783 - 4543429 64,815,582
ke Certificates of deposit 279,792 1,265,770 - = - 1,545,562
b o
ﬂ kST H Derivative financial instruments - - - - 265,696 265,696
Ill ERAA Loan capital 1,852,153 = - - - 1,852,153
‘IH'l’ Hitrg R AR Other financial liabilities M40 12400 = - 1464 1221334
"%, SHA R Total financial liabilities 59473387 5767581 714,783 - 5252064 71207815
P2 _
é T - R I A B Net position - total financial
T assets and liabilities 10400372 (1450,701) (303277) 472554  (4,153,569) 4965379
o
&
@w
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
Market risk - continued

Interest rate risk - continued

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure
to floating interest rates at the end of the reporting period and the stipulated
change taking place at the beginning of the financial year and held constant
throughout the reporting period. A 100 basis point change in upwards and
10 basis point change in downwards are used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the possible change in interest rates.

2012 2011
2 pat ] A
Change in basis points  Change in basis points
+100 -10 +100 -10

EWTT #WTL EWTE O ERTR
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000

THE GROUP

Profit after tax 99,020 9,902) 85,685 (8,569)
Other comprehensive income - - - -

THE BANK

Profit after tax 100,780 (10,078) 87,318 (8,732)

Other comprehensive income - = - _

Numbers in bracket mean decrease.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk arising from its listed investments in
equity securities. Except for those classified as held for trading, the Group
does not actively trade these investments. The sensitivity analysis below
is determined based on 10% changes in the price of the underlying
investments.

Price sensitivity

THE GROUP
Profit after tax

Other comprehensive income

THE BANK
Profit after tax

Other comprehensive income

2012 2011
HEE- 0] EE-20]
Change in price Change in price

+10% -10% +10% -10%
T BT BT BBT

HK$000 HK$°000

22 (22)
16,121 (16,121)

HK$000 HK$’000

26 (26)
14511 (14511)

8,760 (8,760)

8,105 (8,105)

Numbers in bracket mean decrease.
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7. R R L - 7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its payment
obligations associated with its financial liabilities when they fall due and
to replace funds when they are withdrawn. The consequence may be the

failure to meet obligations to repay depositors and fulfil commitments to
lend.

Management of liquidity risk

The ALCO is responsible for monitoring the Group’s liquidity position,
and does so through the periodic review of the statutory liquidity ratio, the
maturity profile of assets and liabilities, loan-to-deposit ratio and
inter-bank transactions. Liquidity Risk Management Policy is reviewed
by the ALCO and approved by the RMCC of the Group, and key features
of liquidity position are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors and
the RMCC of the Group. The Group’s policy is to maintain a conservative
level of liquid funds on a daily basis so that the Group is prepared to meet
its obligations when they fall due in the normal course of business and to
satisfy statutory liquidity ratio requirements. The policy provides a
foundation to other risk management tools including stress-testing and
contingency funding plan.

The Group’s RMCC recommends internal target levels in respect of the
liquidity ratios and loan to deposit ratios. The Group’s Head of Treasury
Department is responsible for monitoring these ratios and, where a tight
liquidity position remains for a prolonged period, the Head of Treasury
Department reports his findings to the ALCO and RMCC who, after
consultation with members of the Executive Committee, decide the
appropriate corrective actions to be taken. The liquidity positions of the
overseas branches in Shantou, San Francisco and Macau are monitored
through the submission of monthly management accounts and daily cash
flow positions to the Bank’s head office. The Bank has strong capital base
and stable customer deposits which are its main funding sources. The
Bank has also diversified to other funding sources including inter-bank
deposit takings, certificates of deposit programme and through financial
assets sold under repurchase agreements.
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
Liquidity risk - continued

Management of liquidity risk - continued

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual maturity
for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables below have been
drawn up based on the contractual maturities of the undiscounted financial
liabilities including interest that will accrue, with reference to their
respective contractual interest rate including those variable rate instrument
by using the appropriate prevailing market rates as at the end of the
reporting period as stated in their contracts, to those liabilities except where
the Group is contractually entitled and intends to repay the liability before

ZBUTHIEAR o

i
THE GROUP
i} =R ~i
£=HA 4 it
DR DWBER DR
~MH  Repayable  Repayable  Repayable L%
Dt after after after &
IR Repayable Imonth 3 months Iyear  Repayable
Repayable within ~ butwithin  but within  but within after ot
on demand 1 month 3 months 1year S years 5 years Total
T T BT BT ERTe BT #ETx
HK$°000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
AP R Liabilities adjusted
with interest payable
R=%F-24ZH=4—H At 31 December 2012
[FI3E B CE M S O T B 5 B Deposits and balances
of banks and other
financial institutions 35,87 814,592 673,006 351,040 - - 1873925
T D e i Sl Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements - 354818 - 79452 - - 43200
BEHR Deposits from customers 26837810 19923589 14023223 6,844,017 90,110 - 67,718,749
fi#i Certificates of deposit - 99,991 390,267 171,378 - - 667,636
BEEAR Loan capital - - - 104071 418,608 2,038,156 2,580,835
HA g5 Other financial liabilities 401414 9,091 60,677 105,047 14907 - 591,136
AR S E A Total undiscounted
financial liabilities 45 1202081 15,147,173 7,661,005 523,625 2,038,156 73,866,351 ~
RZF——H+ZH=1—H At 31 December 2011 &
CEJEA LI e Deposits and balances g_
of banks and other &
financial institutions 18,820 1,004,156 70,145 3 - - 1,093,124 _g
=
TRl ek iz B Financial assets sold under j:
repurchase agreements - - 138,480 284,671 - - 43151 L]
32
EIREET S Deposits from customers NTSTBL UISLEIS 12311018 4539343 750,198 - 65,008,155 =
féakit Certficates of deposit - 100,000 80323 1218215 101,052 - 155959 :é'
o]
EREA Loan captl - - - 104269 419407 2166937 2,690,613 =l
- <
Hftn e bt Other financial liabilities 339,237 5,993 30576 4280 21,601 - T
o
AHTER G E A Total undiscounted _§
financial liabilities 23033838 25,601,764 1263274 6,250,781 1292258 2,166937 71238320 O

its maturity.
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7. VARSI BE T B - 7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
BB - 47 Liquidity risk - continued
i < B A - Management of liquidity risk - continued
it g
THE BANK
-BA ZHA —i

F=HA Er it
DR DR DR
~MH  Repayable  Repayable  Repayable L%
DR after after after R
ISR Repayable Imonth 3 months Iyear  Repayable
Repayable within ~ butwithin  but within  but within after et
on demand 1 month 3 months 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
T T T BT Rt BT #ETx
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HEK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000

RS AR Liabilities adjusted

with interest payable
RZF—"F+ZH=1-H At 31 December 2012
IFIE e SA A A B R B 6 Deposits and balances

of banks and other

financial institutions 35,287 814,592 673,006 351,040 = - 187395
T T i T 2 B Financial assets sold under

repurchase agreements - 354,818 - 79452 - - 430
ZRER Deposits from customers 26837810 19923589 14023203 6844017 90,110 - 61718749
e Certificates of deposit - 99,991 390,267 17378 - - 667,636
fEEEA Loan capital = = = 104071 418,608 2,058,156 2,580,835
Hitr i Ak Other financial liabilities 451,389 508,792 109,249 129,758 = - 1,199,188
AT TG Total undiscounted

financial liabilities V34486 20701782 15195745 7,685,716 508,718 2,058,156 74,474,603
REF——4+2A=+—H At 31 December 2011
(FIE T B S B R B 5 Deposits and balances

of banks and other

financial nstitutions 18820 1,004,156 70,145 3 = - 1093124
T e B Bz i Financial assets sold under

repurchase agreements - - 138,480 284,671 - - 43151
BT Deposits from customers DTS MILEIS 12311018 4539343 750,198 - 65027916
fia Certficates of deposit = 100,000 80323 1278215 101,052 - 155959
EREA Loan capital = = = 104269 419407 2166937 2,690,613
Hitrm AR Other financial liabilities 496,103 502,543 §0987 27,001 = - 1,106,634
AU S A fE Total undiscounted

financial liabilities 8390465 26158314 12681153 6233502 1270657 2166937 71901028
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
Liquidity risk - continued
Management of liquidity risk - continued

The following tables detail the Group’s expected maturity for its derivative
financial instruments. The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted net cash inflows (outflows) on the derivative financial
instruments that settle on a net basis and the undiscounted gross inflows
and (outflows) on those derivatives that require gross settlement. When
the amount payable or receivable is not fixed, the amount disclosed has
been determined by reference to the projected interest rates as illustrated
by the yield curves existing at the reporting date.

LR AT
THE GROUP AND THE BANK
Hik =MH
—fR  —HAZE i —FE  ERAE
Less than =fiH 3 months s Over ol

Imonth 1-3months  tolyear 1-5years 5 years Total
BT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$’000  HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000

At 31 December 2012

Derivatives settled net
Interest rate contracts

- inflow (outflow) “44) (20,829) 16,361 (7943) 40,534 28,079
Derivatives settled gross
Exchange rate contracts
- inflow 2,198901 2,514,355 1,324,502 - - 6,037,758
- outflow (2,196,427)  (2,530,816) (1,309,173) - - (6,036,416)
2474 (16,461) 15,329 - - 1,342
At 31 December 2011
Derivatives settled net
Interest rate contracts
- inflow (outflow) 5,814 (41,132) 21,355 (30,191) 125,586 81,432
Derivatives settled gross
Exchange rate contracts
- inflow 431,043 473,846 413,555 - - 1318444
- outflow (430,557)  (469,590)  (411,731) - - (1,311,878)
486 4256 1,824 - - 6,566
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7. WABSBRE P - 5 7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
BB - A Liquidity risk - continued
i < B A - Management of liquidity risk - continued
R A 7S £ [ K AR BRAT SR A AT 8RR The dates of the contractual amounts of the Group’s and the Bank’s
ToR 5 1R 0 28 1 AR 0 T B ALl I commitments and contingencies unrecorded in the statements of financial
& A B B 0 B a5 PR R it position that commit them to extending credit to customers and other
% P AE B A HA A5 P 22k B I o5 facilities and financial guarantees are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
WELREF A 57 & W B 2R 2 [ 5k 37 financial statements and summarised in the table below:
AERAFANT K -
LM R AT
THE GROUP AND THE BANK
Al —4F
No later than 1 year
BT
HK$°000
R -+ H=1—H At 31 December 2012
HEAE HAARE Direct credit substitutes 1,077,350
HE ARz EHHEEH Trade-related contingencies 425,309
REHZ I HEE ~ Undrawn formal standby facilities,
{25 B3 By Lt 7R 3 credit lines and other commitments
AL T R ECS excluding those that are unconditionally
Wi AN M AR A cancellable without prior notice 10,557,895
12,060,554
REF——E+ZHA=1—H At 31 December 2011
HEE A Direct credit substitutes 1,163,474
B DR SAEH Trade-relate contingencies 373,802
RE A2 I HEE ~ Undrawn formal standby facilities,
{5 B3 HARRE credit lines and other commitments
R HE ] S % B excluding those that are unconditionally
T A 22 VS i % cancellable without prior notice 9,303,915
10,841,191
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7. B BRAE P - 7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
BB B - A Liquidity risk - continued
Bt fe BB R BRI H 5 i Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity

S5 51K il 2 P < vl B e LTI
B E MR DGR E G R

The maturity analysis of financial assets and liabilities shown on the

statements of financial position, based on the remaining period at the end

B H 2 W R AE AT ANE

of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date is shown below:

L0
THE GROUP
~fiH
VAR
(feg —WA =R —f
WREE) 2=WA 2% EhE
Repayable  DIMEE DWEE e
within Repayable Repayable Repayable AL
il 1 month after after after i
Repayable ~ (exceptthose ~ 1month 3 months Lyear Repayable Wi
on repayable but within but within but within after A it
demand  ondemand) 3 months Lyear  Syears Syears  Undated Total
LR ST 5 TR 15 STV ST 5 T ST ST L BT
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
RZB—-Z%+ZH=1—H At 31 December 2012
(73 Assets
BB SRR A & Cash and short-term funds 609570 L1376 30000 98,31 - - - 1733187
T I S T S o 5 el ot Placements with banks and
other financial institutions - - 3948937 840,576 - - - 4789513
ik S TH Derivative financial instruments - 6,562 3987 6,106 - 171,256 - 18791
SRR B A SRR IR 2 Sl Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss - - - 26,096 996953 - 261 12213410
Tk 2 Available-for-sale securities - - - - 2605897 1367643 28677 420017
FEAMAZES Held-to-maturity securities - 1005799 2576751 2538719 2519363 7332 - 9,600,020
ZFEHR Advances to customers 1,634,953 2084996 2398222 7369363 12,717,092 12,619406 168,157 39,192,189
[F 3% T o 5 e B Advances to banks and other
financial institutions - 105497 1364831 694,514 - - - 2164842
Hitr g Other financial assets 327,140 128130 193336 181311 94216 - (171946) 75,187
ek ] Total financial assets 8,061,663 14,854,760 10,516,070 11,945,376 18953521 14,897,627 225,149 79,454,166
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7. WBSHRRE B - 51 7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
B & < m B - A Liquidity risk - continued
B B U BR B H 50 - 41 Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity - continued
i
THE GROUP
i
ViR

(Puff WA ZEA ~if
L I 2 o 1
Repayable  DIMEE  DIWGR  Dviid
within Repayable Repayable Repayable  #IMTE
JIRS R 1 month after after after B’
Repayable (exceptthose ~ Imonth 3months  Iyear Repayable  EWIGE
on  repayable but within but within but within after il it
demand  ondemand) 3 months Iyear  Syears Syears  Undated Total
HB T T #ETc BT BTa  BTa #Tx BT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS$000 HKS$000

RZF—"F1ZHA=1-H At 31 December 2012
fift Liabilites
IFI 3 T S B R B A B Deposits and balances of banks

and other financial institutions 35,287 803806 659900 344484 - - - 184347
T8 I e iz S Financial assets sold under

repurchase agreements - 354,801 - 78880 - - - 433681
ZRER Deposits from customers 837602 19872678 13961059 6748437 88972 5 - 67,508,748
i Cetificates of deposit - 991 390267 177,378 - - - 667,636
kST H Derivative financial instruments = B M3 9 142985 56655 - 248656
EHEREEN Loan capital - - - - - 1898957 - 1398957
Hitr e R AR Other financial liabilities 401,465 59876 102,005 161879 15,004 = - 029
SHE N Total financial liabiliies VA4 OL194283 I513L174 7530000 246961 1955612 - 73,341,384
T - S A Net position - total financial

assets and liabilities (19202,601)  (6339,523) (4615,104) 4406376 18706560 12942015 225,149 6,112,782
FRRE DR Of which certificates of deposit

included in:
R ZR5 Held-to-maturity securities = 0543 2,110,648 1,357,430 = = - 369332
AR Of which debt securities

included in:
AT R A B30 2 SRl Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss
- A TSR - Designated at far value = = - 619 996953 = - 123,149
T Available-for-sale securiies - - - - 265897 1367643 - 3993540
R Held-to-maturity securities - 1005799 2576751 253719 2519363 73R - 9,600,020

- LSTY 2576757 2754975 614223 2106965 - 14,806,709
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7. BB E P - 4 7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
BB - A Liquidity risk - continued
B e B AR AR 20 H 5Bt - Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity - continued
M
THE GROUP
Ll
DGR

(Mg WA ZWA ~f
L I e 2 S 13
Repayable  DIWER DAER DRER
within Repayable Repayable Repayable  HHATAE
HIRs 1 month after after after fiR
Repayable  (exceptthose  1month 3months  lyear Repayable  fENIf
on  repayable but within but within but within after il k]
demand  ondemand) 3 months Lyear  Syears Syears  Undated Total
% FL ST L S TR L 3 T ST 1 ST A T . A T
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS$'000

R=%F——4+-H=+—H At 31 December 2011
Bk Assets
BB SRR A & Cash and short-term funds 6470760 11849802 338714 - - - - 18,639,276
TR B A 5 B Placements with banks and

other financial institutions - - 159,870 572,137 - - - 2,169,007
fitEEITR Derivative financial instruments = 2,603 3.985 3,719 281 118,968 - 12955
AT R AR SR Financial assets at fair value

through profit o loss = - 1597 3156 1287779 - 307 1,845,589
Tk 7 Available-for-sale securites = = = - 1258736 380910 206839 1846485
R Held-to-maturity securities S 1490948 193,097 3597047 2764008 242882 - 888082
KPER Advances to customers 1767331 2856018 3991951 6718317 14051611 11766665 186,591 41338484
[ 5 T U 5 e B Advances to banks and other

financial institutions - - 45720 759,689 - - - 1,505,409
L URRE Sl Other inancial asees 238966 132005 69612 18876 667 - 196013) 404063
Bl Total financial assets 8477057 16331466 7125996 12181201 19363082 12509425 197,724 76,185951
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7. WAB5BRE P - 4

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

Liquidity risk - continued

B
=
ey
| ]
[
iy
Il
| |
i@
g
o
T
2
I

B B ELREHEOR i 20301 H 59 1 - A1

3|
THE GROUP
~fiH
W
(he —W =EA —iF

Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity - continued

W)  E=MA EF 0 BRE
Repayable  DIMMER  DIMER  DAER
within Repayable Repayable Repayable  HIMTLE
HI 1 month after after after i
Repayable (exceptthose ~ 1month 3months  Iyear Repayable  EWIGE
on repayable  but within  but within  but within after B o
demand  ondemand) 3 months Lyear  Syears Syears  Undated Total
#WTn BB EETa T BETR BT BBt @l
HE$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$000
REF-—F1+ZH=1—H At 31 December 2011
fifit Liabilities
(FIE T S S B R A B A B Deposits and balances of banks
and other financial institutions 18,820 998,016 70,000 - - - - 1,086,836
T 8 o o v Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements - - 137940 282,712 - - - 420,652
ZRfER Deposits from customers NS48 24488399 1247013 4480832 714776 = - 64815713
fiaa Cerificates of deposit - 99948 7984 1265770 100000 = - 1545562
ik eMIH Derivative financial instruments = 4007 27364 25606 184459 24,170 - 26569
EHEREEN Loan capital - - - - - 18515 - 185215
Hitr R AR Other financial iabilities 339419 6814 6330 75793 24139 = - 558495
SHAREE Total financial liabilities BBITY BT 164601 6139713 10334 1876323 - 70,545,107
TR - SRR I £ A Net position - total financial
assets and liabilities (14756675 (9315808) (5498,605) 6041488 18339708 10,633,100 197,724 5,640,844
[ ettt Of which certificates of
deposit included in:
HEAMH 285 Held-to-maturity securities = 879,341 12340 661,043 18,520 = - 1571244
R R R Of which debt securities
included in:
AT B RS AR 23 2 SR Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
- AT - Designated at fair value - - 185947 371556 1,287,779 - - 1,845282
Al 2 2 Available-for-sale securities = = = - 1258736 380,910 - 1,639,646
fFEHMWHZ#S Held-to-maturity securities S 1490948 193197 3597047 2764008 242882 - 8.288,082
S 1490948 39044 3968603 5310523 623792 - 11,773,010
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HWE_F - ZH=E1—HILFE

for the year ended 31 December 2012

7. BB E P - 4 7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
BB - A Liquidity risk - continued
B e B AR AR 20 H 5Bt - Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity - continued
247
THE BANK
i
N

(hafh - —~MA ZEH —f
WHER) E=MA B4 ER%
Repayable  DIMEE  DIWEE D
within Repayable Repayable Repayable 7L
TSR 1 month after after after iR
Repayable (exceptthose  Imonth 3 months Lyear Repayable W
on repayable but within but within but within after il k]
demand  ondemand) 3 months Lyear  Syears Syears  Undated Total
WiTe  ENTo BT BT ETo BBt dTo BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000

R=%—-"4 - H=+—H At 31 December 2012
(23 Assets
TSR Cash and short-term funds 608,067 1LL03776 30000 98531 - - - R4
T P T o ¢ el Placements with banks and

other financial institutions - - 394648 829,468 - - - 4715716
fESHMIH Derivative financial instruments = 6562 3981 6,106 - 1786 - 18791
DTG RA AR I 2 S Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss - - - 26,09 996953 - - 1213149
Tk 7 Available-for-sale securities - - - - 2625897 1367643 136550 4,130,090
FEEHNHZ RS Held-to-maturity securities - 125799 2576757 2538719 2519363 13932 - 9,600,020
KPER Advances to customers 1634953 228499 2398202 7369363 12,717,092 12619406 168,157 39,192,189
[ 5 T U 5 e B Advances to banks and other

financial institutions = 105497 1364831 694,514 = = - 2164842
L URRE Sl Other financial asses 13426 1578 12183 80312 %46 245 (IT4176)  TI69%
SRR Total financial assets 8646 14852414 10512228 11933269 1895352 15122206 130,531 79,362,315

o~
o
IS
=
—
]
o
Q
P
S
2
=
=
<
m
=
P
E
-
-
=
5]
[~}
o)
o=
T
o)
=
5]
=
(@)




=
#
#
i
|
B
I
| |
i’
<
Iy
T
e
®

AW OB W RZW

ik

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HWE_F - ZH=E1—HILFE
for the year ended 31 December 2012

7. WAB5BRE P - 4

R B SRR R 20T 1 53 H - 8t

RE%—Z5FZAZ1—H
£l
I8 T S B R P
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%Pt

feat

i Em IR

fEEA

Hili A
M

- SRR AR

feakw i -
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

Liquidity risk - continued

At 31 December 2012
Liabilities
Deposits and balances of banks
and other financial institutions

Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements

Deposits from customers
Certificates of deposit
Derivative financial instruments
Loan capital
Other financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Net position - total financial
assets and liabilities

Of which certificates of
deposit included in:

Held-to-maturity securities

Of which debt securities
included in:

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
- Designated at fair value

Available-for-sale securities

Held-to-maturity securities

Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity - continued

AT
THE BANK
~A
YRR
(hfE —BA ZWEA —4
WHEE) EEMA EE O ZEE
Repayable  DIMEE DR e
within Repayable Repayable Repayable  #IMTE
LS 1 month after after after R
Repayable  (exceptthose ~ 1month 3 months Lyear Repayable MW
on repayable butwithin but within but within after il k]
demand  ondemand) 3 months Lyear  Syears Syears  Undated Total
BT EMTx BT ENTo BETR  EBTo BETR TR
HEK$000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
35,287 803,806 659,900 344,484 - - - 1843477
- 354,801 - 78880 - - - 433681
26837602 19872,678 13,961,059 6748437 88972 - - 67,508,748
- 99991 390267 177,378 - - - 667,636
- 3131 17943 27942 142985 56,635 - 48656
- - - - - 1898957 - 1898957
451,440 559,577 150,577 186,59 97 - - 1348281
U439 21,693984 15179746 7,563,711 232,04 1955612 - 73949436
(19466,183)  (6,841,570) (4,667,518) 4,369,558 18721467 13166594 130,531 5412879
- 2543 2,110,648 1,357,430 - - - 3693321
- - - 2619 996953 - - 1213149
- - - - 2625807 1,367,643 - 3993540
- 1225799 2,576,757 2538719 2519363 739322 - 9,600,020
- 125799 2,576,757 2754975 6,142,213 2,106965 - 14,806,709
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HWE_F - ZH=E1—HILFE

for the year ended 31 December 2012

7. BB E P - 4 7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
BB - A Liquidity risk - continued
B e B AR AR 20 H 5Bt - Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity - continued
a7
THE BANK
~fiR
N

(hfE WA ZEA —f
WEEER) #EMA 2% EhE
Repayable  DIMfRE  DIAER  DREE
within Repayable Repayable Repayable  #ITE
TR 1 month after after after R
Repayable ~ (except those ~ 1month 3 months Iyear  Repayable W
on repayable but within but within but within after il it
demand  ondemand) 3 months Lyear  Syears Syears  Undated Total
WiT  EMTa BTG ERTR EMTo BB EMTo BT
HK$°000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000

RES——4+ZH=1—H At31 December 2011
B Assets
TSR Cash and short-term funds 6460203 11849802 338714 - - - - 18648729
e ER &N gt e Placements with banks and

other financial institutions - - 1585940 548,879 - - - 2134819
fitEETa Derivative financial instruments - 2,603 3,985 3719 281 118,968 - 129556

SN B A PR AR IR 2 B Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss - - 185947 371,55 1,287,779 - - 1,845,082

itz Available-for-sale securities = = = - 1,258,736 380910 126,154 1,765,800

e o Held-to-maturity securities - 1490948 193,197  3597,047 2764008 242882 - 8288082

ZEEH Advances to customers 1,767,331 2,856,018 3991951 6718317 14,051,611 11,766,665 186,591 41,338,484
[F SR B B 5 B Advances to banks and other

financial institutions - - AT 759,689 - - - 1505409

Hd Other financial assets 129496 19916 68060 157486 667 29381 (198173 517033

TR A Total financial assets 8357040 16329287 7113514 12,156,693 19363082 12,739,006 114572 76,173,194
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2012

7. WAB5BRE P - 4

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

Liquidity risk - continued
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Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity - continued

BT
THE BANK
~fiA
DR
(Mg WA ZMA ~i
W) E=WA E-F BhE
Repayable  DIMEE DAER DREE
within Repayable Repayable Repayable AT
il et 1 month after after after it
Repayable  (exceptthose  1month 3months  Iyear Repayable  fENIf
on repayable  but within  but within but within after A s
demand  ondemand) 3 months Lyear  Syears Syears  Undated Total
BT BB BNTR EWTL BETRE BTG ENTIC EWTR
HK$'000  HK$000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000 HKS000
RZB——%+ZH=1—H At 31 December 2011
fift Liabilities
5 T 5 B 3 D 5 Deposits and balances of banks
and other financial institutions 18,820 998,016 70,000 - - - - 1,086,836
T T i 2 B Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements - - 137940 282712 - - - 420652
ZRER Deposits from customers NS 448399 1247213 4489832 714776 = - 64815582
T Certficates of deposit - 99948 79844 1265770 100,000 - - 1545562
it eMIH Derivative financial instruments - 4097 21364 25606 184459 24,170 265,696
fEEEA Loan capitl - - - - - 18515 - 185,15
Hitr e R AR Other financial liabilities 496,177 553364 110741 S85M4 2538 = - 121334
Sl it Total financial liabilities 23390359 26143824 12673100 612243 1001773 1876323 - 71207815
TR - R I £ A Net position - total financial
assets and liabilities (15033319)  (9814337) (5559.588) 6034259 18361309 10862683 114572 4965379
Tk R - Of which certificates of
deposit included in:
HEHMAZE% Held-to-maturity securities - 931 12340 661043 1850 - - 157104
AR Of which deb securities
included in:
AT R AR B SRl Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
- SRR AT - Designated at fair value - - 1M LSS 1281779 - - 18458
Wt Available-for-sale securities = = = - 1258736 380910 - 1,639,646
R Held-to-maturity securities S LA90948 193197 3597047 2764008 242882 - 828808
- 1490948 379144 3968603 5310523 623792 - 11,713,010
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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7. VSRR B -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Except as detailed in the following table, the directors of the Group and
the Bank consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.
Sl Ry
THE GROUP AND THE BANK
LT AR
Carrying value Fair value
2012 2011 2012 2011
T EWTe  EWTe ERT
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$000 HK$’000
Financial assets
- Held-to-maturity securities 9,600,020 8,288,082 9,634,003 8,279,329

Financial liabilities
- Loan capital 1,898,957 1,852,153 1,927,742 1,715,830

The fair value of listed securities is determined with reference to quoted
market bid price from relevant stock exchange.

The fair values of convertible bonds and structured products designated as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, debt securities classified
as available-for-sale securities, held-to-maturity securities and loan capital
are calculated based on indicative prices provided by pricing service
provider, dealers, brokers and other service providers. Valuation models
are used to substantiate the fair value of the debt securities. Inputs to
valuation models are determined from observable market data, wherever
possible.

The fair value of derivative financial instruments is calculated using quoted
prices. Where such prices are not available, the derivatives are measured
using quoted forward exchange rates or the present value of future cash
flows estimated and discounted based on the applicable yield curves derived
from quoted interest rates, as appropriate.

The fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding
derivative financial instruments) is determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

Fair value measurements recognised in the statements of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are
measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1
to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

e Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
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7. VSRR P -
FEMBHIR DL PR Y 23 PG it - 4

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

Fair value measurements recognised in the statements of financial

o B AON A PE R 4R B BR
55— RN i & RRE Z 5 T
LB (HIERS) sl (JITHfERS
3 HY) 1S Y B 2 o £ e A il
HY A BORHS H Y 2 P E G -

o IO A TR R RS
DAAS wy B8 v 85 Bk 2 (IR Y B
4 B B I v i A B BB (ST

position - continued

* Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other
than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived

from prices).

e Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation
techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

B2 A2 AL R B 15 i
i 2 Af o L
THE GROUP
ARSI E
Fair value hierarchy
H-g BZHR B o]
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BB EWETe  BBETx BBTI
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
REF—_41ZH=1—H At 31 December 2012
FHEEE G SR Financial assets held for trading 261 = = 261
TRE DTSR Financial assets designated at
BN SR 2 M o2 <55l 1 fair value through profit or loss - 794,048 419,101 1,213,149
A Available-for-sale securities 193,067 3,990,868 2,711 4,186,646
JEHEBRm Y A SR Derivative financial assets not
used for hedging - 21,146 - 21,146
FTERRh A A7 4 B Derivative financial assets used
for hedging - 166,765 - 166,765
T T8 i 2 < £ Derivative financial liabilities
not used for hedging - (118,154) - (118,154)
FEESEF I 7 2 2 2 Derivative financial liabilities
used for hedging - (130,502) - (130,502)
B Total 193,328 4,724,171 421812 5,339,311
iy
THE BANK
PRRRE IR
Fair value hierarchy
b3 e R | o]
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BB EHETE  BBTr  BBTI
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
R+ A=1—H At 31 December 2012
R TS EE}Si Financial assets designated at
= ﬁ]%?ﬁﬁﬂﬁ;ﬁﬁﬂ!ﬁﬁ fair value through profit or loss - 794,048 419,101 1,213,149
it kS Available-for-sale securities 104,908 3,990,868 2711 4,098,487
o e T BH AT 4 el Derivative financial assets not
Il used for hedging = 21,146 = 21,146
IFIQV FTERRh A A7 4 B Derivative financial assets used
I" | o for hedging - 166,765 - 166,765
n e T SBh A7 4 S L £ Derivative financial liabilities
[ not used for hedging - (118,154) - (118,154)
g JEPE SR AT 4 <l L Derivative financial liabilities
o used for hedging - (130,502) - (130,502)
t‘g k| Total 104,908 4,724,171 421,812 5,250,891
L
4og
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HWE_F - ZH=E1—HILFE

for the year ended 31 December 2012

7. R RS L - 7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

eI BHR DL P RERR I 23 AT B - 51 Fair value measurements recognised in the statements of financial
position - continued

gL
THE GROUP
ARRES I E T
Fair value hierarchy
BHA BTN EEE B
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

BT T EBTE BT
HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$000

R_F——+ - A=1—H At 31 December 2011
FHEPEHE M SR Financial assets held for trading 307 - - 307
R AR R Financial assets designated at
LN = bl oy fair value through profit or loss - 1427635 417,647 1845282
W 2 Available-for-sale securities 173,786 1,638,649 1,076 1,813,511
JERTERE AT A SR Derivative financial assets not
used for hedging - 13,501 - 13,501
PSS it fiy S i Derivative financial assets used
for hedging - 116,055 - 116,055
JE T SBh A 4 S 1 £ Derivative financial liabilities
not used for hedging - (203,110) - (203,110)
JUPEBR AT 4 S £ % Derivative financial liabilities
used for hedging - (62,586) - (62,586)
ok Total 174093 2,930,144 418,723 3,522,960
i)
THE BANK
[ARREESE S
Fair value hierarchy
G4 I et | ki
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BB #HETE  BEBTL BBETI
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
Ro%——+ZH=1+—H At 31 December 2011
R TETIE Financial assets designated at
B A R 2 <l fair value through profit or loss - 1427635 417647 1845282
W2 S Available-for-sale securities 97,069 1,638,649 1,076 1,736,794
TR TR iy 4 B Derivative financial assets not
used for hedging - 13,501 - 13,501
RIS Wy 4 B Derivative financial assets used
for hedging - 116,055 - 116,055
T 1E B A A S L Derivative financial liabilities
not used for hedging - (203,110) - (203,110)
FHPESS Wity 4 5 2 £ Derivative financial liabilities
used for hedging - (62,586) - (62,586)
o Total 97,069 2,930,144 418723 3445936

A BRI o SE— AR5 40 There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 in both years.
T TR M52 A o8 2R A RS o
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for the year ended 31 December 2012

7. Y5 BE PR - 7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
e BN DR P RERE I A R - 41 Fair value measurements recognised in the statements of financial

B A 1 o = AR 23 P e A Y
AT

position - continued

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial assets

EdE S
THE GROUP AND THE BANK
R TR
LN
ZEMEE e
Financial assets Ziak
designated at  Available-
fair value through for-sale aam
profit or loss securities Total
#HETIe BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000  HK$°000
RZF——i—H—H&k Balance at 1 January 2011 305,385 41,328 346,713
TRE BRI I RERR < A Total net losses recognised in
consolidated income statement (42,430) - (42,430)
TR i PO R o2 i R 0 Total net losses recognised
in the revaluation reserve — (1,670) (1,670)
170 | Purchases 155,336 - 155336
i/ i Matured / disposals = (38,582)  (38,582)
SR 2 B2 Foreign exchange rate movements (644) - (644)
REZ——+ A= HAR Balance at 31 December 2011 417,647 1,076 418,723
T A IR PO 2 R AR Total net gains recognised in
consolidated income statement 47,759 - 47,759
TRt ke P 2 5 1 Total net gains recognised
in the revaluation reserve - 1,635 1,635
e Purchases - - -
I/ s Matured / disposals (45,506) = (45,506)
AR =R 2 Sy Foreign exchange rate movements (799) - (799)
REZ-Z8FAZ - HAR Balance at 31 December 2012 419,101 2,711 421,812
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HWE_F - ZH=E1—HILFE
for the year ended 31 December 2012

7. VS R B -

FEMBHIRDLR PR 2 Tl Gt A - 4

70 £ B R 3 1 5% 5 1 {1 0 IR R 0%
T 55 1 5% 16 B w91 5% 1Y G 5 BB
FEE o B RBR Al A DL 1 AR
TR 55 = A 9 I 52 3 LA A T —
INERGE (0.5%) (ZF——4F : 0.5%) °
IH A B 3 A1 5 8 0 > o — 1
B 2 {IR I e i 2 5 PR A5 ] R AR
Bk > ME A ARER R AT
WA BIR Dl SR R o

A EAE AR AR IR Y I 2 A0 B I A B
e AR » Hoh R 47,759,000 70 Y
(ZF——4F : % 42,430,0007C 5 18)
TR WG RMARFHENEE o
T e I A EE IR B R R A
e 32 0 EAE TR T 9 A 8 2 R o2 < il
THZFRF S -

A AR A A TR P T 2 4 R R
R R A > Hoh dE T 1,635,000 7T
B (ZF——4 : ## 1,670,000 &
W) S B S IR AT SRR A ) ik

7.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

Fair value measurements recognised in the statements of financial
position - continued

The majority of the Group's investments are valued based on quoted market
information or observable market data. A small percentage, 0.5% (2011:
0.5%), of total assets recorded at fair value, are based on estimates and
recorded as Level 3 investments. Whilst such valuations are sensitive to
estimates, it is believed that changing one or more of the assumptions to
reasonably possible alternative assumptions would not have a big impact

on the Group's and Bank's financial positions.

Of the total net gains or losses for the year included in consolidated income
statement, HK$47,759,000 gains (2011: HK$42,430,000 losses) are related
to these investments held at the end of the reporting period. Fair value
gains or losses of these investments are included in net gains on financial

instruments at fair value through profit or loss.

Of the total net gains or losses for the year included in other comprehensive
income, an amount of HK$1,635,000 gains (2011: HK$1,670,000 losses)

relate to available-for-sale securities held at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2012

8. HFIEIBA 8. NET INTEREST INCOME
2012 2011
WWTIE T
HK$°000 HK$°000
FIS A Interest income
FETBOR [7] 3 B HoAth BB B Balances and placements with banks
A5 KK I and other financial institutions 317,724 281,526
SR Investments in securities 293,085 260,547
HRREE Loans and advances 890,160 797,409
RS8R0 Interest rate swaps 62,851 30,507
1,563,820 1,369,989
FE X Interest expense
[l 38 e 5 )5 2 Ak B 4 B Deposits and balances from banks
and customers (588,238) (449,237)
TR R T S 2 Bl e Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements (4,640) (4,084)
a2 G Certificates of deposit (31,417) (7,126)
BTHEEAR Loan capital in issue (66,910) (73,635)
RS2 Interest rate swaps (35,707) (20,586)
(726,912) (554,668)
172 RIISUION Net interest income 836,908 815,321
CEt AR Included within interest income
NEAEREEe IS N Interest income on impaired
loans and advances 374 1,214
WHRETER A B R S 2 PRk B Included within interest income and interest expense are HK$1,484,940,000
FE 2 25 {8 51 IR K 5 A 3 R 2 (2011: HK$1,297,997,000) and HK$691,205,000 (201 1: HK$534,082,000)
<A 2 N B il A TS R for financial assets and financial liabilities that are not at fair value through
7 A A T 32 HY 43 T A v profit or loss, respectively.
1,484,940,0007C (=% ——4 : #EW
1,297,997,0007 ) K 691,205,000
Jo (ZF——4F : #¥ 534,082,000
- JG) e
H
H
|| | P ESHmuEREIELEHREES Included above is interest income from unlisted investments in securities
2] Z ] BIBA f s 293,085,000 TG of HK$293,085,000 (2011: HK$260,547,000).
I-l (ZF——4F : #¥ 260,547,000
2 ) o
o
e
@
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10.

FEUH BB

= GNRE 9N
A EE
{5 BB
=N
15 R %S
AR BB
HAfth

R E Nk

W B RS

T KA S A

Hrp

FE I > SR eGSR
MR ZEH > R R EE
FH 3 ol S 5 28 A B R B 3 A
R R MR 2 S A R <l A

- BB
- B

AR BRI ZTPN S Fo 4
Sl THZ RN ) /
AR RL A RN 7))

B THEIIIR B AR f iRz
B THZE R ()
- AN TEFIR R FIA
il (HfE 1)
- FRHEEEE (Wt 2)

SOFEEZ FHE A (B D
= B B A el 1 e e
Z
- B THZ G

WEE T : Wi 4E Z A5 4 1 2 T {5 M I
FIA 7 i 2 £ TR 2 i
i PO #H ) F B2 A F A5 R T
%ﬁ?jﬁ AR (57 2 1 B

Wfik2 : i A (it 3 22 Al AF 1F
HE 38 19 7 3 B 1 & 49 2
FEIE BB 185 B R 3 At
WERIHR > R =F— R
ZH L T = HEY
I GRS IGE 18

9. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

10.

Fee and commission income
Securities dealings
Credit lines
Trade finance
Credit card services
Agency services
Others

Total fee and commission income

Less: Fee and commission expense

Net fee and commission income

of which:

Net fee income, other than amounts
included in determining the effective
interest rate, arising from financial
assets or financial liabilities that are
not held for trading nor designated
at fair value through profit or loss
- fee income
- fee expenses

2012 2011
b1 T L T
HK$°000 HKS$’000
116,755 152,105
15,090 13,364
12,067 11,381
68,880 63,620
25,085 22,262
16,072 13,525
253,949 276,257
(64,584)  (58,534)
189,365 217,723
104,855 96,043
(62,511)  (57,547)
42,344 38,496

NET GAINS (LOSSES) ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS / NET GAINS
(LOSSES) ON FAIR VALUE HEDGE

Net gains (losses) on financial instruments

at fair value through profit or loss

- designated at fair value through
profit or loss (Note 1)
- held for trading (Note 2)

Net gains (losses) on fair value hedge

- net losses on hedged items attributable

to the hedged risk
- net gains on hedging instruments

Note 1:

2012 2011
EWTIE BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
(28,721)  (47.833)
86,194  (54.585)
57,473 (102,418)
(23,068) (175,030
24,268 154,351
1,200  (20,679)

The net gains (losses) on financial instruments designated at fair value

through profit or loss in both years were primarily attributable to the
changes in credit risk of the structured products and the convertible

bonds.

Note 2:

The net gains (losses) mainly related to interest rate swaps held for

trading and cross-currency interest rate swap held for trading. Details
of the outstanding contracts as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 are set

out in note 18.
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for the year ended 31 December 2012

11. HAehEZEBA

JBe A
- B
- JE b &
BV IE 52 5 B A1 5 A0 e 15 i 15 2

BBV B A BH

- PIsE

BB

PRASHIRLBIA

PRZR M B <8 52 H iz O B R PR S 1

FLAbERATHRRS e A
i BT sk B Y 2K % £ 7 [l i
atBlm ez B (k)

Hfh

MiaE: R_F——HF=ZH 1N
H > K817 E i B F S5
H > FERIRES (TR
7)) BEEA S FFEA R
H {15 [ 57 SR T BE IR AR 2K
1125 25 A B A8 7 ot (T 456 A
s 1) 7% 7T ladk (Tlgiada) o
RG> AIERA T HF
FRIRE 5 2 RS
# > AT 15 B A 1E # A
i W Il 2 J R = FFEILAE
RZF—-FE(BUHFHE
ZEFNER ZF—FIF
HEMBREXEAN TR
2 15 fF % [l JE G B
% HE ) #EFE BT B R K IR
15 27 [ Ji it B & & # & 4E
T 234,632,000 JT °

11. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Dividend income
- Listed investments
- Unlisted investments
Net exchange gains and net gains
from foreign currency contracts
Gross rents from investment properties
Less: Outgoings
Net rental income
Safe deposit box rentals
Insurance underwriting premium
less claims and commission expense
Other banking services income
Recovery of amounts previously
written-off in relation to
Minibonds Repurchase Scheme (Note)
Others

2012 2011
WWTE T
HK$°000  HK$’000
6,214 6,128
4,585 3,692
108,228 54,168
16,447 14,424
(1,206) (1,133)
15,241 13,291
36,136 32,181
18,100 11,372
45,117 44,154

- 234,632

4,214 5,237
237,835 404,855

Note: The Bank announced on 28 March 2011 that it has entered into an

agreement (“Agreement”) with the Lehman Brothers, the trustee

and the receiver for the Lehman Brothers Minibonds

(“Minibonds”), and fifteen other distributing banks in relation to

the recovery of the Minibonds’ underlying collateral (“Collateral”).

Pursuant to the Agreement, the Bank received recoveries of amounts

previously written-off in the years 2009 and 2010 (included in

“Expenses relating to Minibonds Repurchase Scheme” in the

consolidated financial statements for the years 2009 and 2010) from

the Collateral during the period, net of ex-gratia payments to
customers who held the Minibonds, amounting to HK$234,632,000.
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12. H3EH 12. OPERATING EXPENSES
2012 2011
BT BT
HK$°000 HKS$’000
% B <2 Auditor’s remuneration 4,304 4,141
NBEEH (BREEFENE) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
-HELRHMERH - Salaries and other costs 423,522 401,432
- IR SR - S R - Retirement benefits scheme contributions 30,846 28,672
PN - Y Total staff costs 454,368 430,104
e Depreciation 59,209 54,742
FEAT U 4 2 B Release of prepaid lease payments for land 66 66
iThk B skt > Premises and equipment expenses,
P8 [ AT L HIH S 2 B excluding depreciation / release of
B4 - prepaid lease payments for land:
- VRS N A - Rentals and rates for premises 44,030 47,540 175
- HAfth - Others 26,367 21,085
HEELH Other operating expenses 200,247 215,877
788,591 773,555
B UL BT o due R < S H 2y T U Included in the premises and equipment expenses are minimum lease
37,220,000 J& (=% — —4F : H ¥ payments under operating lease of HK$37,220,000 (2011: HK$41,243,000).
41,243,000 7G) EL AR AT HE K i
S o
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for the year ended 31 December 2012

13. #F > (TR EEH  13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS
AT SER P ASERA T HE R AT The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors and the chief executive
AR FWARA T of the Bank were as follows:
2012 2011
KR RIREA
HiEk il L[5S ek FHE e
HEHN Contribution A Contribution
Salaries % to retirement Salaries  FHHMEE to retirement
#1% andother Discretionary  benefits 444 #% andother Discretionary  benefits 4%
Fees  benefits bouns scheme  Total Fees  benefits bouns scheme  Total
BT BT WWTC BTG BT BT EBTa EWT ERTR BT
HK$°000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$000  HK$'000  HK$000 HK$000
(Wit Note 2) (Wi Note 2)
HHARPRTRAER Executive Directors and
Chief Executive
B Liu Lit Mo 250 454 k1 a m 250 43 34 41 758
B (Wt 1) Liu Lit Chi (Note 1) 150 7515 280 38 8263 150 6076 20 255 601
HER Lau Wai Man 150 238 195 81 2904 150 2,205 185 209 2759
B Don Tit Shing Liu 150 433 39 5 5011 150 499 329 392 5861
Bifgs Wilfred Chun Ning Liu 150 2,047 135 161 249 150 213 130 154 2566
K Tsang Chiu Wing 150 2,186 182 A5 20 150 2,059 mn W0 258
(R=B—ZH4ZH (resigned as Executive
Z+—HEHE A% EHESH)  Director on 31 December
2012)
Fris Wong Har Kar 150 2,130 180 205 2,665 150 1,994 170 182 2,496
(A =%F—-—%+=H (resigned as Executive - - - = e — -—
=t —HEHEAHHEHS)  Director on 31 December
2012)
HRARBRTB R Total Executive Directors’ and
176 Fi Chief Executive’s
emoluments 1,150 20,997 1,335 1,566 25,048 1150 19,889 1,40 1,446 23725
BT Non-executive Directors - - - - - I
544 He Jiale 104 - = - 104 = - - - _
(R=F—-_84A (appointed as Non-executive
T ZHBRER Director on 22 May 2012)
FHEHHH)
Bl Andrew Liu 170 B - - 19 150 Wi = -
(R=%-"8+ZH (resigned as Non-executive
=t—HEHEA Director on 31 December
TR 2012)
B — Hidekazu Horikoshi 68 - - - 68 = - - - _
(RZF—-"EEAHAH  (appointed as Non-executive
BERERIERHES) Director on § August 2012)
PRSI Christopher Kwun Shing Liu 170 - - - 150 = = = 150
i Alfred Cheuk Yu Chow 250 - - -2 200 = = )]
HEH Meng Qinghui 170 - - - m 150 - = - 150
T Wang Xiaoming 66 = = = 66 150 - _ _ 150
(R=F—-—H%A (resigned as Non-executive
T ZHEHER Director on 22 May 2012)
FEHHS)
RFHR Hidemitsu Otsuka 102 - = = 102 150 = = = 150
(R=B—-"HNANH  (resigned as Non-executive ~ — — - - — —_— —
AR RS Director on § August 2012)
=3 R LR Total Non-executive
H Directors’ emoluments 1,100 23 - - L3 950 7 - - 971
H A IVE BT L Independent Non-executive - - - - T - e —
| Directors
| WaE Robin Yau Hing Chan 250 - - -2 200 = = - 200
(201 bliE 33 Timothy George Freshwater 250 80 - - 30 200 80 - - 280
I (RZF-ZAHAH  (redesignated as Independent
u WEBEAEHFESE)  Non-executive Director
5] on 8 August 2012)
g (= Wanchai Chiranakhorn 250 - = = 250 200 - _ _ 200
& HEA Cheng Yok Wo 20 - - ) 20 . : -
i B Andrew Chiu Cheung Ma 20 - - R - - -
:;;E PR BASMAA Total Independent - — e — —_— —
i Non-executive Directors’
emoluments 25 8 - T R R - -
i Total 3500 21,100 1,335 1,566 27,501 3,100 19,99 1,40 1,446 25782
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13.

14.
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13.

14.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS - continued

Note 1: Being the Bank’s Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer.

Note 2: The discretionary bonus is determined by reference to the individual
performance of the directors and approved by the Remuneration Committee.

The five highest paid individuals in the Group in 2012 and 2011 were all directors
of the Bank and details of their emoluments are included above. No directors nor
the chief executive waived any emoluments in the years ended 31 December
2012 and 31 December 2011.

TAXATION
2012 2011
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000
The tax charge comprises:
Hong Kong Profits Tax
- Current year 84,641 99,708
- Over provision in prior years (229) (299)
84,412 99,409
Overseas taxation
- Current year 16,815 17,983
- Over provision in prior years 402) (418)
Deferred tax (Note 33) 2,220 (10,038)
103,045 106,936

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) of the

estimated assessable profit for the year.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing

in the relevant jurisdictions.
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14. BiIE- &
TN 5 [ 17 £ 5 4 2 TR v I 0 1 2 )
SEHEE 2 BUE Y 2 BHRMR ¢
Bt i S A

AR Z R BB R 2178
A (ZF——F gz tr

Hih) stz B
P A Ve 88 2 il 2 B A o2 BB 5
AN 2 BERS 5
PRI Z B R
TR L Il 8 22

A L i ] 925 A5 o S it A8 5 o
S B o AT SRS T B R
BUBs s

Hfth

AN R ]

15. 2

AN EER RS 2o IR B 2 IS

ZR-TAREET
HIBEER0. 1176 (2 ——4 :
"R E
IR 0.15 70)

TR R
T 0.35 70 (ZF——4F ¢
TR BPEERY
A 0.35 70)

O R R R BN R
JBE 5 2 g B HE W 0.35 90 0 & 3t
5 152,250,000 JG (=B ——4F :
W% 0.35 70 > A ILHER 152,250,000
J6) » SR TR BB HR R G b
JBEERALA% o

14.

15.

TAXATION - continued

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the Group’s profit before

taxation per the consolidated income statement as follows:

Profit before taxation

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of
16.5% (2011: 16.5%)

Tax effect of share of profits of associates

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax
purpose

Over provision in prior years

Effect of different tax rates of

subsidiaries and branches
operating in other jurisdictions

Others

Tax charge for the year

DIVIDENDS

Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year:

2012 Interim - HK$0.11
(2011: 2011 Interim - HK$0.15)
per share

2011 Final - HK$0.35
(2011: 2010 Final - HK$0.35)
per share

2012 2011
EWTIE  EBBT
HK$°000  HK$’000
646,385 667,652
106,654 110,163
(5,945) (2.979)

64 3,610
(4,881) (3.933)
(631) (717)
5,350 1,630
2,434 (838)
103,045 106,936
2012 2011
EWT  EWTC
HK$°000  HK$’000
47,850 65.250
152,250 152,250
200,100 217,500

The final dividend of HK$0.35 per share, totalling HK$152,250,000,
in respect of the current financial year (2011: HK$0.35 per share, totalling
HK$152,250,000) has been proposed by the directors and is subject to
approval by the shareholders in the next annual general meeting.
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17.

18.

TR A - BeAN

FEREIEA TG R 2 51 ST AR B AR ER 1T
B A EAE B A % 543,340,000 7
(ZF——5 : ##560,716,000 7T)
T iR # AN E # 1T 435,000,000 %
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16.

17.

18.

EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable
to owners of the Bank of HK$543,340,000 (2011: HK$560,716,000) and
on 435,000,000 (2011: 435,000,000) ordinary shares in issue during the
year.

No dilution earnings per share is presented as no potential ordinary shares
were in issue for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: nil).

CASH AND SHORT-TERM FUNDS
HH FiiZh)
THE GROUP THE BANK
2012 2011 2012 2011
BT T EBTx BT
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000
Cash and balances with banks
and other financial institutions 6,060,810 6,393,092 6,050,407 6,382,545
Money at call and short notice ~ 10,472,554 8,717,815 10,472,554 8,717,815
Exchange fund bills 798,513 3,548,369 798,513 3,548,369
17,331,877 18,659,276 ~ 17,321,474 18,648,729
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
SR BT
THE GROUP AND THE BANK
2012 2011
BT BT
YESH Fair values 2E8H Fair values

Notional HiE fifit

amount Assets  Liabilities
T BT BT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

Notional Hi fifit

amount  Assets Liabilities
BT BT M
HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
Derivatives held for trading

- Foreign currency forward
contracts 6,037,758 16,584 21,380 1,318,444 8,181 5,783
- Interest rate swaps 796,280 4,562 95192 1,359,407 5320 190,608
- Cross-currency interest
rate swap 36,040 - 1,582 40,360 - 6,719
Derivatives designated
as hedging instruments
- Interest rate swaps 5,286,864 166,765 120,792 3,161,088 116,055 51,907
- Cross-currency interest
rate swaps 233,306 - 9,710 233,306 - 10,679
187,911 248,656 129,556 265,696

The currencies of foreign currency forward buy contracts as at 31 December
2012 mainly comprise Hong Kong dollars and Australian dollars
(2011: Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and Australian dollars), and
the currencies in the forward sale contracts mainly comprise Renminbi
and United States dollars (2011: Renminbi and United States dollars).
As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, all of these contracts have a settlement
date within one year from the end of the reporting period.
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18. Gl L E - 5 18. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
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FHEE B DR IR 300 S 40 B 5 5
RIS AT RIS B0 H 2 — 2 )\ 5
(ZF——%: ~EAF)

RoB—-"ER_F—-—F+2H
=+ —H > FHFEE R R
BRI 43S AL 796,280,000 7T
(ZF——4  ##1,359,407,000 7T ) »
Hh4HRSHEIER 60,000,000 7T
(=% ——14F  #160,000,000 7C) 2
0 R 2R R e AR R A A
BT 4HSHEHLEN 736,280,000 7T
(ZF——45  E1#1,299,407,000 7C) %
[ 5 R ZR A PR B A 2R [l B 47 o

REZF—-ZFRZF—-—FF A=
—H > FHEEE R AE S AR R
A2 TR B A SR B R I O I I
BONSETE I &4

17 2 T Lo b oz RS B R
JL R < BUR MR A v TSR BID B
19 CHTE (B RRADY SHEAT -

KA
ks

HE A AR M A ZHG S
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at {77 Gt SN o M0 3 A B A S
5 2 RS > HE A 2 Z B 5 5
WZBUA BRI o 21975
ARGERT =2 A B EROR I 2% o
S AR ) BEAE B A0 5 T BB e
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i T H R MR S8 RARE £
DA BB IR D25 MR

17 28 <5 LA 2 S AN i
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The remaining maturity of interest rate swaps and cross-currency interest
rate swap held for trading ranged from 1 to 8 years (2011: 1 to 9 years).

Of the interest rate swaps held for trading with a notional amount
of HK$796,280,000 (2011: HK$1,359,407,000) as at 31 December 2012
and 2011, the notional amount of HK$60,000,000 (201 1: HK$60,000,000)
was floating-to-fixed rate swaps, the remaining notional amount of
HK$736,280,000 (2011: HK$1,299,407,000) was fixed-to-floating rate
swaps.

The cross-currency interest rate swap held for trading as at 31 December
2012 and 2011 was a floating-to-floating rate swap paying Japanese yen
receiving United States dollars.

The replacement costs and credit risk weighted amounts of derivative
exposures calculated based on the Banking (Capital) Rules of the Hong
Kong Banking Ordinance are as follows:

HR BT
THE GROUP AND THE BANK
2012 2011
IR R INERE R
o o5

LEEW  BEWA Creditrik  AEEH  BEWAF Creditrisk
Notional Replacement  weighted  Notional Replacement  weighted
amount cost  amount  amount cost  amount

T EBTL EWTa EWTa BT #WTx
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000 HKS$000

Exchange rate contracts 6,307,104 16,584 22,865 1,592,110 8,181 14,662
Interest rate contracts 6,083,144 171,327 53978 4,520,495 121,375 38,601
187911 76,843 129,556 53,263

Replacement cost is the cost which would be incurred by the Group if it
was required to enter into another contract to replace the existing transaction
or existing contract with another counterparty with substantially the same
economic consequences for the Group and is calculated by marking-to-
market the existing transaction or contract. If the resultant value is positive
for the Group, the replacement cost shall be the resultant value of the
existing transaction or existing contract. If the resultant value is negative
for the Group, the replacement cost shall be zero. Replacement cost is a
close approximation of the credit risk for these contracts at the end of the
reporting period.

The derivative financial instruments including exchange rate contracts and
interest rate contracts have been recognised in the statements of financial
position at fair value.

The fair values of the derivative financial instruments do not take into
account the effect of any bilateral netting agreement.



oG W OB W R Z W GE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_F—-_F A= —HILEE
for the year ended 31 December 2012

18. fiEEM T H - 5

WELE R R BT 2 T B

AN A R A A R s B W
R & A 2o S AR B > DI
Hr ke 2 55 2 A T )
RZF—-F+ZH=1+—H B
ik P 2 {5 I R v s v
3,990,868,000 7T (=% ——4 : jh
1,638,649,0007G) © H [¥)72 BRI 24
fE2E) i 51 32\ b > 5 R E i
e ] 5 ) R i 2 1 R 238l ] s )
TP EN R 2 o Be R R P A4
5 15 W ) AR b 0 2 T LA I 1 D
TR BTG > G2 S8
Jig 8 i D 2R ) A B s R 3R
FEAAE S AR T H o 5k
PR AR ~ B EWN R &R
BB AHNRGREH AT 4F -

REF—-"HR_F——41H
= —HEEDRE > FaaA FEEE R
A6 5t 38 3o R A SR A ) 15| B0 2 A
sk > B2 o BN 2 A FE
RS 2 v 25,349,000 76 (—F——
RS s R 59,347,000 0) AR
AR 2 B R 2
25,759,000 76 (= ——4F : iRl
W 50,107,000 70) B2 5 6 R FR 45100
BRI A TAE I REF 25 W8 478,000 JT
(ZF——4 : A0 8,354,000
7o) o BRAREAERIREN o
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vt 2y i R R 0] 0 S oo B AR B
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18. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair value hedge of fixed-rate bonds

The Group designates certain interest rate swaps and cross-currency interest rate
swaps as fair value hedges of the fair value of available-for-sale debt securities
with carrying amounts of HK$3,990,868,000 (2011: HK$1,638,649,000) as at
31 December 2012. The purpose is to minimise its exposure to fair value changes
of its fixed-rate bonds by swapping these fixed-rate bonds from fixed rates to
floating rates. The interest rate swaps and cross-currency interest rate swaps and
the corresponding fixed-rate bonds have the same terms and management of the
Group considers that the interest rate swaps and cross-currency interest rate swaps
are highly effective hedging instruments. The remaining maturity of these interest
rate swaps, cross-currency interest rate swaps and debt securities ranged from 2 to
10 years.

During the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, the above fair value hedges
were effective in hedging the fair value exposures to interest rate movements and
as a result, both the gains in fair value of the bonds of HK$25,349,000 (2011:
gains of HK$59,347,000) and losses in fair value of the interest rate swaps of
HK$25,759,000 (2011: losses of HK$50,107,000) and gains in fair value of
cross-currency interest rate swaps of HK$478,000 (2011: losses of
HK$8,354,000) were included in the consolidated income statement.

Fair value hedge of subordinated note issued

The Group designates an interest rate swap as fair value hedge of the fair value
change of the interest rate movement of the US$225 million subordinated note
issued (see note 30 for details). The purpose is to minimise its exposure to fair
value changes of its fixed-rate note by swapping fixed-rate note from fixed rates
to floating rates. The interest rate swap and the hedged subordinated note have
the same terms and management of the Group considers that the interest rate swap
is a highly effective hedging instrument.

The hedge was effective in hedging the fair value exposure to interest rate
movements and as a result, both the increase in fair value of the note of
HK$48,417,000 (2011: increase in fair value of HK$234,377,000) and gains
in fair value of the interest rate swap of HK$49,549,000 (2011: gains of
HK$212,812,000) were included in the consolidated income statement.
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19. @7 EE 19. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES
G ;T
THE GROUP THE BANK
BATER HATHARY
JIA AN 2 SR JIA e
Financial assets at Financial assets at
fair value through fair value through
profit or loss profit or loss
ke R el Wik R
bfE DVEAE  ZEF HZER fifE DVEAE  ZER R
BB Designated  Available-  Held-to- HEMIE Designated Available-  Held-to-
Held for at  forsale maturity #%  Held for at  for-sale  maturity g

frading  fair value  securities securities Total ~ trading fair value securities securities Total

AU S DT L SO L 3 DTN L T L U DT L DT S VT L T
HKS000  HES'000 HK$O0) HK$'000 HKS00 HKS000  HKS'000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000

Zg-Cf 212
R : Equity securities:
Filk L Listed in Hong Kong 21 - I8 - 184 - - 9588 - 9583
L Listed ovrseas - L - s - - s -
261 - 193067 - 19338 = - 104908 - 104908
F L Unlisted - - 3610 - 360 - -6 - 3164
261 - mm - 0B : - 136,550 - 136550
B Debt securities: - -
fia Cerificates of deposit = = - 369332 36933 = = - 36933 369331
ARTH Structured products - 40 = - 41901 - 40 - - 419,101
s Convertible bonds - 794048 = - 4048 - o408 = - 94048
HufEH RS Other debt securities
- L - Unlisted - - 3993540 5906699 9,900,239 - - 3993540 5,906,699 9,900,239
- L3149 3993540 9,600,020 14,806,709 : 113,149 3993540 9,600,020 14,806,709
LR Total: - -
#i Lifi Listed in Hong Kong 261 - 18412 - 18 - - 9583 - 0585
Hsh L Listed overseas = - 905 - 9058 - - 905 - 905
L Unlisted - LB 409150 9600020 14842319 (- L3 405182 960000 14838351
261 123149 4220217 9600020 15,035,647 - 121349 4,130,090 9,600,020 14943259
Ll Market value of - =
listed securities:
i Lili Listed in Hong Kong 261 - 180 - 184 = - 9585 - 95853
L Listedoverseas - - s S - W% - W%
21 - 193067 - 133 - - 104908 - 104908
BT AR As analysed by - =
issuing entities:
BRI e Central government
and central banks - - - 3382 3,382 - - - 3,382 3,382
AR Public sector entties = - 56016 196401 252417 = - S6016 19401 252417
EEGELUIE T Banks and other
financial institutions 43 419001 353885 7809345 8,582,374 - 419001 35618 7809345 8554064
e ] Corporate entities A8 A8 3807796 1,590,892 6,192,954 - TOAMS 341904 13590892 6,132,844
il Others - - 450 - 45 - = 552 = 55
61 1213149 4220017 9,600,020 15,035,647 - 123,49 413009 9,600,020 14943259
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES - continued

Ay
THE GROUP THE BANK

HFIARY HVEIIE,

TINB g N L

Financial assets at Financial assets at

fair value through fair value through

profit or loss profit or loss

el WithE  pEE fek Wik R

e NTHOIE s HeEs pif AR vEF  HZER
HEME  Designated  Available-  Held-to- HEME Designated Available-  Held-to-
Held for at  forsale maturity HH  Heldfor at  forsale  maturity o

trading  fair value  securities ~securities Total ~ trading fair value securities ~securities Total

Ty DT g T L DTN L DTN L Ty DT L T Ly T .y T
HES'000  HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HKS000 HKS'000

2011
Equity securities:
Listed in Hong Kong 307 - 166834 - 167041 - - 0117 - 017
Listed overseas _= - 6,952 - 6,952 - - 6,952 - 6,952
307 - 1713786 - 174093 - - 97,069 - 97,069
Unlisted _= - 33093 - 33083 = - 29085 - 29085
307 - 206839 - 20746 = - 106,154 - 126,154
Debt securities: - -
Certificates of deposit - - - 157144 1571244 - - - 157144 1,571,244
Structured products - 417,647 - - 417 - 417,647 - - 47,647
Convertible bonds - 1427635 - - 1427635 - 1427635 - - 1427635
Other debt securities
- Unlisted - - 1639646 6,716,838 8356484 - - 1,639,646 6,716,838 8,356,484
: 1845280 1,639,646 8,288,082 11,773,010 : 1,845,282 1,639,646 8,288,082 11,773,010
Total: - -
Listed in Hong Kong 307 - 166834 - 167041 - - 0117 - 907
Listed overseas - - 6,952 - 6,952 - - 6,952 - 6,952
Unlisted - L3528 1672699 8,288,082 11,806,063 - L3458 168731 8,288,082 11,802,095
307 1845080 1846485 8.288,082 11,980,156 - 1845280 1765800 8,288,082 11,899,164
Market value of - -
listed securities:
Listed in Hong Kong 307 - 166,834 - 167,141 - - 0L -0
Listed overseas - - 6,952 - 6,952 - - 6,952 - 6,952
n T ) )
As analysed by - -
issuing entities:
Central government
and central banks - - - 130797 130,797 - - - 130797 130,797
Public sector entities - - 56566 185,187 241753 - - 56566 185,187 241753
Banks and other
financial institutions 58 417647 255574 6823243 7496522 - 46T 234048 6823243 7474938
Corporate entities 219 1427635 1529784 1148855 4,106,523 - 147035 1474593 1148855 4,051,083
Others = - 4,561 - 4,561 - - 593 - 593
307 1,845,280 1,846,485 8,288,082 11,980,156 - 1,845,282 1,765,800 8,288,082 11,899,164
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19. W HEEHE - 4l 19. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES - continued

=
#
#
i
|
B
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| |
i’
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T
e
®

NG B R AN SRAT A W o0 JE A T L HH
11 < L L P I I A R 5 4 A A R
TR IRAEIE 2 43 B 2 v 44,879,000
J6 (ZH——4F : ¥ 65,583,000 70)
B ¥ 16,012,000 7& (% ——4F :

36,262,000 7T) ©

R TE T H P A 419,101,000 78
(ZFH——14F : ## 372,141,000 J0)
s S EERLE (ZF——4
i 45,506,000 7C ) TR SH SR o
ARG R AR SRAT R R A S B 8
PR > HEEAE B i = H W
BT BN 3%E2.0%AR% >
WA — B — AR H— R
BaMHESERE (R T4 K
ZHF—-—#+A=Z+—H > B
M fE B A1 L) Al EH A
B4 [GEETERN R T E R
NG R AN BT IR I RS o AR BRI
R 7R S8R4T T K5 75 18 050 8 ZE Bk s
THEYE > WRZF—ZFEH o R
FH > HROARSEREITIGER
(R=F——H+ZH=+—H>
BUB(E B AL) - R HIEEE
BLETTE B N TR IR B o

A5 P R AR BRAT R R R 0 R A
kA TR b AR S DU AR
U1 0k 0 PR 2 1 > 3 T 2
35,571,000 70 ( =% ——4 : g
32,974,000 jG) e #E# 31,603,000 JG
(=% ——14F : ## 29,006,000 JG) °
F e AT 57 W0 A TEAR T A ©

KRBT 00 41T R AW
17,054,000 7¢ ( =% — —4F : i
15,534,0007%) ¥R F H 2 2
A JE RN BB SE R
(California Financial Code) Z#HE »
B B A B AR fR e R o

H B W R AT BT B v A\ R LA
(T o) AT A R R BB H
B R 2 AR A v Y 3,382,000 T
(ZF——4F : ¥ 130,797,000 7G) ©

For the equity securities classified as available-for-sale financial instruments,
impairment losses accumulated through the years of HK$44,879,000 (2011:
HK$65,583,000) and HK$16,012,000 (2011: HK$36,262,000) have been provided
by the Group and the Bank respectively.

Included in structured products are credit linked notes of HK$419,101,000 (2011:
HK$372,141,000) and fund linked note of nil (2011: HK$45,506,000). The credit
linked notes held by the Group and the Bank bear three-month LIBOR with spreads
ranging from 1.3% to 2.0% per annum and maturity dates ranging from 2015 to
2016. The note issuers are not obligated to repay the debt to the Group and the
Bank if the reference entities (rated Al or above by Moody’s as at 31 December
2012 and 2011) default. The fund linked note held by the Group and the Bank
bears zero coupon rate with a maturity in 2012. On its maturity date, the principal
of the note is guaranteed by the issuer (rated A1 by Moody’s as at 31 December
2011) and the return is linked with the performance of an index developed by the
issuer.

Unlisted equity securities classified as available-for-sale held by the Group
and the Bank amounting to HK$35,571,000 (2011: HK$32,974,000) and
HK$31,603,000 (2011: HK$29,006,000) respectively are measured at cost less
impairment. No impairment has been recognised.

Certain held-to-maturity certificates of deposit of HK$17,054,000 (2011:
HK$15,534,000) held by the San Francisco Branch of the Bank have been pledged
to the State of California of the United States of America in compliance with the
requirements of the California Financial Code.

Debt securities classified as held-to-maturity amounting to HK$3,382,000 (2011:
HK$130,797,000) were issued by the Government of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region and the Government of the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”).
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20.
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19.

20.

INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES - continued

The convertible bonds and the debt securities classified as available-for-sale
securities and held-to-maturity securities held by the Group and the Bank
are mainly guaranteed or issued by corporates and financial institutions
from the PRC, Hong Kong and Australia.

The certificates of deposit classified as held-to-maturity securities
held by the Group and the Bank are mainly issued by banks from the
PRC, Japan and Hong Kong. Of the above, held-to-maturity certificates
of deposit amounting to HK$1,731,693,000 (2011: HK$333,072,000)
and held-to-maturity debt securities amounting to HK$900,850,000 (2011:
HK$320,808,000) held by the Group and the Bank are credit exposures to
the PRC.

TRANSFER OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The following were the Group’s and the Bank’s debt securities classified
as held-to-maturity and available-for-sale as at 31 December 2012 that
were transferred to an entity with terms to repurchase these debt securities
at the agreed dates and prices. As the Group has not transferred the
significant risks and rewards relating to these debt securities to the entity,
the full carrying amount of these debt securities continued to be recognised.
The cash received on the transfer was reported as liabilities under “Financial
assets sold under repurchase agreements” (see note 27). The transferred
debt securities serve as collateral to secure these liabilities. During the
covered period, the legal title of the debt securities are transferred to the
counterparty entity and there is no restriction for the counterparty entity
to sell or repledge the collateral. These debt securities are either measured
at amortised cost or carried at fair value in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position.

REF - ZH=4—H

As at 31 December 2012
itz FERENH
RS 2R
Available Held-to-
-for-sale maturity
debt debt o
securities securities Total
BT BETRI BB
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Carrying amount of
transferred assets 393,490 117,621 511,111
Carrying amount of
associated liabilities
(Note 27) 326,687 106,994 433,681
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21. B3 B AR I 21. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS
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HRAEH
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VRS
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TEAI &
BRI
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- SRS

[EEEALEE T Tt
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AR ARSI R AN SR AT 2 T H At R IR
o — 5 7 U4 i % 246,484,000 6
(=% ——4 : ##200,762,0007C) %
AR BRAT IR 231717 1o I 2 W 5 e
16 25 fiff i & 2 3K T o 17 50 R
N RBATZ 858 173 i & R B
Tk e & - 25 64,861,000
T (ZF——4 : #W 88,493,000 70)
Ko ¥ #513,699,000 76 ( % ——4F
W 19,249,000 70 ) 5 HREFHKEM S
WA FH EASSE B A H 480 o DIRF &
F R A1 < B R B B 2 R
TR TR v R ft S 75 e 11 o 1K 2
W 167,924,000 76 (= F ——4 : W
93,020,000 J&.) ©

AN GE Lt BT M BR B A W
461,993,000 ¢ (% ——4F : i
253,289,0007¢) £ HUHHEHE F g5
B B 2 MEISIR K 2 5 200,377,000 G
(=% ——4 : ##90,528,0007C) I
TR BT R R R &4 2 28
PREE S o A1 I 40 B 1ol i 10 o A
94,479,000 TG (ZF——4 « dEi
1,952,000 J©) ©

e T
THE GROUP THE BANK
2012 2011 2012 2011

#WTe W ERTR BT
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000

Advances to customers
Bills receivable 373,401 403,729 373,401 403,729
Trade bills 453,669 302,481 453,669 302,481

Other advances to customers 38,365,119 40,632,274 38365119 40,632,274
39,192,189 41338484 39,192,189 41338484

Interest receivable 232,270 162,580 231,965 162,045
Impairment allowances
- Individually assessed (24,054 (40,553) (24,054 (40,553)
- Collectively assessed (164,506) (172,015) (164,506) (172,015)

39,235,899 41288496 39,235,394 41,287,961

Advances to banks and other

financial institutions 2,164,842 1,505,409 2,164,842 1,505,409
41,400,741 42,793,905 41,400,436 42,793,370
Other accounts 708,477 454,051 485,143 336,605

42,109,218 43247956 ~ 41,885,579 43,130,035

Included in the “Other Accounts” of the Group and the Bank is an amount of
approximately HK$246,484,000 (2011: HK$200,762,000) placed as reserve funds
with the financial institutions in the PRC by the Shantou Branch of the Bank.
Among which, HK$64,861,000 (2011: HK$88,493,000) and HK$13,699,000
(2011: HK$19,249,000) is the mandatory reserve deposits and surplus reserve
deposits placed with the People’s Bank of China respectively. The
mandatory reserve deposits are not available for the Group’s daily operation;
HK$167,924,000 (2011: HK$93,020,000) is the fixed deposits placed with
other financial institutions in the PRC in compliance with the requirements
of Regulations Governing Foreign Financial Institutions of the PRC.

The remaining balance of “Other Accounts” of the Group amounting to
HK$461,993,000 (2011: HK$253,289,000) mainly included account receivables
from customers in relation to securities dealing of HK$200,377,000
(2011: HK$90,528,000) and a variation margin of HK$94,479,000
(2011: HK$1,952,000) deposited in a bank for certain interest rate swaps,
foreign currency forward contracts and repurchase agreements.



oG W OB W R Z W GE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HWE_F - ZH=E1—HILFE

for the year ended 31 December 2012

21. EFEK B LAt MR 9 -

[EC/omAT IR

R-B-"5—P—-HE&R
WRIEI ()

- WIS

- Hilg
i
VTR A
Al SRR
HE S
REB-Z5 AT —HER
RE%——4—H— [
SRTELI A (D)

- S o

- Hilg

i

eI fEAE Rk 2 Bk

Al ERCR

HE S
REF——4f+ZH =~ A A

ARG -

BRI B kAR
WK - (R R T

A K

BRI B ARG PR A
[Ep2da

1AMt 2 1

21. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS - continued

Impairment allowances on advances:

S Fii)
THE GROUP THE BANK
TS SRR TR & =R
Individual Collective ~ ##  Individual Collective i
assessment  assessment Total assessment assessment Total
BT BT BT BT BBTE ERTR
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Balance 1 January 2012 40,553 172,015 212,568 40,553 172,015 212,568
Reversal of impairment
allowances (net) (57,513) (7,715)  (65,228) (57,513) (7,715)  (65,228)
- Increase in impairment
allowances 6,214 - 6214 6,214 - 6214
- Amounts reversed (63,727) (7,7115) (71,442) (63,727) (7,715)  (71,442)
Amounts written off (3,709) - (3,709 (3,709) - (3,709
Recoveries of advances written
off in previous years 45,097 - 45097 45,097 - 45097
Unwinding effect of discount rate (374) - (374) (374) - (374)
Exchange difference - 206 206 - 206 206
Balance 31 December 2012 24,054 164,506 188,560 24,054 164,506 188,560
Balance at 1 January 2011 21,564 125,089 146,653 21,564 125,089 146,653
Reversal of impairment
allowances (net) (154,050) 46,862 (107,188)  (154,050) 46,862 (107,188)
- Increase in impairment
allowances 29,575 46,862 76,437 29,575 46,862 76,437
- Amounts reversed (183,625) - (183,625  (183,625) - (183,625)
Amounts written off (1,847) - (1,847) (1,847) - (1,34
Recoveries of advances written
off in previous years 176,100 - 176,100 176,100 - 176,100
Unwinding effect of discount rate (1,214) - (1214) (1,214) - (1214
Exchange difference - 64 64 - 64 64
Balance at 31 December 2011 40,553 172,015 212,568 40,553 172,015 212,568
Details of the impaired loans are as follows:
LERAT
THE GROUP AND THE BANK
2012 2011
EBT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
Gross impaired loans 24,194 78,189
Less: Impairment allowances
under individual assessment (24,054) (40,553)
Net impaired loans 140 37,636
Gross impaired loans as a percentage
of gross advances to customers 0.06% 0.19%
Market value of collateral pledged 76,635 107,078
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22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES / AMOUNTS DUE

22. BB W 2 ) [ W e 2 )
R FROM SUBSIDIARIES

R &
() BERHEA

(i) Investments in subsidiaries

My
THE BANK

2012 2011
EWTIE BRI
HK$°000  HK$°000

JE LTRSS » JRAME Unlisted shares, at cost 261,984 261,884

I S ) S S
o S R 4 A

Details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2012 and 2011
are as follows:

ZEBHIE -
T
C#Tk  CRARA
Ak IhRL / B A Bl
BRI Issued and  Percentage
Place of fully paid of issued
AR incorporation / ordinary share capital FHEH
Name of company operation share capital  directly held Principal activities
AL (RH) AR Fit it 100.000 100% HeBLACE AR B
Chong Hing (Nominees) Limited Hong Kong HK$ ’ ° Provision of nominee services
B B ] it B g EERRTR
Chong Hing Finance Limited Hong Kong HKS$ = ’ Deposit-taking and lending
RIS R A ] ; : SRR T ERHE BB
. . Fik it - .
Chong Hing Information 100,000 100%  Provision of electronic
. Hong Kong HKS$ . )
Technology Limited data processing services
9 5 R A i ¥ o
MARZRRAD i 0000000 to0g ROREH
Chong Hing Securities Limited Hong Kong HKS$ Stockbroking
RIS T S R 2 R Fi e HE R EE
Chong Hing Commodities Hone Kon HKS 5,000,000 100% Investment holding and
and Futures Limited R commodities and futures broking
HERAERAF Fit ki UESHacy
Gallbraith Limited Hong Kong HKS$ ALY W Property investment
AR it B g TOREE
Top Benefit Enterprise Limited Hong Kong HK$ ’ ’ Property investment
R AR i el AR
P Card Alliance Company Limited Hong Kong HKS$ HELULLL ) Credit card management
ﬂ RAIBLER B IR 2 F wil ki $5.000,000 100% fRb
I Chong Hing Insurance Company Limited Hong Kong HK$ ’ Insurance underwriting
| . .
Efy ] i/ il ki T 100% UESHacy
I Hero Marker Limited* Hong Kong HKS$ ’ ’ Property investment
]
|I/ﬁ'
é + I B 2 DL 1 e (E + The subsidiary was newly acquired on 19 January 2012 for
E NR_-FE——F—HFMNHH consideration of HK$1. Subsequent to the acquisition, the Bank
Py JEA o NERIT IR 12 71 A injected HK$99,999 to the Company.
W 99,999 TEF IS A ©
w
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22. $x R W 2\ OB R 2 A
V& &F |

®

(ii)

BRI R A ] - 41

JiS £ 465 H BAS 4 AT ] B ] Py
Fit 5 B JB8 2 ] SN 38 AT AE Ao
BB E A o

R 2 DA RS S5 1 B T
ATIPEERS 2 S 3 R
5 W Y 3% 1 A R o B
i A AT P L At B 2 ) i
JRTLE ©

ke 2 Wl Rk

i el 28 W) K

0 HE 72 B a2 W) R K A i
X TN E LA B EBE
240,341,000 JG (=% ——4¢ :
#E W% 229,581,000 T) o M E K
Zo 76 PR R 51 55 5 A 20 R
ZEN - —HE RN
AEZ AR o

BRoB— S ASE—H
RoS—— A=
H > B 0 W 3 7 K K 2
S A ~ AL, > b
SRS 5 A A R o

23. R A vl f:

Ll > BAME

R EHR S >
R A e ) i B i

AR 2y > NS B AR ERAT IR L E
IGkEs A F B AT o

22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES / AMOUNTS DUE
FROM SUBSIDIARIES - continued

®

(ii)

Investments in subsidiaries - continued

None of the subsidiaries had any debt security subsisting at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results of the year or form a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

Amounts due from subsidiaries
FiiZi]
THE BANK
2012
b T
HK$°000

2011
HEWT T
HK$°000

Amounts due from subsidiaries 248,376 230,891

Included in the amounts due from subsidiaries are mortgage loans to
subsidiaries of HK$240,341,000 (2011: HK$229,581,000). The loans
are secured and bear interest at prevailing market interest rate with
maturities ranging from November 2041 to March 2042.

As at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, the remaining
amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing
and, in the opinion of the directors, are repayable within three months.

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

L0 oy
THE GROUP THE BANK
2012 2011 2012 2011
BT BT BT E¥T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
Unlisted shares, at cost - - 21,500 21,500
Share of post-acquisition
profits and other comprehensive
income net of dividends received ~ 182,970 153,872 - -
182,970 153,872 21,500 21,500

The directors consider the Group and the Bank have significant influence

over these entities.
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23. el RESS - A 23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES- continued
MR-+ _H=Z+—H A& As at 31 December 2012, the Group had interests in the following
SN AR 2 RIS RERR AT associates:
Ak MhRL K
B PRBDY Pl Fitdi
Place of Fi B BT
AEEA incorporation Class of Ownership Proportion of FE#PEE
Name of company and operation  share held interest  voting power Nature of business
(WIEE Note)
MG B A R A Filt Ly EREE] YT IRy AT
PR B
Bank Consortium Holding Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 13.3% 14.3%  Investment holding and provision

of trustee, administration and
custodian services for retirement

schemes
SR PR B B2t i L7l 7R
BC Reinsurance Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 21.0% 21.0%  Reinsurance
FRARRBAR AT it g0 Edler
Hong Kong Life Insurance Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 16.7% 16.7%  Life insurance underwriting
AR IR Kt Ly A4 BB
Net Alliance Co., Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 17.6% 15.0%  Provision of internet services

Wit - AN4E B RES 2 T 6 G A Note: The Group is able to exercise significant influence over all of these

1718 88 K58 25 5 K 7K 45 B entities because it has the power to appoint one or two directors out

HHEAE A AR e o B € of five to eight directors of these companies under the provisions

W3 R e A A 7R stated in the shareholder’s agreements.

NG EHERHPEE—F A

HH o
7S B B A L e 22 2N W RE 25 2 A1 The summarised financial information below represent the aggregate
JE 5B o 46 2 BE4E BF 75 Bl 2 ) amount of the Group’s share of its interests in associates which are not
W : individually material:

2012 2011

EWTIE  EWTC
HK$°000  HK$’000

H At 2 i R Other comprehensive income 430 (53)
T 2 R Total comprehensive income 36,458 18,003
P
ﬁ PRbis R Al Profit after tax 36,028 18,056
H
[ : ; % . . o .
|I A 2 | DU S B IE 20 There are no significant restrictions on the ability of the associates to
IIHII & S 22 AN 4 [ o ph S 4 [ (R transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash dividends, or to repay
- BRI R EERIEHRH > BT loans or advances made by the Group, except for Hong Kong Life Insurance
}E‘ U N\ 25 R IR M R B N which has to maintain net assets of not less than 150% of the required
é BSR4 ) B R A P i inargin of solvency 'Whii\k/l[ is d.eter;ninjd in accl(;rdanlce'with the Hz{lghKong
B reRmm e s e Comres Ol ofSben) Rl nd i
& 7 T RER B R IR o '
@
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24. AW

A—H—H
SIS g2 20 TR

i
e e
Rt+ZA=+—H

7 S5 1 A DL 0 L 6 R SO
MR [ SRAHE RS THE R P13 02 DA
DB G R o B RE A B D
BEREPIEAMR -

H 15 8% 8 P36 K 28 - R R 2
wA

H B WSk 2 A

A< ¢/ E AT R Rk At iyl

7 S5 1 it A 2 5 0 SR A H S
LS B AT 7 AR 07 A B2 ]
HoF - A= —HD
ERCA e eIV AT LY E ST
R RESARELG o 23 TE S REHTISE
Y T e i 85 58 5 ME A o

BEE VIS Z 2 TE Y RE RS S RSt
W HARE > EAEMREDLT > &

P 35 36 52 46 % 0 H A R L5 R
B o

BV DM AMH o
SR B B P MR T A -

[HESE/ES

iz IR
(FIEREBIR 2R A4EM)
B T
(BB 2 H4W)

24. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

e aT
THE GROUP THE BANK
2012 2011 202 2011

EWTL T BT ERT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000

At 1 January 127,171 116,400 94,100 86,450
Net increase in fair value recognised

in the income statement 9,390 9,065 9,390 7,650
Disposals (1,500) - (1,500) -
Exchange adjustments 257 1,706 - =
At 31 December 135318 127,171 101,990 94,100

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn
rentals and / or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using the
fair value model and are classified and accounted for as investment
properties.

Net gains on disposal of and fair value adjustments on investment properties:

2012 2011
EWTIE EBRT
HK$’000  HK$’000

Net gains on disposal of

investment properties 2,816 -

Net gains on fair value adjustments
on investment properties 9,390 9,065
12,206 9,065

Investment properties owned by the Group were revalued at 31 December
2012 by adopting the direct comparison approach and with reference to
the recent transactions for similar premises by Vigers Hong Kong Limited,
independent professionally qualified valuers. The fair value is mainly
arrived at by reference to comparable market transactions for similar
properties.

The fair value of investment properties were estimated based on
assumptions that there would be no forced sale situation in any manner
for these investment properties and the structure of these investment
properties were in a reasonable condition at the end of the reporting period.

The investment properties are rented out under operating leases.

The carrying amount of investment properties of the Group comprises:

L LT
THE GROUP THE BANK
202 2011 202 2011

EWT BT T BT
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Leasehold properties

Held in Hong Kong on medium-term

lease (10 - 50 years unexpired) 101,990 94,100 101,990 94,100
Held outside Hong Kong on

medium-term lease (10 - 50 years

unexpired) 33,328 33,071 - -

135318 127,171 101,990 94,100
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25. Vi3t Bkt 25. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
| T
THE GROUP THE BANK
ikERR flg L
Leasehold By il M Leasehold By wtli ]
land Buildings Equipment Total land  Buildings Equipment Total
LS TIN5 TR i TV 13 TR 1 TR it T & oA L T
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000
WA COST
R=F-_%-A-H At1 January 2012 S62418  3M302 505334 1440,144  OIL6TL 312863 452382 1676916
WE Additions 13003 2803 54209 70,105 = - 51599 51599
s Disposals = - (13308 (13308) = - (049 (999
HE S Exchange adjustments - - n m - - 369 369
RZ%F-Z#4+ZA=1+-H At 31 December 2012 S5421 315085 546606 1497312 011671 312863 494401 1,718,935
ZRE ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION
R=F-_%-A-H At1 January 2012 90,078 53963 3L SAAT6 91860 5334 336169 481343
& Depreciation 10927 8251 40031 59,209 6352 6539 64 41515
i 88 Elininated on disposals = - (M (1441) - - (6% (869
I Exchange adjustments = = 12) 12) = - (12) (12)
RZF-ZH+ZA=A-H At 31 December 2012 101,005 62204 405713 568932 98212 59853 362,087 520,152
WA CARRYING
AMOUNTS
REZF-ZZH=1-H At 31 December 2012 44416 313071 140893 928380 813459 253,010 132314 1,198,783
Wk COST
REF——4—H—H At1 January 2011 306264 316663 515369 1228296 OILGTI 312863 455403 1,679,937
HE Additions 166,154 55729 26068 247951 = - 4180 24180
il Disposals = - (36330 (36330) - S48 48)
i Exchange adjustments - - 27 7 - - 27 07
RZF-—%+ZA=1-H At 31 December 2011 62418 372392 50533 1440044 OILGTI 312863 452382 1676916
SRE ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION
RZF——4-A—H At1 January 2011 83303 47266 367956 498,525 85501 46970 34492 436963
fi& Depreciation 6775 6697 41210 54742 6359 634 89 47572
iHERE Blimninated on disposals - - (20 (3220 = S @A) (23303
e S Exchange adjustments - - 111 111 - - 111 111
RZF——4+ZA=1+-H At 31 December 2011 90078 53963 3715 52,176 91860 3314 336,169 481343
WA CARRYING
AMOUNTS
- RZF-—+ZH=1-H At 31 December 2011 410340 318429 128199 918968 819811 259549 116213 1195573
ﬂ DLEMmEE Rt 2#% AT The above items of property and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following
i RN EBRITE LA rates per annum:
|g|4u Mgt MELM2HEN  Leasehold land Over the lease term of the leasehold land ranging from 33 to 929 years
i mE+=8%
B =R
E;I s BEMAKN L Zfl  Buildings Over the shorter of the lease term of the land upon which the buildings
E’ﬁ BHh=1=2= are situated ranging from 33 to 929 years or 2%
g NEZFIEFH 2%
& W E IR .
@ B 10% - 20% Equipment 10% -20%
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25. VI3 B et - it
EF A RH 65 A b R T R

TR 150
R
(B U B 1F)

LA
(RIEREHIIN B HA4ER)

REHE DI L
Iy
(FIEREBIR 2R A4EM)

B T 2 R v A

s (H5)
RN
(R MR 1)

A A
(FIEREBIR 2R A4EM)

ARSI
(BERSEHIN B HA4ER)

25. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - continued

The carrying amount of leased land shown above comprise:

G LT
THE GROUP THE BANK
2012 2011 2012 2011

EWTL ERTT EWTL ERTR
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000

Leasehold land in Hong Kong:
Held on long-term lease
(over 50 years unexpired) 123,565 121,490 645,751 644,305

Held on medium-term lease
(10 - 50 years unexpired) 349912 347,400 166,769 172,056

Leasehold land outside Hong Kong:
Held on medium-term lease
(10 - 50 years unexpired) 939 3,450 939 3,450

474416 472,340 813459 819,811

The carrying amounts of buildings shown above comprise:

G LT
THE GROUP THE BANK
2012 2011 2012 2011

EWTL W Tr  EMTr ERTI
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Leasehold properties (building)
Held in Hong Kong on long-term
lease (over 50 years unexpired) 193,771 198,308 193,771 198,308

Held in Hong Kong on
medium-term lease
(10-50 years unexpired) 112,480 113,144 52,419 54,264

Held outside Hong Kong on
medium-term lease
(10-50 years unexpired) 6,820 6,977 6,820 6,977

313,071 318,429 253,010 259,549
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26. FEAF BRI
S G AR T b 2 R

A

NEESL
i) e T S

MRmiEHER —H—H

TR B RS2 K

Mem AN+ = H=+—H
s

B

FET B Gy

27. Ji Do Yl ot T 1 45 o2 <2l 0

DA S0 534 -
]
FrEBGH

R-FE—HF+_H=1+—H ">
B o3 s ] (S B 2 RS R K
Fi BB B 2 0855 58 5 0 R 1 A
43 W 2 Uk ¥ 393,490,0007% (%
— —4E : ¥ #0295717,000 G) K
W 117,621,000 76 (= ——4F :
e 240,883,000 7T) 0 B PRI
o B P HAMERLT o 7T ol 17h
A R A A R EI o

26. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS FOR LAND

27.

The Group’s prepaid lease payments for land comprise:

40T
THE GROUP AND THE BANK
2012 2011
EBR T EWT T
HK$°000 HK$’000
COST
Outside Hong Kong held on:

Leases of between 10 to 50 years 2,850 2,850
Net book value at 1 January 2,483 2,535
Release of prepaid

operating lease payments (66) (66)
Exchange adjustments 6 14
Net book value at 31 December 2,423 2,483
Analysed as:

Current portion 66 66

Non-current portion 2,357 2,417

Total 2,423 2,483
FINANCIAL ASSETS SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE
AGREEMENTS

L) E
THE GROUP AND THE BANK
2012 2011
EBE T EW T
HK$°000 HK$’000
Analysed by collateral type:

Debt securities classified as:

Available-for-sale 326,687 228,439
Held-to-maturity 106,994 192,213
433,681 420,652

As at 31 December 2012, debt securities which are classified as available-
for-sale and held-to-maturity with carrying amount of HK$393,490,000
(2011: HK$295,717,000) and HK$117,621,000 (2011: HK$240,883,000)
respectively were sold under repurchase agreements with other banks. All

repurchase agreements are due within 12 months from the end of the

reporting period.
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28.

29.

30.

EIREES ¢

TEIHER AR =

& 17K
SEI) ~ BV B I3

ik

KB - H=Z1T—H>
7 £ I R A BRAT 35 4T DA B R AR
Al SRLZ AR o LI I A 2 T
667,636,000 70 ( -2 ——4F @ #ig
1,545,562,0007C) o {FakaE e
## 100,000,000 JCHIF3KE » H
ST SR L =AW H W v BT ) 2
PFEM1% » FER =T — =4 o
B 567,636,000 TCIITER
i HAERRNT 1.0% E2.9% Z
Mo R =TSRRI o i e
BEAT I 17 3K 3% 35 3% G DL i 1F
LI o

fEREA

R 2020 £ FM 2 2.25 fEETT
] 7 o e 1 (T b8 DL SR S oo
(EER 22 Jl b B i 2 )
(Wt (a) )% (b))

28. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

L. | )
THE GROUP THE BANK
2012 2011 2012 2011

BT BT BBTE BBt
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

Demand deposits and
current accounts 5,238,918 4,501,674 5,238,918 4,501,674

Savings deposits 21,557,659 18,357,575 21,557,659 18,357,575

Time, call and
notice deposits 40,712,171 41,956,464 40,712,171 41,956,333

67,508,748 64,815,713 67,508,748 64,815,582

29. CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT

The Group and the Bank have issued certificates of deposit which
are measured at amortised cost with a total carrying amount of
HK$667,636,000 as at 31 December 2012 (2011: HK$1,545,562,000).
Included in certificates of deposit are certificates of deposit of
HK$100,000,000 issued at the rate of three-month HIBOR plus 1%
which will mature in 2013 and certificates of deposit of
HK$567,636,000 issued at interest rate between 1.0% to 2.9%
per annum which will mature in 2013. All certificates of

deposit issued are not secured by any collateral.

30. LOAN CAPITAL

S AT
THE GROUP AND THE BANK
2012 2011
BT EB T
HK$’000 HK$’000
US$225 million fixed rate subordinated
note due 2020 under fair value hedge
(after adjustment of hedged interest
rate risk) (Notes (a) & (b)) 1,898,957 1,852,153
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30. fEEE A - 4
MfzE : Notes:
(a) BEEZIRIfE 25 225,000,000 FETTCHY

30. LOAN CAPITAL - continued

(a) This represented a subordinated note qualifying as tier 2 capital with

RIS —FE—FFESf—H
T HBIT > Wi s KRB -
WS —F FBE|—H
P9 H 2 o A —F —=F—H

face value of US$225,000,000 issued on 5 November 2010. The note
will mature on 4 November 2020. If at any time (on or) after 1 January
2013, the note no longer fully qualifies as term subordinated debt for
inclusion in Category II - Supplementary Capital of the Bank upon

— HBZ A > BB changes to regulatory requirements, the Bank may, at its option and
PR TR » WLV 2 subject to the prior written approval of the HKMA, exercise a change
FFEARRLTEANIL - & A of the status of the note by serving the “Change in Status Notice” to
W 852 > NRIT AR E the noteholders. Upon a “Change in Status Notice” becoming effective,
2 T < il 5 P ey 2 i 7 G At o the note shall thereafter constitute unsubordinated obligations and
T > B EEPRFR G 2 55 H Tk Dl the rate of interest on the note shall be reduced from 6% per annum to
A DR D o 5.5% per annum. As the “Change in Status Notice” has not been
i TR D 2 o AR served, the rate of interest on the note remains at 6% per annum.

FEPR G 25 IR 0 L I 1 (E
S PR 5 B J2 5% 95 1 4F B H
6% FEEES.5% o HIRA FEH]
Tk Dl A A 2 4 > SEPRIYAE L
FARFF L5 6% °

(b) EBITHIE HEEIRA 5 LI

(b) The subordinated note issued is not secured by any collateral.

i (EHEH o
31 AR 31. SHARE CAPITAL
2012 & 2011
T
HK$°000
HBEBA : Authorised:
600,000,000 % > 600,000,000 shares of HK$0.50 each 300,000
TR HI{E A 0.50 7T
BT BB Issued and fully paid:
435,000,000 Ji% > 435,000,000 shares of HK$0.50 each 217,500
F B {E ¥ 0.50 7T
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32. Gkl

T
RE%—Z4—H—H
(i)

S RERRA
PRI 52 S e

AR B M 2 B T 2
il

D it 4 v o 2 7 0 1 R 70 1
Hailkz 28

WOt 5 o 0 2 i R

Wl 4 0 8 (R 2 i
L2

Ffto A

SRR A

[RATEH 11E)
EiRAIRS
FRICHE P 2 2 2 PR B A

REB-ZHFZH=—H

32. RESERVES

THE BANK

At 1 January 2012
(as restated)

Profit for the year

Exchange differences
arising from
translation

Fair value gains on
available-for-sale
securities during
the year

Amount reclassified
to the profit or loss
upon disposal of
available-for-sale
securities

Income tax effect
relating to disposal
of available-for-sale
securities

Income tax effect relating
to fair value change
of available-for-sale
securities

Other comprehensive
income

Total comprehensive
income for the year

Interim dividend paid
Final dividend paid

Release of regulatory
reserve to retained
profits

At 31 December 2012

JBep it
Share

Investment
revaluation  General

R
Bfiff
BHE

B e

Translation Regulatory

BREt R
Retained B

remium reserve  reserve reserve reserve goﬁ_t_s Total
W WWTa BBt EWTa BT EWTL BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HKS$000 HK$000
1,542,817 253 1,378,500 18,195 408,000 2,959,661 6,307,426
- - - - - 497823 497,823
- - - 4,331 - - 4,331
- 171,714 - - - - 171,714
- (468) - - - - (468)
- 77 o = = - 71
- (27,969) - - - - (27969
- 143,354 - 4,331 - - 147,685
- 143,354 - 4,331 - 497823 645,508
- - - = - (47,850) (47,850
- - - - - (152,250) (152,250)
- - - - (21,0000 21,000 -
1,542,817 143,607 1,378,500 22,526 387,000 3,278,384 6,752,834
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32. fiftfhi - w1 32. RESERVES - continued
#¥
o bl )
AR Investment MBI  MEIGEHE  DOERE  (RENRA
Share revaluation General Translation Regulatory Retained k|
‘[a)gremiu@ reserve reserve  reserve  reserve &mﬂis . Total
Wrn Wt BT ERTc BT BT BT
. HK$000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
iy THE BANK
RZF——i—H—H (FAHE) At 1 January 2011
(as originally stated) 1,542,817 65215 1,378,500 13355 331,000 2,738,447 6,069,334
EBoREE LY E (Wik2) Effect of change in
accounting policy
(Note 2) - - - - - 8,879 8,879
R=%——4—H—H (&) At1 January 2011
(as restated) 1,542,817 65215 1,378,500 13355 331,000 2,747,326 6,078,213
SEREREA Profit for the year = = = = - 498261 498261
R SR Exchange differences
arising from translation - - - 4,840 - - 4,840
VA B Fair value losses on
HATHME 2 BH available-for-sale
securities during
the year - (76,598) - - - - (76,598)
TR IR B 2 B Surplus on remeasurement
of retirement benefits - - - - - 10,268 10,268
BRI IRRALE B P B & Tncome tax effect
relating to
retirement benefits - - - - - (1,694)  (1,694)
BRI H Byl B 0 A B 2 Income tax effect relating
to fair value change of
available-for-sale
securities - 11,636 - - - - 11,636
Hit 2w i) Other comprehensive
income (expense) - (64,962) - 4,840 - 8,574 (51,548)
SRR (G ) 44 Total comprehensive
income (expense)
for the year - (64,962) - 4,840 - 506,835 446,713
(BRI ]z Interim dividend paid - - - - - (652500  (65,250)
BIRA RS Final dividend paid - - - - - (152,250) (152,250)
R PR R R A o T Earmark of retained
profits as regulatory
reserve - - - - 77,000 (77,000 -
REF——+ZH=—H () At 31 December 2011
(as restated) 1,542,817 253 1,378,500 18,195 408,000 2,959,661 6,307,426
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32. fififhi - @ 32. RESERVES - continued
RPITN _FE—-—FE+_H=+ The Bank’s reserves available for distribution to owners as at
—H2Z WK% PEEAE N Z RS 31 December 2012 comprised retained profits of HK$2,807,472,000
{584 B3R 25 Y5 15 2,807,472,000 JG (2011: HK$2,541,015,000) and general reserve of HK$1,378,500,000
(ZF——4F @ ##2,541,015,000 (2011: HK$1,378,500,000).

TG ) B A A vk 1,378,500,000 7T
(= F——4F : #¥1,378,500,000

Jt) °
LR Z AL B A Em The regulatory reserve is set up in compliance with the HKMA’s
MR ZEREEEEEEIRPE Y requirements and is distributable to owners of the Bank subject to

RNEBITHEAG AN EZASESH consultation with the HKMA.
BHRFZEH o

AEEEFEDAFEGFEBAZ The general reserve is comprised of transfers from previous years’ retained
R o profits.
33. MRSERLIE 33. DEFERRED TAXATION
D&M MR E5 25t > S For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial
A0 S 5 W ¢ s o A A S O £ i L gk position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset.
O o WP BHEL > WEHH The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
AT reporting purposes:
HH
THE GROUP
2012 2011 2010

EWTL  EBTE ERT
HK$°000  HK$000  HK$000

(HH1) (HHT)
(Restated)  (Restated)

HRGER VE & Deferred tax assets 1,502 16,861 -
HRSERIE £ i Deferred tax liabilities (23,574) (6,897) (11,478)
(22,072) 9,964 (11,478)
o7
THE BANK
2012 2011 2010

HETT  EBETT  BETT
HK$’000 HK$°000  HK$°000
(i) (Hifr)

(Restated)  (Restated)

HEGER VE & Deferred tax assets 1,502 16,361 -
HESER IE £ i Deferred tax liabilities (15,129) - (3,318)
(13,627) 16,861 (3,318)
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for the year ended 31 December 2012

33, MESEBLI - #i 33. DEFERRED TAXATION - continued
AR B b4 R 2 R The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised
B e (AfE) RHEEAT and movements thereon during the current and prior reporting year:
Wit
SRHGZ Fepidi
Wl Revaluation R
BUHYTE  Collectively of SR
Accelerated assessed  BEWE  available- Remeasurement
tax  impairment Investment for-sale  of retirement o
depreciation ~ allowance  properties securities benefits ~ Total

LR DT DT L3 DT 4y T WL T
HK$000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

M THE GROUP
M=% — "4 —H—H (5ARHEE) At1 January 2012

(as originally stated) (10,540) 27,869 (13,014) (2,797) (1,694 (176)
FHECREE LY (WiE2) Effect of changes in

accounting policy (Note 2) - - 10,140 - - 10,140
=% —"4—H—H (dif) At1 January 2012

(as restated) (10,540) 27,869 (2,874) (2,797) (1,694 9964
REEREEERENTIA (Wit 14) Charge to profit or loss

for the year (Note 14) (847) (1,338) (35) - - (220
PR Rt AP A Charge to other

comprehensive income

for the year - - - (29,816) - (29816)
M=% ZH=4—H At 31 December 2012 (11,387) 26,531 2909 (32613 (1694 (220m)
RZF——4F—H—H (FAHEE) At 1 January 2011

(as originally stated) (13,302) 20,031 (11,191) (15,895) - (20357)
BRI BORMEE L (iE2) Effect of changes in

accounting policy (Note 2) - - 8,879 - - 8319
R=F——4E—H—H (&) At 1 January 2011

(as restated) (13,302) 20,031 (2312) (15,895) - (11479)
REEREGEHERARE GIA Credit (charge) to profit

(Mfk14) for the year (Note 14) 2762 7,838 (562) - - 10,038

AR B H 2w a T e (B Credit (charge) to other

comprehensive

income for the year - - - 13,008 (1,694) 11,404
M=% ——4+ZH=+—H At 31 December 2011 (10,540) 27,869 (2.874) (2,797) (1694) 9964
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HWE_F - ZH=E1—HILFE
for the year ended 31 December 2012

33. MRIEBEIA - 5

e e N B A I £ 3 7 A B v
ToHIBBN\E—H—-H#l » &
WA EE A RS FIRR (3R AT 45 17 1
3 Witk 88 P B I PR B o TR 2 AR S [
£ e Jy el v A R IR 05
1T 2 2R I 1 A 10 65 1 2 2
209,801,000 7T (- F——4F :
e 159,590,000 7T) > Ko A B G g
72 B R W] REAS &7 W T 400 118 e
P R8> Pt DA R 0 308 A 38 X iz
BT E MBS R R o

]
MZ%—Z4—H—H (FAET)

BRI E (ik2)

M=% -4 —H—H (&)

SRR BRI B A

AR R A

M=% ZH=4—H

RZ%——4—H—H (FAH[H)

BRI E (ik2)

RZ%——4—~F—H (&)

SR R B R e o
SRR L BT L (BUA)

RZB——+ZH=1—H

33. DEFERRED TAXATION - continued

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC, withholding tax is
imposed on profits distributed by the Bank’s PRC branch from 1 January
2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to
accumulated profits of the PRC branch amounting to HK$209,801,000
(2011: HK$159,590,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

[
SHGZ Fega
PR Revaluation AR
BASE  Collectively of TSI
Accelerated assessed  fYEWHE  available- Remeasurement
tax  impairment Investment for-sale  of retirement k]
depreciation allowance  properties securities benefits  Total

LR DT L x DT Ly DT 4y T WM T
HK$000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THE BANK
At1 January 2012 (9,930) 21,869 (10,140) 616 (1,694 6,721

(as originally stated)
Effect of changes in

accounting policy (Note 2) - - 10,140 - - 10,140
At 1 January 2012

(as restated) (9,930) 27,869 - 616 (1,694) 16,861
Charge to profit for the year — (1,258) (1,338) - - - (259%)
Charge to other

comprehensive income

for the year - - - (27,892) - (21892)
At 31 December 2012 (11,188) 26,531 - (27,276) (1,694)  (13,627)
At 1 January 2011

(as originally stated) (12,329 20,031 (8,879) (11,020) - (12,197
Effect of changes in

accounting policy (Note 2) = = 8,879 = - 8819
At1 January 2011

(as restated) (12,329 20,031 - (11,020) - (3319)
Credit to profit for the year 2399 7838 - - - 10237
Credit (charge) to other

comprehensive income

for the year - - - 11,636 (1,694) 9942
At 31 December 2011 (9,930) 27,869 - 616 (1,694) 16,861
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for the year ended 31 December 2012

34. Bt 0IRE 34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

e
e
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I
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AETEMRE T - LA H
A 3 12 e i 2 R AP RT 14 B 17 100 A
b 8 T3 B o SO0 RE G il L) > B
B AE 2 EE T N & B AR i B B (1 B
R BEE > DUR U =% — 24
VU =409 H i B G TR o
I 473 OTAE 30 P fe K B D
4 B 5 SUT R S AH (UL o AR SR 1B £
WIREGH# > AHATHE B GG
B AL (RAEANET R M E 2
ZH R e B 52 1B O 01 RE
DAL SR i A SRAT B 4 o

ARACATRAT B A » ARDEHT I O
101 HE S B2 1z B oy 300 HE I
JBe frr > AN i 208 T I 3 301 - il
RAE HARITC TR
10% o 15 1 % 3 1B 1 391 1 #2
HE (W53 H) 1k -+ 08 73 1IH
W o TRl A 352 H B0 Pz 2
JBe 3 SHIHE (W5 EAT > TRks
W ARAT R Z I WA > HARREE
R B A SUTHE ) M8 2 U4 1 4% i
AT T RATIVB AR 48> A5
BRAST R B HE
BT % o ANERAT W 12 i i
% PR I B 0 DT REE > B L il o5 05
St o AWl fk 52 1 Y I 3 301
SATHPARBHOR SRRt >
T 7 87 5% 4 Rk 57 % £ 301 R 1Y
RN B HIGHEE Nt Gz 38 L (it
Wk 5 22 9 Wt ks 25 i LRI 28
BB

152 H 14 1 SO RE 2RI S22 HADTRE 5
SRR o BHE R T B
WIRE A W T > T HAT AR
7B 9 A Rl I o 300 HEE 2 HY E 0TS G
4 o SRty WIRERAT (LR R AS SR 1T
H I ARPRAS BT B % B H
i (B ~ B A IO
£ 38 H B By 1 35 Wi (R B B
THi i =35 2 e i 4 TR o

BT 1B SO0 REE S A R A DA A
152 HAT ] 1B 3 SO HE o

The Bank has adopted a new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”)
pursuant to a resolution passed on 9 May 2012 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors and eligible employees to replace the
share option scheme which expired on 24 April 2012. The terms of the
New Scheme are similar to those of the expired scheme. Under the New
Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Bank may grant options to eligible
persons, including directors and employees of the Bank and its subsidiaries,
to subscribe for shares in the Bank.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the New Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the
Bank in issue at the date of approval of the Scheme, without prior approval
from the Bank’s shareholders. No option may be granted to any person
which, if exercised in full, would result in the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the option already granted and to be
granted to such person (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options but excluding lapsed options) in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of such new grant exceeding 1% of the shares in issue
as at the date of such new grant, provided that options may be issued in
excess of such limit if, among other things, such grant shall have been
separately approved by shareholders of the Bank in a general meeting at
which that proposed grantee and his associates (as defined in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited) shall have abstained for voting.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of offer, upon
payment of HK$10 per option, and the exercise period shall not in any
event be longer than 10 years from the date of grant of the relevant options.
The exercise price is determined by the Board of Directors of the Bank,
and will be the highest of the closing price of the Bank’s shares on the
date of offer, the average closing price of the shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of offer and the nominal value of the
shares.

No options have been granted under the New Scheme since it was adopted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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35. A HZEK 35. LOANS TO OFFICERS
ZEAR S B A R 5D 5 161B {5 The aggregate relevant loans to officers, included in “advances to
ZHE > BiEREHANBZER customers” in Note 21, and disclosure pursuant to Section 161B of the
EnAas(CuSERE21TRR Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:
ko) :
R B BT
THE GROUP AND THE BANK
e e
+ZA=Z+—-H +ZA=1+—H —H—H
31 December 2012 31 December 2011 1 January 2011
BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
AR SR P LIRS H o2 45848 Aggregate balance
of all relevant
loans outstanding
at the end of the
reporting period 62,648 74,369 76,965
THE GROUP AND THE BANK
2012 2011
BT BT
HK$’000 HKS$’000
SR B B )P 12 e e 465 B A 7 Maximum aggregate balance of
relevant loans during the year 79,610 85,881
HEESEZRNANZHE S Z2EE R The loans bear interest at rates ranging from 0% to prime rate plus 10%.
BEAZRINESZ A%  c HEN Included in the loans to officers are loans of HK$61,805,000 (2011:
ITBABZEZRY A LB EYE HK$72,931,000) secured by collateral. These collaterals are mainly
61,805,000 j& (—F——4 : properties, securities and fixed deposits.

72,931,000 72 ) R HHEHI 5K o Juitk
HE A ~ R
K o
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7S5 18 Vi T 30 9L £ B A PR 2% W) &
BEATIREAN o DRI 2 B0V 1T 8 4 g 28
A 110,606,000 JG ©

BEZF-F+H=1t—HIk
SRR RS PR RS T IR
TR o Bt P92 AR Ll 1Y
i e 2 ) vz e e i P AL (e
Z BB AL) > PLoT BERG & o
% B 2 R R G IR BRI o

5 FE AL P s B0 A % B e 2 T fY
BHEEERN = EYEEAE
Bl & i By 7R = AR R GE 4k
HAE o T B MRS A% 4 E
T U] o B O O
A HE — B B RS A o 2 B
WREFIIBARS R (W EFE 3.5% &
4%) FIPTHE 12% R o

15 A2 37 SRR 24 Y B B )
At SR ©

REF-ZHEEF——F+2H
=t —HEEIL > AREEMEBE
Tl ST T8 5 A

36. F9E 36. GOODWILL
2012 2011
T I b T
HK$°000 HK$°000
JRA COST
h—H—HE+ZH=+—H At 1 January and 31 December 110,606 110,606
AR IMPAIRMENT
mh—H—HEkt_H=1+—H At 1 January and 31 December 60,000 60,000
TR (= CARRYING VALUES
mt+=_H=+—H At 31 December 50,606 50,606

The Group acquired 100% of issued share capital of Chong Hing Insurance
Company Limited. The amount of goodwill arising as a result of acquisition
was HK$110,606,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, management has reviewed goodwill
for impairment testing purpose. The review comprised a comparison of
the carrying amount and value in use of an acquired subsidiary (the smallest
cash-generating unit) to which the goodwill has been allocated.

The acquired subsidiary is involved in insurance business.

The value in use calculations primarily use cash flow projections based on
three-year financial budgets approved by management of the subsidiary
and estimated terminal value at the end of the three year period. There are
a number of assumptions and estimates involved for the preparation of
cash flow projections for the period covered by the approved budget and
the estimated terminal value. Key assumptions include the expected growth

in revenues (growth rate at 3.5% to 4%) and selection of discount rate (12%).

Value in use is derived at by discounting the expected future cash flows.

The management of the Group determines that there was no impairment
loss on the goodwill for the year ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.
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37. A5 A Bk s 37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
HE it
THE GROUP THE BANK
2012 2011 2012 2011

EWTE  ERTIC WP EWT
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$°000  HK$'000

B AR Contingent liabilities
- B and commitments
- contractual amounts
LS AR Direct credit substitutes 1,077,350 1,163,474 1,077,350 1,163,474
S 5 SRS H Trade-related contingencies 425309 373802 425309 373802
EMEEEA Forward asset purchases 7,864 8,550 7,864 8,550
AREAZEAMAGEE Undrawn formal standby
fa B R HLAth R I facilities, credit lines and
other commitments:
TG P ER T A 5 O i 2 e Which are unconditionally
cancellable without prior
notice 10,938,340 6,880,736 10,938,340 6,880,736
JEEI ) HR— SR B4 AR With an original maturity
of one year and under 8,137,008 7,093,803 8,137,008 7,093,803
JRRWI H R —4E DL With an original maturity
of over one year 2,420,887 2,210,112 2,420,887 2,210,112 205
&R Lease commitments 58,515 66,857 118,569 138,228
23,065,273 17,797,334 23,125,327 17,368,705
B A R E 2 RS & ke The credit risk weighted amount of contingent liabilities and commitments
EH AW 3,507,559,000 76 (ZF is HK$3,507,559,000 (2011: HK$3,235,547,000).

——4F ¢ ¥l 3 235,547,000 JT) °

TN RE (5 B ol b & %0 2 f20 I TR e The credit risk weighted amount is calculated based on “standardised
sHE ) 5HE o RIS & E approach”. The risk weights used in the computation of credit risk weighted
SHMHEHZABIEES 0% = amounts range from 0% to 100% (2011: 0% to 100%) which is assessed
100% (—F——4H : 0% 2 100%) in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules.

A 2 B4 CBRAT 3% (& AR ) BRI ) 1

WAl o

BB S AR R A 4 Direct credit substitutes include financial guarantees given by the Group
ARBATHR M Z BB o and the Bank.

KRR i B B fi B HfE e DA U Most of contingent liabilities and commitments are denominated in Hong
YER AL o Kong dollars.

o~
o
IS
=
—
]
o
Q
P
S
2
=
=
<
m
=
P
E
-
-
=
5]
[~}
o)
o=
T
o)
=
5]
=
(@)




=
#
#
i
|
B
I
| |
i’
<
Iy
T
e
®

oG W OB W R Z WG
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37. B ARBURYE - #

Ji e 5 DI AS o AN S A T 2
L5 S 28 A A 2 R AR B AL <2
SEHARE RIS DL BTN -

—HFR
FoERREN (RIEERMT)

REPLE

B AT AL B AR AR MR 0 ol 2 =
ZMEAT L o FHLAY P L <8 ] A
SO RIE =4 o

R > BARIEAERNT

EUBA R 3 5 W B ke b 488 i oz
Wi B B i 9 B AR I

TS IR > A GE R DL AL B
SR P BT 2 LA > R AR e I
HEHAE

—HFR
FoER RN (WA EREmE)

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS - continued

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which

fall due as follows:

S ar
THE GROUP THE BANK

2012 2011 2012 2011

EWTL  EWTIL TR BN
HK$000 HK$'000  HK$000 HKS$000

Within one year 24,416 32,258 36,628 43,542

In the second to fifth years
inclusive 33,627 33,998 81,469 82,844

Over five years 472 601 472 11,842

58,515 66,857 118,569 138,228

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain
of its office properties. Leases are negotiated for an average term of three
years and rentals are fixed.

Capital commitments outstanding at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:
L)
THE GROUP AND THE BANK
2012 2011
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000
Capital expenditure contracted for
but not provided in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of
property and equipment 7,864 8,550

At the end of the reporting period, the Group as lessor had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

e ar
THE GROUP THE BANK

2012 2011 2012 2011

EWTL  EWTIL TR EWT
HK$000 HK$'000  HK$000 HKS$000

Within one year 23,051 2,827 23,051 2,048

In the second to fifth years
inclusive 24,557 640 24,557 640

47,608 3,467 47,608 2,688
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38. B A G

7 G 7R o ST AR 3 T AT WA A
st il > WA EH— U R R R
O 38 2R A G 3B e 0 ) 3 S iz K
ot 8 (T A G ) B K Bk
R A PR (T s O
D 1) o MH -FBFBET Hl
AR B ot P 2 R S A B )
JRAE Z i P A R A (TR
st o) o 78 5 A <t ) LR
JEA TR Bz B T A
S S 2 T A A R B - AR
A E_FEFFFE T ZHHDR
A 7S G5 1 iz 9 B 0 HIZE 2200
R AT o KR B T R
25 Bl A < ) DA A
("2E A1) o SR & &
B SL (5 GE A B 2 BB R A
ol BEAS SR I 2 7 53 B o A 2 iR
EEHERE > BTABHARAR
KV 2 o i AS Bz K
Y 93~ B M B 4 4 i 4% A B
ARG HASZhES -

AL 25 A & B AR B TR R
At (2 i Al ) o A2 5 A it i
(BEEfA) T » B4 Eh+ R
AR > A HESE U2 R IR 56 A
BRAHHBTIGRBEE T2 F =R
—H o BTVRIKRHR PR &
AFREAHERRARNAEERTZ
ALK <55 H W P52 2 de 2 T L 51 7
ZEE—He

L R ) A R 2 ] e 2
REZF—-—H+ZH=+—H
B A (5 16 A ) FF HERS 3
fili 6 = RS 534l 6 2 391 (12 i 2
ZEER) AT o IRF T
ZHE B EH o SE A
3 2 PATE T AL BE WOk A G S I 2
A Pl 25 A 1 B4 B BB IR

R-F——HFFZH=1+—H>
AN BRAT 3 48 B OE 3 58 1M 3L RS
PR o HFEAFNE (BEE A W
R K & e 2 W 8210,747,000 9T ©

38. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had two retirement schemes
in operation including a defined contribution plan (the “ORSO Scheme”)
and a defined benefit plan (the “ORSO (Defined benefit) Scheme”) which
were both registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance
in 1995 and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in December
2000. Employees who were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the
establishment of the MPF Scheme could stay within the ORSO Scheme or
switch to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees joining the Group
on or after December 2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme. Most of
the employees enrolled in the MPF Scheme in replacement of the ORSO
Scheme (the “participating members”). The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employee contributes 5% of the
relevant payroll to the MPF Scheme while the Group contributes from 5%
to 10% of the relevant payroll to the MPF Scheme depending on the years
of service completed.

The Group operates the ORSO (Defined benefit) Scheme for qualifying
employees. Under the ORSO (Defined benefit) Scheme, the employees
are entitled to retirement benefits varying between 0 and 100 percent of
total contributions on attainment of a retirement age of 55. Upon retirement,
the employees are entitled to monthly pension until death varying between
0 and 100 percent of final salary depending on years of service completed
at the time of retirement.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the ORSO (Defined benefit) Scheme
was carried out as at 31 December 2011 by the qualified actuaries of Towers
Watson Hong Kong Limited. The actuarial valuation is carried out
periodically, but at least triennially. No valuation is carried out as at
31 December 2012. The present value of the defined benefit obligation
and the current service cost have been measured using the Projected Unit
Credit method.

At the date of the latest formal independent actuarial valuation made on
31 December 2011, the net retirement asset of the ORSO (Defined benefit)
Scheme was HK$10,747,000.
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38. ARPR R - 5 38. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME - continued
2011
EB T
HK$°000
7 45 2 W il 32 R R A R S Amounts recognised in profit or loss in respect of
FESIME the defined benefit plans are as follow:
TR R AN Current service cost 59)
R AR RS S Y Interest cost on benefit obligation (610)
T R A S A Interest income on plan assets 1,096
427
i L i 2 v A0 2 v e R I B A Amount recognised in other comprehensive income in
BRI respect of the defined benefit plans is as follow:
T Rz ) S o i R e i B R A Difference between actual return on plan assets
i 48 1Y 2 2 and interest, and actuarial losses 10,268
A % A5 B IR D v A S T8 Yy B The amount included in the consolidated statement of financial position
it FR AR AU GRS T - arising from the Group’s defined benefit retirement benefit plan is as
follows:
2011
BT
HK$°000
1% & R A AR I BUE Present value of defined benefit obligation (24,073)
AR 2] Fair value of plan assets 34,820
10,747
W 5 #i F) 55 15 9 BUAE o B8 G 51 Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
mr:
2011
BT
HK$’000
) BE 2 A 35 AT Opening defined benefit obligation 25,450
FE X Interest cost 610
B A Current service cost 59
F R Actuarial losses
CHT BB Ml e it % ) (resulting from changes of financial assumptions) 502
ZATHEF] Benefits paid (2,548)
IR B S ) 35 A Closing defined benefit obligation 24,073
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38. ARIRFRIEHE - s 38. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME - continued
FHEEE N A 2 EEEE AT - Changes in fair value of plan assets are as follows:
2011
EB T
HK$°000
L Eo e NS AT e Opening fair value of plan assets 25,502
FE A Interest income 1,096
o 3 1 [ Return on plan assets 10,770
X AT Benefits paid (2,548)
IR G 3 s 2 P Closing fair value of plan assets 34,820
a8 Y S U DA A The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of
WA E 23 EEsEAIANE - total plan assets are as follows:
2011
%
HE Cash 20
IR (K Equities (Note) 80
Wit = JR S5 E A5 5 &R B IR E Note: The equities represented investments in two equity securities
50 E i 1 25 i AR R which are securities of The Hong Kong & China Gas Limited
R 2 7 1 B2 R L i 5 7 R and Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited, which are both listed on
AT the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
W ——HF+_H=+—H> The amounts of assets of the ORSO (Defined benefit) Scheme invested in
Mot # (BRsE ) & &3 the Bank’s own deposit account as at 31 December 2011 are as follows:
REATHEA AR )P LIRESIANT -
2011
EWT T
HK$°000
FEBAEABRAT I A2 3K Deposits with the Bank 6,814
JHF R S FE A P 25 1 F 2 B e The significant assumptions used in determining the defined benefit
e obligations are shown below:
2011
%
REBER () Discount rate (per annum) 1.5
THIIH AR 2 (f4E) Expected rate of salary increase (per annum) 3.0
THIAE SRR % (4E) Expected rate of pension increase (per annum) 0.0
A EREAE () Interest credited on welfare balance (per annum) 2.0
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38. BRG] - 38. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME - continued
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HEBI=
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TR SR
A R AR L

RNEF——E ] = —H o B
R T AT W IRET- 23 I3 1] 259. 3 5F ©

AN 5 £ T 6 O AU G O
) gk B o A 2 RS o AR
QISR PR e () > DI P L <5
Aili 52 DR AN S B2 5 25 A A
DR HGKER o

Mg EXR F —— 4+ =+
— H 52 A R O i A
LEAE > R F——F A
Z—H > AN AR R A
(B SE R A ) e iy o B 9 9 K
ZER o HR KR ZF—ME+ZH
= — B R 8 O RE R A )
R BMHEERR > AR
PR B AT RE S o

The table below indicates the potential effect of change of the significant

assumptions on the defined benefit obligation:

2011
[ ity a2
Change in assumption
+0.25 % -0.25%
EW T EW T
HK$’000 HK$’000
Discount rate (547) 572
Expected rate of salary increase 65 (63)
Expected rate of pension increase 404 -
Interest credited on welfare balance 9 8

As at 31 December 2011, the weighted average duration of the defined

benefit obligation is approximately 9.3 years.

The costs for providing benefits to the members of the ORSO (Defined
benefit) Scheme are funded by the Group. The contributions required by
the Group to fund the costs are determined by periodic funding valuations

in accordance with the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance.

As of 31 December 2011, the Group is not required to contribute to the
ORSO (Defined benefit) Scheme with respect to the members of the ORSO
(Defined benefit) Scheme according to the results of the last statutory
funding valuation of the ORSO (Defined benefit) Scheme as at
31 December 2011. The Group’s contribution rate may be subject to change
when the results of the next statutory funding valuation of the ORSO
(Defined benefit) Scheme as at 31 December 2014 become available.



oG W OB W R Z W GE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HWE_F - ZH=E1—HILFE

for the year ended 31 December 2012

39. BT % 5 39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
T AR B AN 5 B e A BRA T BRI 7 2 During the year, the Group and the Bank entered into the following material
HRRGHIUT : transactions with related parties:
MR~ WERESBA MRS
Interest, commission Interest and
and rental income rental expenses

2012 2011 2012 2011
WL EWT BT BT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000

AP AT | BRI A [ Ultimate holding company /
(7] 2R B 2 ) immediate holding company /
fellow subsidiaries 9,935 7,777 16,618 25,205
At Associates 19852 16,757 3200 3317
FEEMAR (Mik) Key management personnel (Note) 5513 6514 10960 9,524
5 R o S £ B R AN 81 17 B At the end of reporting period, the Group and the Bank had the following
BRI 5 2 EARA RN HME material outstanding balances with related parties:
ks 3 1 BRI 5 W 211
Loan to Deposit from
related parties related parties
2012 2011 2012 2011
T BT BT BB T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000
A ] | HREER AT | Ultimate holding company /
FE IS immediate holding company /
fellow subsidiaries 34,592 36,800 159,663 159,138
e A Associates 14337 37599 97,47 75730
FHEEMAR () Key management personnel (Note) 417,568 969,505 653,558 651,396
U EHRZAEHG T —KREF The above outstanding balances bear interest at rates similar to those made
el BT A o i 4 T R TS available to non-related parties. A portion of the loans to related parties
WER D ~ 3855 e W3R AE are secured with properties, securities and fixed deposit.
LA o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2012

39. B %5 -

Wl Mt 73 it R K M A A B 5 IR D
K AR P o

R 7 S L D R
i AR o

J A S SRAT BRI ) 4 Rl 2 K
R FImT

TR HR AR > ASERAT B 2 H] 2
HRES R G DRI B 22

i AE!

IR S T8 2 i) 3K TE L R 3 2 R
210,175,000 JG B fE SR Mk B (=%
——4F VW% 221,024,000 78 ) © AR
28 e 5 SIf e AR > I B S B SR
BTG A 221 o

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - continued

Amounts due from related parties are included in advances and other

accounts on the statements of financial position.

Amounts due to related parties are included in deposits from customers

on the statements of financial position.

During the year, the Bank entered into the following material transactions

with its subsidiaries:

MBS MERHEHA  MERMESN BRI
Interest, commission  Interest and Computer JB SR
and rental income rental expenses service expense Dividend income

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

W WL BT EWT R ERTC BTG T
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000

Subsidiaries 15,385 7045 27,723 14100 17,095 19371 39,000 35,000

At the end of reporting period, the Bank had the following material

outstanding balances with its subsidiaries as set out in note 22:

W e 2 w0 X ik ¥

Amounts due from

IR W 2 vl ik o

Amounts due to

2012 2011 2012 2011

EWTL BT ERTI BWTC
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000

Subsidiaries 248,376 230,891 846,080 793,690

Included in the amounts due to subsidiaries are current accounts of
approximately HK$210,175,000 (2011: HK$221,024,000). The current

accounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.
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39. BT %5 - s

R e 2% ) K TE A A A B
13,672,000 76 I fifi & 7 K (= &
——4E : ¥ 13,355,000 7C) © DLk
BT A M HCHR > BEIE DATH 85 5 3
AT TR BTGB o

% R I 2% B e 2 ) K I 2 O
622,233,000 G I E W 3k (2 %
——4F 1 559,311,000 75) > HERE
U1 7 3000 S BIC B > YOS DA B3 R R
AR R — N o

FREMA R Z i

A PR R R L il A B B R 2 T
e

11 i 2 1A

R RAEA

W PR 2 W e B
% 0 F 1 AN £ 3% B i B
HEGE o

Wik - PN B A H 500 e %
HH H A H 8 55 2B 7 1
PSRRI AL [ EE I (T o

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - continued

Included in the amounts due to subsidiaries are saving accounts of
approximately HK$13,672,000 (2011: HK$13,355,000). The saving
accounts are unsecured and bearing interest at prevailing market interest

rates and repayable on demand.

The remaining amounts due to subsidiaries are fixed deposits of
approximately HK$622,233,000 (2011: HK$559,311,000). The fixed
deposits are unsecured, bearing interest at prevailing market interest rates

and mature within one year.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during

the year are as follows:

M T
THE GROUP AND THE BANK
2012 2011
T T
HK$°000 HK$°000
Short-term benefits 66,002 61,726
Post employment benefits 4,873 4,286
70,875 66,012

The remuneration of directors and key management is reviewed by
Remuneration Committee having regard to the performance of individuals

and market trends.

Note: Includes key management personnel, close family members of key
management personnel and entity that is controlled or jointly controlled,

directly or indirectly, by key management personnel.
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40. BEAEH 40. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
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R EEEBCHITEBEHYF
CERATEE (EAR) BN F 2 & A
gk &

o SRR M2 R B T Y
B o M B S N B[] i o

REF-ZHEFZA=T-HE
ZHF - IAETHZEAR
FLHE > JHREE EEMER R
TR SR DA ERAT B 50 47 Y e 2 )
AR A AE S o DERLHI YR 58 7
CERATZEMRBID Tz CBATSE (BAS)
FSLEID) Tt 5

NG L — B R R
R o OR8N 2 5 5 S
B R R 2K  GREF IR F
T B ol e e A 2 Bz S W B 6 1
EHat Bl ga B AT HAR -
FRBERBUL - RAREHW A
il L BOVEAR ~ EWIBATZ I
AR IR ~ BBOR ~ AR K
RHBORE -

The Group has adopted a policy of maintaining a strong capital base to:

» comply with the capital requirements under the Banking (Capital) Rules

of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance; and

* support the Group’s stability and business growth so as to provide

reasonable returns for shareholders.

The capital adequacy ratios as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December
2011 are computed on the consolidated basis of the Bank and certain of its
subsidiaries as specified by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority for its
regulatory purposes, and are in accordance with the Banking (Capital)

Rules of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

The Group has established a capital planning process to assess the adequacy
of its capital to support current and future activities. The process states
the Group’s capital adequacy goals in relation to risk, taking into account
its strategic focus and business plan. Key factors to consider in this process
include additional capital required for future expansion, results of the stress
test programme regularly conducted, dividend policy, income recognition

and provisioning policies.
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BT TRE () Rz 5551 > HER
WESEEE ~ IR A B R FL Al R AR A
B BRSNS

1.

HHZAG

AFATH G (THYE L) ZADR
' MR B A SREAT 4 Ak 2 A J00 I 2y
A BRAT B S IR AL AR o Jy O]
PTG SRR A Bz
I e R K R st B o
M TEERZATATRY
AHATZ HHFEREER - HHER
YA T HAR ~ RERR ~ B
230 o DAE 75 AW HEH R
2 Wk 7 90 I e R o A
S I VE 0 R o

() WBEHEAEG

HHHBZAG ) ARLT
Fin A % 5 B R T ALK o

% B AT i 2 RE Dy K
T~ PRSI Z i 1T B
5 ph R A 0 R LG PR
FH S A B R B S
MERREE - HBHBRA S
TREARGE I 2 H % BOR b A 1
PR R ATEB M S
ik L R R kAR
B o 1A > ZHEWM
ARMBEHPEETHMER
I LAE o

(i) HHEEHAZAS

WA R )y R R
BISHAT B ~ Wy R R
Ko F AR o HE RS
B LEAT B W B S AE o
WHEME A RN
B K > i e A K
AEBLBOR ~ S 2
FB - WP BT S KB
BENE L £V 8 S
RN o HBEEMERAE
B REHRBEERGLZ
75 1) B BRI A

The unaudited supplementary financial information regarding corporate
governance, risk management and other financial information disclosed pursuant
to the Banking (Disclosure) Rules is as follows:

1. SPECIALISED COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors of the Bank ( the “Board”) is constituted in
accordance with the Bank’s Articles of Association and is the ultimate
governing body. In order to ensure that matters arising between meetings
of the Board are handled properly and in a timely fashion, the Board has
delegated the day-to-day supervision of major functional areas to the
following specialised committees. These committees have been established
with clearly defined objectives, authorities, responsibilities and tenure.
Written terms of reference have been approved by the Board and are
updated appropriately.

(i) Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises all executive directors of the
Bank.

It is authorised by the Board to exercise all such powers and do all
such acts as may be exercised, done or approved by Board, thus
relieving the full Board of detailed review of information and
operational activities. The Executive Committee steers the Group’s
policy and operational decisions on a day-to-day basis, and attends
to matters that require the review and supervision of the Board between
regular board meetings. Moreover, it also coordinates the work of
other committees as it sees fit.

(ii) Executive Management Committee

Members of the Executive Management Committee, comprising the
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer and certain other
executive directors and division heads, are responsible for managing
the day-to-day business and the affairs of the Bank group. The
Executive Management Committee holds regular meetings twice a
week to discuss and formulate operation and management policies,
discuss significant daily operational issues, review key business
performance, and discuss business opportunities arising from
changing market and competitive conditions. In performing its
functions, the Executive Management Committee shall act in
accordance with the directions and requirements as may from time to
time be stipulated by the Board.
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1.

HEBHT -4
(iii) WHHAFPKFEERAG

(iv)

HHHP K EEZ R G5
ANERAT HE B H ALK o

HHHPKEEZAT AN
TR R FBCKEGEREZ
HEPE » B AN P HIE R HES) o
Z B G G R M 2
BARBOR B ATBARE BRI >
HELT MU TR B B R
BRI T B K H G B A
HIH o S S A B o

BERXEBRA®

EC: 2 7 R DAS VAL R
Tk - ZAGHARTZ
A RN B R R A
SRAT 365 0 N M A B R 2
B EPHRIT B ERR G E]
Joi I A B A ALK o

TBORK A% 22 B 0 TG 5 e £t
AN AT 23 W B BUR
Ko I 58 H i 5 DL 2 4
ZEKIERE o BEA > ZRER
TR R I R M5 E A
BRERAMGHE > UL
R H [ 8 bz £R 0O 5 2 4 IE
T8 > QAT RS A G
o BN 1 B 2 A
& o WO FHZE B KA
22 B L R H G B 1 2 A
PUE o UK T E B &2 Hofly
By HE 2 BB A 42 <Y
B0 B R o RE R
A% W B KO i B B0 T
WHERIKERRZRREZ
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1. SPECIALISED COMMITTEES - continued

(iii) Executive Loans Committee

(iv)

The Executive Loans Committee comprises all executive directors of
the Bank.

The Executive Loans Committee is established to guide and review
the operations of, and to delegate proper authorities as it deems
appropriate from time to time to the Loans Committee. It also
approves large and certain specific new loan applications and
applications for renewal and amendment of existing loans, having
due regard to the Group’s Lending Policy and the relevant laws and

regulations.

Loans Committee

Members of the Loans Committee are appointed by the Board.
It comprises senior staff members of the Bank including the
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive Officer supervising
the Corporate & Commercial Banking Division and the Wealth
Management Division, and the head of the Credit Risk Management

Division.

The Loans Committee ensures that the Group’s Lending Policy is
adequate, and issues guidelines from time to time to guide lending
activities of the Group. It also directs the Credit Assessment
Department and Credit Control Department to monitor loans portfolio
quality through identifying problems early and taking timely
corrective actions such as implementing debt-restructuring schemes
and maintaining adequate provisions for loan losses. The Loans
Committee members meet regularly to evaluate loan applications and
make credit decisions. The monitoring of compliance with statutory
lending limits, the assessment and approval of new loan products,
the implementation of policies and instructions set by the Executive

Loans Committee are other key functions of the Loans Committee.
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1. SPECIALISED COMMITTEES - continued

)

(vi)

The Asset and Liability Management Committee ( the “ALCO”)

Members of the ALCO are appointed by the Board. It comprises

senior staff members representing major divisions of the Bank.

The ALCO is established to facilitate the oversight of the Board in
the management of the assets and liabilities of the Group from the
perspective of containing the pertinent liquidity, interest rate, foreign
exchange and other market risks. The assessment of the impact of
the current economic and business climate on the Group’s balance
sheet, the formulation of the corresponding strategies and plans, and
the evaluation of non-credit related products also come under other
key functions of the ALCO.

The Risk Management and Compliance Committee (the “RMCC”)

Members of the RMCC are appointed by the Board. It comprises
senior staff members who are responsible for risk management,

compliance issues and operations of the Bank.

The RMCC is established to facilitate the oversight of the Board
concerning risk management and compliance issues of the Bank.
The RMCC discharges its responsibilities by identifying and analysing
major risk management and compliance issues, and by approving
and overseeing the implementation of the risk management and
compliance policies and procedures. The RMCC also takes charge
of coordinating and monitoring the implementation of the
recommendations made by the regulators. Regular reports as prepared
by the RMCC are submitted to the Board.

Details concerning composition and functions of Audit Committee and

Remuneration Committee are set out in the Corporate Governance Report.
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2. B 2. MANAGEMENT OF RISKS
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The Group has established policies, procedures, and controls for measuring,
monitoring and controlling risks arising from the banking and related
financial services business. These policies, procedures, and controls are
implemented by various committees and departments of the Group and
are regularly reviewed by the Board. The internal auditors also play an
important role in the risk management process by performing regular, as
well as sporadic compliance audits.

The management of assets and liabilities of the Group is conducted under
the guidance of the ALCO. The ALCO holds meetings every two weeks,
and more frequent meetings when required, to review and direct the relevant
policies, and to monitor the bank-wide positions. The day-to-day
management of the liquidity, foreign exchange, interest rate and other
market risks, and the compliance with the ALCO and RMCC policies are
monitored by the Treasury Department and the Finance Department with
the assistance of various qualitative and quantitative analyses.

In addition to complementing the ALCO in the management of assets and
liabilities, the RMCC also oversees the implementation of the policies
and procedures established for managing the Group’s operational, legal,
and reputation risks and compliance requirements.

(i) Operational and legal risk

Operational risk is the risk of unexpected losses attributable to human
error, systems failures, fraud, or inadequate internal controls and
procedures.

Executive directors, department heads, in-house legal counsels, and
internal auditors collaborate to manage operational and legal risks
through proper human resources policies, delegation of authorities,
segregation of duties, and timely and accurate management
information. Senior management and the Audit Committee are
accountable to the Board for maintaining a strong and disciplined
control environment to provide reasonable assurance that the
operational and legal risks are prudently managed.

A comprehensive contingency plan is available to ensure that key
business functions continue and normal operations are restored
effectively and efficiently in the event of business interruption.
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2. MANAGEMENT OF RISKS - continued

(ii) Reputation risk

Reputation risk is the risk to earnings or capital rising from negative

public opinion.

Reputation risk is managed by ensuring proper and adequate
communications and public relation efforts to foster the reputation of
the Group. A risk management mechanism guided by the senior
management including executive directors and senior managers has
been established to manage the media exposure, handle customers’
and other relevant parties’ complaints and suggestions, and to ensure
that new business activities and agents acting on our behalf do not

jeopardise our reputation.

Details of the Group’s capital management, credit risk, liquidity risk,
market risk, foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk management
policies and measures are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Capital adequacy ratio

2012 2011

% %

(Htit)

(Note)

Capital adequacy ratio 15.34 15.44
Core capital ratio 10.57 10.58

The capital adequacy ratios as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December
2011 are computed on the consolidated basis of the Bank and certain of its
subsidiaries as specified by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority for its
regulatory purposes, and are in accordance with the Banking (Capital)
Rules of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance which became effective on
1 January 2007.

Capital adequacy ratio was compiled in accordance with the Banking
(Capital) Rules under section 98A of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance
for the implementation of the “Basel II” capital accord, which became
effective on 1 January 2007. In accordance with the Banking (Capital)
Rules, the Bank has adopted the “standardised approach” for the calculation
of the risk-weighted assets for credit risk, “standardised (market risk)
approach” for the calculation of market risk and “basic indicator approach”
for the calculation of operational risk. The capital adequacy ratio is
consolidated, under the Banking (Capital) Rules, with reference to the
financial information of the Bank, Chong Hing Finance Limited, Right
Way Investments Limited, Gallbraith Limited, Chong Hing Information
Technology Limited, Card Alliance Company Limited, Top Benefit
Enterprise Limited and Hero Marker Limited.
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT - continued
Capital base

The capital base after deductions used in the calculation of the above capital

adequacy ratios as at 31 December and reported to the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority is analysed as follows:

2012 2011

T T T

HK$’000 HK$°000

(Wit)
(Note)
Core capital
Paid-up ordinary share capital 217,500 217,500
Share premium 1,542,817 1,542,817
Published reserves 3,673,778 3,376,550
Profit and loss account 290,491 260,692
Less: Net deferred tax assets (1,502) (6,721)
Total core capital 5,723,084 5,390,838
Other deductions from core capital (120,711) (120,596)
Core capital after deductions 5,602,373 5,270,242
Supplementary capital
Reserves attributable to fair value
gains on revaluation of holdings of
land and buildings 38,885 35,117
Collective impairment allowances 164,506 172,208
Regulatory reserve for general banking risks 387,000 408,000
Reserves attributable to fair value gains
on revaluation of holdings of
available-for-sale equities and debt securities 109,326 14,711
Unrealised fair value gains arising from
holding of equities and debt securities
designated at fair value through profit or loss 46,355 59,573
Term subordinated debt 1,898,957 1,852,153
Total supplementary capital 2,645,029 2,541,762
Other deductions from supplementary capital (120,711) (120,596)
Supplementary capital after deductions 2,524,318 2,421,166
Total capital base after deductions 8,126,691 7,691,408

Note: The capital ratios as at 31 December 2011 have not been restated as a
result of the adoption of the amendments to Hong Kong Accounting Standard 12
“Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets” in the current period.
Accordingly, the comparative amounts under the core capital would not
correspond with the figures in the consolidated financial information.

Deductions from the total capital base mainly include investments in
subsidiaries of which their risk-weighted assets have not been consolidated into
the total risk-weighted assets of the Group, which mainly conduct non-banking
related business. Those subsidiaries are Chong Hing Commodities and Futures
Limited, Chong Hing Insurance Company Limited, Chong Hing (Management)
Limited, Chong Hing (Nominees) Limited and Chong Hing Securities Limited.
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4. vEEE 4. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
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The Group’s information concerning geographical analysis has been
classified by the location of the principal operations of the branches and
subsidiary companies responsible for reporting the results or booking the
assets. Details are set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS - BY INDUSTRY SECTORS

The Group’s gross advances to customers (including advances booked in
overseas branches and subsidiaries) are analysed and reported by industry
sectors according to the usage of the loans and / or business activities of
the borrowers. Details are set out in Note 7 (credit risk) to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group’s advances to customers overdue for over three months, and
new impairment allowances and advances written off during the year ended
31 December 2012 and 2011 in respect of industry sectors which constitute
not less than 10 per cent of gross advances to customers are analysed as
follows:
2012
R+=H=+—H
W =MH RS
DEZBS  Biiiem R
Advances New  Eigkakdi
overdue for impairment Advances
over three  allowances written-off
months as at during during
31 December the year  the year
EHTe  ERTT TR
HK$°000  HK$000 HK$°000
Loans for use in Hong Kong
Industrial, commercial and financial

- Property investment 12,893 1 -
- Others 5,192 278 120
Individuals
- Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 438 - -
Loans for used outside Hong Kong 71,716 127 195
2011
R+-H=+—H

EW=MA JEEE
DEZB Bl EE
Advances New  H#akH

overdue for impairment Advances
over three  allowances written-off
months as at during during
31 December the year  the year
T T EBT
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Loans for use in Hong Kong
Industrial, commercial and financial

- Property investment 13,245 10 -
- Others 28918 7,220 -
Individuals
- Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties - - -
Loans for used outside Hong Kong 2,692 5,431 -
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6. HPHE - W 6. ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS - BY GEOGRAPHICAL AREAS
ABE 2% P B AR K The Group’s gross advances to customers by countries or geographical
T bl o J - 4855 B B i R IR 2 4% areas after taking into account any risk transfers are as follows:
PHAT
2012
EW=MA
Pk B il i
Advances WA R
oeh overdue JHfHER Individual Collective
Total for over Impaired impairment impairment

advances three months advances allowance allowance

BT T BT ERTI ERTI
HK$000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

i Hong Kong 37,188,661 113,460 21,886 23266 151,692
A\ R AR People’s Republic of China 832,593 2308 2,308 788 5,070
bl Macau 231,764 = = = 2,318
%R America 535,681 - - S 5,426
Hft Others 403,490 - - - -

39,192,189 115768 24,194 24054 164,506

2011

wy=wH
PRz B i i
Advances WA S
B am overdue Jf{fiff5% Individual Collective
Total for over Impaired impairment impairment
advances three months advances allowance allowance
BT BB BT BRTe BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

Fis Hong Kong 39,707,568 94,937 75497 39440 161,768
HhE | RERTR People’s Republic of China 622,384 2692 2,69 1,113 4,141
b G} Macau 114,711 - - - 669
e America 451,395 - - - 5437
Hith Others 442,426 - - - _

41,338,484 97,629 78,189 40,555 172,015
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7. BSBIRHE 7. CROSS-BORDER CLAIMS
7 B8 B 5 I i A 8 ] 5 o 1 The Group’s cross-border claims by countries or geographical areas which
G33E o BB NG M KRR R #E % constitute 10% or more of the relevant disclosure items after taking into

138 5 5 T i e 204k 4 o B 2 5 59 account any risk transfers are as follows:
ZTELL R BT
ZH - HET—H
31 December 2012
)3 B Hefth
T 5 ek
Banks ZA# B
and other Public
financial sector $fl o]

institutions entities Others Total

ERTT BT BETIC EBTR
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000

BOKME (FHERRIL) Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong ~ 20,341,530 90,476 861,630 21,293,636
- Hrp - i - of which - China 9,268,912 32,078 580,226 9,881,216
- Hir- HA - of which - Japan 3,875,185 3,241 1,679 3,880,105

e R U
31 December 2011

[GE a8
W B b

Banks B
and other Public

financial sector A M
institutions entities Others Total
BT BWTI BRTI BB
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000

RRWE (FHER) Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong 15,487,390 918,826 734,718 17,140,934
- Horp - i - of which - China 8,456,240 857,526 571,831 9,885,597
- Horfr - WO - of which - Australia 2,815,725 2,223 - 2.817,948
TGER Western Europe 2,857,996 2,525 169,331 3,029,852
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8. BiEmkE 8. CURRENCY RISK

7 S 1 1R 9 R R A M i
2 o HF M LR - G A B R A

The Group’s foreign currency exposures arising from non-trading and

structural position which constitute 10% or more of the total net position

B Z e EE > PBaE

in all foreign currencies are as follows:

2012

e N mam

US$ RMB Total

T T EH Equivalent in thousand of HK$

BE&RE Spot assets 14,311,091 6,588,766 20,899,857
BEAM Spot liabilities (9,612,043) (5,364,226) (14,976,269)
EEA Forward purchases 338,731 18,405 357,136
HIE Forward sales (5,011,862) (1,096,712) (6,108,574)
R Net long position 25,917 146,233 172,150
L AR o

MOP RMB Total

R AT Net structural position 48,545 351,377 399,922

2011
AR
RMB
T A Equivalent in thousand of HK$

HE&RE Spot assets 6,496,856
BEafm Spot liabilities (6,307,434)
[ =N Forward purchases 264,518
HIE Forward sales (383,066)
RRFH Net long position 70,874
W N mam

MOP RMB Total

R AR Net structural position 48,545 105,169 153,714
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9. iR EAEE 9. OVERDUE AND RESCHEDULED ASSETS
2012
Hamm e
Gross ZHEK
amount of Percentage
advances to total
BT advances
HK$°000 %
X Advances overdue for
-AEARLIFE=MMA D - 6 months or less but over 3 months 78,204 0.2
- —HEE DTS A D - 1 year or less but over 6 months 5,012 0.0
- - over 1 year 32,552 0.1
CapiNE ek ] Total overdue advances 115,768 0.3
HIl 2 HHK Rescheduled advances 210,821 0.5
748 30 55 5K P TR i 3 Individual impairment allowances made
in respect of overdue loans and advances 23,723
2011
Ham Esa
Gross ZHEHK
amount of Percentage
advances to total
i T advances
HK$’000 %
I EK Advances overdue for
- A~EASU I E=FA D - 6 months or less but over 3 months 30,179 0.1
- —SEE U A BLE - 1 year or less but over 6 months 16,141 0.0
- - over 1 year 51,309 0.1
M G K AR Total overdue advances 97,629 0.2
HlZEX Rescheduled advances 219,858 0.5
A4 ) K 0 A ) 9 £ 4 Individual impairment allowances made
in respect of overdue loans and advances 35,758
BAb 2 391 68 5 o 1K 40 o v 4 50 A The value of the security of the above overdue advances is analysed as
WE: follows:
2012 2011
T BT
HK$000  HK$’°000
B AR Covered portion of overdue loans and advances 99,371 68,867
PIe il UGS 64 Uncovered portion of overdue loans and advances 16,397 28,762
115,768 97,629
ﬁ BEZ IS E RIS 2 m Market value of collateral held against covered
it portion of overdue loans and advances 1,487,330 252,500
|
Iglqr, RZF-_H+_A=Z+—HERZ% There were no advances to banks and other financial institutions or other assets
I ——H+ZH=Z+—H BEPHER which were overdue for over three months as at 31 December 2012 and
"%, HLAt BN < R B At 7 > I 31 December 2011, nor were there any rescheduled advances to banks and other
% i =0 H DAk s A K o financial institutions.
s
,E AEER _F -+ A=+ —H Repossessed assets held by the Group as at 31 December 2012 amounted to
e Fit F A 2 Tl A A 2 v W HK$48,320,000 (2011: HK$63,050,000).
48,320,000 JC (= % — — 4 @ ¥ W

63,050,000 JT.) ©
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10. B IESRTT B T 11 Bk 35 10. NON-BANK MAINLAND EXPOSURES
ot -t et £ = e |

31 December 2012
HEAMK HARAMX i3
PianypmE Dk HE A Al
On-balance Off-balance Individual
sheet sheet #4%1 impairment
exposure exposure Total allowance

BT ERTL ERTR EETR
HK$’000  HK$000 HK$’000  HK$’000

TR 6 31 Types of counterparties
PR Mainland entities 2,832,392 710,131 3,542,523 =
HIENHAF RN » Companies and individuals
85 B IR B 9 T7A P S £ P outside Mainland where the
credit is granted for use in
Mainland 5,373,881 1,206,393 6,580,274 7,445
LAt R R 2 X B 2 Other counterparties the exposures
BT 2 EE to whom are considered to be
non-bank Mainland exposures 91,659 - 91,659 -
8,297,932 1,916,524 10,214,456 7,445
“H A
31 December 2011
HEAfK ARAafx fil33
DnimH  DokibsiH il (L HE Al
On-balance Off-balance Individual
sheet sheet #4%1 impairment
exposure exposure Total  allowance
BT EBTT BETRH  BRTR
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000
TR A 531 Types of counterparties
P s Mainland entities 1,870,137 231,133 2,101,270 -
BIEnt A F R A Companies and individuals
i 5 B IR 3K 7% P S £ P outside Mainland where the
credit is granted for use in
Mainland 4,572,958 1,177,710 5,750,668 12,392
Lt 2 35 e 2 Other counterparties the exposures
BTG B H to whom are considered to be
non-bank Mainland exposures 61,110 - 61,110 -
6,504,205 1,408,843 7,913,048 12,392
11. REE TR 11. LIQUIDITY RATIO
2012 2011
% %
o Sy B b < e o Average liquidity ratio for the year 44.91 42.41

SERPREIE B L > TR ARERAT ~
AIBLHF %A R 2 6] ~ Right Way
Investments Limited & & &6 R
Bl 2B AR - RPEA W (AT
SEMRA0D B RO SR H SE R iR )
HBHEZ I > fEE 7R -

The average liquidity ratio is calculated as the ratio, expressed as a

percentage, of the average of each calendar month’s average ratio, as

specified in the Fourth Schedule of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance,

with reference to the financial information of the Bank, Chong Hing
Finance Limited, Right Way Investments Limited and Gallbraith Limited.
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12. {5 AT ~ vid 35 B S8 05 45 48 Tl B3 2
B EELR

R S B 8 2 B R R R
IR o J 9 e S AEDR A 52 B H2 A R
b 307 W B RE Jail B A 4f DA
8% Bt » A G B 2 B
B o

(i) 155 1 BR Z B A 2R

B 77 B Ay
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A e S o 7 95 ) L i il e
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12. CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, MARKET AND
OPERATIONAL RISKS

The capital requirements for each class of exposures are summarised below.
This disclosure is made by multiplying the Group’s risk-weighted amount
derived from the relevant computation method by 8%, not the Group’s
actual regulatory capital.

(i) Capital charge for credit risk
BABIE

Capital requirement

2012 2011

EWTIE  ERTC
HK$000  HK$’000

Sovereign exposures - -

Public sector entity exposures 12,064 13,712
Bank exposures 637,571 447,626
Securities firm exposures 12,728 11,636
Corporate exposures 2,113,331 2,208,505
Cash items 1,896 3,491
Regulatory retail exposures 7,755 15,640
Residential mortgage loans 412,106 393,198

Other exposures which are not
past due exposures 507,278 405,020

Past due exposures 18,779 24,212

Total capital charge for on-balance

sheet exposures 3,723,508 3,523,040
Direct credit substitutes 64,225 72,447
Trade-related contingencies 5,310 4,646
Forward asset purchases 629 684
Other commitments 210,440 181,068
Exchange rate contracts 1,829 1,173
Interest rate contracts 4,318 3,088

Total capital charge for off-balance
sheet exposures 286,751 263,106

Total capital charge for credit risk 4,010,259 3,786,146
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12. {5~ Hi B R EHEEM Z  12. CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, MARKET AND

BASEOR - 5 OPERATIONAL RISKS - continued
(i) B Z E A TR (ii) Capital charge for market risk
TH 20 35 JE ks A BRI E The market risk capital charge set out below relates to net
REEPKR _F——F+_H open positions of the Group’s foreign exchange exposures of
= HZ A HE A I i A HK$568,800,000 as at 31 December 2012 (2011: HK$248,750,000).
568,800,000 J& (—FE——H : There are no other market risk exposures as at that date.
U5 % 248,750,000 JG) © A &S
I 3fz 1 2 il 713 455 Jal B o
BAREOR
Capital charge
2012 2011
T E¥T
HK$’000 HKS$’000
A4 I R AR 3 Foreign exchange exposures
(U5 S K 0THE) (including gold and options) 45,504 19,900
T35 Rz E A Bk Capital charge for market risk 45,504 19,900
7 5 B BR PR (T 5 LB ) The Group uses the Standardised (Market Risk) Approach for
S8R 3k DA 55T 55 B o calculating market risk.
(iii) SR BRI RRR 2 E A BR (iii) Capital charge for operational risk
BAEOR
Capital charge
2012 2011
BT E%T
HK$°000 HK$°000
SRS RIE R 2 B AR Capital charge for operational risk 182,817 178,860
7N B8 B R ) EE A SRR R DA The Group uses the Basic Indicator Approach for calculating
SRS B R o operational risk.
13. Jala i B 13. RISK MANAGEMENT
N
() e EEs (i) Credit risk S
(H) {5 &iE (a) Credit risk exposures g
o
AR R B Moody’s Investors Service is the external credit assessment I
e 75 1 25 9% 345 H RE A institution (the “ECAI”) that the Group has used in relation to E
BEHE > DLREE T O & I each class of exposures set out below. The process used to map _lc
Z R BB RE o IR GERE ECAI issuer ratings to exposures booked in the banking book is ,*“é
TR BT R Py LA 45 T a process as prescribed in Part 4 of the Banking (Capital) Rules. =
EX -
w Al B A TR E
ZRF O IR E (HUT R >
CEA) BN 4B 2 I;)
ok o 5
O
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13. JulbE 1 - 13. RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
() 5 AmEE - 4 (i) Credit risk - continued
CH) {5 mUBSR I - 4

(a) Credit risk exposures - continued

B
=
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| ]
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Il
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g
o
T
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2012
5 P B A 38 4
Class of credit risk exposures
WEAT  WEA
it A
B AR P JRBRRE B
$h 2 2 o AT | i
Warg MeRE mRIERE  WBIE  Total Total
JilgRSE  Exposuresafter  MEFd: s M4 exposures  exposures
MH  recognised credit Risk-weighted  Total risk- covered by covered by
Total risk mitigation amounts weighted recognised recognised
exposures Rated Unrated  Rated Unrated amounts collateral guarantees
BT #lTT BT EMETT BRI BBTo BMTE  EMTE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HKS$000
i~ B AN A. On-balance Sheet
=~ B 1. Sovereign 5,664,641 5,664,641 > > - - - -
T BEH 2. Public sector entity 285,140 334735 419281 66947 83856 150,803 = =
=T 3. Bank 27,091,234 26470080 621,154 7815379 154,264 17,969,643 - -
LR 4. Securities firm 318,201 - 318,201 - 159101 159,101 - -
T~ M 5. Corporate 28,873,008 5,382,975 22,589,218 3827425 22,589,218 26,416,643 854,295 548,671
~ HEEE 6. Cash items 374,229 - 1312835 - 23,703 23,703 - -
t BERE 7. Regulatory retail 132,967 - 129254 - 96941 96,941 3,713 =
o fEEBRER 8. Residential mortgage
loan 10,944,157 - 10,499,938 - 5,151,325 5,151,325 21924 422,295
Jus NEEHR 9. Other exposures
Hofto b kit which are not
past due exposures 6,399,046 - 6,340,972 - 6,340,972 6,340,972 58,674 -
-~ i A 4 10. Past due exposures 229,687 - 229,687 - 234739 234739 219,539 -
L~ HEARIN B. Off-balance Sheet
- HEARRI R 1. Off-balance sheet
HIERES exposures other
kTR than OTC
RfEAfELH derivative
B transactions or
credit derivative
contracts 4,008,122 370,555 3,637,567 118,720 3,388,839 3,507,559 278,936 113,747
B TARS 2. OTC derivative
transactions 320456 313974 6,483 70,360 6,483 76,842 - -
TEAEREA AL Exposures deducted from
i bt Capital Base 241,422
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13. JEUBEE P - 4
() AP - B
CHY) 50 Bg & 3 -

13. RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
(i) Credit risk - continued

(a) Credit risk exposures - continued

2011
175 JE U RGUAR 4#8 S
Class of credit risk exposures
WA A
i R
oA 1 P B JRBRRE BB
e s k| ik
WS MR mRERE  Eb Total Total
R BR Exposures after B4t T4 M% exposures  exposures
W recognised credit Risk-weighted ~ Total risk- covered by covered by
Total risk mitigation amounts weighted recognised recognised
exposures Rated  Unrated  Rated Unrated amounts collateral guarantees
BT BT BT EWTe BT BET BBt BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HKS$000  HKS$’000
i~ B AN A. On-balance Sheet
=~ B 1. Sovereign 7615758 7,695417 - - - - - -
T BEELE 2. Public sector entity 386,064 407252 449730 81451 89,946 171,397 - -
SRy i1H) 3. Bank 22,112,060 21,495,119 537,083 5487863 107457 5,595,320 - 79638
1Y ~ RAGE 4. Securities firm 290893 23314 267579 11,657 133790 145447 - -
T~ M 5. Corporate 29901,633 3,604,081 25431,772 2,174,536 25,431,772 27,606,308 865,781 738,385
7~ BEHE 6. Cashitems 580,107 - 1,554,044 - 3638 43638 - -
£ BESE 7. Regulatory retail 268,456 - 260,664 - 195498 195498 7,792 -
N~ BB ER 8. Residential mortgage
loan 10,559,629 - 10,069,084 - 4914977 4914977 20,227 470,318
Jus NEEHR 9. Other exposures
et R A which are not
past due exposures 5,142,882 - 5,062,745 - 5,062,745 5,062,745 80,137 -
T~ i 10. Past due exposures 295,191 - 295,191 - 302653 302,65 270,507 -
¢~ HEARIN B. Off-balance Sheet
-~ BEARII R 1. Off-balance sheet
BAERAES exposures other
fETHRS than OTC
REAfELH derivative
o transactions or
credit derivative
contracts 3,770,601 394176 3,376,425 190,178 3,045,369 3,235,547 282,742 141,000
Z SR TR 2. OTC derivative
transactions 198,767 190,174 8,593 44,670 8,593 53,263 - -
TEREREE AR Exposures deducted from
i bt Capital Base 241,192
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BE_F - ZH=E1T—HILFE

for the year ended 31 December 2012
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L5k 25.191,817,000 7¢
(ZF—— 5 B¥
24,837,492,0007C ) fr #E g
1,758,373,000 jC (% —
—4F @ WY 1,758,373,000
76) TEHEH & o

(Z) BT 755 R Bg & i

NGRS 2 S
RIS Eg Sl bR TR
TH > DEEME K&
AL EBADE o JH DA 1
PR A R £ B 7
BT 07 15 0 B ¢
Tk o PRI (T
(A BHTY o B35 ir A
THZ T8 258 BLF
ZHAT RS o W
— B SHEHE (A o

AREMIEA LM ETH
B2 5 A5 I J B #fE i
WF o REF 12
H=Z+—H s A
THEH -

LA TR
AP IR
(EYEER L&
JuRL g A S

13, JEBBEE BE - 13. RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
(i) Avi PR - (i) Credit risk - continued
(HY) 5 mBB R - a1 (a) Credit risk exposures - continued

5\% S B BLGAF K 53 50 By Properties and cash deposits are recognised collateral for past due
@%ﬁ}ﬁllﬁﬁ?ﬁ%}ﬂﬂﬁﬂ% exposures and other exposures respectively. Recognised guarantees
< ﬁ‘y“{‘ﬁj A o Hil AT are guarantees issued by banks and the Government of the HKSAR.
&?%ﬂﬁ Fi g iz R The Group has also taken properties and listed shares as collateral
] 5“7‘] wl i R LZ,K £ pledged as security against loans totalling HK$25,191,817,000
B2 e b i

(2011: HK$24,837,492,000) and HK$1,758,373,000 (2011:
HK$1,758,373,000) respectively.

(b) Counter-party credit risk exposures

The Group enters into Over-The-Counter (“OTC”) derivative
transactions, mainly exchange and interest rate contracts,
for hedging customers’ and own positions. The methodology used
to assign internal capital and credit limits for counter-party credit
exposures is based on Banking (Capital) Rules. Counter-parties
of these OTC derivative transactions are reputable banks and
security firms and collateral is not normally required.

The following table summarises the Group’s credit exposures
arising from OTC derivative transactions. There is no credit
derivative contract outstanding as at 31 December 2012.

PO T HEY
OTC derivative
transactions
2012 2011

EWTIE  EBTR
HK$°000  HK$’000

OTC derivative

Gross total positive fair value 187,911 129,556
Credit equivalent amounts 320,456 198,767
Risk-weighted amounts 76,843 53,263




UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
HWE_F - ZH=E1—HILFE
for the year ended 31 December 2012

() DA P Dl i i
7 5% B — i 5% 3Z 1A

REMEHRDLREER financial guarantees to support loans and advances made to ~
EK o HA S NI S £R customers. However, on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet >
HREARRA R A netting and credit derivative contracts are not used for credit risk i:
FOVF G AS A mitigation purposes. ,,8,-
TH&MMERRAREH °_;
Jok B 5 O 2

E
WEER AN 2 3 T HEH Main types of recognised collateral include cash deposits and 32
WEHSER R properties, whereas main types of recognised guarantees include _.E
mFEEFE T AR financial guarantees issued by banks and the Government of the =
AT B 7 W LR e 28 H HKSAR. A
Z B o g

(o]

8

O

(c) Credit risk mitigation

13, JEUBE B - 4 13. RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
(i) 5 PRS- (i) Credit risk - continued
(2) BFFEHmBERYE - 5 (b) Counter-party credit risk exposures - continued
15 P 5 {15 9802 N JL e I The breakdown of the credit equivalent amounts and the
W Z A H 5 3Eus - risk-weighted amount is summarised as follows:
B TRZY
OTC derivative
transactions
2012 2011
EETIe EWTI
HK$°000 HK$°000
Notional amounts:
- Banks 11,865,629 5,183,410
- Corporates 464,619 869,195
- Others 60,000 60,000
12,390,248 6,112,605
& e - Credit equivalent amounts:
- BT - Banks 311,011 185,021
- Corporates 4,359 9,902
- Others 5,087 3,844
320,457 198,767
JEL R A g Risk-weighted amounts:
- BT - Banks 68,754 42,094
- HE - Corporates 3,002 7,325
- Hh - Others 5,087 3,844
76,843 53,263

The Group generally accepts collateral pledged as security and
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BE_F - ZH=E1T—HILFE

for the year ended 31 December 2012

13. JalbEE B - 13. RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
() 1SR - & (i) Credit risk - continued

() JE A5 P D B i - 2t

(c) Credit risk mitigation - continued

The Group only accepts collateral pledged as security:

A G5 1 U 32 TR ST

=
111 Y

- T MRE R B

* when it is readily realisable;

- I AR

* when it has stable value that can be quantified or supported by

W25 Gt S ekl e b {E valuation; and
hEE R

* IR HER G RE I

e the title of which can be verified and legally assigned to the

T o ARG Group.

TAGEM o
A5 [ Y & KBUR 2 i Loan to value (collateral value) ratios are prescribed by the Lending
A [ 6 3R RT A2 HH R Policy of the Group for various types of loan. At loan inception

Z B BB (A TR )
Z LB o JRFTHE R

and renewal, collateral to be pledged as security is valued by

reference to its market value. Collateral is subject to re-valuation

e
e
Ly
N
|
[0}
Il
|
5]
<
i
e
el
&
@

ERERIR > DS E A on a regular basis and at times of significant price fluctuations of
FEAHCH R (R o K31 the underlying assets. Physical custody of title documents such as
R I EOR R E title deeds of properties and deposit certificates of cash deposits
A% X ik 5 Bl 1 o A o are required to be placed with the Group. Completion of
HE 25 L2 201y 3 295 registration of charges on the collateral pledged as security with
EWEREEDRBEE the relevant authorities is a condition precedent for granting secured
Fif o PR Rl 240 loans.

Ji B 75 R 2 it T

Bz S P o



UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
HWE_F - ZH=E1—HILFE
for the year ended 31 December 2012

13. Jil BB - i 13. RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
(i) HEHpEdsb (ii) Asset Securitisation
AR E R Y (B2 L) S The Group uses the standardised (securitisation) approach to calculate
Wt R R E E 215 sk the credit risk for securitisation exposures, and is an investing institution
A AREEIR SRS for all classes of exposures set out below.
HRE T 2y — B B o
7 552 B R PR R 2l 52 R IR s Moody’s Investors Services is the ECAI that the Group has used in
HLER S SRS BERE o SRR A relation to the rated securitisation exposures set out below:
A B % 27 AL I Rk 4
2012
I ERITE S
BOEA W A
JEEFAREHA  Exposures deducted from its
QOutstanding Core  Supplementary
AL R Securitisation exposures amounts Capital Capital
T BT BT
HK$000  HK$’000 HK$’000
gL Traditional securitisations
RIS TH Structured investment vehicles 156 78 78
2011
113905 5 B o
AN<EN [(Hy1<%S
JEBFIREEE  Exposures deducted from its
Outstanding Core  Supplementary
Eiezala o] Securitisation exposures amounts  Capital Capital
T BT T
HK$000  HK$’000 HK$°000
g Traditional securitisations
AR TH Structured investment vehicles 156 78 78
(iii) RATHE M PR 2 e RE Jl b Ak 1% (iii) Equity exposures in banking book
AN [ AR I AN T8 25 5 1T 2 H AR The Group adopts a policy of holding equity securities for long-term
BRZEMTEHE o KMz investment purposes. Equity holdings taken for strategic reasons are
R HERF S T BUE MBI R D primarily associate operations that complement directly the Group’s
BN & A B8 B o AT T HoAth banking and other financial services business.
S5 Ml 5 S 5 o
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BE_F - ZH=E1T—HILFE

Jor the year ended 31 December 2012

13. JulbE 1 -
(iii) SRATHRI P Z B RE RS AR IE -

13. RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

(iii) Equity exposures in banking book - continued

5
i
i
X
|
(201
Il
|
o’
«
o
T
b
@

JBe i DAy {6 M B 2 < el
AR > MRz @ Gt BRI
TR ER G B R R Z B B 4 o TR
EAEH o BB SR DL T
AN > 2P T R H R
LR a7 | | N ot ]
1B 74N it 75 DA A (St il A ) 4
{6 A M ol 6 )% 2 LA 28
Z b 2 E] 2 R B R A B
Bo i B 4% ] SEATR R FEI] o
FEBTHZEUT » BeA 775k
EWE » DU e B 3 (R
TR

£
P B A 2 C BT A
R B EAME TG
- R i i H A5 A R 23
Mz B
- RLFETR BRI AR P o2 B

(iv) SRAT MR PO 2 A 56 Bl B 415

A5 O B T AR 2 B RE 7 AW
38 o oz R e i ik 2
B BE o it SR 3 B 7K 3
IR > A G Al 1 2 4 5
FOEERBUR AR A+ A W
ﬁm o

5 RS 452 10 P % R T A 2
TPk WRERAE R LR AT
SATY B A 2 S E) > PR E R
BWIEHAH BT -

22 e
it o T
- faRlsEE (+100 LB

- KIS (-10 2655

Equity securities are accounted for as available-for-sale financial
assets, the accounting policy of which is set out in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements. At the balance sheet date, listed
equity securities are stated at fair value which is determined by
reference to prices quoted in the respective stock markets. Unlisted
equity securities are valued at cost, as adjusted to reflect earning
multiples for comparable listed companies if the investee companies
are performing at or above expectation. When deemed necessary,
equity securities are carried at written down value to reflect the
impairment in value of those investee companies.

2012 2011
EWTR  EWT
HK$000  HKS$ 000
THE GROUP

Net realised gains from sales 594 697

Net unrealised revaluation gains:

- Amount included in reserves but not

through income statement 216,248 28,870
- Amount included in supplementary
capital 30,122 27,225

(iv) Interest rate exposures in banking book

Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements sets out the nature
and the frequency of measurement of the interest rate risk.
In measuring the interest rate exposures, the Group assumes that past
contractual re-pricing behaviour will continue in the same manner
over the next 12 months.

Variations in earnings for significant upward and downward interest
rate movements in accordance with the method the Group uses for
stress-testing, broken down by major currencies are set out below:

2012
Fi

Currency

£ T % U
HK$ US$ Others  Total

Interest rate risk shock
Equivalents in thousands of HK$
- Variations in earnings (+100 basis points) ~ 93,087 28,246 (22,313) 99,020

- Variations in earnings (-10 basis points) 9,309 (2,824 2,231  (9,902)




UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
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13. JRUBS B - 4 13. RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
(iv) SUTHRMEAZ 3 J s AR HE - 4 (iv) Interest rate exposures in banking book - continued
2011
i
Currency
i Fr e A
HKS$ US$ Others  Total
I Interest rate risk shock
it R i} Equivalents in thousands of HK$
- BRIEEE) (+100 2E5) - Variations in earnings (+100 basis points) 96,216 (134) (10397) 85,685
- FRISEE) (10 K5) - Variations in earnings (-10 basis points) ~ (9,622) 13 1,040 (8,569
14. ZRAREHE 14. BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
LR A BB ik 2 E R A AT The consolidated financial statements cover the consolidated financial
e Eo i 5 b e 2 vl a3 & B E Bk information of the Bank and all its subsidiaries and included the attributable
MU B 2 Wi 8 A W) o2 Al o share of interest in the Group’s associates.
i B AS R I 1) ¥ AN 7 R RE R R R ) In preparing the capital adequacy ratio and liquidity ratio of the Group,
BHERHE 2HHFRENEZ they are prepared according to the basis of consolidation for regulatory
AR R R S o T dm A E e st purposes. The main difference between the consolidation basis for
HERBEHBZHFEER IR accounting and regulatory purposes is that the former includes the Bank,
SR R AERAT ~ i all its subsidiaries and the attributable share of interests in the Group’s
Fif Ja 2% W) B A B B 2 Wi 88 A W] 2 associates whereas the latter includes the Bank and only some of the
HER: > MR E L ERBARITRERE Group’s subsidiaries which mainly conduct banking business or other
T 5y 2 AR g BT 2 S B fth B business incidental to banking business.

BT S B AT B WO B e 2 ] o

15. Bl 2 gAY 15. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

CONSOLIDATION

RIEERAH Card Alliance Company Limited

RIS RE I A TR A Chong Hing Commodities and Futures Limited

RIS B PR H] Chong Hing Finance Limited

RIS RHEA R A H Chong Hing Information Technology Limited g

AIBLLR B PR A H] Chong Hing Insurance Company Limited %

RIS (REFEH) FIRAHE Chong Hing (Management) Limited E%

AlEl (fRH) HIRAH Chong Hing (Nominees) Limited g

RIS 55 25 PR ] Chong Hing Securities Limited :(

R Gallbraith Limited 8

WA PR A Hero Marker Limited :§

Right Way Investments Limited Right Way Investments Limited .§

EEEEA R A Top Benefit Enterprise Limited ;5:»
o)
c
5
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DISCLOSURE OF CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

R-F—-=4F=HLH
as of 7 March 2013

WEFEHRAZZNERAA
("W P 2) #8355 B BLAISE 13.51B(1)
W K B3 13.51B(3) B 0 KRR A F
555 % 12 EL 2w BN R Rt
55 176 ELH H 2 ¥ 95 5 I i 2 B 4 >
WP REEHAT

BAREER F-==HtH
AT AS BRATAT AR B — W > BUATIRAL
Z B 3 e R AR T o

BERAER-F-=F=HtH
ARAT B R O 2 2 AN BRAT 1T BUA K >
R AT: R Wk o 2 5 5 o AT BUARER

BEmicER % -4+ H
=t HEEARBRITIEEBEER -

WMk EER T -1 A
b H R AR RAT E OB B
RoFE-=ZH=HLHERES
w17 BA K e

ETRmicER _F -4 1+2H
= — BB A BT R OB B K
NoF-=ZH=ZHELHEEES
R AT B o

b b alhl @& 4% > W B A 81 17
el R A o] H At 9 2 R R
Wh2E a2 L LRSS 13.51B(1) HH &
55 13.51B(3) JE 1 7 1F i 2% o

Pursuant to Rules 13.51B(1) and 13.51B(3) of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “HKSE”), other than those changes in directors’ biographical data
as set out on pages 5 to 12, as well as their emoluments as set out on page 176,

of this annual report, the changes in directors’ information are set out as follows:

Mr LIU Lit Chi retired as the Bank’s Chief Executive Officer on 7 March 2013,
now holding the title of Deputy Chairman and Managing Director.

Mr LAU Wai Man succeeded Mr LIU Lit Chi as the Bank’s Chief Executive
Officer on 7 March 2013, thereby holding the title of Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer.

Mr Andrew LIU resigned as the Bank’s Non-executive Director on 31 December
2012.

Mr TSANG Chiu Wing resigned as the Bank’s Executive Director on
31 December 2012 and was appointed as its Deputy Chief Executive Officer
on 7 March 2013.

Mr WONG Har Kar resigned as the Bank’s Executive Director on 31 December
2012 and was appointed as its Deputy Chief Executive Officer on 7 March
2013.

Other than those disclosed above, there is no other information in respect of
the above directors and any other directors of the Bank required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rules 13.51B(1) and 13.51B(3) of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on HKSE.



Mot~ EERWESA kKRR
HEAD OFFICE, BRANCHES, PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATES

HoF—=F=HEH

as of 7 March 2013
GEA
Telephone
A1y T HE PRI v 24 9% 3768 1111
HEAD OFFICE 24 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
1T
HONG KONG ISLAND BRANCHES
HHAT FrdEAF K98 166 % 168 5} 2553 9472
Aberdeen 166-168 Aberdeen Main Road
S A 488 BF 2893 6225
Causeway Bay 488 Jaffe Road
i 5 WA 12 2575 3201
Happy Valley 1-9 Yuk Sau Street
By HLELIE 376 Bk 2570 0585
North Point 376 King’s Road
[lif =g TEUGRE TG 81 %8 85 W} 2547 6513
Sai Ying Pun 81-85 Des Voeux Road West
HHE T4 IIE 203 % 205 9% 2560 6277
Shau Kei Wan 203-205 Shau Kei Wan Road
st AREET 163 9] 2543 0653
Sheung Wan 163 Wing Lok Street
B I JE 55 265 % 267 9% 2511 3931
‘Wan Chai 265-267 Hennessy Road
BR Lo BT R R Gl1A B 2976 0880
Wan Tsui Estate Shop No. G11A, G/F, Wan Tsui Shopping Centre
‘Wan Tsui Estate, Chai Wan
(] FHIHR PG 347 2 349 9% 2547 3809
Western 347-349 Des Voeux Road West
U AT
KOWLOON BRANCHES
HIlE FH11E 285 % 287 9% 2387 2421
Castle Peak Road 285-287 Castle Peak Road
g REUE TEKBL G B G RE RS 112 9% 3514 6477
Hoi Lai Estate Shop No. 112, Hoi Lai Shopping Centre
Hoi Lai Estate, Sham Shui Po
W1t YA 114 9% 2342 6386

How Ming Street

114 How Ming Street
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Moatr > ERWESAE kKRR ZR A
HEAD OFFICE, BRANCHES, PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATES
R_F—-ZFE=ZHEH

as of 7 March 2013
il
Telephone
IS 1T -
KOWLOON BRANCHES - continued
ek PEBURAAT 120 MR 2735 8559
Jordan G/F, 120 Woosung Street, Jordan
JUiH JUBEE 2B S 8 i H L Rg O T 8 5% 2750 8838
Kowloon Bay Shop Unit 8, G/F, Chevalier Commercial Centre
8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay
JUREYR TRl 31 2 33 9% 2382 7392
Kowloon City 31-33 Nga Tsin Wai Road
% Ji% EE R 3 FH 5 5 205 % 2717 2414
Kwong Tin Estate No. 205, Kwong Tin Shopping Centre, Kwong Tin Estate
By Pt 31 %8 33 9% 2342 7328
Kwun Tong 31-33 Mut Wah Street
B Tk 8 139 5% 2391 1573
Lai Chi Kok Road 139 Lai Chi Kok Road
fim YR ML RS R RIS LG R 2772 6320
Lei Yue Mun Shop No. LG1, Lower Ground Floor
Lei Yue Mun Plaza, Yau Tong
LEVEE] B 591 9% 3768 0001
Mongkok 591 Nathan Road
B EL LB R G5 2 #4 203B-204 5% 2190 4110
Po Tat Estate Shop No. 203B-204, 2/F, Po Tat Shopping Centre
Po Tat Estate, Kwun Tong
A i b FTBEET 55 2 57 9% 23255303
San Po Kong 55-57 Yin Hing Street
R KA 144 % 148 9% 2777 4441
Sham Shui Po 144-148 Tai Po Road
G i G 4 ) i At 2342 7141
Shun Lee Estate Lee Yat House, Shun Lee Estate
- TR R P W 2 T R 207 9% 2775 1175
it Tak Tin Estate No. 207, Tak Tin Plaza, Tak Tin Estate
H
I + SN 34 78 34A B 2711 4404
|E|(r1 To Kwa Wan 34-34A Tam Kung Road
) . ,
" RWIH InE R 16 9% 2369 4091
}"g‘ Tsim Sha Tsui 16 Granville Road
X .
T BE BT 60 2 64 % 23270913
E Tsz Wan Shan 60-64 Sheung Fung Street
<HA
@




Mot~ EERWESA kKRR
HEAD OFFICE, BRANCHES, PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATES
REF—-=ZF=HEH

as of 7 March 2013
it
Telephone
Wistom 1t
NEW TERRITORIES BRANCHES
LYY V[ R K U 455 AR PR R L1196 ZE L1199 Bk 2463 9263
Butterfly Estate Shop Nos. L196-L199, G/F, Tip Ling House
Butterfly Plaza, Butterfly Estate, Tuen Mun
el HARRFURR 2N, 3 B304 T2 311 5% 2495 7697
Cheung Fat Estate Shop Nos. 304 & 311, Level 3
Cheung Fat Plaza, Cheung Fat Estate, Tsing Yi
it AL C AR 27422211
Cho Yiu Chuen G/F, Block C, King Cho Road
¥ W15t ORISR WG 35 2 B 265, 267 &8 268 4% 3409 5375
Choi Ming Court Shop Nos. 265 & 267-268, 2/F, Choi Ming Shopping Centre
Choi Ming Court, Tseung Kwan O
B o Sl AT 2 Bk 2675 6203
Fanling 2 Wo Lung Street, Luen Wo Market, Fanling
AR WA IR AR RS | 101 BE 2453 7630
Fu Tai Estate Shop 101, Level 1, Fu Tai Shopping Centre
Fu Tai Estate, Tuen Mun
JE L8R S AR S R v 3 B L1 1-112 5% 2706 1863

Hau Tak Estate Shop Nos. L111-112, 1/F, West Wing
Hau Tak Shopping Centre, Hau Tak Estate, Tseung Kwan O

T 229K ¥ H S e L E g 22 i B 3 4 2641 1911
Heng On Estate Level 3, Commercial Centre, Heng On Estate

Ma On Shan, Sha Tin

SR R BE 2SR R 2 40 1 M 103 9% 2616 4618
Kingswood Ginza Shop 103, 1/F, Phase 2, Kingswood Ginza, Tin Shui Wai

LR S ZE MR SRS | M 111 5% 2279 4161
Kwai Chung Estate Shop 111, Podium Level 1, Kwai Chung Shopping Centre

Kwai Chung Estate, Kwai Chung

IR T IR DR R 2 212 5% 2607 2163
Lek Yuen Estate Shop No. 212, Lek Yuen Plaza, Lek Yuen Estate, Shatin
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HEAD OFFICE, BRANCHES, PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATES

R_F—-ZFE=ZHEH

as of 7 March 2013
L
Telephone
Wi o1 - 4
NEW TERRITORIES BRANCHES - continued
LR TH " BLSHIE RSS2 M 209 5% 2465 1882
Leung King Estate Shop No. 209, Level Two, Leung King Plaza
Leung King Estate, Tuen Mun
kA kTR 71 9% 2670 6295
Sheung Shui 71 San Fung Avenue, Sheung Shui
i A T 58 237 2178 1203
Sheung Tak Estate Shop No. 237, Sheung Tak Shopping Centre
Sheung Tak Estate, Tseung Kwan O
PNl KRS 225 9% 2650 0863
Tai Wo Plaza Shop No. 225, Level 2, Tai Wo Plaza, Tai Po
KRR RARBEIRERIR R EERG s | # 112 9% 2486 3423
Tin Chak Estate Shop 112, 1/F, Tin Chak Shopping Centre
Tin Chak Estate, Tin Shui Wai
£ ZEHYDIHIE 298 R I5 B 2408 7481
Tsuen Wan Jade Plaza, 298 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan
L AL VH TR I 45 SR e AERY 82 Bk 2453 0181
Tuen Mun Glorious Garden Shop No. 82, Glorious Garden, 45 Lung Mun Road
Tuen Mun
R AE IR 117 SRR AE R 24417117
Tuen Mun Hong Lai Garden G/F, Hong Lai Garden, 117 Heung Sze Wui Road
Tuen Mun
TR HFETEE R AAE 11 2 12A 9% 2656 4313
‘Wan Tau Tong Estate Shop Nos. 11-12A, Wan Loi House, Wan Tau Tong Estate
Tai Po
AT SR SRR M T 1 K 2 Bt 31417115
Yat Tung Estate Shop Nos. 1 & 2, G/F, Yat Tung Shopping Centre
Yat Tung Estate, Tung Chung
I | JCHIT ILIZE 99 2 109 %% 2475 5307
Yuen Long 99-109 Castle Peak Road, Yuen Long



Mot~ EERWESA kKRR
HEAD OFFICE, BRANCHES, PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATES

HoF—=F=HEH
as of 7 March 2013

B

GUANGZHOU REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE

JEM

Guangzhou

RMm 1T
MACAU BRANCH

e

Macau

=t T
SAN FRANCISCO BRANCH

=¥

San Francisco

L&

i ] 3 B2 P i e R i B 339 R
A MR 18A 55 01 %

Room 01, Unit 18A, 18/F, Annex A

339 Huanshi Dong Lu, Yuexiu District
Guangzhou, Guangdong

China
WL rE ¥ K B I 693 %
RIEREHT

No. 693, Avenida da Praia Grande
Edificio Tai Wah, R/C
Macau

LB =

AR e 601 5%

BB K 94108-2804

International Building, 601 California Street
San Francisco, California 94108-2804

USA

SHANGHAI REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE

Eifg

Shanghai

s 17
SHANTOU BRANCH

s

Shantou

Rl T T T P G B 288 5%
RS 0 2605 5

Room 2605, Chong Hing Finance Centre
288 Nanjing Road West

Huangpu District, Shanghai

China

e B SR T v < i 162 %
IR R B AT 1 103 28 105 5%
Lanbao International Mansion

No. 103-105, Block One

Fengzezhuang

No. 162 Jinsha Road

Shantou, Guangdong

China

il

Telephone

(86-20) 8375 8300

(853) 2833 9982

(1-415) 433 6404

(86-21) 6358 8099

(86-754) 8890 3222
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Moatr > ERWESAE kKRR ZR A
HEAD OFFICE, BRANCHES, PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATES
R_F—-ZFE=ZHEH

as of 7 March 2013

EUME A PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
RIEERAH Card Alliance Company Limited

BB G S I A TR A ] Chong Hing Commodities and Futures Limited
BB B A PR 28 ) Chong Hing Finance Limited

A8 R A TR 2 ) Chong Hing Information Technology Limited
A B O B A PR 23 ) Chong Hing Insurance Company Limited
AIBE (B HRRAH Chong Hing (Nominees) Limited

RIS PR A H] Chong Hing Securities Limited

R A RAE Gallbraith Limited

LA R Hero Marker Limited

AR RAE Top Benefit Enterprise Limited

LA AFFILIATES

AN B A PR A H] Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited

i (k) G RA COSCO (Hong Kong) Group Limited

=2 UFI 8117 The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd
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